
 

Page 1 of 808 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 06, 2019 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of April 15, 2019. 

2. Special Meeting of April 25, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

3. Public hearing on proposed amendments to the City’s FY19 Budget. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

4. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City’s FY19 Budget. 

5. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

6. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project. 

7. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project - Chancellor Drive to Nordic Drive. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

8. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project - Chancellor Drive to Nordic Drive. 

9. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 100 
Block Alley Reconstruction Project. 

1



 

Page 2 of 808 

 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

10. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project. 

11. Public hearing on the FY19-23 Consolidated Plan and FY19 Annual Action Plan for Community 
Development Block Grant & HOME Program funding. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 29, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the FY19-23 Consolidated Plan and FY19 
Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant & HOME Program funding. 

Old Business 

13. Pass Ordinance #2939, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District, upon its third & final consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

14. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Rebecca Aberle as Student 
Liaison, term ending 04/30/2020. 

15. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Paul Lee to the Civil 
Service Commission, term ending 04/06/2020. 

16. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of April 15, 2019 relative to the following items: 
a) Small Cell Siting.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 

17. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of March 2019. 

18. Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to certified lists for the 
following positions: 
a) Storm Water Specialist. 
b) Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant.  
c) Public Safety Supervisor - Captain. 

19. Receive and file the 2018 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, Board of 
Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing 
Appeals, Housing Commission and Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

20. Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of Community Main Street relative to FY19 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds and an FY19 Economic Development Grant. 

21. Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership relative to FY19 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds and an FY19 Economic Development Grant. 

2



 

Page 3 of 808 

22. Receive and file three Reports of Compensation Commissioners and Notices of Appraisement of 
Damages and Time of Appeal, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

23. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
(1) Five Corners Liquor & Wine, 809 East 18th Street. 
(2) Hansen's Dairy, 123 East 18th Street. 
(3) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue. 
(4) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue. 
(5) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue. 
(6) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street. 
(7) The Landmark, 107 Main Street. 
(8) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street. 
(9) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard. 
(10) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard. 

24. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 
b) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
e) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Farm Shed, 115-119 Main Street, Class B liquor & outdoor 
service - sidewalk café. 
f) Sturgis Falls Celebration, Island Park Beach House, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-day 
permit. 
g) Sturgis Falls Celebration, Gateway Park, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 5-day permit. 
h) Cedar Basin Jazz Festival & Live to 9, Sturgis Park, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 6-
month permit. 
i) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Consulting Agreement with Holmes Murphy & 
Associates, Inc. relative to employee benefits consulting services. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to the Employer Participation 
Agreement with Express Scripts, Inc. relative to auditing of pharmacy benefit management services. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of printers and 
copiers. 

28. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Easement Agreement, in conjunction with a 
sidewalk café at 115-119 Main Street. 

29. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Wrecker/Towing/Storage 
Service with L&M Transmission & Towing. 

30. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Wrecker/Towing/Storage 
Service with The Rasmusson Company. 

31. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Black 
Hawk County Pheasants Forever & Quail Forever Chapter relative to the Youth Pollinator Habitat 
Project. 

32. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of a grapple loader 
truck. 

33. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the 
2019 Permeable Alley Project. 

3



 

Page 4 of 808 

34. Resolution approving and accepting two Temporary Construction Easements, one Warranty Deed 
and one Special Warranty Deed, in conjunction with the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project. 

35. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 315 Franklin Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program.  

36. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract with the Cedar Falls Woman's Club for 
use of their facility for a charrette relative to the Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update. 

37. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Riverwise Engineering, LLC for bathymetric survey services 
relative to the Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project. 

38. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Appraisal Services with Rally 
Appraisal relative to the 2019 Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 

39. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Encroachment Agreement with the North 
Cedar Neighborhood Association relative to placement of a neighborhood sign within the public right-
of-way. 

40. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Furn Subdivision. 

41. Resolution approving the final plat of Furn Subdivision. 

42. Resolution approving an S-1 Shopping Center District site plan for redevelopment of a building 
located at 6301 University Avenue. 

43. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Developmental Procedures Agreement with 
Furn USA IA-Cedar Falls, LLC relative to property located at 6301 University Avenue. 

44. Resolution approving the reassignment of a Professional Service Agreement from Community 
ReCode, LLC to Ferrell Madden, LLC relative to the Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update 
Project. 

45. Resolution approving and adopting Project Priorities for the Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code 
Update. 

46. Resolution approving the proposal of Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. to construct a permanent stage, 
and waiving the variance application fee. 

47. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of five Memorandums of Agreement for stair 
reconstruction, in conjunction with the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project. 

48. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 5 with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services relative to the 2nd Street Reconstruction-Main to 
Washington and 3rd Street Reconstruction-State to Washington Projects. 

Ordinances 

49. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
reorganization of City operations, upon its first consideration. 

50. Pass an ordinance amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances relative to the renaming of 
the Department of Municipal Operations and Programs to the Department of Public Works, in 
conjunction with the reorganization of City operations, upon its first consideration. 

51. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 15, Nuisances and Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the 
Code of Ordinances relative to the renaming of the Public Works and Parks Division Manager to the 
Operations and Maintenance Division Manager, in conjunction with the reorganization of City 
operations, upon its first consideration. 

4



 

Page 5 of 808 

52. Pass an ordinance amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances to be in conformance with 
the Code of Iowa and consistent with current City operations, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

53. Allow Bills and Payroll of May 6, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Executive Session 

54. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation, and Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the purchase or sale 
of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase 
the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the 
governmental body would receive for that property, following Public Forum. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

5



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 15, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse (via phone), Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Absent: None. 

 
52273 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Wieland that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of April 1, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring April 25-28, 2019 as YWCA Stand 
Against Racism Weekend. YWCA of Black Hawk County Executive Director 
Lucinda Mohr commented. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring April 21-27, 2019 as Administrative 
Professional’s Week and April 24, 2019 as Administrative Professional’s Day.  

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring May 2019 as Bike Month; May 8, 
2019 as Bike to School Day; May 13-17, 2019 as Bike to Work Week; May 15, 
2019 as Ride of Silence Day; and May 17, 2019 as Bike to Work Day. Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Advisory Committee member Andrew Shroll commented. 

 
The Mayor then recognized the Cedar Falls High School Rocket Club and 2019 
State Basketball Champions.  

 
52274 - City Clerk Danielsen announced that Item 8 on the Consent Calendar would be 

received and filed only, and that Item 16 on the Resolution Calendar was being 
removed by staff. 

 
52275 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 5, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
Agreement for Private Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real 
estate to Zuidberg NA, L.L.C. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by 
Green that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on 
file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52276 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Agreement and conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no 
written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner 
II Graham gave a brief explanation of the proposal. Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, 
expressed concerns with the proposal, and Grow Cedar Valley representative 
Lisa Skubal and Zuidberg NA, L.L.C. President Ryan Holden, spoke in support of 
the proposed Agreement and conveyance. There being no one else present 
wishing to speak about the Agreement and conveyance, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

6



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
52277 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,483, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development 
and a Minimum Assessment Agreement with Zuidberg NA, L.L.C., and approving 
and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real 
estate to Zuidberg NA, L.L.C., be adopted. Following a comment by 
Councilmember deBuhr, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,483 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52278 -     It was moved by Wieland and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2938, 

amending Section 26-118 (formerly 29-107) of the Code of Ordinances by 
removing property located at the southeast corner of West 12th Street and Union 
Road from the A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the same in the RP, Planned 
Residence District, be passed upon its third and final consideration. The Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2938 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52279 -     It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2939, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the College 
Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District, be passed upon its second 
consideration.  

 
      It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Green to amend the motion to 

remove language within 26-181(5)(a)(6) that states “For mixed-use buildings 
constructed prior to January 1, 2019, parking is not required for existing dwelling 
units.” Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr and Green, and 
responses by City Attorney Rogers, Community Development Director Sheetz 
and Community Services Manager Howard, the motion to amend failed 6-1 with 
Councilmembers Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland and Green voting 
nay.  

 
      Following additional comments by Councilmember Green, the Mayor then put the 

question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: 
Kruse, Green. Motion carried. 

 
52280 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
   Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 

of members to Boards and Commissions:  
    a) MaryJane McCollum, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 

05/01/2023.  
   b) Bruce Wingert, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2023. 
 
   Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 

7



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer. 
 
Approve the following special event related requests:  
a) Street closures, Shamrock Shuffle, April 27, 2019.  
b) Street closures, UNI Triathlon, April 28, 2019.  
c) Parking variance, Washington Street (Annual Friends of MercyOne Cedar 

Falls May Breakfast), May 14, 2019.  
d) Street closures, Iowa Shrine Bowl Parade, July 20, 2019.  
e) Street closures, College Hill Farmers Market, June 6, July 11, August 1, 

September 5 & October 3, 2019. 
 
   Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
   a) Hy-Vee Clubroom, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal.  
   b) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 

5307 Caraway Lane, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal.  
   c) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - renewal.  
   d) The Horny Toad American Bar & Grille, 204 Main Street, Class C liquor - 

renewal.  
  e) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal.  
   f) CVS/Pharmacy, 2302 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal.  
   g) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
    
   Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52281 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Darrah to receive and file the 

Committee of the Whole minutes of April 1, 2019 relative to the following items: 
   a) Sustainability.  
   b) Bills & Payroll.   
    
   Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, Councilmember Miller 

raised point of order, and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
52282 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller to receive and file the City 

Council Work Session minutes of April 1, 2019. Following comments by Jim 
Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor announced a short recess from 7:33 P.M. to 
7:36 P.M. Upon reconvening, the motion carried unanimously.  

 
52283 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Darrah to approve a request by 

Winnebago Boy Scouts of America for a permit to operate a Daisy BB Gun 
Range at Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, on May 23, 2019. 
Following comments by Boy Scout Representative Whitney Jensen, 512 College 
Street, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
52284 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,484, approving and authorizing execution of a lease relative to 
property vacated by the 2008 flood buyout programs. 
 

8



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Resolution #21,485, approving and authorizing execution of a contract with Laser 
Line Striping relative to 2019 pavement marking services. 
 
Resolution #21,486, approving and authorizing execution of four Owner 
Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting two Permanent Drainage 
Easements and two Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the 
Walnut Street Box Culvert Project. 
 
Resolution #21,487, approving and authorizing execution of two Owner Purchase 
Agreements, in conjunction with the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project - 
Chancellor Drive to Nordic Drive. 
 
Resolution #21,488, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc., in the amount of $202,362.40, for the 
2019 Permeable Alley Project. 
 
Resolution #21,489, approving and authorizing execution of a Developmental 
Procedures Agreement with BJW Holdings, LLC relative to storm sewer 
oversizing for Park Ridge Estates Subdivision. 
 
Resolution #21,490, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the Cedar Heights 
Drive Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,491, approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special 
Promissory Note for property located at 1026 West 8th Street relative to the 
Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 
 
Resolution #21,492, approving and authorizing submission of a Certified Local 
Government National Register Nomination of the Cedar Falls Wild Historic 
District, as recommended by the Historic Preservation Commission. 
 
Resolution #21,493, approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning 
District site plan for façade improvements at 2020 College Street. 
 
Resolution #21,494, approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning 
District site plan for façade improvements at 2125 College Street. 
 
Resolution #21,495, approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for a commercial/residential mixed use redevelopment at 302 Main 
Street and 123 East 3rd Street/305 State Street, as recommended by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
Resolution #21,496, approving and authorizing execution of a Service Agreement 
with Farmers State Bank relative to drawdowns of Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funds. 
 
Resolution #21,497, approving and authorizing reimbursements and cancellation 
of one assessment relative to the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9, in 
conjunction with the 2019 Street Construction Project. 

9



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,498, approving and adopting Small Cell Design Guidelines for the 
City of Cedar Falls. 
 
Resolution #21,499, approving and adopting a Small Wireless Facility Fee 
Schedule. 
 
Resolution #21,500, receiving and filing, and setting May 6, 2019 as the date of 
public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,501, receiving and filing, and setting May 6, 2019 as the date of 
public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - University Branch of Dry 
Run Creek Project. 
 
Resolution #21,502, receiving and filing, and setting May 6, 2019 as the date of 
public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project - Chancellor Drive to 
Nordic Drive. 

 
   Resolution #21,503, setting May 6, 2019 as the date of public hearing on 

amendments to the City's FY19 Budget. 
 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,484 through #21,503 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52285 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,504, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Marco Relationship Agreement with 
Marco Technologies, LLC relative to a new phone system, be adopted. Following 
a comment by Councilmember Green and explanation by Finance & Business 
Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,504 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52286 -     It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green that the bills and payroll of 

April 15, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. 
Motion carried.  

 
52287 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford to refer to the Committee of 

the Whole a request to amend Ordinance 19-47(e) regarding monument 
mailboxes. Following a question by Councilmember Green and response by 
Community Services Director Sheetz, the motion carried 6-1 with Councilmember 

10



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

deBuhr voting nay. 
 
52288 - Mayor Brown announced City Hall being closed on April 19, 2019. 
 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson announced that the new cameras and 

lighting for College Hill and Downtown had arrived and that installation would 
begin in a couple weeks. 

 
 Community Services Director Sheetz announced that additional information from 

the April 2, 2019 Downtown Visioning meeting and stakeholder meetings is 
available at www.ourcedarfalls.com.  

 
Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck announced a College Hill 
Parking Study public meeting on April 23, 2019 from 6-8 P.M. at the University of 
Northern Iowa Center for Energy and Environmental Education. 

 
52289 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to 
discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature 
disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental 
body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental 
body would receive for that property, following Public Forum. Upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52290 - Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, announced the SnapShot Water Quality 

Monitoring event on April 27, 2019 from 9-11:30 A.M.  
 
 Doctor Brian Sires, 1939 College Street, expressed appreciation for the City 

process to amend the parking requirements, and cautioned parking partnerships 
with the University of Northern Iowa. 

 
 Councilmember Wieland commented on purchasing policies. 
 
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:57 P.M. 
 
 Mayor Brown reconvened the City Council meeting at 8:19 P.M. and stated that 

Property Acquisition had been discussed but that no further action was required 
at this time. 

 
52291 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:20 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

11



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 25, 2019 

SPECIAL MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

 
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Special Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 5:15 P.M. on the above date.  Members present:  
Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: Kruse. 
 

52292 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green to approve the application of 
Chad's Pizza, Birdsall Park Softball Complex, for a Class B beer & outdoor service 
6-month permit. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52293 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,505, being a 

resolution of Support for Opposing the FAA-recommended consolidation of the 
TRACON (Terminal Radar and Control) or radar services, from the FAA-owned 
Waterloo Air Traffic Control Tower to the Des Moines International Airport, be 
adopted. Waterloo Airport Director Keith Kaspari provided an explanation, submitted 
a copy of the FAA Consolidation Report and responded to questions by 
Councilmembers deBuhr and Darrah. The Mayor then put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #21,505 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52294 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,506, 

setting May 6, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the FY19-23 Consolidated Plan 
and FY19 Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant & HOME 
Program funding, be adopted. The Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,506 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52295 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned at 

5:22 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously.  
  

 
  ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 29th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Walnut Box Culvert Replacement Project 
  City Project No. BR-106-3152 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the Walnut Box Culvert Replacement Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, May 6th, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, May 14th, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. as the date 
and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders 
be published by April 19th, 2019. It is anticipated that the Plans and Specifications will 
be ready for distribution to contractors on April 19th, 2019 allowing more than two (2) 
weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the removal of existing bridge structure, placement of new double 
cell 14’ x 6’ precast RCB culvert, creek channel excavation, erosion control measures, 
and reconstruction of portions of one (1) City Street.  
 
The total estimated cost of the Walnut Box Culvert Replacement Project is $807,010.10. 
The funding for this project will be provided by the Storm Water Fund and Local Sales 
Tax.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or at the Engineering Division of the Department of 
Community Development. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer  

24



1 2010-108-C-0 Clearing & Grubbing L.S. 1.0 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

2 2010-108-D-3 Topsoil, Furnish & Spread C.Y. 419.0 $20.00 $8,380.00

3 2010-108-E-0 Excavation, Class 10, Roadway C.Y. 825.0 $14.00 $11,550.00

4 2010-108-E-0 Excavation, Class 10, Unstable, Roadway C.Y. 82.5 $13.00 $1,072.50

5 2010-108-E-0 Excavation, Class 12, Boulder C.Y. 8.2 $30.00 $246.00

6 2010-108-E-0 Excavation, Class 13, Channel C.Y. 125.9 $15.00 $1,888.50

7 2010-108-G-0 Compaction, Subgrade, Roadway STA. 4.5 $300.00 $1,350.00

8 2010-108-H-0 Geogrid S.Y. 1484.1 $5.00 $7,420.50

9 2010-108-I-0 Modified Subbase, 12 IN., Roadway S.Y. 2473.5 $14.00 $34,629.00

10 2010-108-J-2A Removal of Existing Bridge Structure L.S. 1.0 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

11 2010-999-1 Excavation, Class 23, Structure C.Y. 369.7 $13.00 $4,806.10

12 2010-999-2 Granular Subbase Backfill, Culvert C.Y. 75.4 $18.00 $1,357.20

13 2010-999-3 Granular Bedding, Culvert C.Y. 91.3 $45.00 $4,108.50

14 2010-999-4 Flowable Mortar, Culvert C.Y. 61.0 $140.00 $8,540.00

15 3010-108-D-0 Granular Backfill (Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill) TON 50.0 $25.00 $1,250.00

16 4010-108-A-1 Sewer, Sanitary, 8” Truss Pipe L.F. 72.0 $60.00 $4,320.00

17 4010-108-E-0 Sewer, Sanitary Service Stub, 4” SDR 23.5 L.F. 25.0 $50.00 $1,250.00

18 4010-108-H-0 Removal of Sanitary Sewer, VCP, 8” L.F. 138.0 $10.00 $1,380.00

19 4020-108-A-1 Sewer, Storm, 18 IN. Dia., 2000D, RCP L.F 114.0 $65.00 $7,410.00

20 4020-108-A-1 Sewer, Storm, 18 IN. Dia., Standard Perf., HDPE L.F. 170.0 $75.00 $12,750.00

21 4020-108-A-1 Sewer, Strom, 24 IN. Dia., 2000D, RCP L.F. 64.0 $60.00 $3,840.00

22 4020-108-A-1 Sewer, Storm, 24 IN. Dia., Standard Perf., HDPE L.F. 267.0 $70.00 $18,690.00

23 4020-108-C-0 Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 12” L.F. 448.0 $15.00 $6,720.00

24 4030-999-1 Double Cell 14 Ft. X 6 Ft. Culvert, Precast, PCC L.F. 54.0 $2,800.00 $151,200.00

25 4030-999-2 Double Cell 14 Ft. X 6 Ft. Culvert Apron, 2:1 Sloped End Section, Precast, PCC, Including L.S. 1.0 $17,000.00 $17,000.00

26 4030-999-3 Double Cell, Flared End Section, 30° South & -30° North, 2 - 2.3:1 Slope Walls, PCC, Including L.S. 1.0 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

27 4030-999-4 1 Ft. X 4 Ft. X 36 Ft. Curtain Wall, Precast, PCC EA. 2.0 $3,000.00 $6,000.00

28 4040-108-A-0 Subdrain, Standard Perf., 6 IN. L.F. 778.0 $11.00 $8,558.00

29 4040-108-D-0 Subdrain, Outlet, 6 In. X 2 Ft., CMP EA. 12.0 $200.00 $2,400.00

30 4040-108-D-0 Subdrain, Outlet, 6 In x 6 Ft., CMP EA. 2.0 $250.00 $500.00

31 4040-108-E-0 Storm Sewer Service Stub, Non Perforated HDPE, 4” EA. 4.0 $300.00 $1,200.00

32 5010-108-A-1 Watermain, Trenched, SJ DIP, 6” (Polyethylene Wrapped) L.F. 585.0 $60.00 $35,100.00

33 5010-108-A-1 Watermain, Trenched, SJ DIP, 10” (Polyethylene Wrapped) L.F. 130.0 $75.00 $9,750.00

34 5010-108-C-1 Bend, 6” MJ 45° EA. 4.0 $210.00 $840.00

35 5010-108-C-1 Bend, 6” MJ 90° EA. 8.0 $220.00 $1,760.00

36 5010-108-C-1 Cross, 6” X 6” MJ EA. 1.0 $350.00 $350.00

37 5010-108-C-1 Cross, 10” X 10” MJ EA. 1.0 $400.00 $400.00

38 5010-108-C-1 Tee, 6” X 6” MJ X MJ EA. 1.0 $350.00 $350.00

39 5010-108-C-1 Tee, 10” X 6” MJ X MJ EA. 1.0 $400.00 $400.00

40 5010-108-C-1 Reducer, 10” X 6” MJ X PE EA. 2.0 $250.00 $500.00

41 5010-108-C-1 Sleeve, 10” X 12” Solid EA. 2.0 $400.00 $800.00

42 5010-108-C-1 6” Nitrile Gaskets EA. 14.0 $120.00 $1,680.00

43 5010-108-C-1 10” Nitrile Gaskets EA. 4.0 $160.00 $640.00

44 5010-108-C-1 Cap, 6” MJ EA. 4.0 $135.00 $540.00

45 5010-108-C-1 Cap, 10” MJ EA. 2.0 $180.00 $360.00

46 5010-108-C-1 Joint Restraint Gasket, 6” EA. 14.0 $140.00 $1,960.00

47 5010-108-C-1 Joint Restraint Gasket, 10” EA. 2.0 $220.00 $440.00

48 5010-108-C-1 Mechanical Joint Restraint, 6” EA. 32.0 $130.00 $4,160.00

49 5010-108-C-1 Mechanical Joint Restraint, 10” EA. 6.0 $160.00 $960.00

50 5010-108-D-0 Service Shortside, ¾” EA. 2.0 $1,000.00 $2,000.00

51 5010-108-D-0 Service Longside, ¾” EA. 2.0 $1,500.00 $3,000.00

52 5020-108-A-0 Valve, 6” MJ Gate W/ Box EA. 4.0 $1,600.00 $6,400.00

53 5020-108-A-0 Valve, 10” MJ Gate W/ Box EA. 1.0 $2,200.00 $2,200.00

54 5020-108-C-0 Hydrant Assembly EA. 2.0 $4,800.00 $9,600.00

55 5020-108-I-0 Remove Hydrant Assembly EA. 1.0 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

56 6010-108-A-0 Manhole, Sanitary Sewer, SW-301 EA. 2.0 $4,000.00 $8,000.00

57 6010-108-A-0 Manhole, Storm Sewer, SW-401 EA. 2.0 $3,000.00 $6,000.00

58 6010-108-E-0 Manhole Adjustment, Minor EA. 2.0 $500.00 $1,000.00

59 6010-108-H-0 Remove Manhole EA. 3.0 $1,000.00 $3,000.00

60 6010-108-H-0 Remove Intake EA. 7.0 $1,000.00 $7,000.00

61 6010-999-1 Intake, Type D EA. 12.0 $5,000.00 $60,000.00

62 7010-108-A-0 Pavement, Stand. Or Slip-Form, PCC, 8 IN., Class ‘C’ S.Y. 2246.0 $47.00 $105,562.00

63 7030-108-A-0 Removal of Driveway S.Y. 80.6 $8.00 $644.80

64 7030-108-A-0 Removal of Sidewalk S.Y. 122.4 $8.00 $979.20

65 7030-108-E-0 Sidewalk, 4”, Type ‘C’, Class III, PCC S.Y. 65.0 $50.00 $3,250.00

66 7030-108-E-0 Sidewalk, 6”, Type ‘C’, Class III, PCC S.Y. 78.4 $60.00 $4,704.00

67 7030-108-G-0 Pedestrian Ramps, Detectable Warnings S.F. 100.0 $35.00 $3,500.00

68 7030-108-H-1 Driveway, 6”, Type ‘C’, Class III, PCC S.Y. 80.6 $50.00 $4,030.00

69 7030-108-H-2 Surfacing, 1” Roadstone TON 50.0 $14.00 $700.00

70 7040-108-A-0 Patch, HMA (ST) Surface, ½”, No Fric. TON 5.0 $250.00 $1,250.00

71 7040-108-H-0 Removal of Pavement S.Y. 2246.0 $15.00 $33,690.00

72 8030-108-A-0 Traffic Control L.S. 1.0 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

73 8940-999-1 Type A Signs, Aluminum S.F. 29.5 $25.00 $737.50

74 8940-999-2 Sign Post, Square Tubing 14 Gauge 2” Galvanized L.F 74.5 $40.00 $2,980.00

75 9010-108-B-0 Hydraulic Seeding S.F 15412.0 $0.50 $7,706.00

76 9020-108-A-0 Sod, Provide & Place S.F 7200.0 $0.65 $4,680.00

77 9040-108-D-1 Filter Sock, 9” L.F 240.0 $15.00 $3,600.00

78 9040-108-E-0 Rolled Erosion Control Product, Extended Term (RECP) S.Y. 452.2 $24.00 $10,852.80

79 9040-108-J-0 Revetment, Class E TON 210.0 $45.00 $9,450.00

80 9040-108-T-1 Sediment Filter, Intake Well EA. 12.0 $250.00 $3,000.00

81 9040-108-T-2 Cleaning, Sediment Filter Basin EA. 12.0 $200.00 $2,400.00

82 9080-108-B-0 Handrail, 2 IN. Dia. Steel Pipe, Hot Dip Galvanized L.F. 103.5 $225.00 $23,287.50

83 11,020-108-A-0 Mobilization L.S. 1.0 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

$703,870.10

$17,950.00

$85,190.00

$807,010.10

ESTIMATED 

QUANTITY

TOTAL STREET RECONSTRUCTION

TOTAL SANITARY WORK

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

May, 2019

Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement

14ft. X 6ft. Double Cell Precast Concrete Box Culvert & Associated Work
CITY PROJECT NO. BR-106-3152

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS AND QUANTITIES

University Branch of Dry Run Creek

ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION
ITEM   

NO.
UNIT UNIT PRICE

TOTAL WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT

TOTAL COST

25



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: April 10, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project 
   Project No. RC-293-3172 
   Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, May 6, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Tuesday, May 14, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by April 
19, 2019. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors on April 19, 
2019 allowing more than three (3) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the reconstruction of Ridgeway Avenue from Nordic Drive west 
approximately 750 feet. Work will include removal and replacement of the existing pavement, 
installation of a roundabout, storm sewer, subdrain, replacement of driveway approaches, and 
installation of a pedestrian trail. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $1,942,700. This project will be 
funded by the South Cedar Falls TIF and private funds. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community Development Department. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  

26



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
 
 DATE: April 26, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 100 Block Alley Reconstruction 
   Project No. RC-039-3154 
   Request for PS&E Approval 
 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 100 Block Alley 
Reconstruction were submitted to the City Council at the April 15, 2019 meeting and a public 
hearing was set for May 6, 2019. 
 
This project involves the construction of one downtown alley, in the 100 block of Main Street, on 
the east side.  Originally, it had been anticipated to reconstruct the alley at the same time as the 
parking lot, but due to project complications we were not able to do so.  The City entered into 
contract with AECOM in November 2018, to complete the design and prepare this project for 
bidding and reconstruction in 2019, starting in early July and estimated for completion by late 
October 2019.   
 
Work will include removal and replacement of the existing pavement, significant underground 
utility work, relocation of a transformer (to support widening the alleyway), subdrain, installing 
connection points for each property for sump pump and downspout tie ins to the new subdrain, 
storm sewer, three sets of stairs (for access to/from rear entrances and the parking lot), 
decorative bollards, removable bollards (to allow closing the alley for special events, as 
requested), a 4’ landscaped area, and a bid alternate for colored concrete that could be 
selected to complement Parkade and side street streetscape designs.  In addition, the City has 
worked with 6 property owners to coordinate improvements to their rear entrances in 
conjunction with the project.  Each property owner would pay for the cost of above grade stair 
replacements/improvements.  Each owner has signed an agreement.  These have been 
submitted separately for approval at the May 6, 2019 City Council meeting. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $153,466.03. Of that approximately 
$25,372.00 would be reimbursed by property owners, for stair improvements.  CIP #78 
estimated construction to be $150,000, utilizing TIF and a grant from Black Hawk County 
Gaming Association.  The City has secured the grant, generally to cover 30% of the project.   

27



 
This project meets the Organizational Goal #4 of the City Council goals for fiscal year 2019, 
utilizing TIF to make landscaping, alley, and other streetscape improvements in the Downtown 
and College Hill. 
 
The City has published Notice to Bidders and bids will be received and opened on Tuesday, 
May 14, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Community Development Department recommends approval of the Plans, Specifications, and 
Estimate of Costs and Quantities. 
 
 
CC:  Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 Jamie Castle, AIA, Building Official 

28



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 26, 2019 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing:  Community Development Block Grant and HOME 
Consortium 5-Year Consolidated Plan & Analysis of Impediments to Fair 
Housing FFY19-23 

  Annual Action Plan FY20 (FFY19) 
   
 
The Community Development Department, with the assistance of INRCOG, has 
prepared a draft FY19-23 Community Development Block Grant and HOME Consortium 
5-Year Consolidated Plan and Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing. In addition, 
Annual Action Plans (AAP) are required for each year within the 5-year plan.  The FY20 
AAP was prepared in conjunction with the 5-Year Plan.  For the City’s FY20 (Federal 
Fiscal Year 2019), Cedar Falls CDBG allocation is $253,085. 
 
A public hearing to discuss and receive any final input on the plan has been scheduled 
for Monday, May 6, 2019 as the final step to these two documents. They are available 
for public review at the City Clerk’s office and included with this memo. 
 
The draft plans have been on file with the City Clerk since February 12, 2019. The 
Housing Commission held public meetings on February 12, 2019 and March 12, 2019 
inviting discussion regarding the draft plans.  The Commission is recommending 
approval of the plans.  No public comments have been received on either plan, to date.   
 
The Community Development Department recommends holding the public hearing and 
adopting the FY19-23 Community Development Block Grant and HOME Consortium 5-
Year Consolidated Plan and Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing as well as the 
FY20 AAP at their May 6th meeting. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
     
xc:  Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

29



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2019‐2023 CONSOLIDATED PLAN 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW 
APRIL 25TH, 2019 

COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (30‐day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; February 6th, 2019 

HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
February 12th, 2019 (Opened the 30‐day public comment period) 
March 12th, 2019 (Closed the 30‐day public comment period; Recommendation made to City Council) 
Publication: Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; February 6th, 2019 

CITY COUNCIL (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
April 25th, 2019 (Council sets public hearing for May 6th, 2019) 
May 6th, 2019 (Anticipated) (After a properly‐noticed public hearing was conducted) 
Publication: Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; (date) 

1

30



Administration 

AD‐25: Consortia Specific: 91.400 

If a Consortia, list participating communities & note 
status 

Lead  HOME 
funds only 

CDBG 
Entitlement 

ESG 
Entitlement 

City of Waterloo, Iowa  Yes  No  Yes  No 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  No  No  Yes  No 

Table 1 – Consortium Communities 

AD‐25: Administration 91.220(a) 

Standard Form (SF) SF‐424 Application for Federal Assistance 

Standard Form (SF) SF‐424D Assurances for Construction Programs 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG): Entitlement Program Only 

Required Certifications: 

1. General Certifications (Attached)
a. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing
b. Anti‐Displacement and Relocation Plan
c. Anti‐Lobbying
d. Acquisition and Relocation
e. Section 3

2. Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Certifications (Attached)
a. Citizen Participation
b. Community Development Plan
c. Following a Current Consolidated Plan (FFY 2014‐2018)
d. Use of Funds
e. Excessive Force
f. Compliance with Anti‐Discrimination Laws
g. Compliance with Lead‐Based Paint Procedures
h. Compliance with Laws

2

31



CERTIFICATIONS 

In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations governing the consolidated plan regulations, 

the jurisdiction certifies that:  

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing --The jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair housing. 

Uniform Relocation Act and Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan -- It will comply with the 

acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 4601-4655) and implementing regulations at 49 

CFR Part 24.  It has in effect and is following a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance 

plan required under 24 CFR Part 42 in connection with any activity assisted with funding under the 

Community Development Block Grant or HOME programs.  

Anti-Lobbying --To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an

officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the

awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the

entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or

modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an

officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,

"Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions; and

3. It will require that the language of paragraph 1 and 2 of this anti-lobbying certification be included in

the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under

grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose

accordingly.

Authority of Jurisdiction --The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law (as applicable) 

and the jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to carry out the programs for which it is seeking funding, 

in accordance with applicable HUD regulations.  

Consistency with plan --The housing activities to be undertaken with Community Development Block 

Grant, HOME, Emergency Solutions Grant, and Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS funds are 

consistent with the strategic plan in the jurisdiction’s consolidated plan.  

Section 3 -- It will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 

1701u) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135.  

____________________________ _________ 

Signature of Authorized Official  Date 

____________________________ 

Title 

3

32



Specific Community Development Block Grant Certifications 

The Entitlement Community certifies that: 

Citizen Participation -- It is in full compliance and following a detailed citizen participation plan that 

satisfies the requirements of 24 CFR 91.105.  

Community Development Plan -- Its consolidated plan identifies community development and housing 

needs and specifies both short-term and long-term community development objectives that that have been 

developed in accordance with the primary objective of the CDBG program (i.e., the development of 

viable urban communities, by providing decent housing and expanding economic opportunities, primarily 

for persons of low and moderate income) and requirements of 24 CFR Parts 91 and 570.  

Following a Plan -- It is following a current consolidated plan that has been approved by HUD. 

Use of Funds -- It has complied with the following criteria:  

1. Maximum Feasible Priority.  With respect to activities expected to be assisted with CDBG

funds, it has developed its Action Plan so as to give maximum feasible priority to activities which

benefit low- and moderate-income families or aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or

blight.  The Action Plan may also include CDBG-assisted activities which the grantee certifies

are designed to meet other community development needs having particular urgency because

existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community,

and other financial resources are not available (see Optional CDBG Certification).

2. Overall Benefit.  The aggregate use of CDBG funds, including Section 108 guaranteed loans,

during program year(s) _________________________ [a period specified by the grantee of one,

two, or three specific consecutive program years], shall principally benefit persons of low and

moderate income in a manner that ensures that at least 70 percent of the amount is expended for

activities that benefit such persons during the designated period.

3. Special Assessments.  It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements

assisted with CDBG funds, including Section 108 loan guaranteed funds, by assessing any

amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate income,

including any fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public

improvements.

However, if CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment that relates to the 

capital costs of public improvements (assisted in part with CDBG funds) financed from other 

revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to the 

public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds.  

In addition, in the case of properties owned and occupied by moderate-income (not low-income) 

families, an assessment or charge may be made against the property for public improvements 

financed by a source other than CDBG funds if the jurisdiction certifies that it lacks CDBG funds 

to cover the assessment.  

Excessive Force -- It has adopted and is enforcing: 

1. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its

jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and

2. A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or

exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations

within its jurisdiction.

4

33



Compliance with Anti-discrimination laws -- The grant will be conducted and administered in 

conformity with title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d) and the Fair Housing Act (42 

U.S.C. 3601-3619) and implementing regulations.  

Lead-Based Paint -- Its activities concerning lead-based paint will comply with the requirements of 24 

CFR Part 35, Subparts A, B, J, K and R. 

Compliance with Laws -- It will comply with applicable laws. 

_____________________________ _____________ 

Signature of Authorized Official  Date  

___________________________ 

Title  

5

34



APPENDIX TO CERTIFICATIONS  

INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING LOBBYING CERTIFICATION: 

Lobbying Certification  

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 

was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 

transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 

each such failure.  

6

35



Executive Summary 

ES‐05 Executive Summary ‐ 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 

1. Introduction

The purpose of the Consolidated Plan is to guide federal funding decisions, relative to the City of Cedar Falls 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement program and the Waterloo‐Cedar Falls HOME 
Consortium program (managed by the City of Waterloo) for the next five years. The Plan is guided by four 
overarching objectives and specific actions defined below:  

Housing 

(1) To provide decent housing by preserving the affordable housing stock, increasing the availability of
affordable housing, reducing discriminatory barriers; increasing the supply of supportive housing for those
with special needs; and transitioning homeless persons and families into housing.

Action 1.1. Provide homeownership assistance through development of down‐payment assistance, first‐
time homebuyer programs, and possible conversion of Housing Choice Vouchers programs.

Action 1.2. Maintain existing affordable housing through continuation of housing rehabilitation, repair,
deposit assistance, and code enforcement programs, all of which will endeavor to preserve housing
quality standards.

Action 1.3. Increase the number of affordable housing units in the community.

Action 1.4. Address the housing needs of homeless, near‐homeless and special needs populations by
continuing to fund agencies that provide eligible services to these populations.

Action 1.5. Work to ensure fair housing is provided to all residents of the community by removing barriers
and impediments.

Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit
of all residents of the community.

Neighborhood and Community 

(2) To provide a suitable living environment through safer, more livable neighborhoods, greater integration
of low‐and‐moderate income households throughout the city, increased housing opportunities, and
reinvestment in deteriorating neighborhoods.

Action 2.1. Encourage neighborhood development and redevelopment in the city by improving and
extending infrastructure and pedestrian access to and among low‐and‐moderate income areas of the
community

Action 2.2. Provide recreational and healthy lifestyle improvements to parks, recreational areas, and
playgrounds in low‐and‐moderate income areas that may be owned by the city or other public agencies.

Action 2.3. Continue the city’s demolition and clearance program, which will be used to remove
deteriorated and/dilapidated structures that can make way for neighborhood improvements or additional
affordable housing to be constructed.

7

36



Action 2.4. As is allowed, provide transportation and access to it for low‐and‐moderate income areas and 
households. 

Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit 
of all residents of the community. 

Public Services 

(3) To provide services, such as rent assistance and through contracted agencies: healthcare, mental health,
substance abuse, financial counseling, nutrition, and other services that allow residents to reach their
greatest level of self‐sufficiency.

Action 3.1. Provide funding support to agencies, other than those cited above, that may offer services that
will prevent homelessness or protect households that are near‐homeless.

Action 3.2. Maintain the current Section 8/Housing Choice Voucher Program that is being administered by
the City.

Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit
of all residents of the community.

Economic Development 

(4) To expand economic opportunities through increased opportunities for living wage employment,
development activities that promote long‐term community viability, and the empowerment of low‐ and
moderate‐ income persons to achieve self‐sufficiency.

Action 4.1. Research the development of public‐private partnerships between the city and businesses and
industries in the community that could assist existing and prospective employees obtain suitable housing.

Action 4.2. Support job training opportunities for low‐and‐moderate income households in the
community in partnership with the University of Northern Iowa, Hawkeye Community College, and the
Cedar Falls schools.

Action 2.4. As is allowed, provide transportation services and access to it for low‐and‐moderate income
areas and households.  Providing these services will afford the opportunity for low‐and‐moderate income
household to obtain and maintain employment.

Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit
of all residents of the community.

Action 2.1. Encourage neighborhood development and redevelopment in the city by improving and
extending infrastructure and pedestrian access to low‐and‐moderate income areas of the community.

Cedar Falls is committed to allocating funds that serve the needs of the lowest income and most disadvantaged 
households. Households with incomes less than 50 percent of the area median income, particularly those with 
extremely low incomes are particular priorities. The city has also identified special needs individuals as among 
those who face the greatest challenges and who should receive high priority in the allocation of federal funds, 
including at‐risk children and youth, low‐income families, the homeless and persons threatened with 
homelessness, the elderly, and persons with disabilities.  

8

37



The City, by focusing on these needs, seeks to address the following community concerns: the need for additional 
affordable housing units, as well as maintaining the existing affordable units, in order to address the growing gap 
between housing costs and local incomes.  Funding programs that offer community services, particularly in low 
income areas, while providing a network of shelter, housing, and support services that prevent homelessness.  This 
may include moving homeless persons to permanent housing and independence and eliminating chronic 
homelessness. Also, programs that promote economic development, create jobs, and increase the job skills of 
employees are supported by the community.  Finally, the City hopes to increase the ability of seniors, persons with 
disabilities, and others with special needs to live independently. 

2. Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan

This could be a restatement of items or a table listed elsewhere in the plan or a reference to another location. It 
may also contain any essential items from the housing and homeless needs assessment, the housing market 
analysis or the strategic plan. 

The City of Cedar Falls will provide assistance and services to low‐and‐moderate income households in accordance 
to the Consolidated and Annual Action Plans through the following designated projects and services: 

 managing housing rehabilitation and repair programs,

 establishing homeownership programs,

 supporting accessibility improvements and public services,

 continuing demolition and clearance programs,

 fostering healthy lifestyle planning and recreational amenity construction,

 affecting the affordability of housing,

 enhancing transportation services,

 encouraging development of daycare services,

 working with both businesses, industries, and educational institutions to address providing
homeownership and job skill training for low‐and‐moderate income households,

 implementing infrastructure projects, and

 increasing housing planning efforts.

These programs are designated to improve and preserve the housing stock, increase affordable housing, prevent 
homelessness and improve neighborhood areas in the community. By focusing on these overall priorities outlined 
in the Cedar Falls Consolidated Plan, we are striving to provide decent housing by preserving the affordable 
housing stock, preventing or minimizing homelessness or near‐homelessness, providing a suitable living 
environment and expanding economic opportunities for residents. 

3. Evaluation of past performance

This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or projects. As stated in 
the City of Cedar Falls’ Future Forward Plan, the community has identified unique and highly attractive housing 
options as a priority for the community.  In addition, with this Plan, affordable housing, community development, 
economic development, homelessness and social services are viewed as priority needs for the City. High priorities 
for FFY 2019‐2023 also include infrastructure improvements, public facility improvements, demolition and 
clearance of dilapidated structures, public services and the development and maintenance of affordable housing. 
The City has addressed some of those goals during prior years through its rehabilitation projects and public service 
agency awards. 

4. Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process

Summary from the citizen participation section of plan, which includes four focus group meetings with over 30 
participants, affected entities and agencies and a communitywide survey. Focus group meetings were held to 

9

38



identify current issues and trends impacting the agencies and organizations. Topics discussed included a general 
overview of the services being provided, current and future needs; homelessness; services to extremely low‐ and‐ 
moderate‐income families and individuals; and the most prevalent need, providing affordable housing. The 
information gathered was used in developing the Consolidated Plan, specifically the goals, objective, and actions 
identified in the plan. 

The survey, which was primarily web‐based, was available to the public from December 3rd, 2018 through 
December 23rd, 2018.  Paper copies of the survey were also available at City Hall, the Cedar Falls Library, Northeast 
Iowa Food Bank, and Operation Threshold for persons that did not have access to the internet.  The format of said 
survey was developed using examples from other CDBG Entitlement communities, with input and personalization 
from both the cities of Cedar Falls and Waterloo.  Nearly 160 responses were received from Cedar Falls residents 
and the results underscored the comments and direction provided by participant in the focus groups; the primary 
housing need of the community is to provide affordable, quality housing for its residents.  The results of both the 
focus groups and surveys were discussed at the Housing Commission’s November 27th, 2018 and January 8th, 2019 
meetings, both of which were legally posted, as the Consolidated and FFY 2019 Annual Action Plans were under 
development. 

Finally, a comment period legal notice was advertised on February 6th, 2019 in the Waterloo Courier.  The 30‐day 
comment period was defined in the notice, stating that the public could review and comment on the draft plan 
between February 12th and March 12th, 2019.  The Commission held specific public comment opportunities on its 
agenda relative to the draft plans on February 12th, 2019, and March 12th, 2019.  Both meetings were legally 
posted.  Also, public input was formally considered through conduct of a City Council public hearing on May 6th, 
2019, which was legally advertised in the Waterloo Courier on April XXth, 2019.  No comments were received from 
the public or either meeting. 

5. Summary of public comments

This could be a brief narrative summary or reference an attached document from the Citizen Participation 
section of the Con Plan. 

As noted above, four focus group meetings were held at the Hearst Center for the Arts in Cedar Falls over the 
course of three days.  Further, a communitywide survey, garnering 158 responses was received by the community, 
with the intent that it would provide community‐directed guidance for the plan.  City Administration reviewed the 
draft documents prior to presentation of the initial drafts to the Housing Commission.  In addition, a 30‐day 
comment period was publicly recognized and properly advertised between February 12th, 2019 and March 12th, 
2019.  The Housing Commission reviewed the draft, which was also on‐file with the City Clerk, at their public 
meeting on March 12th, 2019 and recommended its adoption to the City Council.  In addition, the April 1st edition 
of the City’s newsletter (Currents), which is directly mailed to each resident, included an article about the plans.  
Finally, the City Council conducted a Public Hearing, prior to adoption of the Consolidated and FFY 2019 Action 
Plans, on May 6th, 2019.  No public comments were received. 

6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them

No comments were rejected. 

7. Summary

As is evident, the City of Cedar Falls conducted a lengthy and deliberate public planning process that would guide 
the expenditure of federal funds provided by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development over the 
next five years.  Numerous opportunities for public input were offered to residents, agencies, organizations, 
elected and appointed public representatives, as well as to neighboring jurisdictions.   

10

39



The City’s primary goal is to provide decent, safe affordable housing to its residents while attempting to increase 
the availability of affordable housing throughout the community.  The City has developed four overriding 
objectives that it wants to implement during the life of this plan, all of which are centered on positively affecting 
the affordability of housing in the community.  

11

40



Public Input and Consultation 

PR‐05 Lead & Responsible Agencies ‐ 91.200(b) 

1. Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for 
administration of each grant program and funding source. 

Agency Role  Name  Department/Agency 

CDBG Administrator  Cedar Falls  Department of Community Development 

Table 9 – Responsible Agencies 

Narrative 

The City of Cedar Falls administers its own CDBG activities, through the assistance of the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG). The City will carry out the activities described in the Consolidated Plan using 
their CDBG Entitlement resources. 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

City of Cedar Falls 
Department of Community Development 
Planning and Community Services Division 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Contact: Planning and Community Services Manager 
Telephone: (319) 273‐8600 
Website: http://www.cedarfalls.com 

12

41



PR‐10 Consultation/Coordination ‐ 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) 

1. Introduction

The consultation process for the City of Cedar Falls included conducting four focus group meetings with local public 
agencies, local governments, and non‐profit organizations, as well as completing a communitywide web‐based 
citizen survey, in a coordinated effort with the City of Waterloo.  To that end, these efforts were used in order to 
develop a Consolidated Plan that is community‐driven. The meetings, which were held in an accessible location in 
the community, Hearst Center for the Arts, were beneficial in identifying current issues and trends impacting the 
agencies and organizations, as well as evaluating the performance of the current CDBG services the City was 
providing and what services might also be needed.  Said meetings allowed the entities a chance to interact with 
the City’s Housing Commission and staff.  In addition, those entities that participated in the focus groups found 
merit in meeting together, both for this plan and in the future, to discuss needs and current and future 
programming of resources. 

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between public and assisted 
housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and service agencies (91.215(l)). 

As part of its annual CDBG awards made to service agencies, City staff conducts monitoring visits and holds a 
forum with their Housing Commission. These meetings provide direct insight into the changing needs of the 
community and its residents. This information may then be fed directly into the City’s housing planning processes.  
INRCOG staff, which is working with the City, also administers two housing trust funds, which conduct regular input 
sessions with local governments, agencies, organizations, financial institutions and real estate businesses, and the 
state government regarding housing. These sessions help to identify needs, barriers, and outline strategies 
regarding how to improve housing in the area. 

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of homeless persons 
(particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans, and unaccompanied 
youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 

Within the focus group sessions, conducted as part of this plan, several Continuum of Care providers offered input 
into the City’s process. The Salvation Army, Western Home, and Cedar Valley Friends of the Family provide senior 
housing, homeless services, and sheltering services to Cedar Falls’ residents. Further, Habitat for Humanity offers 
affordable housing to families assisting them with homeownership. Strategies were discussed on how to better 
assist and affirmatively further fair housing to those with the greatest needs. In addition, the other participating 
organizations provided in‐depth information on housing needs for special needs populations, homeless persons, in 
addition to persons at risk of homelessness. 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction’s area in determining how to 
allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate outcomes of projects and activities assisted 
by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 

The City of Cedar Falls does not directly receive, or distribute, ESG funds. 

2. Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and consultations

In addition to the agencies identified in Table 2, the City engaged the City of Waterloo, the Black Hawk County 
Health Department, and the US Department of Housing Urban Development on lead‐safety issues.  Also, the City’s 
Housing Assistance office participated in the plan development process, specifically with regard to Housing Choice 
Vouchers, rental unit availability, property management, and Affirmative Fair Housing strategies.  Finally, the City 
consulted with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG), a regional planning agency that 
administers transportation, economic development, land use, and housing initiatives, while developing this Plan. 

13

42



Table 10 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

1  Agency/Group/Organization  Americans for Independent Living 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Housing Rehab and Repair for Veterans 
Services – Sheltering for Homeless Veterans 
Services – Transitional Housing for Veterans 
Services – Home Furnishings for Veterans 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Unable to attend Focus Group sessions, but offered 
feedback through a separate questionnaire. It is 
anticipated that the outreach will evolve into regular 
coordinating forums between agencies, organizations 
and city officials. 

2  Agency/Group/Organization  Black Hawk County Emergency Management 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Emergency Preparedness 
Planning‐ Hazard Mitigation Plan (Countywide) 
Planning – Evacuation Plan (Countywide) 
Services – Natural and Manmade Disaster Response 
Planning – Emergency Support Function 
Services – Incident Management 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The Black Hawk County Multi‐Jurisdictional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan was consulted regarding proposed 
improvement locations.  The EMA Director was 
consulted regarding needs for the community. 

3  Agency/Group/Organization  Black Hawk County Health Department 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Lead Based Paint Safety 
Housing – Radon Awareness 
Services‐Public Health STI/HIV/AIDS 
Services – Children’s Health/Childhood Lead Poisoning 
Services –Inspections (Food Safety; Water Source; 
Septic Systems) 
Services ‐ Public Health Policy 
Services – Health Code Enforcement 
Services – Emergency Preparedness 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

4  Agency/Group/Organization  Landlords of Black Hawk County 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services‐Housing Education 
Housing – Private Sector 
Housing – Market analysis/information 

14

43



What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

5  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Community School District 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Homeless Services (students) 
Services ‐Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

6  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Housing Commission 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Needs Assessment and Market Analysis 
Information/Representation 
Services – Advocacy 
Planning and Administration  

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

7  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Discrimination investigation 
Services – Victim Rights and Assistance 
Services – Education Related to Discrimination 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

8  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Ministerial Association 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service – Community Outreach 
Service – Spiritual and Guidance 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

15

44



Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

9  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Utilities 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Repair and Weatherization 
Services – Electric Power and Natural Gas, 
Telecommunications, Internet Service Provider 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

10  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls (City Government; Community 
Development; Public Works; Public Safety 
Departments) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – CDBG, HOME, Housing Choice Vouchers 
Administration 
Services – Planning, Zoning, Floodplain Administration, 
Code Enforcement, Water, Sewer, Storm Sewer, Public 
Safety Provider 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

11  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Valley Friends of the Family 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Agency Offering Protection from 
Domestic Abuse, Sexual Assault, Homelessness, and 
Human Trafficking 
Services – Sheltering and Rapid Rehousing 
Services – Continuum of Care Provider 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

12  Agency/Group/Organization  Community Housing Initiatives 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service – Homelessness; Case Management; Advocacy 
Services – Persons with Disabilities 

16

45



What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

13  Agency/Group/Organization  Consumer Credit Counseling 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Money Management; Credit Counseling; 
Financial Education 
Services – Credit Improvement and Bankruptcy services 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

14  Agency/Group/Organization  Hope for Healing Resource Assistance Network 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Service Coordination 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

15  Agency/Group/Organization  House of Hope 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Homelessness 
Housing – Transitional Housing 
Services – Transportation, Childcare, Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

16  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Department of Human Rights Commission of 
Persons with Disabilities 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – State Agency 
Awareness – Equal Rights; Victim Rights 
Services‐Education 
Services – Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

17

46



Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

17  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing ‐ Regional Agency 
Housing – Affordable Housing 
Housing – Rehab and Repair Programs 
Services ‐ Advocacy 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

18  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing ‐ Regional Planning Agency; Regional Housing 
Council and Trust Fund Administrator 
Housing – Waterloo Housing Trust Fund 
Housing – Rehab and Repair Programs 
Services – Metropolitan Transportation Planning 
Organization; Regional Transportation Authority 
Services – Regional Transit Commission 
Services – Economic Development Commission 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

19  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Workforce Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – State Agency 
Services – Underemployment; Unemployed Financial 
Assistance 
Services – Employment Counseling Assistance 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

20  Agency/Group/Organization  Love, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service ‐ Coordination 

18

47



What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

21  Agency/Group/Organization  Metropolitan Transit Authority of Black Hawk County 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Transit and Paratransit Service 
Services – Advocacy; Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in separate input session with staff. It is 
anticipated that this agency will continue to coordinate 
transit services with agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

22  Agency/Group/Organization  New Aldaya (Cedar Falls Lutheran Home) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Senior 
Housing – Private Provider 
Services – Senior Healthcare 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

23  Agency/Group/Organization  Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Senior 
Services‐ Food and Nutrition 
Housing – Accessibility Improvements 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

24  Agency/Group/Organization  Northeast Iowa Food Bank/Food Pantry 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Food and Food‐Related; Mobile 
Food Pantry; Backpack Nutrition Program 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

19

48



Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

25  Agency/Group/Organization  Northeast Iowa Regional Board of Realtors 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Regional Private Board; Property Owner 
Advocacy 
Housing – Needs Assessment and Market Analysis 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

26  Agency/Group/Organization  Operation Threshold 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service – Regional Community Action Agency 
Service – WIC Assistance 
Housing – TBRA, Repair and Rehab 
Housing ‐ Weatherization 
Service – Utility and Energy Assistance 
Services – Parent Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

27  Agency/Group/Organization  Pathways Behavioral Services 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service‐Regional Mental Health Provider 
Service – Substance Abuse Counseling and Treatment 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

28  Agency/Group/Organization  The Salvation Army 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Daily Meal Program 
Services – Youth Center 
Services – Emergency Assistance 
Services – Emergency Disaster Assistance 
Homelessness ‐ Men’s Shelter 
Homelessness – Women’s and Children’s Shelter 

20

49



What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

29  Agency/Group/Organization  Tri‐County Child and Family Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Agency 
Services – Family Services 
Services – Health, Social Services, Meals 
Services – Early Childhood Education (Head Start) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

30  Agency/Group/Organization  University of Northern Iowa Department of Residence 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Student Housing and Services 
Housing – Needs Assessment 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

31  Agency/Group/Organization  Visiting Nurses Association 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – In‐Home Healthcare, Home Care Aides, 
Telehealth 
Services – Physical Therapy, Speech Therapy, 
Occupational Therapy 
Services – Immunizations 
Services – Case Management 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

32  Agency/Group/Organization  Waterloo (City; Community Development) 

21

50



Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – CDBG; HOME; Housing Choice Vouchers 
Housing – Affordable Housing; Tenant Based Rent 
Assistance; Down‐payment Assistance 
Housing – Rehab and Repair Programs 
Services ‐ Advocacy 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

33  Agency/Group/Organization  Waterloo Housing Trust Fund Board 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Funding Conduit for Housing Projects 
Services – Housing Advocacy 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

34  Agency/Group/Organization  Western Home Communities 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Continuum of Care Provider 
Housing – Senior  

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Unable to attend the Focus Group sessions, but offered 
feedback through a separate questionnaire. It is 
anticipated that the outreach will evolve into regular 
coordinating forums between agencies, organizations 
and city officials. 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

The City is not aware of a particular type of agency, either providing services to residents or not, that was missed in 
their outreach efforts.  With that said, it does not mean that the City could not add to the list provided above. 

22

51



Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan  Lead Organization  How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the 
goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care 

Black Hawk County 
Local Homeless 
Coordinating Board 
(LHCB) 

The LHCB was reviewed to better understand the 
homeless housing and social service needs in developing 
the Plan. 

City of Cedar Falls 
Comprehensive Plan 

City of Cedar Falls 
Strategic Plan goals are more specific, but consistent with 
the Comp Plan. 

2014‐2019 Consolidated 
Plan 

Cities of Cedar Falls and 
Waterloo 

Strategic Plan goals are updates and improvements to 
existing goals 

City of Cedar Falls 
Capital Improvements 
Program 

City of Cedar Falls 
Strategic Plan goals are consistent with those in the CIP, 
which defines specific projects that may be considered by 
the City under this Consolidated Plan 

Comprehensive 
Economic Development 
Strategy 

Iowa Northland 
Regional Economic 
Development 
Commission 

Strategic Plan goal are consistent and specific to Cedar 
Falls.  CEDS goals are general and defined for a 6‐county 
region 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Long 
Range Transportation 
Plan 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization of Black 
Hawk County 

Strategic Plan goals are specific to Cedar Falls, while LRTP 
goals are intended to address transportation in several 
jurisdictions. The City will need to take LRTP goals into 
consideration when developing areas within the 
community, as well as developing transit service programs 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Pedestrian 
Master Plan 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization of Black 
Hawk County 

The City is intending to address several of the Pedestrian 
Plan goals, most notably those associated with healthy 
lifestyles, recreation, and non‐motorized transportation 
modes 

Black Hawk County 
Multi‐Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Black Hawk County 
Emergency 
Management 
Commission; City of 
Cedar Falls 

The Strategic Plan will seek to direct housing‐related 
development and redevelopment away from natural 
hazards (i.e. floodplains, steep slopes, poor soils), as is 
possible.  This is consistent with the MJ HMP 

City of Cedar Falls Low 
Rent Housing Agency 
Citizen Participation 
Plan 

City of Cedar Falls 
The Strategic Plan will be developed consistent with the 
current Citizen Participation Plan. 

Table 11 ‐ Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 

23

52



Narrative 

PR‐15 Participation ‐ 91.105, 91.200(c) 

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation

Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal‐setting 

Citizen participation consisted of structured efforts made by the City.  First, the City hosted four focus groups to 
garner input.  Second a survey was completed by residents in the community. And lastly, both the Housing 
Commission and City Council provided opportunities within their public meetings for input into the development 
of this Consolidated Plan. 

As noted, the City of Cedar Falls conducted focus groups in tandem with a communitywide web‐based citizen 
survey in order to identify community housing and housing‐related needs.  The results from both input methods 
impacted all elements of this Plan, including program‐related goals, objectives, and action steps.   Most goals and 
objectives from the prior Consolidated Plan were rewritten and all will be measured accordingly.   

Focus group sessions and the survey were managed and facilitated by the University of Northern Iowa’s Institute of 
Decision Making.  Focus group sessions were also attended by City and INRCOG staff.  Overall, 38 persons attended 
focus group meetings, representing 28 agencies and organizations.  It should be noted that several other agencies 
were contacted outside of the focus groups in order obtain their input.  Specifically, the Metropolitan Transit 
Authority of Black Hawk County and Black Hawk County Emergency Management were consulted as well, bringing 
the total agencies included in this planning process to 34. Discussions with the focus groups allowed the City to 
gather the following information from participating entities: 

a. Background and operating information pertaining to each organization, its programs, services, clientele,
customers, and service area;

b. Identification of the greatest needs of its clients or customers;
c. Barriers faced by their clients that prevent them from meeting their needs;
d. Suggested programs or activities that could help clients or customers overcome barriers; and
e. The activities or initiatives the City of Cedar Falls could be implementing, improving upon, in regard to

providing decent housing, providing a suitable living environment, or expanding economic opportunities
for its residents.

Regarding the web‐based citizen survey, the City received 158 completed responses.  This response rate equates to 
roughly an 80 percent confidence interval that the results represent the community as a whole.  In addition to 
being offered online, paper copies of the survey were made available at City Hall, the Cedar Falls Library, certain 
larger housing developments, the Northeast Iowa Food Bank, and Operation Threshold, which serves as the 
region’s community assistance program administrator.  The survey was open from December 3rd, 2018 through 
December 23rd, 2018.  Summary findings from the survey include the following key takeaways in the areas of 
housing, community services and facilities, business and job‐related activities, and special needs services: 

a. Lack of affordable housing and the need for continued rehabilitation and repair programs were citied
frequently as needs;

b. In terms of community service and facility needs, mental health and childcare services were identified as
the greatest needs;

c. Employment training and job creation/retention were most often identified as needs under business and
job‐related activities; and

d. With regard to special needs services, residents stated that homeless shelters and related services, along
with substance abuse services, were needed most in the community.

24

53



The City’s Housing Commission also hosted several public meetings, between November 2018 and March 2019 on the Consolidated Plan, and the City Council 
held a public hearing to garner citizen input. No comments were received during the public meeting or hearing elements of the planning process.   

Also, legal notices, per the Citizen Participation Plan, were published for the 30‐day comment period (February 12th, 2019‐March 12th, 2019) and City Council 
Public Hearing was conducted on May 6th, 2019.  In addition, the draft Plan was posted on the City’s website and made available at City Hall. 

Citizen Participation 

Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

1 
Agency and 
Organization Focus 
Groups 

Low‐and‐
Moderate 
Income 
Households 

Minorities 

Non‐English 
Speaking ‐ 
Specify other 
language: 
Spanish 

Persons with 
disabilities 

Homeless 
persons 

Non‐
targeted/broad 
community 
entities 

Hosted by the City’s 
Housing Commission, 
four focus groups 
were held at 10:00 
AM and 1:00 PM on 
Tuesday, December 
4th; at 1:00 PM on 
Wednesday 
December 5th; and at 
10:00 AM on 
Thursday December 
6th, 2018 at the 
Hearst Center for the 
Arts in Cedar Falls. 38 
attendees, 
representing 28 
entities provided 
insight regarding this 
planning process 

Agency response were 
provided to a series of 
pre‐established 
questions 

All comments 
considered and 
accepted 

25

54



Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

2 
Communitywide 
Survey 

Residents of 
the City of 
Cedar Falls 

The survey was 
available from 
December 3rd‐23rd, 
2018  

A press release was 
published in the 
Waterloo‐Cedar Falls 
Courier, and a link was 
placed on the City’s 
website.  Social media 
posts were made by City, 
Main Street, and School 
District. Announcement 
of the availability of the 
survey was place on the 
City’s public access 
channel, as was a link 
provided to UNI faculty 
and staff.  Hard copies 
were placed at City Hall, 
Library, housing 
developments, NE Iowa 
Food Bank and Operation 
Threshold 

All comments accepted  www.cedarfalls.com 

26

55



Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

3 
Public Meetings. 
Legally Posted and 
Legally Noticed 

Minorities 

Non‐English 
Speaking ‐ 
Specify other 
language: 
Spanish 

Persons with 
disabilities 

Non‐
targeted/broad 
community 

Housing Commission 
public meetings 
addressed the Con 
Plan and Annual 
Action Plan, after City 
Administration 
review.  Agenda 
discussion was held 
on November 27th, 
2018 and January 8th, 
2019.  In addition, 
input on the Plan was 
specifically sought on 
Tuesday, February 
12th, 2019 and March 
12th, 2019.  All 
meetings were held 
at 5:00 pm in the 
Duke Young 
Conference Room in 
the Cedar Falls City 
Hall. The final noted 
meetings bookended 
the 30‐day comment 
period.  There were 
no attendees, other 
than agency 
representatives. No 
comments were 
received. No written 
comments were 
submitted. 

No comments were 
received.  www.cedarfalls.com 

27

56



Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

4 

Communitywide 
Newsletter 
(Currents) Article 
Regarding the 
Draft Plans and 
Inviting Input 

General Public.  
All households 
are mailed the 
newsletter 

Publication date: 
No comments were 
received.  www.cedarfalls.com 

5 

Public Hearing. 
Legally advertised 
hearing conducted 
within a legally 
posted public 
meeting. Draft 
plans were on‐file 
with the City Clerk 
and at the 
Community 
Development 
Department. 

Minorities 

Non‐English 
Speaking ‐ 
Specify other 
language: 
Spanish 

Persons with 
disabilities 

Non‐
targeted/broad 
community 

A City Council public 
hearing on the Con 
Plan and Annual 
Action Plan was held 
on May 6th, 2019 at 
7:00 PM. 

No comments were 
received.  www.cedarfalls.com 

Table 12 – Citizen Participation Outreach 

28

57



Needs Assessment 

NA‐05 Overview 

Needs Assessment Overview 

Cedar Falls has a median household income of $58,544 in 2016 (5‐year American Community Survey) – higher than 

the  statewide median  income  of  $54,570. Nonetheless,  Cedar  Falls  is  not  immune  to  unmet  needs  for  decent, 

affordable housing. According to HUD’s 2011‐2015 Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data, of 

the 14,565 households in Cedar Falls, 1,035 renter households (excluding non‐family, non‐elderly households) and 

2,020 owner households are low‐ and moderate‐income, meaning that their incomes are no higher than 80 percent 

of Area Median Income (AMI) by household size. Among non‐elderly, non‐family renter households, 2,485 are LMI 

– some, but not all, of these households consist of University of Northern Iowa students.

Among LMI owners, 45 percent of households are housing cost burdened, meaning that  they pay more than 30 

percent of their incomes on housing costs (including utilities, taxes, and insurance). This is slightly higher than the 

statewide cost burden rate of 41 percent among LMI owners. Moreover, 16 percent of LMI owner households are 

severely cost burdened, with housing costs exceeding 50 percent of their incomes. (Note that the percentage of cost 

burdened households is inclusive of severely cost burdened households.) 

Among LMI renters, 59% of family households and 52 percent of elderly households are cost burdened, while 37 

percent and 36 percent of family and elderly households, respectively, are severely cost burdened. 

Racial/ethnic groups with disproportionate housing problems (at least ten percentage points higher than the rate of 

housing problems in the general population) are listed below. Housing problems are defined as housing cost burden 

greater than 30 percent, incomplete plumbing and/or kitchen facilities, and overcrowding (more than 1 person per 

room).  Severe  housing  problems  include  housing  cost  burden  greater  than  50  percent,  or  any  of  the  other  3 

aforementioned housing problems.  

Housing Problems 

Asian households between >30 percent and 50 percent AMI 

Asian, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Hispanic households between >50 percent and 80 percent AMI 

Severe Housing Problems 

Black, Hispanic, and Other/Multi‐Racial households up to 30 percent AMI 

Asian households between >30 percent and 50 percent AMI 

Black and Hispanic households between >50 percent and 80 percent AMI 

Moderate Housing Cost Burden (>30 percent to 50 percent of income spent on housing costs) 

Asian and American Indian/Alaska Native households 

Severe Housing Cost Burden (>50 percent of income spent on housing costs) 

29

58



Black and Hispanic households 

30

59



NA‐50 Non‐Housing Community Development Needs ‐ 91.415, 91.215 (f) 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Facilities: 

Feedback from a community‐wide survey indicated that the greatest public facility needs for Cedar Falls residents 

are mental health and substance abuse treatment facilities, child care centers, homeless shelters, and youth centers. 

Additional needs according  to City staff and resident  feedback  include bus shelter  repairs and park, playground, 

sidewalk, and trail improvements. 

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were determined through focus groups with agencies, non‐profit organizations, and other stakeholders, 

interviews, community wide surveys, and feedback discussions with community development staff members.   

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Improvements: 

Generally speaking, respondents to a community‐wide survey perceived less need for infrastructure improvements 

than  for  public  facilities  and  services.  The  greatest  infrastructure  needs  identified  are  street  and  sidewalk 

improvements. The latter can be critical for LMI homeowners, who may not be able to afford the improvements 

themselves.  Additional  needs  identified  by  City  staff  –  based  on  resident  feedback  and  quantitative  data  on 

infrastructure conditions and future capacity needs – include sanitary sewer updates in LMI areas, bridge and culvert 

replacements,  drainage  improvements  such  as  bioswales  and  permeable  alley  paving,  and  streetscaping 

improvements. 

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were determined through focus groups with agencies, non‐profit organizations, and other stakeholders, 

interviews, community wide surveys, and feedback discussions with community development staff members.   

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Services: 

In tandem with the public facility needs identified by stakeholders, the greatest public service needs include mental 

health and substance abuse treatment services; more child care options, especially during evenings, weekends, and 

holidays;  homeless  assistance  services,  including  more  rapid  re‐housing  options,  and  youth  programming. 

Additionally, more public transportation service, including more routes and longer hours, was identified as a major 

need for LMI residents. 

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were determined through focus groups with agencies, non‐profit organizations, and other stakeholders, 

interviews, community wide surveys, and feedback discussions with community development staff members.   

Based on the needs analysis above, describe the State's needs in Colonias 

Not applicable – Cedar Falls is a non‐state entitlement grantee. 

31

60



Housing Market Analysis 

MA‐05 Overview 

Housing Market Analysis Overview: 

Cedar Falls, like many university towns, has a strong housing market. Although housing starts have not recovered to 

their pre‐recession levels, single‐family housing permits hovered between 100 and 150 per year from 2012 through 

2016, according to Iowa Finance Authority (IFA) data. Multifamily permits have increased in recent years, reaching 

nearly  80 housing units  in  2016.  The median home value  in Cedar  Falls was  $171,400  in  2016,  a  three percent 

increase  since 2010 and  a 20 percent  increase  since 2000,  adjusted  for  inflation  (ACS 5‐y  2016  and 2010;  2000 

Census), while the median single‐family permit value was $219,367 in 2016 (IFA). The City’s median contract rent 

(excluding utilities) was $619  in 2016, a nine percent  increase since 2010 and a 15 percent  increase since 2000. 

Moreover, among vacant‐for‐rent units, nearly half had a rent asked of $700 or more (ACS 2016) The most recent 

local data suggests that available 1‐ and 2‐bedroom rental units tend to start at the $750 to $1,000 range.  

The owner and rental vacancy rates were two percent and six percent, respectively in 2016 (ACS), compared to 1.8 

percent and 6.4 percent in the 2010 Census. Owner and rental vacancy rates of two percent and five percent are 

generally considered healthy, but a six percent rental vacancy rate is not excessively high. More recent local data 

suggests that rental vacancy rates are increasing as new rental developments come on‐line, but that the increased 

supply has not necessarily  lowered costs. The new rental units  tend to be marketed to professionals or  to well‐

resourced  students.  As  a  result,  households  with  lower  incomes  continue  to  struggle  to  find  decent‐quality, 

reasonably priced housing, as extensive community feedback indicated. 

Cedar Falls’ housing stock is generally in good condition. However, 16 percent of the City’s owner‐occupied housing 

and 20 percent of its rental units were built before 1950. Some of these units may have deferred maintenance needs, 

especially if the owners have low to moderate incomes (LMI). Multiple public survey responses reported a need to 

rehabilitate older units, both to assist LMI property owners and improve neighborhood appearance, especially in the 

North Cedar, College Hill, and College Square neighborhoods. Across the City, 63 percent of owner units and 74 

percent of rental units were built before 1980. Any units built before 1978 may have lead‐based paint (LBP) hazards, 

unless all LBP has been removed or encapsulated. Of all owner and rental units, 890 (6 percent) and 273 (5 percent), 

respectively, were built before 1980 and are occupied by at least one child under 6 years of age (2011‐2015 CHAS). 

Several distinct factors pose challenges to meeting affordable housing needs in Cedar Falls. Infill  lots are in short 

supply, and current zoning requirements in some older neighborhoods are prohibitive for residential development 

on small  lots. Additionally, the single‐family home market experiences pressure from investors who can realize a 

higher  rate of  return by converting homes  into multiple  rental units. Recently, Cedar Falls  initiated a  temporary 

$10,000 forgivable loan program for homebuyers to convert rental properties back to single family homes in certain 

neighborhoods.  

Low‐ and moderate‐income families may have difficulty competing with student markets for single‐family rentals, 

since several students rooming in one dwelling can pay a higher aggregate rent than a family with only one or two 

incomes. UNI students,  for  their part, have  fewer affordable on‐campus housing options  than  in previous years. 

Although UNI enrollment has declined  in recent years, and vacancy rates are high among UNI’s student housing 

portfolio,  some  older,  lower‐cost  dormitories  have  been  demolished.  These  units  were  outdated,  but  UNI  is 

cognizant  that  their  loss  has  disproportionately  impacted  low‐income, minority,  immigrant,  and  1st  generation 

32

61



college students, and those aging out of foster care. To level the playing field between students and families, as well 

as avoiding overcrowding of dwelling units and parking areas, the City limits the number of adult tenants based on 

the number of bedrooms in rental units. UNI, meanwhile, is planning to increase the share of 2nd year students who 

live  on‐campus  (currently  47  percent),  since  on‐campus  living  is  strongly  correlated with  college  retention.  The 

University is also renovating several dormitories to make student housing a more viable and appealing option. 

Finally, local stakeholders note that the pool of single‐family and multi‐family housing developers in Cedar Falls is 

small, minimizing competition and limiting any incentive to provide housing that is affordable to low‐, moderate‐ 

and  middle‐income  families  (up  to  120  percent  AMI).  Many  Cedar  Falls  stakeholders,  from  students  to  young 

professionals to LMI households and their advocates, have noted the lack of a “missing middle” of decent‐quality, 

moderately priced housing.  

For some populations,  such as  those with physical disabilities  that  require accessibility  features,  the shortage of 

affordable housing is especially dire. Housing subsidies for the lowest‐income households in Cedar Falls are limited. 

The City has 360 units in subsidized, privately owned rental developments – of which the 128 units in The Villages at 

Park@Nine23 may be lost after 2025 due to affordability restrictions ending. Additionally, the Cedar Falls Housing 

Authority offers 326 Housing Choice Vouchers – of which only 215 are in use, since many rentals exceed the Cedar 

Falls Housing Authority’s  payment  standard  (110 percent  of  Fair Market Rent). Many  landlords  are unwilling  to 

participate in the Housing Choice Voucher program, thereby further limiting the pool of units that are affordable to 

low‐ and very low‐income households. The Villages units that may be lost after 2025 are among the few rentals in 

Cedar Falls that voucher holders can readily access. 

As a result of the considerable need for affordable housing, the goals and objectives for Cedar Falls place strong 

emphasis on housing for LMI populations, and on associated community services that CDBG can feasibly fund. 

33

62



MA‐45 Non‐Housing Community Development Assets ‐ 91.410, 91.210(f) 

Introduction 

As a City and as part of  the Cedar Valley  region, Cedar Falls cultivates a diverse economic base, emphasizing  its 

strengths of high‐quality education and training opportunities, a diligent regional workforce, and its location along 

major transportation corridors. Two main elements of Cedar Falls’ recent economic development efforts include its 

growing industrial parks, and its designation as Iowa’s “first gigabit city” due to extensive investment by Cedar Falls 

Utilities, its municipal utility, in a robust fiber optic network.  

Among jobs located in Cedar Falls, the largest sectors are Education and Health Care Services (37.9 percent), Retail 

Trade  (17.6  percent),  Arts,  Entertainment,  and  Accommodations  (14.9  percent),  Professional,  Scientific,  and 

Management Services (13.4 percent), and Manufacturing (9.4 percent). Among workers who live in Cedar Falls, the 

most common sectors that employ them are Education and Health Care Services (22.6 percent), Manufacturing (12.6 

percent), Retail Trade (8.8 percent), and Professional, Scientific, and Management Services (7.7 percent). Cedar Falls 

has more workers than jobs overall (21,147 compared to 16,544). In terms of occupational categories, a plurality of 

Cedar Falls workers are in Management, Business, and Financial occupations (8,894 workers, or 39 percent of total). 

The  next  most  common  occupation  sectors  are  Sales  and  Office  (6,044/26  percent)  and  Service  occupations 

(4,730/21 percent). 

Thirty‐one percent of Cedar Falls’ adult population has a Bachelor’s degree or higher, while another nine percent 

and 39 percent have an Associate’s degree or some college education with no degree, respectively. Some college 

with no degree is the most common educational attainment among young adults (18 to 24; 75 percent), while a 

Bachelor’s degree is most common among prime working‐age adults (25 to 64). However, it is more common among 

25‐  to  34‐year‐olds  (41  percent)  than  among  the  35‐44  and  45‐64  age  groups  (26  percent  and  23  percent, 

respectively). Among residents 65 years or older, the most common educational attainment is a high school diploma 

(35). These numbers reflect both the presence of young adults enrolled at the University of Northern Iowa, and the 

increasing importance of a college education in the labor market in recent decades. 

The City’s overall unemployment rate is a fairly healthy 4.7 percent. The unemployment for youths and young adults 

in the civilian labor force (16 to 24) is 8.2 percent, while those age 25 to 64 have a very low unemployment rate of 

2.64  percent.  Unemployment  rates  and  labor  force  participation  also  vary  by  educational  attainment.  The 

unemployment rate ranges from seven percent for those with less than a high school diploma to one percent for 

those with  a  Bachelor’s  degree  or  higher.  For  labor  force  participation,  the  range  is  58  percent  to  88  percent, 

respectively. Median annual earnings also vary by educational attainment, from a low of $30,403 for high school 

graduates to $65,708 for those with graduate and professional degrees. Surprisingly, the median annual earnings 

for those with less than a high school diploma are higher than those for high school graduates and some college. The 

reason  for  this  is  unknown,  but  may  indicate  that  Cedar  Falls  workers  without  a  high  school  diploma  are 

disproportionately employed in fields with a high base wage and/or ample opportunity for overtime pay.  

Overall, Cedar Falls’ economic profile highlights the fact that the City is not homogeneous. It is relatively affluent 

and educated, but not all workers are employed in well‐paid, white‐collar jobs. As a result, Cedar Falls is not immune 

from the need for affordable housing and services for workers whose incomes are low, and whose work schedules 

may be more unpredictable or more rigid than in white‐collar work environments. Moreover, Cedar Falls workers 

can benefit from economic development efforts that create living‐wage jobs at all skill levels. 

34

63



Economic Development Market Analysis 

Business Activity 

Business by Sector  Number of 
Workers 

Number of 
Jobs 

Share of 
Workers 

% 

Share of 
Jobs 
% 

Jobs less 
workers 

% 

Agriculture, Mining, Oil & Gas Extraction  79  5  0.4%  0.0%  ‐0.9 

Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations  1,439  2,463  6.8%  14.9%  0.7 

Construction  563  618  2.7%  3.7%  0.1 

Education and Health Care Services  4,782  6,277  22.6%  37.9%  0.3 

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate  944  1,281  4.5%  7.7%  0.4 

Information  213  269  1.0%  1.6%  0.3 

Manufacturing  2,657  1,550  12.6%  9.4%  ‐0.4 

Other Services  562  589  2.7%  3.6%  0.0 

Professional, Scientific, Management 

Services  1,635  2,225  7.7%  13.4%  0.4 

Public Administration  531  356  2.5%  2.2%  ‐0.3 

Retail Trade  1,869  2,919  8.8%  17.6%  0.6 

Transportation and Warehousing  666  1,588  3.1%  9.6%  1.4 

Wholesale Trade  604  1,007  2.9%  6.1%  0.7 

Total  21,147  16,544  100%  100%  100% 

Table 2 ‐ Business Activity 
Data 
Source: 

U.S. Census Bureau, OnTheMap Application and Longitudinal Employer‐Household Dynamics Origin‐

Destination Employment Statistics (2015) 

35

64



Labor Force 

Total Population in the Civilian Labor Force  24,128 

Civilian Employed Population 16 years and over  22,999 

Unemployment Rate  4.7% 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 16‐24  8.2% 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 25‐65  2.4% 

Table 3 ‐ Labor Force 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

Occupations by Sector  Number of People 

Management, business and financial  8,894 

Farming, fisheries and forestry 

occupations  99 

Service  4,730 

Sales and office  6,044 

Construction, extraction, 

maintenance and repair  923 

Production, transportation and 

material moving  2,309 

Table 4 – Occupations by Sector 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

Travel Time 

Travel Time  Number  Percentage 

< 30 Minutes  20,789  95% 

30‐59 Minutes  699  3% 

60 or More Minutes  398  2% 

Total  21,886  100% 

Table 5 ‐ Travel Time 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

36

65



Education: 
Educational Attainment by Employment Status (Population 25 and Older) 

Educational Attainment  In Labor Force

Civilian Employed  Unemployed  Not in Labor Force 

Less than high school graduate  285  21  226 

High school graduate (includes 
equivalency)  2,298  103  687 

Some college or Associate's degree  4,316  115  761 

Bachelor's degree or higher  6,537  90  905 

Table 6 ‐ Educational Attainment by Employment Status 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

Educational Attainment by Age 

Age 

18–24 yrs  25–34 yrs  35–44 yrs  45–65 yrs  65+ yrs 

Less than 9th grade  11  21  107  78  167 

9th to 12th grade, no diploma  102  95  96  135  249 

High school graduate, GED, or 

alternative  970  731  786  1,571  1,832 

Some college, no degree  9,039  868  634  1,663  864 

Associate's degree  773  604  572  851  282 

Bachelor's degree  1,021  2,032  986  1,751  839 

Graduate or professional degree  77  552  678  1,542  983 

Table 7 ‐ Educational Attainment by Age 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

Educational Attainment – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Educational Attainment  Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Less than high school graduate  $35,372 

High school graduate (includes equivalency)  $30,403 

Some college or Associate's degree  $34,270 

Bachelor's degree  $46,239 

Graduate or professional degree  $65,708 

Table 8 – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

37

66



Based on the Business Activity table above, what are the major employment sectors within your jurisdiction? 

Education and Health Care Services (37.9 percent of jobs in Cedar Falls) 

Retail Trade (17.6 percent) 

Arts, Entertainment, and Accommodations (14.9 percent) 

Professional, Scientific, and Management Services (13.4 percent) 

Manufacturing (9.4 percent) 

Describe the workforce and infrastructure needs of the business community: 

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy for the region that includes Cedar Falls outlined the business 

community’s workforce and infrastructure needs. 

Workforce 

The CEDS identified several regional workforce challenges: 

• Population  growth  is  slow. Between 2010 and 2015,  the  region’s  population  grew by  an  estimated 1.2

percent. In Black Hawk County, the estimated growth was 1.8 percent. These growth rates were lower than the State 

of Iowa’s growth rate of 2.5 percent over the same period.

• Starting  wages  tend  to  be  low,  although  state  incentive  programs  set  minimum  levels  for  wages  and

benefits.

• The region has a shortage of workforce housing affordable to blue‐collar workers and young professionals.

• The labor force reached a 10‐year low in 2016, and both general and skilled labor are in short supply.

• Employers have difficulty recruiting workers to the region, in part due to negative perceptions about the

region’s quality of life.

• As Baby Boomers who own or have leadership positions in businesses near retirement age, there will be a

need for succession planning to ensure that these businesses continue to provide employment.

• Technological advancements may create new high‐skilled jobs, but may also lead to net job losses in some

sectors.

At the same time, the CEDS projected a net addition of 8,515 jobs to the region between 2014 and 2024, with the 

largest  increases  occurring  in  healthcare  practitioner  and  technical  occupations,  sales  and  related  occupations, 

transportation/material  moving  occupations,  education/training/library  occupations,  and  healthcare  support 

occupations. These five  job classifications combined will account for an estimated 44 percent of the region’s  job 

growth. Some other occupation types,  including several manufacturing and clerical occupations, are expected to 

grow slowly or decline. The CEDS anticipates that  the current population growth rate would not be sufficient  to 

supply workers in high‐growth industries, a shortfall that is exacerbated by reduced labor force participation and 

skills mismatches between workers and jobs. In terms of workforce housing needed to recruit workers, the shortage 

may be more acute in Cedar Falls than in Waterloo, due to the former city’s higher housing costs. However, feedback 

38

67



from residents in both cities points to a “missing middle” of decent‐quality, modestly priced housing, especially for 

low‐ and moderate‐income workers. 

The CEDS goal for addressing regional workforce housing needs includes measures to recruit new workers to the 

region, up‐skill existing workers, foster training and education opportunities to help workers fill high‐demand jobs, 

retain college graduates, and improve quality of life offerings to attract and retain workers. Additionally, the CEDS 

for providing adequate housing encourages efforts to expand workforce housing in close proximity to employment 

centers. 

Infrastructure 

Infrastructure needs in the next decade include water/sewer upgrades to maintain the level of service expected by 

residents  and  businesses  at  reasonable  rates;  increased  flood  mitigation  measures  and  renewable  energy 

generation, and execution of several planned projects to improve the area’s highway corridors, which are already a 

major  asset  to  the  metro  area’s  economy.  One  infrastructure  deficiency  identified  by  Black  Hawk  County 

stakeholders  in  the  CEDS development  is  limited  air  service.  Public  participation  for  other  planning  documents, 

including this Consolidated Plan, have also identified a need for expanded bus service in the Waterloo/Cedar Falls 

area. In particular, transportation is a barrier for 2nd and 3rd shift workers, those who work on weekends or holidays, 

and those who work at employment centers not currently served by bus. 

Describe any major changes that may have an economic impact, such as planned local or regional public or 

private sector investments or initiatives that have affected or may affect job and business growth opportunities 

during the planning period. Describe any needs for workforce development, business support or infrastructure 

these changes may create. 

The City of Cedar Falls continues to expand its Industrial and Technology Park to the south, as well as the Northern 

Cedar Falls Industrial Park. The City provides infrastructure in the industrial parks so that sites will be “shovel ready” 

for new businesses. Additionally, two Target distribution centers have located in Cedar Falls in recent years, and the 

City has partnered with other local governments in the region to fund three years of operations for The Millrace, a 

co‐work and startup incubator facility. Moreover, the City’s  investments in street improvements along University 

Avenue and Viking Road have spurred new investment along these commercial corridors. These investments are 

creating new jobs, new housing demand, and additional workforce training needs. 

How do the skills and education of the current workforce correspond to employment opportunities in the 

jurisdiction? 

Employers report a shortage of skilled workers in the region – in advanced manufacturing, for example. Moreover, 

as sectors such as healthcare, transportation, and education become more prominent in the region’s economy, the 

need for workers possessing these skills may grow. 

Describe any current workforce training initiatives, including those supported by Workforce Investment Boards, 

community colleges and other organizations. Describe how these efforts will support the jurisdiction's 

Consolidated Plan. 

In 2016, Cedar Falls, the region’s second largest school district, passed a $32 million bond measure to fund a new 

elementary building as well  as  the  expansion of Orchard Hill  and North Cedar elementary  schools.  The primary 

reason behind this effort was, in part, was due to the continued and projected increase in elementary enrollment. 

39

68



According to the school, the district‘s student population grew by 850 over the past 10 years and is expected to grow 

by an additional 1,100 students in the coming decade.  

In 2016, the school district launched the Center for Advanced Professional Studies (CAPS) program. The program is 

a  partnership  with  local  businesses  to  provide  students  with  real‐world  experiences  outside  of  the  classroom 

focusing  on  career  readiness  skills.  Initially,  the  program  has  focused  on  engineering,  computer  science  and 

information technology fields. Study is held at a host business for approximately 2.5 hours each day where students 

focus on problem solving and completing projects in a business environment. 

Hawkeye Community College, based in Waterloo, offers vocational/technical programs and continuing education 

opportunities in a wide range of career choices, as well as general interest courses suited for any interest. Hawkeye 

Community College (HCC) is accredited as a 2‐year liberal arts institution with approximately 6,300 (3,000 full‐time) 

students currently enrolled. 

In recent years, Hawkeye has expanded its technical training and apprenticeship programs in response to regional 

workforce  demands.  HCC  offers  HVAC,  plumbing,  and  electrical  apprenticeship  curriculum  approved  by  the 

Department of Labor. As part of the requirements, an employer or local business sponsors students. HCC also offers 

programs for several technical high‐demand jobs, including Industrial Maintenance, Industrial Automation, Welding 

Technician & Technology, Tool and Die, Machining, and Computer‐Numeric Control (CNC). 

Hawkeye works in partnership with Cedar Valley IowaWORKS, the regional Iowa Workforce Development service 

center. IowaWORKS offers a variety of programs to support job seekers, including PROMISE JOBS, which provides 

training  and  support  to  TANF  recipients,  services  for  dislocated workers  and  those with  disabilities, Workforce 

Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) services for young adults, connections to training in high‐demand industries, 

and other programs. IowaWORKS focuses heavily on hard‐to‐serve populations. 

The above‐described efforts will support the Consortium’s anti‐poverty strategy by providing more opportunities for 

LMI residents to become and remain self‐sufficient. These efforts may also ease housing cost burdens by increasing 

workers’ ability to buy or rent decent housing. 

Does your jurisdiction participate in a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)? 

Yes 

If so, what economic development initiatives are you undertaking that may be coordinated with the 

Consolidated Plan? If not, describe other local/regional plans or initiatives that impact economic growth. 

Several  of  Cedar  Falls’  economic  development  initiatives  pursuant  to  the  CEDS  may  be  coordinated  with  the 

Consolidated  Plan.  The  City  endeavors  to  combine  multiple  community  development  and  initiatives  and 

expenditures, such as street, water, and sewer  improvements, park upgrades, streetscape improvements, transit 

infrastructure  updates,  and  demolition  of  substandard  properties,  in  particular  neighborhoods  in  need  of  new 

investment. Some of these areas overlap with LMI Census block groups, where CDBG funds may be combined with 

other City revenue sources to fund improvements. 

Discussion 

Cedar Falls  is best known as a university town, but the City endeavors to cultivate a diverse economic base that 

offers  opportunities  to  residents  from  all  walks  of  life.  By  investing  in  its  growing  industrial  parks,  the  City  is 

capitalizing  on  the  Cedar  Valley  region’s  comparative  advantage  in  advanced  manufacturing  capabilities. 

40

69



Additionally, the City supports information‐based business sectors by supporting work space, high‐speed internet, 

and other resources for start‐up businesses. 

41

70



MA‐50 Needs and Market Analysis Discussion 

Are there areas where households with multiple housing problems are concentrated? (include a definition of 

"concentration") 

According to HUD’s Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Data and Mapping Tool, the share of households with at 

least one housing problem is at least 10 percentage points higher in Census tracts 23.03 and 23.04 than in any other 

Census tract in Cedar Falls. 

No Census  tracts  in Cedar  Falls  have  a  concentration of multiple  housing problems.  The Census Bureau defines 

housing problems as housing cost burden greater than 30 percent, incomplete plumbing and/or kitchen facilities, or 

overcrowding (more than 1 person per room). However, in Census tracts 22 and 25, 10 percent of renter households 

have  2  or  more  housing  problems,  according  to  2016  ACS  data.  Census  tract  22  contains  the  oldest  platted 

neighborhoods in Cedar Falls, and a relatively high percentage of LMI households. Census tract 25 is in the College 

Square area, and its Block Group 3 is 51.3 percent LMI. In most cases, rental units in these Census tracts with multiple 

housing  problems  are  likely  to  be  experiencing  housing  cost  burden  and  crowding,  since  incomplete 

kitchen/plumbing facilities are rare. It is not known how many of these households are UNI students vs. non‐student 

households that live in crowded conditions out of necessity or preference.  

42

71



Are there any areas in the jurisdiction where racial or ethnic minorities or low‐income families are 

concentrated? (include a definition of "concentration") 

No  Census  tract  has  a  “concentration”  of  specific  racial  or  ethnic  minorities  according  to  HUD’s  definition  (10 

percentage points higher than the citywide percentage). However, Census tract 23.04 (College Hill area) has the 

highest percentage of  racial  and ethnic minorities  (11.8 percent  and 4.0 percent,  respectively,  compared  to 7.1 

percent and 2 percent citywide). 

What are the characteristics of the market in these areas/neighborhoods? 

This Census tract is near the University of Northern Iowa, and includes a substantial supply of private rental housing 

occupied by students – which likely explains its relatively high racial and ethnic diversity. The homeownership rate 

is only 52.1 percent, compared to 64.6 percent citywide. The overall housing stock in this Census tract tends to be 

older, while the share of housing structures with 20 or more units (15.9 percent) is about double the citywide rate. 

The  percentage  of  homeowners  without mortgages  is  relatively  high  (46.7  percent,  compared  to  36.6  percent 

citywide),  suggesting  a  relatively  high  share  of  older  homeowners  who  have  paid  off  their mortgages. Median 

monthly housing costs for renters and owners with mortgages are lower in this Census tract than citywide, but are 

somewhat higher for owners without mortgages. A higher share of renters (61.6 percent, compared to 47.2 percent) 

pay 35 percent or more of their incomes on housing, which may reflect the presence of students (whose education 

loans are not counted as income).  

Community feedback about this area indicates concerns about the prevalence of deteriorated properties, many of 

which are rentals. Much of the rental stock is in older structures converted from single‐family homes. Many residents 

believe the rents charged for deteriorated units in this neighborhood are unreasonably high. Additionally, residents 

are concerned about crime and disruptions associated with the high student population. Because of these issues, 

community  feedback  indicates  that  some  older  residents  are  being  displaced,  and  the  neighborhood  is  not 

considered family‐friendly. This led the City to change its rental review process and requirements in 2015, in hopes 

to counteract these issues and improve rental property conditions. 

Are there any community assets in these areas/neighborhoods? 

The College Hill area has shopping, dining, and nightlife opportunities that are geared toward college students but 

may  appeal  to  other  residents,  especially  younger  demographics.  Its  proximity  to  the  University  also  offers 

educational and cultural opportunities, such as plays, concerts, art exhibits, and lectures. This neighborhood includes 

the Hearst Center for the Arts, and also has some older homes with historic value. 

Are there other strategic opportunities in any of these areas? 

Since the College Hill area has commercial and entertainment draws for young adults, and an abundance of older 

housing,  the  Cedar  Falls  Comprehensive  Plan  (2012)  and  Strategic  Plan  (Future  Forward  Cedar  Falls  2025) 

recommends that this neighborhood be targeted for mixed‐use development to expand housing opportunities and 

spaces for businesses and artists to establish themselves. The City anticipates implementing this recommendation 

by  conducting  visioning  exercises  and  revising  zoning  regulations  in  College  Hill  to  accommodate  mixed‐use 

development. The City may update the College Hill Overlay District zoning to meet this vision with new development 

or re‐development, while protecting public health, safety, and welfare. 

The planned College Hill visioning and zoning updates are part of a broader effort that includes downtown Cedar 

Falls and adjacent neighborhoods that are among the City’s oldest. The intention is to accommodate the compact, 

43

72



mixed‐use nature of the development that has historically occurred in these neighborhoods, and to maintain them 

as vibrant, functional, interconnected hubs of City life. 

44

73



Strategic Plan 

SP‐05: Overview 

The purpose of the Cedar Falls Strategic Plan is to outline a five‐year course of action that the City may follow 

when implementing their Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program.  Said Strategic Plan 

will identify priorities, needs, market conditions, and define goals and action strategies, and is intended to address 

the Needs and Market Assessments that are part of the City’s overall Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2019‐2023 

Consolidated Plan. 

The City of Cedar Falls provides funding to four general programs including: housing development programs, 

economic and community development programs, neighborhood or area programs, and planning and 

administrative programs.  Needs in these areas are designed to increase opportunities for low‐and‐moderate 

income households to identify the availability of decent housing, safe and suitable living environments and provide 

economic opportunities.  As an overarching need, the community identified affordable housing, which is quality 

and lower priced, when compared to the existing housing market in the city. 

SP‐10: Geographic Priorities 91.215(a)(1) 

The City of Cedar Falls will focus its resources, budget and staff, in the areas deemed in greatest need of 

improvement.  Specifically, the City will use information and resources at its disposal for defining these areas, 

including but not limited to neighborhoods, census tracts and block groups, adopted urban renewal areas, and/or 

other geographic areas identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Overlay Districts, and 

renewal or revitalization boundaries, all within the City of Cedar Falls’ incorporated area. 

The City will expend all CDBG resources under one of three National Objectives: Benefit to Low‐and‐Moderate 

Income persons; Aiding in the Prevention or Elimination of Slums or Blight; or Meeting Community Development 

Needs having a Particular Urgency.  This final objective is defined as those needs, that because of existing 

conditions, pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community, and where other 

financial resources are not available to meet such needs.  Implementation of the City’s programs will be applied in 

one of two methods, citywide or in low‐to‐moderate income areas.  Further, this section of the Strategic Plan 

integrates the Analysis of Fair Housing Impediments into the planning process.  Specifically, the recommendations 

and actions of the AFH are being tied to goals and objectives of this plan. 

Citywide:  

The City of Cedar Falls will allocate housing rehabilitation and repair funds on a citywide basis.  Homeowners may 

apply directly to the City for funding, which the city prioritizes on a first qualified, first served basis.  A written 

application, income verification, and inspection will follow, assuming the owner meets income guidelines.  After 

need is determined, the scope of work is to be defined and either bid (rehab projects) or procured using small bid 

guidelines established by the city.  The City’s Housing Commission reviews and recommends all suitable projects to 

the City Council for approval.  Thereafter, contracts are executed by the parties and work is completed, with 

approvals and reimbursements being made available to contractors during and at the end of the process. 

Services provided, on behalf of the City, by agencies or organizations are also to be offered citywide.  The 
underlying reason for funding these services is to prevent the possibility of homelessness.  Eligible services will be 
consistent with CDBG guidelines, and may include, but not be limited to: healthcare, financial literacy and 
counseling, sheltering, transportation, nutrition, substance abuse, and family and children’s counseling services. 

45

74



New programs, such as down‐payment assistance, first‐time homebuyers, and Housing Choice Voucher changes 
may also be implemented citywide.  Also, all related planning and program administration are intended to be 
offered citywide. 

LMI Area Benefit (See Map X): 

LMI Area Benefit Projects will be implemented in Census Tracts and Block Groups currently reporting income levels 

at or below 80% of Area Median Income (AMI).  There are currently 7 census tracts with 8 block groups that have 

an LMI percentage of 51 percent or greater (ACS 2011‐2015). Specifically, Census tract 2200 block group 2 and 3; 

tract 2301 block group 3; tract 2303 block group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 3; tract 2603 

block group 4; and tract 2604 block group 5.    Categories of projects that are targeted include: neighborhood 

infrastructure, transportation, park and recreation, demolition and clearance, and accessibility (pedestrian) 

projects. 

Application of the Waterloo and Cedar Falls Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (2014) 
Recommendations and Actions 

An analysis of Fair Housing Impediments was completed in 2014, and being currently updated, for the Waterloo‐
Cedar Falls HOME Consortium, at about the same time as the current Consolidated Plan was being completed.  A 
draft of the Analysis is scheduled to be updated concurrently with the new 2019‐2023 Consolidated Plan.  Because 
the recommendations made in the Analysis, both the 2014 version and 2019 draft, are still relevant, the Analysis 
will be used when evaluating the effectiveness of fair housing initiatives for the next five years.  The actions, 
outlined specifically for Cedar Falls, are enumerated below and will be used for this planning process. 

Public Sector Impediments: Market Based 

1. Limited English‐Speaking Population. Conduct a four‐factor analysis to determine which current systems
for interpretation and translation are adequately serving the community.  Ending with a Language Access
Plan.

2. Focus CDBG funding on the provision of affordable rental units.
3. Consider a renter‐focused CDBG‐funded affordable housing project.
4. Planning departments in Consortium work together to arrange for a workshop for developers and

landlords to broaden awareness of the concepts of universal design.
5. Provide incentives for employment training and apprenticeships aimed at residents of racially‐impacted

neighborhoods.
6. Target homeownership counseling to residents of impacted neighborhoods.

Public Sector Impediments: Policy Based 

1. Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission outreach project.  Determine viability of using CDBG funds to
support an outreach project. Empower the Commission to enforce fair housing laws rather than referring
residents to the Iowa Civil Rights Commission

2. Consortium should continue to engage in regional planning efforts to most efficiently match bus lines and
stops with jobs, housing, and amenities.

Private Sector Impediments: Market Based 

1. Consortium should consider testing for mortgage discrimination by a qualified entity in order to more
effectively target education, outreach, referral, and enforcement activities.

2. Apply for a grant for another round of testing, with particular emphasis on race and disability, should be
considered by the Consortium.

46

75



3. Legal review of nuisance and rental inspection ordinances to ensure whether enforcement is consistent
with applicable fair housing laws.

47

76



SP‐25: Priority Needs 91.215(a)(2) 

As a result of input from focus group participants, community survey responses, elected officials, and staff, the City 

has identified housing, community and economic development, homelessness, supportive social and educational 

service needs, directly and indirectly impacting affordable housing, infrastructure, public services and 

homelessness prevention.  The priority needs for the life of this Consolidated Plan and Strategic Plan (FFY 2019‐

2023), are listed below, and identified by “CP” in the table.  By way of comparison, actions from the 2014 Analysis 

of Fair Housing Impediments are measured against the Consolidated Plan needs and integrated into the table as 

well and identified as “AFH” in the table. 

1  Priority Need Name  Maintaining Existing Affordable Housing 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals: 
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
CP: Preserve Existing Affordable Housing Through Code Enforcement 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  Preserve existing affordable housing stock in the community through 
rehabilitation, repair, safety or health‐related abatement measures. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

2  Priority Need Name  Increasing Affordable Housing Units 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 

Description  Increase the number of housing units in the community that are considered 
affordable. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, City input 

3  Priority Need Name  Ensuring Fair Housing for Residents 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low and Low‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: CDBG Planning and Administration 
AFH: Conduct Interpretation and Translation Analysis 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Target Homeownership Counseling to Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 
AFH: Human Rights Commission Empowerment and Outreach Project 
AFH: Test for Mortgage Discrimination; Apply for Grant to Test Validity 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  Enforce and implement affirmative fair housing certification, anti‐displacement 
and relocation plan, acquisition and relocation requirements, lead‐based paint 
protection including remediation, and anti‐discrimination laws 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups and community survey 

48

77



4  Priority Need Name  Supporting Services for Homeless, Near‐Homeless, Special Needs and 
Populations 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational Support 
AFH: Incent Employment Training and Apprenticeships for Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 

Description  Offer support service, either directly through the city or contracting agencies, for 
persons that are homeless, near homeless, have special needs, or that are 
transitioning from institutional settings such that they do not become homeless 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

5  Priority Need Name  Providing Family and Children’s Services 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational Support 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
AFH: Target Homeownership Counseling to Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 

Description  Support agencies and organizations that offer healthcare, substance abuse 
counseling and treatment, financial literacy and counseling services, sheltering, 
basic needs such as food, and other services in order prevent homelessness. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

6  Priority Need Name  Promoting Infrastructure Development 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Improve Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
CP: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 

Description  Provide infrastructure (i.e. street, water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, drainage, 
parking, trees) to areas that may be identified as LMI areas by the Census Bureau 

Basis for Relative Priority  Community survey and City input 

7  Priority Need Name  Promoting Neighborhood Development 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 
CP: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 

49

78



AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  In order to stem possible neighborhood erosion, the City will work to offer 
infrastructure, amenities, and services in targeted neighborhoods, as identified 
by the Census Bureau as being LMI areas. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

8  Priority Need Name  Supporting Economic Development, Business Opportunities and Commercial 
Building Redevelopment 

Priority Level  Moderate 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
AFH: Incent Employment Training and Apprenticeships for Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 
AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 

Description  Identify possible workforce for businesses and industries, as well as target areas 
where commercial redevelopment could occur 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey and City input 

9  Priority Need Name  Conducting Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Priority Level  Low 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Improve Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  Clear lots for redevelopment 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey and City input 

10  Priority Need Name  Providing Effective Planning and Administration 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Housing Administration 
CP: CDBG Administration 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 
AFH: Conduct Interpretation and Translation Analysis 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 

Description  Provide necessary administration and planning services, as well as complete all 
reports, as required by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

Table 13 – Priority Needs 

50

79



SP‐30: Influence of Market Conditions 91.215(b) 

Which market characteristics will influence use of TBRA, TBRA for non‐homeless special needs; New Unit 

production, rehabilitation, and acquisition?   

Affordable Housing 
Type 

Market Characteristics that will Influence the Use of Funds Available for Housing 
Type 

Tenant‐Based 
Rental Assistance 
(TBRA) 

The City of Cedar Falls has a shortage of housing units for low‐and‐moderate income 
households (<80% of AMI), which is even more pronounced for households earning 
less than 50% of Area Median Income.  In September 2018, the Housing Commission 
closed the Housing Choice Voucher waiting list, and it will remain closed until July 
31st, 2019.  Closure of the waiting list was publicly implemented.  Unfortunately, the 
need for rent assistance continues to rise in the community. 

Tenant‐Based 
Rental Assistance 
(TBRA) for Non‐
Homeless Special 
Needs 

The City manages a Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8) program through an 
internal agency.  At this point, the City of Cedar Falls is not participating in a Housing 
Trust Fund, which could offer more TBRA assistance through at least two 
agencies/organizations (Operation Threshold and Exceptional Persons, 
Incorporated).  Both of these agencies may be working with Cedar Falls residents.  
However, with only limited funds and the high rent prices, the number of 
households assisted is limited. 

New Unit 
Production 

The City of Cedar Falls continues to support development of new affordable units.  
However, with the demand, much of which is driven by the University of Northern 
Iowa, housing ownership costs remain out‐of‐reach for many households.  
Conversely, senior housing continues to be a priority for the community, and at least 
two organizations are building senior housing, Western Home and New Aldaya. 

Rehabilitation  Rehabilitation continues to be a need for Cedar Falls homeowners in certain areas of 
the community.  The City is often maintaining a waiting list for both its owner‐
occupied rehabilitation and repair programs.  With that said, rehabilitation is a 
challenging activity insomuch as obtaining agency clearances, project approvals, and 
identifying contractors that are able to complete the work on‐budget and in a timely 
fashion. 

Acquisition, 
including 
Preservation 

According to the Iowa Finance Authority, there are 5 privately‐owned, subsidized 
developments in Cedar Falls containing 360 units.  Subsidies are either through Low 
Income Housing Tax Credits or Section 8 (See Section MA‐10 of this Plan.).  

Table 14 – Market Conditions 

Due primarily to the high cost of housing in the community, which is tied directly to the price of land and 

infrastructure, the City of Cedar Falls is challenged to provide affordable housing.  These factors, together with the 

demand for housing in the community, affect the price of housing.  As an aside, the demand for housing in the 

community is influenced by the University of Northern Iowa, which is located in the community. 

SP‐35: Anticipated Resources 91.215(a)(4), 91.220(c)(1,2) 

The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding during FFY 2019 

through FFY 2023.  The uses of the funds include housing rehabilitation and repair, code enforcement, access to 

public services, public infrastructure and neighborhood improvements, clearance and demolition of property, and 

planning and administration.

51

80



Explain how federal funds will leverage additional resources (private, state, and local funds), include a description of how matching requirements will be 

satisfied 

The City of Cedar Falls encourages applicants and sub‐recipients to obtain other public and private resources that address needs identified in the Consolidated 

Plan.  In order to implement most of the projects identified in this Plan, it will require additional resources to complete said projects.  During prior years, 

projects have leveraged other sources. 

Description of how match requirements will be satisfied 

There are no match requirements for CDBG funding under the Entitlement Program. 

If appropriate, describe the publicly owned land or property within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Goals, and the activities under each goal, that are categorized as Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. sanitary sewer, water, drainage), 
Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e. sidewalks, trails, curb cuts), and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements (i.e. parks, playgrounds) will likely 
occur on publicly‐owned land.  Specifically, the publicly‐owned rights‐of‐way and parks will be used to address the needs identified in this plan. 

Anticipated Resources 

A summary of anticipated resources for the CDBG Entitlement and Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Programs is shown in the table below. 

52

81



Program  Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds  Expected Amount Available Year 1  Expected 
Amount 
Available 

Remainder of 
Con Plan $ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG  Public/Federal  Housing Rehab and Repair, 
Agency Assistance, Infrastructure 
Development, Community and 
Economic Development Efforts, 
Public Service Improvements, 
Acquisition, Planning and 

Administration 

$253,085  $0  $372,039 
(Estimated) 

$625,124 
(Estimated) 

$1,012,340 
(Estimated) 

HCV  Public/Federal  Rent Assistance  $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$0  $0  $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$5,200,000 
(Estimated) 

Table 15 – Anticipated Resource 

53

82



SP‐40: Institutional Delivery Structure 91.215(k) 

Responsible Entity  Responsible Entity Type  Role  Geographic Area Served 

City of Cedar Falls  Government  Economic Development, 
Homelessness, Non‐
Homeless Special Needs, 
Homeownership 
programs and 
improvements, 
Neighborhood 
Improvements, Public 
Facilities, Public Services, 
Planning and 
Administration 

Jurisdiction 

Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments 

Contractor  Public Administrative 
Contractor 

Jurisdiction 

Table 16 ‐ Institutional Delivery Structure 

Strengths and gaps in the delivery system; how to overcome gaps 

The strengths in the delivery system include the use of another experienced local public sector entity, INRCOG, to 
help the City of Cedar Falls implement their program.  Further, working with the City of Waterloo has brought 
experience to this process.  Together, both entities will help to improve the effectiveness of the program for the 
City and its residents 

54

83



Availability of services targeted to homeless persons and persons with HIV and mainstream services 

Homelessness Prevention 
Services 

Available in the 
Community 

Targeted to Homeless  Targeted to People 
with HIV 

Homelessness Prevention Services 

Counseling/Advocacy  X  X  X 

Legal Assistance  X  X 

Mortgage Assistance  X  X 

Rental Assistance  X    X  X 

Utilities Assistance  X   X  X 

Street Outreach Services 

Law Enforcement   X   X 

Mobile Clinics 

Other Street Outreach Services   X  X 

Supportive Services 

Alcohol & Drug Abuse  X  X  X 

Child Care  X  X 

Education  X 

Employment and Employment 
Training  X  X 

Healthcare  X  X 

HIV/AIDS  X  X 

Life Skills  X  X 

Mental Health Counseling  X  X 

Transportation  X  X 

Other 

Table 17 ‐ Homeless Prevention Services Summary 

Describe how the service delivery system including, but not limited to, the services listed above meet the needs 
of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans 
and their families, and unaccompanied youth) 

As noted above, the City supports several agencies that address the needs of those persons that are homeless.  
Also, the City is participating in the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board (LHCB).  Finally, the 
Cedar Falls Section 8 Program (may also be known as the Low Rent Housing Agency or Cedar Falls Housing 
Authority) reduces the potential for homelessness by providing rent assistance in the form of Housing Choice 
Vouchers.   

Describe the strengths and gaps of the service delivery system for special needs population and persons 
experiencing homelessness, including, but not limited to, the services listed above 

The strengths regarding the current delivery system is that the City is financially supporting service providers that 
can accommodate special needs populations using their expertise and facilities, thus preventing duplication of 
services in the community.  An additional strength is the sheer number of agencies, organization, and entities that 
can offer services to the community.  Gaps include those caused by funding limitations and an apparent lack of 
service education for residents and provider coordination. 

Provide a summary of the strategy for overcoming gaps in the institutional structure and service delivery system 
for carrying out a strategy to address priority needs 

55

84



The Cedar Falls Housing Commission and City staff will continue to work to provide strategies that minimize gaps in 
the service delivery system.  As noted, the city works with multiple non‐profit and private organizations to address 
a host of housing and non‐housing community development needs and issues.  The City, at this point, is planning 
to continue to fund agencies, as is practicable.  Further, the City has discussed continuing the conversation 
between local government and the agencies, organizations, and entities that participated in the public input 
process within this plan. 

56

85



SP‐45 Goals 91.215(a)(4) 

Goals Summary Information 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name  Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category  Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed  Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

1  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing: 
Owner Occupied Units 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing 

CDBG: 
$172,500 

Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated or 
Repaired: 
11 Household Housing 
Units 

2  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing: 
Renter Occupied Units 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing 

CDBG: 
$201,820 

Rental Housing 
Rehabilitated or 
Repaired: 
6 Household Housing 
Units 

3  Preserve Existing 
Affordable Housing 
through Code 
Enforcement 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing and 
Promote Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$51,750 

Apply Code 
requirements to 
residential units in LMI 
Areas: 
375 Households 
Assisted 

4  Prevent Homelessness 
Through Agency and 
Organization Support 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide  Prevent Homelessness and 
Offer Family and Children’s 
Services 

CDBG: 
$189,800 

Assist 7,500 
Households; 
Low/Moderate Income 
Clientele Benefit 

5  Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Infrastructure 
Development 

CDBG: 
$414,480 

Assist 200 households 
in LMI Areas 

6  Provide Access to 
Transportation 
Services  

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Prevent Homelessness and 
Offer Family and Children’s 
Services Support Economic 
Development 

CDBG: 
$52,420 

Assist 1,000 
households or offer 
transit service 
extensions to LMI 
Areas 

7  Neighborhood 
Accessibility 
Improvements 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Infrastructure 
Development and Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$133,499 

Assist 35 Households in 
LMI Areas 

57

86



Sort 
Order 

Goal Name  Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category  Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed  Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

8  Neighborhood 
Recreational 
Amenities 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Neighborhood 
Development and 
Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

CDBG: 
$158,120 

Assist 150 Households 
in LMI Areas 

9  Demolition and 
Clearance 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Demolition and Clearance  CDBG: 
$10,000 

Buildings Demolished: 
2 Buildings 

10  CDBG Planning and 
Administration 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Provide Effective Planning 
and Administration 

CDBG: 
$253,075 

Not Applicable 

Table 18 – Goals Summary 

58

87



Goal Descriptions 

1  Goal Name  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Continue to provide housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility and structural 
hazard removal grants to eligible low‐and‐moderate income households in order to 
preserve owner‐occupied single‐family housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

2  Goal Name  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Create housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, parking, and structural hazard 
removal grants to eligible low‐and‐moderate income households in order to preserve 
renter‐occupied housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

3  Goal Name  Preserve Existing Affordable Housing through Code Enforcement 

Goal 
Description 

Working with the Elected Officials, Housing Commission, and Staff, continue to equitably 
enforce municipal code provisions that affect the safety of housing conditions, including 
property and rental inspections, municipal infractions, and building and structural codes 
(i.e. fire, mechanical, plumbing, electrical codes).  Associated expenses in low‐and‐
moderate income areas would benefit from implementing this goal. 

Plan 
Reference 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector
Market Based Actions.

National 
Objectives 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

4  Goal Name  Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Goal 
Description 

Continue supporting agencies providing homeless services, including sheltering, in the 
community as well as providing financial counseling, nutritional, substance abuse, family 
services, and healthcare. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 3

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Income Clientele

5  Goal Name  Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

This goal provides for funding of infrastructure projects including street, water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater management, drainage, parking, and other projects in specific 
neighborhoods qualifying as low‐and‐moderate income areas.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector
Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

6  Goal Name  Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Goal 
Description 

Program provides funding for transportation to income‐eligible households, or areas, that 
are dependent upon these services in order to maintain employment. 

59

88



Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

7  Goal Name  Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

Improved sidewalks, steps, walls, curb‐cuts, and trails that address accessibility barriers to 
residents in LMI areas, as identified by the Census Bureau. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

8  Goal Name  Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Goal 
Description 

Provide funds for increasing access to healthy lifestyles and educational advancement 
related to parks, recreation, trees, and active living assets in LMI areas of the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions and Private
Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

9  Goal Name  Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Goal 
Description 

The primary purpose of this project is the demolition and clearance of dilapidated 
structures, thus eliminating specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a local 
basis.  Individual demolition/clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility 
verification.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector
Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight

10  Goal Name  CDBG Planning and Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Provide CDBG Administrative Services, by city staff or contractors assisting city staff. The 
program provides effective planning and administration for CDBG programs that benefit 
low‐and‐moderate income areas and households in the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1, 2, 3, and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight

Table 19 – Goal Descriptions 

60

89



SP‐50: Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement 91.215(c) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not own or manage public housing facilities, nor are there any located in the 
community, and therefore, this Consolidated Planning process did not include evaluation of the needs of public 
housing, attempt to increase engagement of public housing residents in the process, or address any “troubled” 
public housing agencies. 

Encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participation in 

homeownership 

Because there is no public housing, further involvement of residents was not part of this planning process. 

Is Public Housing considered troubled in the jurisdiction 

Again, because there is no public housing, there are no units or facilities considered “troubled” in the community 

SP‐55: Barriers to Affordable Housing 91.215(h) 

Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing is outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  Between 
demand on the units by full‐time residents, and that which comes with being a university community and its 
student housing needs, the City has demand for affordable housing. 

Two public policy issues were raised during the planning process, parking paving requirements for rental 
properties and the inability of the current zoning ordinance to effectively address growth that includes mixing of 
uses, increased development densities, and market pressures in fast‐growing areas of the community (i.e. Main 
Street). Regarding the paving requirement, since adoption of the ordinance in February 2015, the City has 
reviewed the requirement three separate times.  The cost impact of this policy has been part of that discussion, 
particularly a concern about hard‐surfacing gravel driveways of existing single‐unit rental homes, whereas, the 
drive of an existing single‐unit owner‐occupied unit may remain gravel.  CDBG funds could be used to assist 
qualifying properties comply with the requirement.   Also, recently, the City announced it was planning to update 
its existing zoning ordinance, with the idea that it may choose to include both form‐based and conventional zoning 
provisions for specific parts of the community.  This may promote more dense development, which could help to 
preserve affordability, that is design‐based, as opposed to being impacted exclusively by conventional zoning 
requirements, which focus on use and bulk requirements (i.e. height, setbacks, yard area).   

With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable housing in 
Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing market, for low‐income 
residents in Cedar Falls, is relatively expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being relatively high.  Second, 
housing demand in the community has driven‐up construction costs for both single‐family and multiple‐family 
developments.  For example, significant demand for rental properties, some of which is attributed to the 
University of Northern Iowa student population, has increased prices dramatically, to the point of making units 
unaffordable for low‐and‐moderate income households.  Third, market demand has driven the price of land 
upward in the community, not to mention the high costs associated with “greenfield” residential development 
(that which occurs on previously undeveloped land), most notably infrastructure costs.   Finally, declining or static 
local and federal resources, which could be allocated toward affordable housing projects, coupled with ever‐
increasing program requirements, have also been a key impediment to addressing low‐and‐moderate income 
housing needs. 

By looking at the two issues cited above, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to ameliorate negative effects of 
public policy during this process.  Also, the City may wish to explore public‐private‐nonprofit partnerships in the 
development of affordable housing.  Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract additional 
resources/financing that private developers cannot, when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Said 

61

90



housing may be marketed at workforce housing as opposed to being labeled affordable.  Nevertheless, the City 
does recognize the effect that their housing market is having on the price of housing, which may affect whether or 
not people can afford to live in the community.  Further, the City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies future use 
including areas that may be developed at higher densities, which may help address the availability of affordable 
housing.  Specifically, the plan identifies the following areas that may be suitable for higher density development: 
along University Avenue, west of Hudson Road; immediately east of the University of Northern Iowa; and 
intermixed with uses in the Main Street area, between 1st Street and 7th Street.  The codes, specifically zoning, 
building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has adopted are designed and drafted to treat properties 
and people uniformly and fairly.  Further, fees are either “flat” or based upon the value of the improvements made 
to properties in an attempt to create fairness.  Finally, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as 
determined by the County Assessor.  Regarding the levy rate for determining actual property tax amounts, they are 
set by the City Council as part of their annual budgeting process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property 
use), the percentage of which that is actually collected by the City is determined by the State of Iowa.  Currently, 
residentially‐classified property is rolled‐back by the state such that local governments may only tax at a rate of 
approximately 55 percent of a property’s market or 100 percent value. In addition, in 2015, the State adopted a 
rollback for multi‐residential properties that was to be implemented over several years.  The tax rate began at 
86.25 percent of a property’s market value, and over eight years, it will incrementally reduce in percentage until it 
is the same rollback as that of residentially‐classified properties (i.e. in the 50‐60 percent range).  This, then, 
reduces property tax income for the City. 

With that said, the City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to 
market demand, land value, and development cost (primarily infrastructure).  Obviously, then, this higher cost may 
not allow for persons with limited means to reside in the community.  As a result, the City’s participation in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more important.  The 
CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair 
programs, the City offers assistance to residents for the services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, 
thus not requiring persons to have to make difficult decisions between paying for housing‐related expenses and 
the other services they may need.  It also allows for infrastructure investments, avoiding increases in other rates, 
taxes, or assessments for property owners because CDBG funds are used. 

Strategy to remove or ameliorate negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing, 

as identified in the Needs Assessment strategy 

The City has reviewed the previously‐discussed parking regulation several times since adoption.  Knowing that 
hard‐surfacing is an economic impact, the rental ordinance phased it in over six years.  All hard‐surfacing in rental 
unit driveways and parking areas will be completed by 2021.  In addition, it appears likely the City’s current zoning 
ordinance may undergo significant changes that may better serve affordable housing.  Further, the City will 
continue to study its Housing Choice Voucher program and effectiveness of how to best manage the program for 
participants.  Finally, the City will work with developers to identify possible areas or projects that could include 
affordable housing units, as part of developing a Housing Needs Assessment for the community. 

SP‐60: Homelessness Strategy 91.215(d) 

Homelessness is monitored as part of the Continuum of Care (CoC) model, as implemented through the Black 
Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board, which is comprised of public and private sector representatives, 
including local governments and non‐profit organizations, schools, faith‐based organizations, and service and 
advocacy agencies.  Several CoC providers took part in the focus group sessions described in this plan. 

With that said, the City of Cedar Falls also allocates the maximum allowable CDBG dollars for distribution to several 
agencies, as has been noted.  As part of those allocations, the City conducts a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) 
process, whereby prospective agencies outline the services they are able to offer to the City.  Homelessness, 
prevention and avoidance of homelessness, is the overarching reason for providing CDBG funds to the selected 

62

91



agencies.  After award, but during the award year, the City then visits each agency to perform a monitoring of the 
services being offered to Cedar Falls residents.  These monitoring visits are quite helpful for the City, insomuch, as 
they provide an opportunity for staff to become aware of the service details, needs, and impacts.  Finally, the 
awarded agencies from the prior year are given an opportunity to attend the City’s Housing Commission Meetings 
to discuss their program; offer insight regarding the needs, particularly those that are unmet, of Cedar Falls 
residents; and assuring the City that the CDBG funds are having a positive impact on its residents. 

The City addresses homelessness and special needs in the following ways.  First, the City has been funding an 
agency, the Salvation Army, for part of their operational expenses related to operating two homeless shelters.  
Second, the City funds two agencies such that they may offer specific training and education that may affect a 
household’s housing situation, by hopefully offering resources regarding financial management, abuse, and family 
relationships.  Examples include Consumer Credit Counseling and Family and Children’s Council. Third, the City 
offered CDBG funding for at‐home healthcare, outpatient mental health services, and substance abuse counseling 
through two agencies, the Visiting Nurses Association and Pathways Behavioral, Incorporated.  Finally, the City, 
using its CDBG funds, hopes to address hunger and nutritional needs by funding the Northeast Iowa Food Bank and 
Food Pantry.  As was expected, resident needs outpaced the amount of funding the City was able to offer the 
agencies through the CDBG program alone.  Nevertheless, the City intends to continue funding agencies that offer 
ancillary services to its residents with the goal of preventing or minimizing homelessness. 

Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through reaching‐out to homeless persons, particularly those 
unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual need 

Needs of the homeless are identified through the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board.  This 
advocacy group shares information regarding homeless needs and services.  The Board serves as a large 
partnership for service providers, policy makers, and administrators for addressing housing and homeless services 
in the area.  In addition, the Salvation Army and Northeast Iowa Food Bank have provided services directly to 
persons that may be homeless or in danger of becoming homeless, on behalf of the City.  Finally, the City of Cedar 
Falls is always open to developing new partnerships and strategies designed to address homelessness.    

Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of 
homeless persons 

The City of Cedar Falls uses CDBG funds to address homelessness through funding of agency shelters, most 
recently the Salvation Army Women's and Children’s Shelter, as well as five other agencies that indirectly affect 
homelessness. The Shelter used the funds provided during this past year to finance rehabilitation work to the 
shelter itself. The shelter also provides services to assist the women in finding employment and permanent 
housing, as well as offers emergency assistance to those persons affected by disasters. 

Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through helping homeless persons that could make the 
transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the length of time homelessness 
is experienced; homeless relapse prevention 

The City will work with an agency that will offer shelter for persons in need, most notably those persons that may 
be homeless.  For example, the Salvation Army Shelter provides case management and supportive services to 
assist homeless persons make the transition to permanent, stable housing.  As previously noted, the City of Cedar 
Falls has a sub‐recipient agreement with Consumer Credit Counseling Services to provide budget and credit 
counseling, foreclosure prevention counseling, and home ownership counseling to low‐and‐moderate income 
Cedar Falls residents in order to prevent homelessness, as well. 

Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness after being discharged from publicly funded institutions and 
systems of care; addressing housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs. 
In order to prevent homelessness, the City will participate in the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating 
Board, as well as address other systems of care.  Again, the City of Cedar Falls has provided awards to six agencies 

63

92



that offer services to residents.  By doing so, the cost of these services is paid by the City, as opposed to residents, 
which in turn, helps stretch the budgets of served persons and prevent or minimize the threat of becoming 
homeless.  Furthermore, these paid services assist those households that may spend 50 percent or more of their 
budget on housing expenses, which may threaten housing status or the immediate and/or basic needs of the 
assisted household.  As an aside, any agencies funded will be classified as serving LMI Limited Clientele 
populations. 

CDBG funds are used to fund home healthcare to low income elderly and disabled residents. These services allow 
medically needy residents to remain in their homes even when assisted living in required. Funds are also provided 
for providing counseling services to families and youth. Also, on provider has a Parent Connection Program that 
provides parent education, social support and access to community resources through trained staff that meet 
weekly for a minimum of ninety minutes.  In addition, substance abuse treatment is offered, through a contracting 
agency, by the City for persons in need, and the regional food bank provides foodstuff for households in need of 
nutrition.  Finally, as indicated above, the City intends to consider funding financial literacy and household 
budgeting courses and assistance, as well as financial management services, to residents. 

SP‐65: Lead‐Based Paint Hazards 91.215(i) 

Actions to address lead‐based paint hazards and increased access to housing without lead‐based hazards 

The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides lead risk 
assessment and completes lead‐ based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls.  
If abatement work is completed, the entire property/project is cleaned. At least one hour after the final cleaning a 
certified inspector does a visual examination to ensure there are no paint chips, dust, debris, or bare soil. The 
inspector then takes a dust sample from the window troughs, windowsills, and floors. The sampling is then tested 
in accordance with the HUD guidelines. In addition, per unit rehab budgets also include funds for relocation of 
families impacted by lead, as well as for addressing lead hazards such that units can be considered safe. 

Actions to address how lead‐based hazard are related to the extent of lead poisoning and hazards 

The City will continue to include lead‐based hazard prevention measures in its program, including identification, 
testing, relocation, and remediation actions.  Applicants, as a means of education, are also provided the lead paint 
brochure "Protect Your Family from Lead Paint in Your Home".  This brochure explains the dangers of lead in the 
home.  Households receiving assistance through the Housing Choice Voucher program are also advised of lead 
hazards and units built prior to 1978 are assessed for lead hazards. 

How will the plan for reduction of lead‐based hazards be integrated into housing policies and programs? 

As noted above, lead‐based hazard reduction measures are included in all housing rehabilitation projects, the 
Housing Choice Voucher program, specifically in actions and budgets.  These efforts will continue during the 
lifespan of this plan.   

SP‐70: Anti‐Poverty Strategy 91.215(j) 

Goals, program and policies for reducing the number of poverty‐level families 

The City of Cedar Falls is interested in retaining as well as improving the abilities of its workforce, which includes 
encouraging job skill development, job training, education, and other program opportunities that may arise, as a 
means of supporting self‐sufficiency and reducing poverty.  This includes working with its local businesses and 
industries and economic development professionals to do so.  In addition, the City will work with local service 
providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the development of affordable housing; 
prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education and literacy; and provide emergency 

64

93



food and shelter. 

Goals, program and policies for producing and preserving affordable housing will be coordinated with other 
programs designed to serve persons at the poverty level 

The City staff, and/or their contractor(s), will be tasked to coordinate the services provided under the CDBG 
Entitlement, HOME, and Housing Choice Vouchers Programs with other programs designed to serve persons at the 
poverty level.  Specifically, the City is hoping to develop a forum that would include the public sector and the 
agencies offering services to the community, which would be designed as a continuation of the discussions that 
occurred during the focus group meetings that were part of this planning effort. 

Community outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. INRCOG staff, which helps the City manage the CDBG Entitlement Program, attends Community Resource 
Fairs, and workshops with a number of local public service agencies and non‐profit organizations. The meetings 
offer opportunities to foster relationships as well as identify the services each organization and/or agency is 
providing. By educating participating organizations on services available in the community, we are better 
positioned to meet the needs of the low‐moderate‐income individuals and households in the city. 

SP‐80: Monitoring 91.230 

Describe the standards and procedures that will be used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the 
plan and ensure long‐term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including comprehensive 
planning requirements 

The City of Cedar Falls uses numerous methods of ensuring the projects funded under the CDBG Entitlement 
program comply with federal standards and requirements, including the National Objectives for the CDBG 
Program.  Further, said monitoring will utilize this plan and the Analysis of Fair Housing as the foundations and 
impetus for actions taken and implemented using CDBG funding in the community.  In short, expenditure of funds 
will be consistent with the goals outlined in both planning documents. 

All direct housing rehabilitation and repair projects will be conducted according to prescribed requirements, 
including written applications, income verifications, procurement, contracting, inspections, and closeout 
procedures.  Only low‐to‐moderate income households will be assisted.  

Any agencies receiving funding will be required to compete for funds, develop eligible proposals, provide quarterly 
reports, and be monitored for compliance and effectiveness.  The City of Cedar Falls intends to continue working 
with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure it is reaching the goal of assisting residents with 
the greatest need. In addition, we will work with code enforcement and other departments to identify potential at‐
risk residents. Declining resources have been a key impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other 
agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to provide more services to low‐and‐moderate income 
residents.  Low‐and‐moderate income limited clientele services will be assisted, as is allowed. 

City‐directed projects will be implemented according to CDBG eligibility, monitoring, and reporting requirements.  
This will include all neighborhood projects, the scope of which shall be limited to low‐and‐moderate income areas, 
as defined by the US Census Bureau. 

Finally, the Housing Commission and City Council will review and approve this Consolidated Plan, each Annual 
Action Plan adopted under this Consolidated Plan, as well as each Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPER), which summarizes the accomplishments and efforts made under the CDBG Entitlement 
Program, all after conducting the required, appropriate public input processes outlined in the City’s Public 
Participation Plan. 

All CDBG funds expended will be subject to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and the City’s 

65

94



auditing and monitoring processes.  In addition, planning and administrative work performed by INRCOG are 
subject to its independent auditing and records inspections processes as well.   

66

95



K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Date

3/19/2019

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the
information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This
information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All
warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

Low-Moderate Income Areas 2011-15

67

96



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2019 (CITY FISCAL YEAR 2020) ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW 
APRIL 25TH, 2019 

COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (30‐day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; February 6th, 2019 

HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
February 12th, 2019 (Opened the 30‐day public comment period) 
March 12th, 2019 (Closed the 30‐day public comment period; Recommendation made to City Council) 
Publication: Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; February 6th, 2019 

CITY COUNCIL (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
April 25th, 2019 (Council sets public hearing for May 6th, 2019) 
May 6th, 2019 (Anticipated) (After a properly‐noticed public hearing was conducted) 
Publication: Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; (date) 

1

97



AP‐15 Expected Resources ‐ 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 

Introduction 

The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving an allocation of $253,085 in Community Development Block Grant funding and approximately $1.3M in Housing 
Choice Voucher funding for Federal Fiscal Year 2019.  There are no match requirements for either CDBG under the Entitlement Program or HCV funding. 

Anticipated Resources 

Program  Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds  Expected Amount Available Year 1  Expected Amount 
Available 

Remainder of Con 
Plan $ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG  Public/Federal  Housing Rehab and Repair, 
Agency Assistance, 

Infrastructure Development, 
Community and Economic 

Development Efforts, 
Neighborhood Improvements, 

Acquisition, Planning and 
Administration 

$253,085  $0  $372,039 
(Estimated) 

$625,124 
(Estimated) 

$1,012,340 
(Estimated) 

HCV  Public/Federal  Rent Assistance  $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$0  $0  $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$5,200,000 
(Estimated) 

Table 1 – Goals Summary 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements 
will be satisfied 

CDBG funds will be used to provide rehabilitation and repair grants for single family homeowners.  Also, CDBG funds, awarded to agencies, will be used in 
conjunction with other agency funding sources in order to provide services to Cedar Falls households.  Finally, the City will support Code Enforcement, 

2

98



Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements, Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements, and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements, and transportation 
services or amenities in low‐to‐moderate income areas of the community. 

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Goals, and the activities under each goal, that are categorized as Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. sanitary sewer, water, drainage), 
Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e. sidewalks, trails, curb cuts), and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements (i.e. parks, playgrounds) will likely 
occur on publicly‐owned land.  Specifically, the publicly‐owned rights‐of‐way and parks will be used to address the needs identified in this plan. 

3

99



Annual Goals and Objectives 

AP‐20 Annual Goals and Objectives ‐ 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 

Goals Summary Information  

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name  Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category  Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

1  Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Owner 
Occupied Units 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide  Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG: 
$16,500 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
3 Household Housing Units 

2  Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Renter 
Occupied Units 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide  Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG: 
$101,320 

Rental Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
3 Household Housing Units 

3  Preserve Existing 
Affordable 
Housing through 
Code 
Enforcement 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide  Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing and 
Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$10,000 

Apply Code requirements to residential units in 
LMI Areas: 
75 Households Assisted 

4  Prevent 
Homelessness 
Through Agency 
and 
Organization 
Support 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide  Prevent 
Homelessness 
and Offer Family 
and Children’s 
Services 

CDBG: 
$37,960 

Assist 1,500 Households; Low/Moderate 
Income Clientele Benefit 

5  Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 

CDBG: 
$251,820 

Assist 140 households in LMI Areas 

4

100



Sort 
Order 

Goal Name  Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category  Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

6  Provide Access 
to 
Transportation 
Services  

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Prevent 
Homelessness 
and Offer Family 
and Children’s 
Services Support 
Economic 
Development 

CDBG: $0   Assist 0 households or offer transit service 
extensions to LMI Areas 

7  Neighborhood 
Accessibility 
Improvements 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 
and Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$106,909 

Assist 30 Households in LMI Areas 

8  Neighborhood 
Recreational 
Amenities 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 
and 
Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

CDBG: 
$50,000 

Assist 50 
Households in LMI Areas 

9  Demolition and 
Clearance 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Demolition and 
Clearance 

CDBG: $0  Buildings Demolished: 
0 Buildings 

10  CDBG Planning 
and 
Administration 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Provide Effective 
Planning and 
Administration 

CDBG: 
$50,615 

Not Applicable 

Table 2 – Goals Summary 

5

101



AP‐35 Projects ‐ 91.220(d) 

Introduction  

The projects chosen for funding allocation all serve a purpose in efforts to prevent homelessness, preserve the 
current housing stock of affordable homes in the area and provide services that are essential to keeping residents 
in their homes. These programs were designated to improve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and 
improve areas that meet the national objective in the community. Funds will be utilized in an efficient manner and 
serve those with the greatest need. 

#  Project Name 

1  Single‐Family Owner‐Occupied Rehabilitation 

2  Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

3  Code Enforcement 

4  Agency and Organization Support 

5  Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

6  Provide Access to Transportation Service 

7  Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

8  Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

9  Demolition and Clearance 

10  CDBG Planning and Administration 

Table 3 – Project Information 

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs 

In order to serve Cedar Falls residents, funding will be allocated toward making housing more affordable, 
preserving existing affordable housing stock, increasing affordable housing, supporting low‐to‐moderate income 
neighborhood investment, and assisting citizens with accessing services.  Funding will be focused on meeting two 
National CDBG Objectives, assisting low‐to‐moderate income persons and eliminating slum and blight in the 
community. 

The primary barrier for assisted households is, and has been, the price of housing.  Further, the resources available 
for the program outlined in this plan have been static, or even declining in some years.  Conversely, the regulations 
and requirements associated with funded projects have increased along with administrative expenditures 

6

102



Project Summary Information 

1  Project Name  Single‐Family Owner‐Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed  Maintain Affordable Housing 

Funding Target  CDBG: $16,500 (Estimated) (Construction expenses from lump sum draw) 

Description  Rehabilitation of Owner Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 3 households will benefit from the CBBG Rehabilitation 
Program 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Planned Activities  Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, windows and 
siding. 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

2  Project Name  Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed  Maintain Affordable Housing; Ensure Fair Housing for Residents 

Funding Target  $101,320 (Estimated) 

Description  Repair of Renter Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 3 households will benefit from this limited CDBG 
Rehabilitation Program 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Planned Activities  Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, parking, 
windows and siding. 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

3  Project Name  Code Enforcement 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls; LMI Areas 

Goals Supported  Preserve Affordable Housing Through Code Enforcement 

Needs Addressed  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing 

Funding Target  CDBG: $10,000 (Estimated) 

Description  Funds will be used to pay for code enforcement services provided to LMI 
areas. 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 75 households in Cedar Falls. 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; LMI Areas 

Planned Activities  City staff inspection services for persons in LMI Areas in the community 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

7

103



4  Project Name  Agency and Organization Support 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls; LMI Limited Clientele 

Goals Supported  Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Needs Addressed  Support for Services for Homeless, Near‐Homeless, Special Needs; Provide 
Family and Children’s Services 

Funding Target  CDBG: $37,960 (Estimated) 

Description  Funds will be used to pay for financial education, nutrition, homelessness 
and sheltering, healthcare, family and children’s, and substance abuse 
services for Cedar Falls residents who are seeking assistance that prevent 
homelessness. 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 1,500 households or 4,000 people in 
the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Planned Activities  Offer eligible services, through contracting agencies and organizations, 
which could prevent homelessness in the community 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Clientele 

5  Project Name  Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported  Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Needs Addressed  Promote Infrastructure Development 

Funding Target  CDBG: $251,820 (Estimated) 

Description  Funds will be used to improve infrastructure, specifically sanitary sewer 
service, to LMI areas.  Street, water, stormwater management, parking, and 
drainage improvements may also be funded. 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 140 households in the Cedar Falls 
area. 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; LMI Areas 

Planned Activities  Line sanitary sewer lines to residential units located in LMI areas in the 
community 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

6  Project Name  Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls (Citywide); LMI Areas 

Goals Supported  Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Needs Addressed  Support Economic Development, Business Opportunities, and Commercial 
Building Redevelopment; Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target  CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description  Provide access to transit services for LMI households or areas in the 
community 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 0 people in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; LMI Areas 

8

104



Planned Activities  Offer transit passes to LMI households or extend transit service routes 
and/or hours of service to LMI areas 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

7  Project Name  Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported  Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Needs Addressed  Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target  CDBG: $106,909 (Estimated) 

Description  Infill sidewalk and trail gaps in LMI areas in the community 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 30 households in the Cedar Falls 
area. 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; LMI Areas 

Planned Activities  Connect service agencies, organizations, educational and recreational 
facilities, and similar attractions and residential neighborhoods using 
sidewalk, curb cuts/ADA ramps, and trails in LMI areas.  This will be 
accomplished by infilling pedestrian improvements that will allow LMI 
residents access to services, attractions, and educational opportunities. 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

8  Project Name  Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported  Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Needs Addressed  Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target  CDBG: $50,000 (Estimated) 

Description  Install park and recreational improvements, trees, and aesthetic amenities 
located in parks or other public properties in LMI areas of the community 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 50 households in the Cedar Falls 
area. 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; LMI Areas 

Planned Activities  Install or replace playground equipment, trees, and recreational amenities in 
local city parks or other public properties serving LMI areas and households 

CDBG National Objective  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

9  Project Name  Demolition and Clearance 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported  Demolition and Clearance 

Needs Addressed  Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Funding Target  CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description  The funds will be used to prevent slum and blight throughout the Cedar Falls 
City limits by demolishing and clearing dilapidated buildings and structures 
in the community 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Demolition of approximately 0 dilapidated units in the City 

9

105



Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Planned Activities  Demolish approximately 0 dilapidated units within the City 

CDBG National Objectives  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas; 
Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10  Project Name  CDBG Planning and Administration 

Target Area  City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported  All of the AAP goals are supported by this function or activity 

Needs Addressed  Provide Effective Planning and Administration 

Funding Target  CDBG: $50,615 (Estimated) 

Description  General management, oversight and coordination of the CDBG Program, 
policy planning, environmental reviews, report preparation, and 
administration will be financed using CDBG funds 

Target Date  6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Not Applicable 

Location Description  City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Planned Activities  Administrative and planning activities, associated with the CDBG program 

CDBG National Objectives  Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas; 
Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 4 – Project Summary 

10

106



AP‐50 Geographic Distribution ‐ 91.220(f) 

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low‐income and minority 
concentration) where assistance will be directed  

CDBG funding is used throughout the City of Cedar Falls as well as for purchasing services from a limited number of 
agencies that may not be located in Cedar Falls, but which will provide services to Cedar Falls residents.  Our 
programs will serve Low‐Moderate Income (LMI) households and LMI Limited Clientele agencies or organizations. 
The City is also intending to expend CDBG funds exclusively, for certain programs and projects, in LMI areas of the 
community, as defined by the US Census Bureau. 

Geographic Distribution 

Target Area  Percentage of Funds 

City of Cedar Falls and/or its Residents  100% 

Table 5 – Geographic Distribution  

Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

The LMI percentage required for CDBG eligibility is 51 percent of residents. As noted above, the City plans to use 
funds to benefit LMI areas within the community.  To that end, there are currently 7 census tracts with 8 block 
groups that have an LMI percentage of 51 percent or greater (ACS 2011‐2015). Specifically, Census tract 2200 block 
group 2 and 3; tract 2301 block group 3; tract 2303 block group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 
3; tract 2603 block group 4; and tract 2604 block group 5.  These areas may receive funding assistance for 
improving infrastructure, transportation connectivity, and park and recreational amenities and services. 

Discussion 

The qualifying block groups are scattered throughout the community, and the City does intend to use CDBG 
funding to support LMI‐specific areas. Most of the agency or family support programs funded through CDBG and 
these programs are based on an individual household LMI determination or on a Limited Clientele basis.  
Rehabilitation programs, and those benefitting a specific household, will require participants to meet LMI income 
guidelines. 

11

107



AP‐55 Affordable Housing Goals – 91.220(g) 

Goals: The following goals were established in this Action Plan for CDBG Use in the City. 

1  Goal Name  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Continue to provide housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility and structural 
hazard removal grants to eligible low‐and‐moderate income households in order to 
preserve owner‐occupied single‐family housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

2  Goal Name  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Create housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, parking, and structural hazard 
removal grants to eligible low‐and‐moderate income households in order to preserve 
renter‐occupied housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons

3  Goal Name  Preserve Existing Affordable Housing through Code Enforcement 

Goal 
Description 

Working with the Elected Officials, Housing Commission, and Staff, continue to equitably 
enforce municipal code provisions that affect the safety of housing conditions, including 
property and rental inspections, municipal infractions, and building and structural codes 
(i.e. fire, mechanical, plumbing, electrical codes).  Associated expenses in low‐and‐
moderate income areas would benefit from implementing this goal. 

Plan 
Reference 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector
Market Based Actions.

National 
Objectives 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas

4  Goal Name  Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Goal 
Description 

Continue supporting agencies providing homeless services, including sheltering, in the 
community, as well as providing financial counseling, nutritional, substance abuse, family 
services, and healthcare. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 3

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Income Clientele

5  Goal Name  Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

This goal provides for funding of infrastructure projects including street, water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater management, parking, and other projects in specific neighborhoods 
qualifying as low‐and‐moderate income areas.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector
Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas

6  Goal Name  Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Goal 
Description 

Program provides funding for transportation to income‐eligible households, or areas, that 
are dependent upon these services in order to maintain employment. 

12

108



Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas

7  Goal Name  Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

Improved sidewalks, steps, walls, curb‐cuts, and trails that address accessibility barriers to 
residents in LMI areas, as identified by the Census Bureau. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas

8  Goal Name  Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Goal 
Description 

Provide funds for increasing access to healthy lifestyles and educational advancement 
related to parks, recreation, trees, and active living assets in LMI areas of the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions and Private
Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas

9  Goal Name  Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Goal 
Description 

The primary purpose of this project is the demolition and clearance of dilapidated 
structures, thus eliminating specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a local 
basis.  Individual demolition/clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility 
verification.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector
Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight

10  Goal Name  CDBG Planning and Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Provide CDBG Administrative Services, by city staff or contractors assisting city staff. The 
program provides effective planning and administration for CDBG programs that benefit 
low‐and‐moderate income areas and households in the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1, 2, 3, and 4

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions.

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight

Table 6 – Goal Description 

13

109



AP‐60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not own or manage public housing facilities, nor are there any located in the 
community, and therefore, this Action Planning process did not include evaluation of the needs of public housing, 
increasing engagement of public housing residents in the process, or addressing a “troubled” public housing 
agency. 

AP‐65 Homeless and Other Special Need Activities – 91.220(i) 

To address homeless and special needs populations, the City of Cedar Falls uses the maximum allowable dollars for 
distribution to several agencies, as has been noted.  The allocation process includes a formal Request for Proposals 
(RFP) process, whereby prospective agencies outline the services that they can offer to the City.  The City conducts 
onsite monitoring visits to each agency receiving funds.  These monitoring visits help ensure that quality services 
are being delivered while providing an opportunity for staff to become more aware of the service details, needs, 
and impacts.  Finally, the awarded agencies from the prior year are given an opportunity to attend a City Housing 
Commission Meeting to discuss their program; offer insight regarding needs, particularly those that are unmet; 
and assuring the City that the CDBG funds are having a positive impact on its residents. 

The City addresses homelessness and special needs in the following ways.  First, the City funds agencies where 
expenses relate to operating homeless shelters (Salvation Army in prior years).  Second, the City also funds 
agencies such that they may offer specific training and education that may affect a household’s needs, by 
hopefully offering resources regarding financial management, abuse, and family relationships, credit counseling 
and Family and Children’s Council. Third, the City offered CDBG funding for at‐home healthcare, outpatient mental 
health services, and substance abuse counseling.  Finally, the City, using its CDBG funds, hopes to address hunger 
and nutritional needs by funding the regional food bank.  As is generally expected, resident needs outpace the 
amount of funding the City is able to offer the agencies through the CDBG program alone. 

AP‐70: HOPWA Goals – 91.220(l)(3) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 

AP‐75 Barriers to Affordable Housing – 91.220(j) 

Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing is outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  Between 
demand on the units by full‐time residents, and that which comes with being a university community and its 
student housing needs, the City has demand for affordable housing. 

Two public policy issues were raised during the planning process, parking paving requirements for rental 
properties and the inability of the current zoning ordinance to effectively address growth that includes mixing of 
uses, increased development densities, and market pressures in fast‐growing areas of the community (i.e. Main 
Street). Regarding the paving requirement, since adoption of the ordinance in February 2015, the City has 
reviewed the requirement three separate times.  The cost impact of this policy has been part of that discussion, 
particularly a concern about hard‐surfacing gravel driveways of existing single‐unit rental homes, whereas, the 
drive of an existing single‐unit owner‐occupied unit may remain gravel.  CDBG funds could be used to assist 
qualifying properties comply with the requirement.   Also, recently, the City announced it was planning to update 
its existing zoning ordinance, with the idea that it may choose to include both form‐based and conventional zoning 
provisions for specific parts of the community.  This may promote more dense development, which could help to 
preserve affordability, that is design‐based, as opposed to being impacted exclusively by conventional zoning 
requirements, which focus on use and bulk requirements (i.e. height, setbacks, yard area).   

With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable housing in 
Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing market, for low‐income 
residents in Cedar Falls, is relatively expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being relatively high.  Second, 

14

110



housing demand in the community has driven‐up construction costs for both single‐family and multiple‐family 
developments.  For example, significant demand for rental properties, some of which is attributed to the 
University of Northern Iowa student population, has increased prices dramatically, to the point of making units 
unaffordable for low‐and‐moderate income households.  Third, market demand has driven the price of land 
upward in the community, not to mention the high costs associated with “greenfield” residential development 
(that which occurs on previously undeveloped land), most notably infrastructure costs.   Finally, declining or static 
local and federal resources, which could be allocated toward affordable housing projects, coupled with ever‐
increasing program requirements, have also been a key impediment to addressing low‐and‐moderate income 
housing needs. 

By looking at the two issues cited above, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to ameliorate negative effects of 
public policy during this process.  Also, the City may wish to explore public‐private‐nonprofit partnerships in the 
development of affordable housing.  Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract additional 
resources/financing that private developers cannot, when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Said 
housing may be marketed at workforce housing as opposed to being labeled affordable.  Nevertheless, the City 
does recognize the effect that their housing market is having on the price of housing, which may affect whether or 
not people can afford to live in the community.  Further, the City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies future use 
including areas that may be developed at higher densities, which may help address the availability of affordable 
housing.  Specifically, the plan identifies the following areas that may be suitable for higher density development: 
along University Avenue, west of Hudson Road; immediately east of the University of Northern Iowa; and 
intermixed with uses in the Main Street area, between 1st Street and 7th Street. The codes, specifically zoning, 
building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has adopted are designed and drafted to treat properties 
and people uniformly and fairly.  Further, fees are either “flat” or based upon the value of the improvements made 
to properties in an attempt to create fairness.  Finally, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as 
determined by the County Assessor.  Regarding the levy rate for determining actual property tax amounts, they are 
set by the City Council as part of their annual budgeting process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property 
use), the percentage of which that is actually collected by the City is determined by the State of Iowa.  Currently, 
residentially‐classified property is rolled‐back by the state such that local governments may only tax at a rate of 
approximately 55 percent of a property’s market or 100 percent value. In addition, in 2015, the State adopted a 
rollback for multi‐residential properties that was to be implemented over several years.  The tax rate began at 
86.25 percent of a property’s market value, and over eight years, it will incrementally reduce in percentage until it 
is the same rollback as that of residentially‐classified properties (i.e. in the 50‐60 percent range).  This, then, 
reduces property tax income for the City. 

With that said, the City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to 
market demand, land value, and development cost (primarily infrastructure).  Obviously, then, this higher cost may 
not allow for persons with limited means to reside in the community.  As a result, the City’s participation in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more important.  The 
CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair 
programs, the City offers assistance to residents for the services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, 
thus not requiring persons to have to make difficult decisions between paying for housing‐related expenses and 
the other services they may need.  It also allows for infrastructure investments, avoiding increases in other rates, 
taxes, or assessments for property owners because CDBG funds are used. 

15

111



AP‐85 Other Actions ‐ 91.220(k) 

Introduction 

The City of Cedar Falls is able to address obstacles to meeting the underserved needs through networking with 
public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to prevent homelessness and provide affordable housing to 
Cedar Falls residents. Also, the City is working to maintain the affordable housing stock in the area and provide 
decent and safe conditions to its residents. 

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

The City of Cedar Falls will continue to work with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure we 
are reaching the goal of assisting residents with the greatest need. In addition, we will work with code 
enforcement and other departments to identify potential at‐risk residents. Declining resources have been a key 
impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to 
provide more services to low‐and‐moderate income residents. 

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

Cedar Falls continues to work to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Housing Rehabilitation and Repair 
Programs assist qualified homeowners with substantial home rehabilitation or repairs to existing units. Funding 
has also been provided to provide financial education classes and planning, as well as family support services. 
Habitat for Humanity encourages affordable housing through new construction and housing rehabilitation 
programs that they manage within the community. In addition, the City offers reduced refuse, sewer and storm 
water fees to households below the 50% income guidelines.  This is accomplished by the City using its general 
funds to assist, which in‐turn lowers the cost of housing. 

Actions planned to reduce lead‐based paint hazards 

The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides lead risk 
assessment and completes lead‐ based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls. 
The City will continue to work with local, county, regional and other government agencies to achieve lead safe 
homes. The city provides "Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home" brochure to educate CDBG applicants 
about the dangers of lead in the home. 

Actions planned to develop institutional structure 

The City, including Community Development Department and its Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
(which may also be known as the Cedar Falls Low Rent Housing Agency or Cedar Falls Housing Authority), and their 
contractor, the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments will work to strengthen the institutional structure 
used to manage the CDBG Entitlement Program.  Together, they will also work to close the housing delivery gap 
between public and non‐public organizations in the community.  Said organizations will also address the gap that 
exists with regard to private housing industry participation in developing the City’s institutional structure.  
Specifically, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program will work with private industry to increase and 
maintain affordable housing stock for low‐to‐moderate income households.  Through experience, participation in 
local, regional (PHA Director Association), state (Iowa NAHRO, Iowa Association of Housing Officials), and national 
(NAHRO, American Planning Association) housing and planning organizations, educational opportunities, and peer‐
to‐peer exchanges with other CDBG Entitlement recipients, staff‐members will become more proficient in 
executing, managing, assessing, and anticipating change within the program.  Further, the same entities, together 
with the City of Waterloo Community Development Department, will continue to do likewise with the institutional 

16

112



structure associated with administering the HOME Program. 

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty‐level families 

Cedar Falls has incorporated the Continuum of Care approach, providing an integrated system of services and 
programs to meet the various needs of individuals as they progress toward financial self‐sufficiency. Cedar Falls 
has worked with local service providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the 
development of affordable housing; prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education 
and literacy; and provide emergency food and shelter. 

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies 

Community outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. Staff attends Community Resource Fairs, and workshops with a number of local public service agencies 
and non‐profit organizations. The meetings offer opportunities to foster relationships as well as identify the 
services each organization and/or agency is providing. By educating participating organizations on services 
available in the community, we are better positioned to meet the needs of the low‐moderate‐income individuals 
and households in the city. 

AP‐90 Program Specific Requirements ‐ CDBG 91.220(l)(1) 

CDBG‐funded projects that are expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Summary 
Table (AP‐35) above. The following identifies any program income that may available for use in said projects.  

1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next program
year and that has not yet been reprogrammed $0 

2. The amount of proceeds from Section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to address
the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. $0 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements $0 
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not been

included in a prior statement or plan $0 
5. The amount of income from float‐funded activities $0 
Total Program Income: $0 

Other CDBG Requirements 

1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 

2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit
persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit ‐ A consecutive period of one, two
or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70 percent of
CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low‐and‐moderate income. Specify the years
covered that include this Annual Action Plan. 70.00% 

17

113



AP‐90: Program‐Specific Requirements‐HOME 91.220(l)(2) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a direct HOME recipient.  It is part of a consortium with the City of Waterloo, Iowa. 

AP‐90: Program‐Specific Requirements‐ESG 91.220(l)(4) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not an ESG recipient. 

AP‐90: Program‐Specific Requirements‐HOPWA 91.220(l)(3) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 

AP‐90: HTF Specific Review 91.220(l)(5) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not administer HTF funds. 

18

114



OMB Number: 4040-0004

Expiration Date: 12/31/2019

* 1. Type of Submission: * 2. Type of Application:

* 3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: 5b. Federal Award Identifier:

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

* a. Legal Name:

* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): * c. Organizational DUNS:

* Street1:

Street2:

* City:

County/Parish:

* State:

Province:

* Country:

* Zip / Postal Code:

Department Name: Division Name:

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

Title:

Organizational Affiliation:

* Telephone Number: Fax Number:

* Email:

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify):

State Use Only:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

d. Address:

e. Organizational Unit:

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Preapplication

Application

Changed/Corrected Application

New

Continuation

Revision

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

42-6004332 1698469120000

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls

IA: Iowa

USA: UNITED STATES

50613-2726

Community Development

Ms Stephanie

Sheetz

Director of Community Development

(319)273-8600 (319)273-8610

Stephanie.Sheetz@cedarfalls.com

19

115



* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:

* Other (specify):

* 10. Name of Federal Agency:

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

CFDA Title:

* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:

* Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

C: City or Township Government

US Department of Housing and Urban Development

14.218

Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants Program

Cedar Falls CDBG Entitlement Program

View AttachmentsDelete AttachmentsAdd Attachments

View AttachmentDelete AttachmentAdd Attachment

20

116



* a. Federal

* b. Applicant

* c. State

* d. Local

* e. Other

* f.  Program Income

* g. TOTAL

.

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

* Title:

* Telephone Number:

* Email:

Fax Number:

* Signature of Authorized Representative: * Date Signed:

18. Estimated Funding ($):

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to
comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims  may
subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency 
specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

* a. Applicant

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

* b. Program/Project

* a. Start Date: * b. End Date:

16. Congressional Districts Of:

17. Proposed Project:

IA-001 IA-001

Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment

06/30/202007/01/2019

253,085.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

253,085.00

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

Yes No

Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment

** I AGREE

Mr. James

Brown

Mayor

(319) 273-8600 (319) 273-8610

Jim.Brown@cedarfalls.com

* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)

* 19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

If "Yes", provide explanation and attach

21

117



OMB Number: 4040-0009 
Expiration Date: 01/31/2019

ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT 
AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing  
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for  
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503.

Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the  
Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional 
assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant:, I certify that the applicant:

NOTE:

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance,
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share
of project costs) to ensure proper planning,
management and completion of project described in
this application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General
of the United States and, if appropriate, the State,
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or
documents related to the assistance; and will establish
a proper accounting system in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standards or agency
directives.

3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the
terms of the real property title or other interest in the
site and facilities without permission and instructions
from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal
awarding agency directives and will include a covenant
in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part
with Federal assistance funds to assure non-
discrimination during the useful life of the project.

4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance
awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and
approval of construction plans and specifications.

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate
engineering supervision at the construction site to
ensure that the complete work conforms with the
approved plans and specifications and will furnish
progressive reports and such other information as may be
required by the assistance awarding agency or State.

6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.

7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or
presents the appearance of personal or organizational
conflict of interest, or personal gain.

8. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act
of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed
standards of merit systems for programs funded
under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or
rehabilitation of residence structures.

10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to non-
discrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a)
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352)
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race,
color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination
on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29) U.S.C.
§794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as
amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as
amended relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of
drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or
alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health
Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale,
rental or financing of housing; (i) any other
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s)
under which application for Federal assistance is being
made; and (j) the requirements of any other
nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply to the
application.

Previous Edition Usable Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form 424D (Rev. 7-97) 
Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102

22

118



11. Will comply, or has already complied, with the
requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of
1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable
treatment of persons displaced or whose property is
acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted
programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real
property acquired for project purposes regardless of
Federal participation in purchases.

12. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C.
§§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political
activities of employees whose principal employment
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

13. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-
333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted
construction subagreements.

14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of
Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973
(P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood
hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase
flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction
and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be
prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of
environmental quality control measures under the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-
190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification
of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c)
protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d)
evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance
with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency
with the approved State management program
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of
1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of

Federal actions to State (Clean Air) implementation  
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of  
1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) 
protection of underground sources of drinking water  
under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as  
amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of  
endangered species under the Endangered Species 
Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).

16. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting
components or potential components of the national
wild and scenic rivers system.

17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593
(identification and protection of historic properties), and
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq).

18. Will cause to be performed the required financial and
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit
Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133,
"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations."

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies
governing this program.

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE

SF-424D (Rev. 7-97) Back

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED

Mayor of Cedar Falls, Iowa

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

20. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of
the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as
amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant award
recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in severe
forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time
that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a commercial
sex act during the period of time that the award is in
effect or (3) Using forced labor in the performance of the
award or subawards under the award.

23

119



K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Date

3/19/2019

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the
information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This
information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All
warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

Low-Moderate Income Areas 2011-15

24

120



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2939 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING SECTION 26-181 (FORMERLY 29-160), 
CHN, COLLEGE HILL NEIGHBORHOOD OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT, OF DIVISION 2, 
SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 26 (FORMERLY 29), ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (Case # TA19-001) 

 
WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District to regulate 

development and land uses within the College Hill Neighborhood and to provide guidance for building and 
site design standards, maintenance and development of the residential and business districts in a manner 
that complements the University of Northern Iowa campus, promotes community vitality and safety, and 
strengthens commercial enterprise; and 

 
WHEREAS, these amendments add a definition of “mixed-use building” and establish standards for 

said mixed-use buildings, including parking requirements and building design standards to encourage new 
development and revitalization of the College Hill business district and areas immediately adjacent to the 
University of Northern Iowa campus; and 

 
WHEREAS, these amendments delete ambiguous language from the College Hill Overlay Zoning 

District standards that have created uncertainty in the market and in the community regarding parking 
requirements for upper floor residential dwelling units within mixed-use buildings;  

 
WHEREAS, these amendments provide consistency between the parking requirements for mixed-use 

buildings in the C-3 (College Hill Business District) and multiple dwelling buildings in the R-3 and R-4 
Zoning Districts located within the College Hill Overlay District;  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the proposed changes to the 

ordinance and recommends approval; and now, therefore:  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 

That Section 26-181, CHN, College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, of Division 2, Specific 
Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and the following Section 26-181, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 

Sec. 26-181.   CHN College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District. 

121



 2 

In the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, the following provisions, regulations and 

restrictions shall apply:  

(1)  Boundaries. The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District (CHN district) boundaries are 
shown in the College Hill neighborhood master plan and legally described in attachment A. (Said 
attachment is not set out at length herein but is on file in the office of the city planner.)  

(2)  Purpose and intent.  

a.  The purpose of the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District is to regulate 
development and land uses within the College Hill neighborhood and to provide guidance for 
building and site design standards, maintenance and development of the residential and 
business districts in a manner that complements the University of Northern Iowa campus, 
promotes community vitality and safety and strengthens commercial enterprise. New 
structures, including certain types of fences, certain modifications to existing structures and 
certain site improvements and site maintenance shall conform to this section.  

b.  The provisions of this section shall apply in addition to any other zoning district regulations and 
requirements in which the land may be classified. In the case of conflict, the most restrictive 
provisions shall govern unless otherwise expressly provided in this section.  

(3)  Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning:  

Bedroom means a room unit intended for sleeping purposes containing at least 70 square feet 
of floor space for each occupant. Neither closets nor any part of a room where the ceiling height is 
less than five feet shall be considered when computing floor area.  

Change in use means and include residential uses changed from single-unit to two-unit or two-
unit to multi-unit or to any increase in residential intensity within a structure (i.e., change from 
duplex to fraternity house). The term "change in use" shall also apply to changes in use 
classifications (i.e., residential to commercial).  

Fraternity/sorority means residential facilities provided for college students and sponsored by 
university affiliated student associations. Such facilities may contain individual or common sleeping 
areas and bathroom facilities but shall provide common kitchen, dining, and lounging areas. Such 
facilities may contain more than one unit.  

Greenway means open landscaped area maintained for floodplain protection, stormwater 
management and public access. Such area may contain pedestrian walkways or bicycle pathways 
but is not intended for regular or seasonal usage by motorized recreational vehicles.  

Landscaped area means an area not subject to vehicular traffic, which consists of living 
landscape material including grass, trees and shrubbery.  

Lot split, property transfer means not a subdivision plat where a new lot is being created; 
includes any transfer of small segments of property or premises between two abutting properties, 
whether commonly owned or owned by separate parties, where one property (the "sending 
property") is dedicating or deeding additional land to another abutting property (the "receiving 
property").  

Mixed-Use Building means a building designed for occupancy by a minimum of two different 
uses. Uses generating visitor or customer traffic (such as retail, restaurants, personal services) are 
typically located on the ground floor facing the street, whereas uses generating limited pedestrian 
activity (such as office or residential uses) are typically located on upper floors or behind street-
fronting commercial uses. 

122



 3 

Neighborhood character. The College Hill neighborhood area is one of the city's oldest and 
most densely populated neighborhoods. As the University of Northern Iowa has grown the original 
single-unit residential neighborhood surrounding the campus area has been transformed into a 
mixture of single-unit, duplex and multiple unit dwelling units along with a few institutional uses and 
other university-related uses such as fraternities and sorority houses. These various uses are 
contained in a variety of underlying zoning districts (i.e., R-2, R-3, R-4 Residential and C-3 
Commercial Districts). Architectural styles vary significantly among existing building structures 
while differing land uses and building types are permitted in different zoning districts. When 
references are made in this article to preservation of neighborhood character, uniformity of building 
scale, size, bulk and unusual or widely varying appearance are of primary concern regardless of 
the nature of the proposed building use.  

New construction, including significant improvements to existing structures, shall be of a 
character that respects and complements existing neighborhood development. The following 
variables or criteria shall be used in determining whether a newly proposed construction or building 
renovation is in keeping with the character of the neighborhood:  

1.  Overall bulk/size of the building;  

2.  Overall height of the building;  

3.  Number of proposed dwelling units in comparison to surrounding properties;  

4.  Lot density (lot area divided by number of dwelling units);  

5.  Off-street parking provision;  

6.  Architectural compatibility with surrounding buildings.  

Parking area means that portion of a parcel of land that is improved and designated or 
commonly used for the parking of one or more motor vehicles.  

Parking lot means that area improved and designated or commonly used for the parking of 
three or more vehicles.  

Parking space (also parking stall) means an area measuring at least nine feet wide and 19 feet 
long for all commercial, institutional or manufacturing uses or eight feet wide and 18 feet long for 
residential uses only, connected to a public street or alley by a driveway not less than ten feet 
wide, and so arranged as to permit ingress and egress of motor vehicles without moving any other 
vehicle parked adjacent to the parking space.  

Premises means a lot, plot or parcel of land including all structures thereon. 

Residential Building: Any building that is designed and/or used exclusively for residential 
purposes, but not including a tent, cabin or travel trailer.   

Residential conversion means the alteration or modification of a residential structure that will 
result in an increase in the number of rooming units or dwelling units within the residential 
structure. The addition or creation of additional rooms within an existing rooming unit or dwelling 
unit does not constitute a residential conversion.  

Structural alteration means any alteration, exterior or interior that alters the exterior dimension 
of the structure. This provision shall apply to residential, commercial and institutional uses 
including churches or religious institutions.  

Substantial improvement means any new construction within the district or any renovation of 
an existing structure, including the following:  

1.  Any increase in floor area or increased external dimension of a residential or commercial 
structure. Additional bedrooms proposed in an existing duplex or multi-unit residence shall 

123



 4 

be considered a substantial improvement. Bedroom additions to single-unit residences 
shall not be considered to be a substantial improvement.  

2.  Any modification of the exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or 
removing exterior windows or doors. Repair or replacement of existing windows or doors 
which does not result in any change in the size, number or location of said windows and 
doors shall not be considered to be a substantial improvement.  

3.  Any structural alteration that increases the number of bedrooms or dwelling units. Interior 
room additions, including bedroom additions, may be made to single-unit residential 
structures without requiring additional on-site parking.  

4.  All facade improvements, changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing 
facade materials on residential or commercial structures. Routine repair and replacement 
of existing siding materials with the same or similar siding materials on existing structures 
shall be exempt from these regulations.  

5.  Any new, modified or replacement awnings, signs or similar projections over public 
sidewalk areas.  

6.  Any increase or decrease in existing building height and/or alteration of existing roof pitch 
or appearance. Routine repair or replacement of existing roof materials that do not 
materially change or affect the appearance, shape or configuration of the existing roof 
shall not be considered a substantial improvement.  

7.  Any construction of a detached accessory structure measuring more than 300 square feet 
in base floor area for a residential or commercial principal use.  

8.  Any increase in area of any existing parking area or parking lot or any new construction of 
a parking area or parking lot, which existing or new parking area or parking lot contains or 
is designed to potentially accommodate a total of three or more parking stalls.  

9.  Any proposed property boundary fence, which utilizes unusual fencing materials such as 
stones, concrete blocks, logs, steel beams or similar types of atypical or unusual fence 
materials. Standard chain-link fences, wooden or vinyl privacy fences shall be exempt 
from these provisions.  

10.  Demolition and removal of an entire residential, commercial or institutional structure on a 
property shall not be considered a substantial improvement.  

(4)  Administrative review.  

a.  Applicability. The provisions of this section shall constitute the requirements for all premises 
and properties that lie within the boundaries of the College Hill neighborhood overlay zoning 
district. This section and the requirements stated herein shall apply to all new construction, 
change in use, structural alterations, substantial improvements or site improvements including:  

1.  Any substantial improvement to any residential, commercial or institutional structure, 
including churches.  

2.  Any new construction, change in use, residential conversion or structural alteration, as 
defined herein, for any structure.  

3.  Any new building structure including single-unit residences.  

b.  Emergency repairs. In the case of emergency repairs required as the result of unanticipated 
building or facade damages due to events such as fire, vandalism, flooding or weather-related 
damages, site plan review by the planning and zoning commission and the city council will not 
be required for completion of said emergency repairs, provided that the extent of damages and 

124



 5 

cost of said repairs are less than 50 percent of the value of the structure. However, said 
emergency repairs along with cost estimates related to the extent of building structural 
damages shall be verified by the city planner in conjunction with the city building inspector. 
Said emergency repairs, to the extent possible, shall repair and re-establish the original 
appearance of the structure. In the event that said emergency repairs result in dramatic 
alteration of the exterior appearance of the structure as determined by the city planner, the 
owner of the property shall make permanent repairs or renovations that re-establish the 
original appearance of the structure with respect to facade features, window and door sizes, 
locations and appearances of said windows and doors within six months following completion 
of said emergency repairs. Said emergency repairs shall not alter the number, size or 
configuration of pre-existing rooms, bedrooms or dwelling units within the structure.  

c.  Submittal requirements. Applicants for any new construction, change in use, structural 
alteration, facade alteration, residential conversion, substantial improvement, parking lot 
construction or building enlargement shall submit to the city planning division an application 
accompanied by such additional information and documentation as shall be deemed 
appropriate by the city planner in order for the planning division to properly review the 
application. The required application for any project may include one or more of the following 
elements depending upon the nature of the application proposal. Some applications will 
require submittal of more information than other types of applications. The city planner will 
advise the applicant which of these items need to be submitted with each application with the 
goal of providing sufficient information so that decision makers can make an informed decision 
on each application.  

1.  Written description of building proposal, whether a new structure, facade improvement, 
parking lot improvement, building addition, etc. The name and address of the property 
owner and property developer (if different) must be provided;  

2.  Building floor plans;  

3.  Building materials;  

4.  Dimensions of existing and proposed exterior building "footprint";  

5.  Facade details/exterior rendering of the structure being modified, description of proposed 
building design elements including, but not limited to, building height, roof design, number 
and location of doors and windows and other typical facade details;  

6.  Property boundaries, existing and proposed building setbacks;  

7.  Parking lot location, setbacks, parking stall locations and dimensions along with parking 
lot screening details;  

8.  Lot area and lot width measurements with explanation if any portion of an adjacent lot or 
property is being transferred to the property under consideration;  

9.  Open green space areas and proposed landscaping details with schedule for planting new 
landscaping materials;  

10.  Trash dumpster/trash disposal areas;  

11.  Stormwater detention/management plans.  

Following submittal of the appropriate application materials as determined by the city planner, said 
application materials shall be reviewed by the city planning and zoning commission and the city 
council to determine if the submittal meets all chapter requirements and conforms to the standards 
of the comprehensive plan, recognized principles of civic design, land use planning and landscape 
architecture. The commission may recommend and the city council may approve the application as 

125



 6 

submitted, may deny the application, or may require the applicant to modify, alter, adjust or amend 
the application as deemed necessary to the end that it preserves the intent and purpose of this 
section to promote the public health, safety and general welfare.  

(5)  District requirements and criteria for review.  

a.  Minimum on-site parking requirements. The following standards shall apply in the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay District and shall govern if different from the requirements listed in 
Section 26-220, Off-street parking spaces. 

1.  Single-unit Dwelling: Two parking stalls per dwelling.  

2. Single-unit Dwelling, renter-occupied: Two parking stalls per dwelling unit plus one 
additional parking stall for each bedroom in excess of two bedrooms. 

3.  Two-unit Dwelling: Two stalls per dwelling units plus one additional stall for each bedroom 
in each dwelling unit in excess of two bedrooms.  

4.  Multiple Dwelling: Two stalls per dwelling unit plus one additional stall for each bedroom 
in excess of two bedrooms. One additional stall shall be provided for every five units in 
excess of five units for visitor parking. 

5. Non-residential uses in the C-3 District: No parking required. 

6.  Dwelling units within Mixed-Use Buildings in the C-3 District: One parking stall per 
bedroom, but not less than one stall per dwelling unit, except as follows. For mixed-use 
buildings constructed prior to January 1, 2019, parking is not required for existing dwelling 
units.  In addition, for mixed-use and commercial buildings constructed prior to January 1, 
2019, parking is not required for upper floor space that is converted to residential use.  

7. Dwelling units within Mixed-Use Buildings in zones other than the C-3 District: Two stalls 
per dwelling unit plus one additional stall for each bedroom in excess of two bedrooms. 
One additional stall shall be provided for every five units in excess of five units for visitor 
parking.  

8.  Boardinghouse/roominghouse: Five stalls plus one stall for every guest room in excess of 
four guest rooms.  

9.  Fraternity/sorority: Five parking stalls plus one stall for every two residents in excess of 
four residents.  

10. Where fractional spaces result, the number required shall be the next higher whole 
number.  

11.  Bicycle accommodations: All new multi-unit residential facilities are encouraged to provide 
for the establishment of bicycle racks of a size appropriate for the anticipated residential 
occupancy of the facility. A general suggested bike parking standard is two bike stalls per 
residential unit. For commercial projects, if lot area is available, bike racks are encouraged 
to be installed in conjunction with the commercial project.  

b.  Parking lot standards.  

1.  All newly constructed or expanded parking lots (three or more parking stalls) shall be hard 
surfaced with concrete or asphalt, provided with a continuous curb, be set back a 
minimum five feet from adjacent property lines or public right-of-way with the exception of 
alleyways, in which case a three foot permeable setback will be required, and otherwise 
conform to all parking guidelines as specified in this section and in section 26-220. 
Alternative parking lot surfaces may be considered to the extent that such surfaces 
provide adequate stormwater absorption rates, subject to city engineering review and 

126



 7 

approval, while providing an acceptable surface material and finished appearance. Gravel 
or crushed asphalt parking lots will not be permitted. However, other types of ecologically 
sensitive parking lot designs will be encouraged and evaluated on a case-by-case basis.  

2.  Landscaping in parking lots shall be classified as either internal or peripheral. The 
following coverage requirements shall pertain to each classification:  

(i)  Peripheral landscaping. All parking lots containing three or more parking spaces shall 
provide peripheral landscaping. Peripheral landscaping shall consist of a landscaped 
strip not less than five feet in width, exclusive of vehicular obstruction, and shall be 
located between the parking area and the abutting property lines. One tree for each 
25 lineal feet of such landscaping barrier or fractional part thereof shall be planted in 
the landscaping strip. At least one tree shall be planted for every parking lot (such as 
a three-stall parking lot) regardless of the lineal feet calculation. In addition to tree 
plantings, the perimeter of the parking lot shall be screened with shrubbery or similar 
plantings at least three-feet in height as measured from the finished grade of the 
parking lot at the time of planting for purposes of vehicular screening. The vegetative 
screen should present a continuous, effective visual screen adjacent to the parking lot 
for purposes of partially obscuring vehicles and also deflecting glare from headlights. 
If landscaped berms are utilized, the berm and vegetative screening must achieve at 
least a 3-foot tall screen at the time of installation as measured from the grade of the 
finished parking lot. Each such planting area shall be landscaped with grass, ground 
cover or other landscape material excluding paving, gravel, crushed asphalt or similar 
materials, in addition to the required trees, shrubbery, hedges or other planting 
material. Existing landscaping upon abutting property shall not be used to satisfy the 
requirements for said parking lot screening requirements unless the abutting land use 
is a parking lot.  

(ii)  Exceptions.  

A.  Peripheral landscaping shall not be required for single-unit or two-unit residential 
structures where the primary parking area is designed around a standard front 
entrance driveway and/or attached or detached residential garage. However, if 
an open surface parking lot containing three or more parking stalls is established 
in the rear yard of a two-unit residential structure, the perimeter 
landscaping/screening requirements as specified herein shall apply.  

B.  Peripheral landscaping shall not be required for parking lots that are established 
behind building structures where the parking lots do not have any public street or 
alley frontage or is not adjacent to any open properties such as private yards, 
parks or similar open areas. Examples of such a parking lot would be one 
designed with a multiple unit apartment facility where the parking lot is encircled 
with building structures within the project site and where the parking lot is 
completely obscured from public view by building structures.  

C.  Underground or under-building parking lots.  

D.  Aboveground parking ramps shall provide perimeter screening as specified 
herein around the ground level perimeter of the parking structure.  

(iii)  Internal landscaping. All parking lots measuring 21 parking stalls or more shall be 
required to landscape the interior of such parking lot. At least one overstory tree shall 
be established for every 21 parking stalls. Each tree shall be provided sufficient open 
planting area necessary to sustain full growth of the tree. Not less than five percent of 
the proposed paved area of the interior of the parking lot shall be provided as open 
space, excluding the tree planting areas. These additional open space areas must be 

127



 8 

planted with bushes, grasses or similar vegetative materials. Each separate open 
green space area shall contain a minimum of 40 square feet and shall have a 
minimum width dimension of a least five feet.  

(iv)  Exceptions. Internal landscaping shall not be required for vehicular storage lots, 
trucking/warehousing lots or for automobile sales lots. However, perimeter 
landscaping/screening provisions, as specified herein, shall be required for all such 
parking areas when they are installed or enlarged in area.  

(v)  Parking garages or parking ramps. All such facilities where one or more levels are 
established for parking either below ground or above ground and where structural 
walls provide for general screening of parked vehicles, internal landscaping shall not 
be provided.  

(vi)  Open green space; landscape areas. It is the intent of this regulation that in parking 
development sites open green space and landscape areas should be distributed 
throughout the parking development site rather than isolated in one area or around 
the perimeter of the parking lot. Trees and shrubs planted within parking areas shall 
be protected by concrete curbs and provide adequate permeable surface area to 
promote growth and full maturity of said vegetation.  

3.  Parking stalls must provide a minimum separation of four feet from the exterior walls of 
any principal structure on the property as measured from the vehicle (including vehicular 
overhang) to the nearest wall of the structure. No vehicular parking stall shall be so 
oriented or positioned as to block or obstruct any point of egress from a structure, 
including doorways or egress windows.  

4.  No portion of required front or side yards in any residential (R) zoning district shall be 
used for the establishment of any parking space, parking area, or parking lot, except for 
those driveways serving a single- or two-unit residence. For all other uses, a single 
driveway no more than 18 feet in width may be established across the required front and 
side yards, provided that side yard driveway setbacks are observed, as an access to 
designated rear yard parking areas, unless said lot is dedicated entirely to a parking lot, in 
which case a wider driveway access will be allowed across the required yard area to 
access said parking lot.  

5.  When a driveway or access off a public street no longer serves its original purpose as 
access to a garage or parking lot due to redevelopment of the property or is replaced with 
an alternative parking lot or parking arrangement with an alternate route of access, the 
original driveway access shall be re-curbed by the owner at the owner's expense and the 
parking/ driveway area shall be returned to open green space with grass plantings or 
other similar landscaping materials.  

6.  Routine maintenance of existing parking areas and parking lots, including resurfacing of 
said areas with similar materials or with hard surfacing will be permitted without requiring 
review by the planning and zoning commission and city council, provided that no increase 
in area of said existing parking area or parking lot, or any new construction of a parking 
area or parking lot, which existing or new parking area or parking lot contains or is 
designed to potentially accommodate a total of three or more parking stalls, occurs. Any 
newly paved or hard surfaced parking lot, excluding those existing hard surface parking 
lots that are merely being resurfaced, must satisfy minimum required setbacks from the 
property line or alley and must provide a continuous curb around the perimeter of said 
improved parking lot. Hard surfacing of any existing unpaved parking area or parking lot 
will require an evaluation by the city engineering division regarding increased stormwater 
runoff/possible stormwater detention.  

128



 9 

c.  Stormwater drainage.  

1.  Stormwater detention requirements as outlined in section 24-338 and in section 26-94 
shall apply to all newly developed parking lots and new building uses. In addition, said 
requirements shall apply to any existing parking lot that is resurfaced, reconstructed or 
enlarged subject to review by the city engineer. In those cases where no municipal storm 
sewer is readily available to serve a particular property or development site, the use of the 
property will be limited. The maximum allowable use that shall be permitted on any 
particular property or development site which is not served by a municipal storm sewer 
shall be limited to the following uses in Residential zoning districts: a parking lot; a single-
unit residence; a two-unit residence; or a multi-unit residence. Provided, however, that the 
applicant shall be required to submit calculations, which shall be subject to review and 
approval by the city engineering division, that verify that the total impervious surface area 
on the particular property or development site that will exist immediately following 
completion of the proposed new development shall be no greater than the total impervious 
surface area on the particular property or development site that existed immediately prior 
to the proposed new development.  

2.  Soil erosion control. At the time of new site development, including parking lot 
construction, soil erosion control measures must be installed on the site in conformance 
with city engineering standards. Said soil erosion measures must be maintained until the 
site is stabilized to the satisfaction of the city engineering division.  

d.  Open space/landscaping requirements.  

1.  Principal permitted uses within the district shall provide minimum building setbacks as 
required in the zoning chapter. With the exception of construction periods said required 
front and side setback areas (required yards) shall be maintained with natural vegetative 
materials and shall not be obstructed with any temporary or permanent structure, on site 
vehicular parking including trailers or recreational vehicles, nor disturbed by excavations, 
holes, pits or established recreational areas that produce bare spots in the natural 
vegetation.  

2.  Driveways measuring no more than 18 feet in width, sidewalks and pedestrian access 
ways measuring no more than six feet in width may be established across the required 
front and side yard areas.  

3.  All newly constructed office or institutional buildings in the R-3 or R-4 districts and all 
newly constructed single unit dwelling, two-unit dwelling, or multiple dwelling in residential 
or commercial districts shall provide on-site landscaping within the required yard areas or 
in other green space areas of the property at the rate of 0.04 points per square foot of 
total lot area of the site under consideration for the proposed residential development or 
improvement. Landscaping shall consist of any combination of trees and shrubbery, 
subject to review and approval by the planning and zoning commission and the city 
council. In addition to these requirements, parking lot plantings and/or screening must be 
provided as specified herein. Plantings must be established within one year following 
issuance of a building permit. This provision shall not apply to commercial or mixed-use 
buildings established in the C-3 Commercial District.  

4.  Measured compliance. The following landscaping point schedule applies to required 
landscaping in all zoning districts within the College Hill neighborhood overlay district with 
the exception of commercial uses in the C-3 Commercial District, and shall be used in 
determining achieved points for required plantings. The points are to be assigned to plant 
sizes at time of planting/installation.  

129



 10 

Overstory Trees:  

4-inch caliper or greater  100 points  

3-inch caliper to 4-inch caliper  90 points  

2-inch caliper to 3-inch caliper  80 points  

1-inch caliper to 2-inch caliper  60 points  

Understory Trees:  

2-inch caliper or greater  40 points  

1½-inch caliper to 2-inch caliper  30 points  

1-inch to 1½-inch caliper  20 points  

Shrubs:  

5-gallon or greater  10 points  

2-gallon to 5-gallon  5 points  

Conifers:  

10-foot height or greater  100 points  

8-foot to 10-foot height  90 points  

6-foot to 8-foot height  80 points  

5-foot to 6-foot height  40 points  

4-foot to 5-foot height  30 points  

3-foot to 4-foot height  20 points  

  

e.  Fences/retaining walls.  

1.  Fences shall be permitted on properties in accordance with the height and location 
requirements outlined in section 26-93. Zoning/land use permits shall be required for 
fences erected within the district.  

2.  Any existing fence or freestanding wall that is, in the judgment of the building inspector, 
structurally unsound and a hazard to adjoining property shall be removed upon the order 
of the building inspector.  

3.  Retaining walls may be installed on property as a measure to control soil erosion or 
stormwater drainage. However, said retaining walls shall be permitted only after review 
and approval by the city engineer.  

f.  Detached accessory structures. All newly constructed detached accessory structures or 
expansions of existing detached accessory structures exceeding 300 square feet in base floor 
area proposed to be situated on residential or commercial properties shall be subject to review 
and approval by the planning and zoning commission and city council. Maximum allowable 
building height, size and location requirements for accessory structures as specified in section 
26-126 shall apply. In addition to those standards, proposed detached accessory structures or 
expanded structures larger than 300 square feet in area shall be designed in such a manner 
as to be consistent with the architectural style of the principal residential or commercial 

130



 11 

structure on the property. Similar building materials, colors, roof lines, roof pitch and roofing 
materials shall be established on the accessory structure to match as closely as possible 
those elements on the principal structure. In addition, vertical steel siding along with "metal 
pole barn" type construction shall not be allowed.  

g.  No existing single-unit residential structure in the R-2 district shall be converted or otherwise 
structurally altered in a manner that will result in the creation or potential establishment of a 
second dwelling unit within the structure.  

h.  No duplex (two-unit) or multiple dwelling shall add dwelling units or bedrooms to any dwelling 
unit without satisfying minimum on-site parking requirements. If additional parking spaces are 
required, the entire parking area must satisfy parking lot development standards as specified 
herein.  

i.  No portion of an existing parcel of land or lot or plot shall be split, subdivided or transferred to 
another abutting lot or parcel for any purpose without prior review and approval by the city 
planning and zoning commission and the city council. Land cannot be transferred or split from 
one lot or property to be transferred to another for purposes of benefiting the receiving 
property while diminishing the minimum required lot area, lot width or building or parking lot 
setback area of the sending property. Such lot transfer or split shall not create a 
nonconforming lot by virtue of reduction of minimum required lot area, lot width or reduction of 
minimum required building or parking lot setbacks. Said lot transfer or split shall not affect any 
existing nonconforming property by further reducing any existing nonconforming element of 
the lot or property including lot area, lot width or building or parking lot setbacks in order to 
benefit another abutting property for development purposes. This provision shall not apply to 
those instances where separate lots or properties are being assembled for purposes of new 
building construction where existing structures on the assembled lots will be removed in order 
to accommodate new building construction.  

j.  Site plan revisions/amendments. All changes, modifications, revisions and amendments made 
to development site plans that are deemed to be major or substantial by the city planner shall 
be resubmitted to the planning and zoning commission in the same manner as originally 
required in this section. Examples of major or substantial changes shall include, but are not 
limited to, changes in building location, building size, property size, parking arrangements, 
enlarged or modified parking lots, open green space or landscaping modifications, setback 
areas or changes in building design elements.  

k.  1.  Trash dumpster/trash disposal areas must be clearly marked and established on all site 
plans associated with new development or redevelopment projects. No required parking 
area or required parking stalls shall be encumbered by a trash disposal area.  

2.  Large commercial refuse dumpsters and recycling bins serving residential or commercial 
uses shall be located in areas of the property that are not readily visible from public 
streets. No such dumpster or bin shall be established within the public right-of-way. All 
dumpsters and bins shall be affixed with a solid lid covering and shall be screened for two 
purposes:  

(i)  Visual screening; and  

(ii)  Containing dispersal of loose trash due to over-filling. Screening materials shall 
match or be complementary to the prevailing building materials.  

(6)  Design review. Any new construction, building additions, facade renovations or structural 
alterations to commercial or residential structures, or substantial improvements to single-unit 
residences that, in the judgment of the city planner, substantially alters the exterior appearance or 

131



 12 

character of permitted structures shall require review and approval by the city planning and zoning 
commission and city council.  

a.  Criteria for review.  

1.  Applications involving building design review. Neighborhood character, as herein defined, 
shall be considered in all.  

2.  The architectural character, materials, textures of all buildings or building additions shall 
be compatible with those primary design elements on structures located on adjoining 
properties and also in consideration of said design elements commonly utilized on other 
nearby properties on the same block or within the immediate neighborhood.  

3.  Comparable scale and character in relation to adjoining properties and other nearby 
properties in the immediate neighborhood shall be maintained by reviewing features such 
as:  

(i)  Maintaining similar roof pitch.  

(ii)  Maintaining similar building height, building scale and building proportion.  

(iii)  Use of materials comparable and similar to other buildings on nearby properties in the 
immediate neighborhood.  

4.  Mandated second entrances or fire escapes established above grade shall not extend into 
the required front yard area.  

5.  Existing entrances and window openings on the front facades and side yard facades 
facing public streets shall be maintained in the same general location and at the same 
general scale as original openings or be consistent with neighboring properties.  

6.  Projects involving structural improvements or facade renovations to existing structures 
must provide structural detail and ornamentation that is consistent with the underlying 
design of the original building.  

7.  The primary front entrances of all residential buildings shall face toward the public street. 
Street frontage wall spaces shall provide visual relief to large blank wall areas with the use 
of windows or doorways and other architectural ornamentation.  

b.  Building entrances for multiple dwellings. Main entrances should be clearly demarcated by one 
of the following:  

1.  Covered porch or canopy.  

2.  Pilaster and pediment.  

3.  Other significant architectural treatment that emphasizes the main entrance. Simple "trim" 
around the doorway does not satisfy this requirement.  

c.  Building scale for multiple dwellings. Street facing walls that are greater than 50 feet in length 
shall be articulated with bays, projections or alternating recesses according to the following 
suggested guidelines:  

1.  Bays and projections should be at least six feet in width and at least 16 inches, but not 
more than six feet in depth. Recesses should be at least six feet in width and have a 
depth of at least 16 inches.  

2.  The bays, projections and recesses should have corresponding changes in roofline or, 
alternatively, should be distinguished by a corresponding change in some architectural 
elements of the building such as roof dormers, alternating exterior wall materials, a 
change in window patterns, the addition of balconies, variation in the building or parapet 

132



 13 

height or variation in architectural details such as decorative banding, reveals or stone 
accents.  

d.  Building scale for commercial buildings and mixed-use buildings. The width of the front façade 
of new commercial and mixed-use buildings shall be no more than 40 feet. Buildings may 
exceed this limitation if the horizontal plane of any street-facing façade of a building is broken 
into modules that give the appearance or illusion of smaller, individual buildings. Each module 
should satisfy the following suggested guidelines that give the appearance of separate, 
individual buildings:  

1.  Each module should be no greater than 30 feet and no less than ten feet in width and 
should be distinguished from adjacent modules by variation in the wall plane of at least 16 
inches depth. For buildings three or more stories in height the width module may be 
increased to 40 feet.  

2.  Each module should have a corresponding change in roof line for the purpose of separate 
architectural identity.  

3.  Each module should be distinguished from the adjacent module by at least one of the 
following means:  

(i)  Variation in material colors, types, textures.  

(ii)  Variation in the building and/or parapet height.  

(iii)   Variation in the architectural details such as decorative banding, reveals, stones or 
tile accent.  

(iv)   Variation in window pattern.  

(v)  Variation in the use of balconies and recesses.  

e.  Balconies and exterior walkways, corridors and lifts serving multi-unit residences.  

1.  Exterior stairways refer to stairways that lead to floors and dwelling units of a building 
above the first or ground level floor of a building. Exterior corridors refer to unenclosed 
corridors located above the first floor or ground level floor of a building. Balconies and 
exterior stairways, exterior corridors and exterior lifts must comply with the following:  

(i)  Materials must generally match or be complementary to the building materials utilized 
on that portion of a building where the exterior corridor or balcony is established.  

(ii)  Unpainted wooden materials are expressly prohibited.  

(iii)  Stained or painted wood materials may only be utilized if said material and coloration 
is guaranteed for long-term wear and the material is compatible with the principal 
building materials on that portion of the building where the exterior corridor is 
established.  

(iv) The design of any balcony, exterior stairway, exterior lift or exterior corridor must 
utilize columns, piers, supports, walls and railings that are designed and constructed 
of materials that are similar or complementary to the design and materials used on 
that portion of the building where the feature is established.  

(v)  Exterior stairways, exterior lifts, corridors and balconies must be covered with a roof 
similar in design and materials to the roof over the rest of the structure. Said roof shall 
be incorporated into the overall roof design for the structure. Alternatively, such 
features (stairways, lifts, corridors or balconies) may be recessed into the façade of 
the building.  

133



 14 

(vi)   Exterior corridors may not be located on a street-facing wall of the building.  

2.  Exterior fire egress stairways serving second floor or higher floors of multi-unit residences 
shall be allowed according to city requirements on existing buildings that otherwise are not 
able to reasonably satisfy city fire safety code requirements, provided the fire egress 
stairway or structure is not located on the front door wall of a building that faces a street. 
All such egress structures that are located on the front door wall of a building that faces a 
street, whether new or replacement of an existing egress structure, shall be subject to 
review by the commission and approval by the city council. Areas of review shall be 
general design, materials utilized and location of the proposed egress structure. On corner 
lots, if a side street-facing mandated access is necessary and other options are 
unavailable, the side-street facing wall shall be used for this egress structure. In any case, 
fire egress stairways must utilize similar materials as outlined above; i.e., no unpainted 
wooden material shall be allowed.  

f.  Building materials for multiple dwellings, commercial, and mixed-use buildings.  

1.  For multiple dwellings, at least 30 percent of the exterior walls of the front facade level of a 
building must be constructed with a masonry finish such as fired brick, stone or similar 
material, not to include concrete blocks and undressed poured concrete. Masonry may 
include stucco or similar material when used in combination with other masonry finishes. 
The following trim elements shall be incorporated into the exterior design and construction 
of the building, with the following recommended dimensions to be evaluated on a case-by-
case basis:  

(i)  Window and door trim that is not less than three inches wide.  

(ii)  Corner boards that are not less than three inches wide unless wood clapboards are 
used and mitered at the corners.  

(iii)  Frieze boards not less than five inches wide, located below the eaves.  

2.  For commercial and mixed-use buildings, street-facing facades shall be comprised of at 
least 30% brick, stone, or terra cotta. These high quality materials should be concentrated 
on the base of the building. In the C-3 District, on street-facing facades, a minimum of 
70% of the ground level floor between 2 and 10 feet in height above the adjacent ground 
level shall consist of clear and transparent storefront windows and doors that allow views 
into the interior of the store. Exceptions may be allowed for buildings on corner lots where 
window coverage should be concentrated at the corner, but may be reduced along the 
secondary street façade. The bottom of storefront windows shall be no more than 2 feet 
above the adjacent ground level, except along sloping sites, where this standard shall be 
met to the extent possible so that views into the interior of the store are maximized and 
blank walls are avoided. 

3. Any portion of a building with a side street façade must be constructed using similar 
materials and similar proportions and design as the front facade.  

4.  Exposed, unpainted or unstained lumber materials are prohibited along any facade that 
faces a street-side lot line (i.e., public street frontage).  

5.  Where an exterior wall material changes along the horizontal plane of a building, the 
material change must occur on an inside corner of the building.  

6.  For buildings where the exterior wall material on the side of the building is a different 
material than what is used on the street facing or wall front, the street facing or wall front 
material must wrap around the corners to the alternate material side of the building at 
least three additional feet.  

134



 15 

7.  Where an exterior wall material changes along the vertical plane of the building, the 
materials must be separated by a horizontal band such as a belt course, soldier course, 
band board or other trim to provide a transition from one material to another.  

(7) Commercial district. The College Hill neighborhood commercial district is defined by the boundaries 
of the C-3 Commercial District. The district is made up primarily of commercial buildings and 
mixed-use buildings. However, some properties are occupied or may be occupied in the future by 
residential buildings Residential buildings are to be discouraged due to the limited area available 
for commercial uses. Standards for residential buildings are set forth below. Dwelling units are 
permitted on upper floor(s) of mixed-use buildings, as set forth below. Certain uses are considered 
conditional uses or prohibited uses in the College Hill Neighborhood commercial district, as 
specified below.  

a.   Residential buildings. Residential buildings are allowable within the district subject to planning 
and zoning commission and city council review and approval. In general, residential buildings 
are to be discouraged within the commercial district due to the limited area available for 
commercial establishments. In those cases where a residential building is permitted, it will be 
governed by minimum lot area, lot width and building setback requirements as specified in the 
R-4 residential zoning district. In addition, all other applicable requirements pertaining to 
substantial improvements or new construction of any residential building shall conform to the 
requirements of this section, including on-site parking, landscaping, and building setbacks, 
with no vehicular parking allowed in the required front and side yards, said required yards 
being those as defined within the R-4 residential district.  

b.  Residential dwelling units within Mixed Use Buildings. Residential dwelling units are allowed 
on upper floors of a mixed-use building. No residential dwelling unit may be established on the 
main floor or street level floor of a mixed-use building within the C-3 Commercial District. To 
provide safe access for residents of the building, there must be at least one main entrance on 
the street-facing façade of the building that provides pedestrian access to dwelling units within 
the building. Access to dwelling units must not be solely through a parking garage or from a 
rear or side entrance. 

c. Additional Standards for mixed-use and non-residential buildings. To foster active street 
frontages, non-residential and mixed-use buildings must be placed to the front and corner of 
lots, and set back a minimum of 0 feet and maximum of 15 feet from street-side lot lines. The 
ground floor floor-to-structural ceiling height shall be 14 feet minimum. Entries to individual 
ground floor tenant spaces and entries to common lobbies accessing upper floor space shall 
open directly onto public sidewalks or publicly-accessible outdoor plazas. Thresholds at 
building entries shall match the grade of the adjacent sidewalk or plaza area. Entries on street-
facing facades shall be sheltered by awnings or canopies that project a minimum of four feet 
from the building façade and must be a minimum of 8 feet above the adjacent sidewalk. 

c.  Conditional uses. The following uses may be allowed as a conditional use subject to review 
and approval by the planning and zoning commission and the city council. The proposed use 
must conform to the prevailing character of the district and such use shall not necessitate the 
use of outdoor storage areas. In addition such conditional uses must not generate excessive 
amounts of noise, odor, vibrations, or fumes, or generate excessive amounts of truck traffic. 
Examples of uses that may be allowed subject to approval of a conditional use permit are:  

1.  Printing or publishing facility;  

2. Limited manufacturing activity that is directly related to the operation of a retail business 
conducted on the premises;  

3.  Home supply business.  

135



 16 

d.  Prohibited uses. In all cases the following uses will not be allowed within the C-3 Commercial 
District either as permitted or conditional uses:  

1.  Lumber yards;  

2.  Used or new auto sales lots and displays;  

3.  Auto body shop;  

4.  Storage warehouse or business;  

5.  Mini-storage warehouse;  

6.  Sheet metal shop;  

7.  Outdoor storage yard;  

8.  Billboard signs.  

e.  Signage.  

1.  Typical business signage shall be permitted without mandatory review by the planning 
and zoning commission and approval by the city council unless a proposed sign projects 
or extends over the public right-of-way, or a freestanding pole sign is proposed which is 
out of character with the prevailing height or size of similar signs, in which case planning 
and zoning commission review and approval by the city council shall be required. All 
signage within the district shall conform to the general requirements of this zoning 
chapter, with the exception that excessively tall freestanding signs (i.e., 30 feet or more in 
height) shall not be allowed.  

2.  Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork and exterior painting of any structure within 
the commercial district shall be subject to review by the planning and zoning commission 
and approval by the city council for the purpose of considering scale, context, coloration, 
and appropriateness of the proposal in relation to nearby facades and also in relation to 
the prevailing character of the commercial district.  

 
 
INTRODUCED:     April 1, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 1, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   April 15, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 
____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

136



   Mayor Jim Brown 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council and staff 

 FROM: Mayor Brown 

 DATE: May 2nd, 2019 

 SUBJECT: UNI Student Liaison via Northern Iowa Student Government (NISG) 

 
To all, 
 
I’d like to place on the agenda for council’s consideration next year’s representative 
Rebecca Aberle to serve as the UNI Student Liaison with the city. Ms. Aberle is a 
sophomore majoring in Public Administration. She is from Walker, IA and would enjoy 
serving the NISG in this capacity. 
 
Councilmember Blanford and I interviewed Ms. Aberle and she has met with our 
approval for council’s consideration. She seemed to understand the premise behind the 
liaison position of attendance, expectation and high level of decorum. 
 
If any questions, please let me know. 

137



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: April 26, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Appointment 

 

I am recommending the following appointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Paul Lee Civil Service Commission (fills vacancy) 04/06/2020 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

138



139



140



141



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

April 15, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:05 p.m. on April 15, 2019, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom Blanford, Frank 
Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David Wieland.   Staff 
members attended from all City Departments.  Tom Nelson with the Waterloo Courier also 
attended as well as members of the community.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, Small 
Cell Siting.  Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development reviewed a PowerPoint 
presentation reviewing regulatory development for small cell wireless networks.   She 
explained in September 2018, an FCC order was rolled out to streamline 4G and 5G wireless 
services.  She said this will increase range and capacity in high density areas.   The FCC order 
gave guidelines for reasonable regulations the City may enact. She said they have looked at 
other similar cities such as Waterloo and Dubuque.   Ms. Sheetz reviewed the next steps the 
City will need to do, including design guidelines.  She reviewed the proposed design guidelines 
including aesthetic provisions, location, and meeting engineering standards and City 
Ordinances.  Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  After discussion David Wieland 
motioned to adopt the proposed design guidelines and set an application fee.  Rob Green 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

 Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Frank Darrah moved 
to approve the bills as presented, Rob Green seconded the motion.  The motion carried 
unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:35 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

 
 
  

   

 

 

 
 
  
  
 
     TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
DATE: May 1, 2019 
 RE: Annual Reports for 2018 
 

 
Attached you will find summaries of agenda and business items in 2018 for the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental 
Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, the Housing Commission, and the Cedar Falls 
Bike/Pedestrian Committee.  
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviews numerous issues each year ranging from 
rezoning requests to subdivision plats and street vacations along with various development site 
plans for new building projects. As the Commission meets twice each month, requests for 
Commission review are likewise accepted twice per month. 
 
A broad range of projects, rezonings, and subdivision requests were reviewed in 2018 by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission including site plan reviews for several new hotel developments, 
a new mixed-use building downtown in the River Place Development, a wide variety of 
residential and commercial subdivision plats, several rezonings that will pave the way for future 
development, and new site plan and design review standards for the Downtown Overlay Zone. 
In addition to the 2018 Planning & Zoning Commission Annual Report, a summary of issued 
Land Use Permits and a summary of new Residential Units Constructed for 2017 are attached. 
 
Board of Adjustment 
The Board of Adjustment is created to consider variances and special exceptions from the terms 
of the City Zoning Ordinance. This is an autonomous body with quasi-judicial powers. Decisions 
by the Board can be appealed only to District Court. The 7-member Board normally applies very 
strict “hardship” criteria when considering variances from the Zoning regulations. The majority of 
typical variance applications do not satisfy standard “hardship” criteria; therefore variance 
approvals are rarely granted. The Board must find sound justification to allow deviation from the 
terms of the Zoning Ordinance. Planning & Community Services Division staff coordinates 
Board of Adjustment agendas and meetings.  
 
The Board held only three meetings during 2018 to consider four separate requests, two of 
which were for permits for construction in the floodplain. Please see the attached agenda listing 
for specific details.  
 

220



 
 
Historic Preservation Commission 
The Historic Preservation Commission completed its seventh year of existence (created by City 
Council in February, 2011). The Historic Preservation Commission reviews policies and 
programs of the city related to historic preservation.  Their primary objectives are to maintain an 
inventory of historic resources of Cedar Falls and to be a voice for preservation. 
 
The Commission held ten meetings in 2018. Projects include working on a National Historic 
District nomination for the Wild District, a cluster of several historic homes located along W. 1st 
Street near downtown.  The Commission also coordinated several educational and community 
events related to historic preservation.   Please see attached agenda listing for specific details. 
 
Several Commission members had the opportunity to attend the National Summit for the 
National Alliance of Preservation Commissions (NAPC), which was held in Des Moines.   
 
Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals 
The Group Rental Committee was created to consider whether new rental applications 
requesting higher levels of occupancy (3, 4, or 5 individuals aged 18 years or older) are 
appropriate to the property and neighborhood in which the property is located. The Group 
Rental Committee is comprised of City staff representing Planning & Community Services, 
Inspection Services, and Fire Division. The Committee meets on the first and third Wednesday 
of the month. The Board of Rental Housing Appeals was created to review all new and existing 
rental appeals. The Board is comprised of seven citizens approved by the Mayor. The Board 
meets as needed. A complete copy of the 2018 Annual Report of Activities for both the Group 
Rental Committee and the Board of Rental Housing Appeals is attached for your review. 
 
Housing Commission 
The Cedar Falls Housing Commission is comprised of seven members, approved by the Mayor 
and appointed by the City Council. The Commission acts as an advisory board to the City 
Council. Their role is to consider special projects for meeting the housing needs of low-income 
families, elderly and handicapped persons. They review projects and programs funded through 
the federal Community Development Block Grant awarded to Cedar Falls from the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development.  They also hear matters related to the City’s 
Housing Choice Voucher Program, which is a rental assistance program also funded with 
federal funds. Details of their activities in 2018 are listed in the attached summary report.  
 
Cedar Falls Bike/Pedestrian Committee 
This Advisory Committee is a fifteen member volunteer group that meets monthly. The 
Committee’s mission is to improve the quality of life in Cedar Falls through increased 
opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable means of transportation and physical 
activity. The Committee has focused on the essential elements five categories known as the 
“Five E’s”, being Engineering, Education, Encouragement, Enforcement, and Evaluation. A 
complete copy of the 2018 Annual Report of Activities is attached for your review. 

221



 

 1 

CEDAR FALLS PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Annual Summary 

2018 
 
 

January 10, 2018 
 
1. College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review – 2119 College Street ................................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. MU District Site Plan Review – Kwik Star Convenience Store .....................................................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
3. MU District Site Plan Review – Fareway Grocery Store .......................................... APPROVED. 
 
4. Central Business District Site Plan Review – River Place Development (MU2 Building) .............  
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
5. Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls – Preliminary Plat ... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
6. College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 2128 College Street ....................... APPROVED. 
 
7. Central Business District Facade Review – 115 E 4th Street .................................. APPROVED. 
 
8. Nominating Committee ............................................................................... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 

January 24, 2018 
 
1. Nominating Committee Report – Election of Officers for 2018 ................................ APPROVED. 
 
2. College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 2119 College Street ....................... APPROVED. 
  
3. Zoning Ordinance – Central Business District Overlay Amendments Introduction .......................   
  ................................................................................................................... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 
4. Zoning Ordinance – Discussion on Principle and Accessory/Secondary Use ..............................  
  ................................................................................................................... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 
 

February 14, 2018 
 
1. Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls – Preliminary Plat ...................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Guest Speaker on the CBD Overlay – Carol Lilly ....................................... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 
3. Central Business District Site Plan Review – Hampton Inn .. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 

222



 

 2 

4. Hwy-1 District Site Plan Review – Holiday Inn & Suites/Conference Center ................................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
5. College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review – 917 W 23rd Street Sign & Awning 

Review .................................................................................................................... APPROVED. 
 
6. Central Business District Site Plan Review – Chamber Building Relocation ................................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
7. Zoning Ordinance Update – Introduction .............................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

February 28, 2018 
 
1. Central Business District Site Plan Review – Hampton Inn ..................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Central Business District Site Plan Review – Relocation of Former Chamber Building ...............   
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
3. Zoning Ordinance & Map Amendments, Terminology changes pursuant to HF134 and 

consistency among city codes ................................................................................. APPROVED. 
 
4. Dallas Drive – Vacation of Public Right-of-Way ...................................................... APPROVED. 
 
5. Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat ....................................................................................... APPROVED. 
 

March 14, 2018 – NO MEETING 
 
 
 

March 28, 2018 
 
1. Hwy-1 District Site Plan Review – Holiday Inn & Suites/Conference Center ........... APPROVED. 
 
2. Zoning Ordinance Amendments ........................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
3. Greenhill Village Townhomes Master Plan Amendment ......................................... APPROVED. 
 
4. Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I Final Plat ................................................. APPROVED. 
 
5. Western Home Communities Eighth Addition Preliminary and Final Plat ................ APPROVED. 
 
 

April 11, 2018 
 
1. Zoning Ordinance Amendments .................................................................................... TABLED. 
 
2. Zoning Ordinance Discussion – Central Business District Overlay Amendments ........................   

223



 

 3 

  ................................................................................................................... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
  
 

April 25, 2018 
 
1. College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 1926 Tremont Street ...................... APPROVED. 
 
2. River Place 4th Addition - Preliminary and Final Plat .............................................. APPROVED. 
  
3. South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan .................................................................. APPROVED. 
 
 

May 9, 2018 
 
1. Minor Plat - River Place 3rd Addition – Lot 4 Minor Plat.......................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. The Arbors Subdivision Plat Amendment and Street Change ................................. APPROVED. 
  
 

May 23, 2018 
 
1. Rezoning (Amendment to Zoning Agreement) - Lots 7 & 8 Midway Business Park .....................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. Floodplain Ordinance Amendments ........................................................... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
  
3. Presentation: Zoning Codes – Overview of various types of zoning .......... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 
 

June 13, 2018 
 
1. Rezoning (Amendment to Zoning Agreement) - Lots 7 & 8 Midway Business Park .....................  
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
2. Floodplain Ordinance Amendments ........................................................................ APPROVED. 
  
3. Downtown Façade Review – 120 Main Street ......................................................... APPROVED. 

 
 

June 27, 2018 
 
1. Rezoning – SW Corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue ...........................................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. Rezoning and Land Use Map Amendment – 1015-1021 W 22nd Street ......................................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 

224



 

 4 

3. College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review – 2119 College Street, 1015-1021 W 22nd 
Street .................................................................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 
 

July 11, 2018 
 
1. Rezoning – SW Corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue ...........................................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. Rezoning and Land Use Map Amendment – 1015-1021 West 22nd Street ............ APPROVED. 
 
3. College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review – 2119 College Street, 1015-1021 West 

22nd Street .................................................................................................................... DENIED. 
 
 

July 25, 2018 
 

1. Zoning Ordinance – Central Business District Overlay Amendments...................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Rezoning – SW Corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue ...................... APPROVED. 
  
3. HWY-1 Site Plan Review – Southeast Corner of Highway 58 and Viking Road ...... APPROVED. 
 
3. S-1, Shopping Center District Redevelopment Plan – 6607 University Avenue, Old Hy-Vee 

Building ................................................................................................................... APPROVED. 
 
4. Pinnacle Ridge 2nd Minor Plat – Replat of Parcels M and N .................................. APPROVED. 
 
5. Training/Discussion: Ex-Parte Communication and Conflict of Interest...... DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 
 

August 8, 2018 – NO MEETING 
 
 

August 22, 2018 
 
1. Rezoning – A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential at the north end of Lakeshore Drive .................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

September 12, 2018 
 
1. Rezoning – A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential at the north end of Lakeshore Drive ....... APPROVED. 
 
2. Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat ......................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
  
3. Downtown Design Review – 308 Franklin Street ........................................................... APPROVED. 
 

225



 

 5 

4. Downtown Design Review – 419 Washington Street ..................................................... APPROVED. 
 
5. Downtown Design Review – 408 – 412 Main Street ...................................................... APPROVED. 
 
6. Commission Updates: Future community visioning process and zoning code update for Downtown 

Cedar Falls .................................................................................................. DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 
 

September 26, 2018 
 

NO MEETING 
 
 

October 10, 2018 
 
1. HWY-1 District Site Plan Review – Fleet Farm Retail and Convenience Store ......................................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat ........................................... DEFERRED TO NEXT MEETING. 
  
 

October 24, 2018 
 
1. Central Business District Design Review – LBL Sign ..................................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. HWY-1 Site Plan Amendment – Raising Cane’s Signage .............................................. APPROVED. 
 
3. Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat ........................................... DEFERRED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
4. HWY-1 District Site Plan Review – Fleet Farm Retail and Convenience Store ................. APPROVED. 
 
 
 

November 14, 2018 
 
1. Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat ............................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
2. Central Business District Overlay Design Review – Lark Brewing ................................... APPROVED. 
 
3. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review – Icon Donut .................................... APPROVED. 
 
4. Business Research District Site Plan Review – Rabo AgriFinance ................................. APPROVED. 
 
 

November 28, 2018 
 
1. Rezoning – From A-1, Agricultural District to R-1, Residence District ....................................... APPROVED. 
 

226



 

 6 

2. Central Business District Overlay District - Design Review: Tea Cellar ..................................... APPROVED. 
  
3. Planned Commercial District (PC-2) Site Plan Review: 936 Viking Outbuilding #1Z .................... APPROVED. 
 
4. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District - Site Plan Review: 2119 College Street ................... APPROVED. 
 
 

December 12, 2018 
 
1. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District - Site Plan Review: 2119 College Street ........................................  
  ............................................................................................... DEFERRED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. Zoning Code Text Amendments – Proposed changes to Section 29-160, College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 

Zoning District to define and clarify standards for mixed-use buildings .. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
  
 

December 26, 2018 
 

NO MEETING 
 

227



 
2018 Planning & Zoning Commission Attendance 

 
Chair:  Hillery Oberle 
Vice Chair: Mardy Holst 
 

 1/10 1/24 2/14 2/28 3/14 3/28 4/11 4/25 5/9 5/23 6/13 6/27 
Mid-year 

tally 
7/11 7/25 8/8 8/22 9/12 9/26 10/10 10/24 11/14 11/28 12/12 12/26 

Total 
Ratio 

% 
Attend 

 
Adkins 

X X X X 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 

X X X X O X X 10/11 X X 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 

X O 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 

X X X X X 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 

18/20 90% 

Arntson X X X X X O O O X X X 8/11 X O X X X X X X NA 15/19 79% 

Giarusso X X X X X X X X X X X 11/11 X X X X X X X X X 20/20 100% 

Hartley X X X X X X O X X O X 9/11 X X X X X O O X X 16/20 80% 

Holst X X X X X X X X X O X 10/11 X X X X X X X O X 18/20 90% 

Larson NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X 1/1 100% 

Leeper X X X X X X X X X X X 11/11 X O X X X X X X X 19/20 95% 

Oberle O X X X X X X X O X X 9/11 X X X O X X X X O 16/20 80% 

Saul X X X X X X X X X O X 10/11 X X X X X X O X X 18/20 90% 

Wingert X X O X X X O X X X X 9/11 O O O X O X X X X 14/20 70% 

 
X – Indicates Present 
O – Not Present 

NA – Not Appointed 
R – Resign 

 

228



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
2018 Annual Summary 

 
January 22, 2018 
1. Request by Doug and Deb Tensen at 2020 Cottage Row Road for a variance and 

special exception permit to reconstruct a substantially damaged house in the 
floodway district ......................................................................................... APPROVED 

 
February 26, 2018 
1. Request by Jensen Carpentry at 1522 Belle Avenue for a number of variances for 

access to a public street, without street frontage, in the construction of a new single 
family dwelling. 

 Variance of 30 feet from the 50-foot easement width requirement ............ APPROVED 
 Variance of 5 feet from the driveway setback requirement ........................ APPROVED 
 Variance of 5 feet from the 20-foot driveway width requirement................ APPROVED 
 Variance from the public sidewalk installation requirement ....................... APPROVED 
 
2. Request by Craig and Deborah Gingrich at 1407 Cottage Row Road for a variance 

and special exception permit to construct a screen porch off the west side of the 
house in the floodway district .................................................................... APPROVED 

 
March 26, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in March 
 
April 23, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in April 
 
May 28, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in May 
 
June 25, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meeting in June 
 
July 30, 2018 
1. Request by Kroemer Apartments LLC at 2003 College Street for parking lot setback 

and driveway setbacks in order to pave an existing parking lot .................. APPROVED 
 
August 27, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in August 
 
September 24, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in September 
 
October 29, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in October 
 

229



November 26, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in November 
 
December 17, 2018 
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in December 
 
 
 
Chair: Gerald Sorensen 
Vice Chair: Amy Lang 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 2018 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

1
8
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

1
8
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
1

8
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
1

8
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

8
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
8
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

8
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

1
8
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
1

8
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
1

8
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

1
8
 

D
e
c

. 
2

0
1

8
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a
ti

o
 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Beach O X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ 2/3 67% 

Lang X X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ 3/3 100% 

Mangin  ̷ ̷ ̷ X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ 1/1 100% 

Miller X X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ 3/3  80% 

Rasmussen X X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ O ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ 2/3 67% 

Schwerdtfeger X X ̷ Term Completed- Replaced by Mangin in April 2/2 100% 

Sorensen X X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ 3/3 100% 

Weeg X X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ X ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ ̷ 3/3 100% 

 
X =  Present 
O =  Not Present 

 

230



CEDAR FALLS HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
2018 Annual Summary 

 
The following is intended to summarize the discussions held by the Commission over 
the past year. This summary was compiled from meeting minutes. 
 
January 10, 2018 

 CLG contracts for the Wild District Nomination and the travel grant to the 
National NAPC Forum were forwarded to the City Council for approval.  

 The Commission started working on their annual CLG report. 

 Commission member’s terms were discussed. 

 Remaining details were discussed for the Fairview cemetery tour video.  

 The Commission decided to research opportunities for the preservation of 
16th Street (the last brick road in Cedar Falls). 
 

February 13, 2018 

 The CLG annual report was discussed and distributed for review and 
approval. 

 All details of the Fairview cemetery video were completed. Channel 15 
started the editing process. 

 The Commission started the process of planning a scavenger hunt to tie 
into Tourism’s 30 year anniversary event. 

 Commission and staff shared their research on the preservation of 16th 
Street. It was agreed that after the Wild District Nomination Grant is closed 
out of the Commission would apply for a grant for an intensive survey of 
the area around the brick road. The Commission can then use the results 
to put together a TAP Grant for the road reconstruction. 

 
March 14, 2018 

 CMS shared how they were promoting the success of downtown district 
nomination. 

 RFPs were sent out to consultants for the Wild District Nomination.  
 

April 11, 2018 

 Submitted RFPs for the Wild District Nomination were reviewed. Tallgrass 
Archaeology was chosen.  

 The Historic Preservation Commission agreed to submit a letter in support 
of the Downtown Cultural District Nomination. 
 

May 9, 2018 

 The subcontract with the Consultant for the Wild District Nomination was 
finalized and submitted to City Council. 

 Draft scavenger hunt handout reviewed and approved by the Commission. 
Details for the event were finalized.  

 

231



June, 2018 – No meeting. 
 
July 11, 2018 

 Winners of the scavenger hunt were randomly selected.  

 The kick off meeting with the Consultant for the Wild District Nomination 
was discussed.  

 
August 1, 2018 

 Commissioner’s shared their experiences at the NAPC Forum. 

 The Commission agreed to submit three potential projects to UNI’s History 
Field Experience course: organizing the HPC inventory, researching the 
Band & the Band Building, and researching the history of Tourist Park 
(specifically the disc golf course). 
 

September 12, 2018 

 Andrew Bell, Architect at HTS, volunteered to partner with the HPC to give 
a presentation on the benefits of a historic district for stakeholders in the 
downtown. Details for the event were discussed. 

 The HPC proposed project covering the disc golf course in Tourist Park 
was chosen as one of the projects for the UNI’s History Field Experience.  

 Donna Bash officially resigned from the Commission due to other 
commitments. 
 

October 11, 2018 

 The details on the presentation coving the benefits of a historic district for 
stakeholders in the downtown were finalized. 

 A historic impact review was completed for a project proposed at 2005 
Campus Street (Bender Hall). 
 

November 2018 – No meeting. 
 
December 12, 2018 

 The first draft of the Wild District nomination was reviewed.  

 Findings from the UNI History Field Experience research project were 
presented. The Commission will look into ways to share findings with the 
public. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

232



Chair: Julie Etheredge  
Vice Chair: Jeff Schlobohm 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 2018 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

1
8
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

1
8
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
1

8
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
1

8
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

8
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
8
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

8
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

1
8
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
1

8
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
1

8
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

1
8
 

D
e

c
. 

2
0
1

8
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Donna Bash 
(stepped down 
September 
2018) 

X X O O O  O X X    4/8 50% 

Julie Etheredge X X X O X  X O X X  O 7/10 70% 

Biff Rocha  X X O X X  X O X X  X 8/10 80% 

Jeff Schlobohm X O X X X  O X O X  X 7/10 70% 

Jeanine 
Johnson 

O O X X X  X X X X  X 8/10 80% 

Meridith Main 
(appointed in 
November 
2018) 

           X 1/1 100% 

X =  Present 
O =  Not Present  

233



CEDAR FALLS GROUP RENTAL COMMITTEE 
2018 Annual Summary 

 
 
January 3, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 719 W. 20th Street and 3507-3509 
Veralta Drive. 
 
January 17, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 1515 Franklin Street.  
 
February 7, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 824 Franklin Street and 1609 Tremont 
Street. 
 
February 21, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 521 W. 22nd Street, 1422 Main Street, 
1604 Olive Street, and 2522 Iowa Street. 
 
March 7, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 1029 W. 13th Street and 2525 Valley 
Park Drive.  
 
March 21, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed four cases: 1427 Springbrook Drive, 5007 
Millennium Drive, 4752 Loren Drive and 410 W. 22nd Street.  
 
April 4, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed four cases: 1903 Olive Street, 1915 Olive Street, 
1918 Olive Street, and 1924 Olive Street.  
 
April 18, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 1722 Washington Street. 
 
May 5, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.  
 
May 16, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.  
 
June 6, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 705 Hearthside Drive, 2227 Fairview 
Drive, and 426 W. 5th Street. 
 
June 20, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 1926 Tremont Street and 2607 Victory 
Drive. 

234



 
July 5, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet. 
 
July 31, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 1510 Madison Street, 1704 Park 
Drive, and 2509 Tremont Street.  
 
August 1, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet. 
 
August 14, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.  
 
September 9, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.   
 
September 19, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet. 
 
October 1, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet. 
 
October 16, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 1527 Springbrook Drive, 2215 
Tremont Street, and 117 N. College Street. 
 
November 5, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.   
 
November 20, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed five cases: 822 W. 1st Street, 245 Clark Drive, 
2215 Tremont Street, 3515 Carlton Drive, and 2209 Iowa Street. 
 
December 4, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.   
 
December 28, 2018 
The Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 827 Melrose Drive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

235



The Group Rental Committee is comprised of city staff: Karen Howard, Planning & 
Community Services Manager, John Bostwick, Fire Chief, and Jamie Castle, Building 
Official. See below for a summary of approvals. 
 

SUMMARY Of ALL TO DATE:     

 
Occupancy Level Request Approved 

 
5 unrelated 8 0 

 
4 unrelated 122 106 

 
3 unrelated 33 41 

 
family or 2 unrelated NA 16 

 
Total 163 163 

 

Fiscal Year 2019 (July 1, 2017 thru December 31, 2018) 
   

 
Occupancy Level Request Approved 

 
5 unrelated 4 0 

 
4 unrelated 56 47 

 
3 unrelated 16 20 

 
family or 2 unrelated NA 9 

 
Total 76 76 

 

236



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS 
2018 Annual Summary 

 
 
January, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals did not meet in January. 
 
February 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals did not meet in February. 
 
March 26, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 410 W 22nd Street. 
 
April 9 and April 23, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed five cases: 1915 Olive Street, 1918 Olive 
Street, 1924 Olive Street, 616 W 10th Street, and 1927 Olive Street. 
 
May 7 and May 21, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed five cases: 621 W 20th Street, 708 W 18th 
Street, 1928 Olive Street, 1929 Olive Street, and 1206 W 18th Street. 
 
June 18, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 1202 W 10th Street. 
 
July 16, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed three cases: 926 W 14th Street, 1017 W 
19th Street, and 2611 Tremont Street. 
 
August 13, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed two cases: 1115 Main Street and 3105 
McClain Street. 
 
September 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals did not meet in September. 
 
October 1, 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed two cases: 209 W 22nd Street and 2029 
Fairview Street. 
 
November 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals did not meet in November. 
 
December 2018 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals did not meet in December. 
 
 
 

237



Chair: Chris Martin 
Vice Chair: Dan Berregaard 
 

 
BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS 

ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 2018 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

1
8
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

1
8
 

M
a

r.
 

2
0

1
8
 

A
p

r.
  

9
, 

2
0

1
8
 

A
p

r.
 

2
3

 

2
0

1
8
 

M
a

y
 

7
, 

2
0

1
8
 

M
a

y
 

2
1

, 

2
0

1
8
 

J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
8
 

J
u

ly
 

2
0

1
8
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

1
8
 

S
e

p
. 

2
0

1
8
 

O
c

t.
 

2
0

1
8
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

1
8
 

D
e

c
. 

2
0

1
8
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 

A
tt

e
n

d
. 

Cindy Wiles 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X X X X O O O X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

6/9 66% 

Chris Martin X X X X X O X X X 8/9 88% 

Mary Jane 
McCollum 

X X X X X X X X X 9/9 100% 

Dan 
Berregaard  

X X X X X X X X X 9/9 100% 

Bruce Wingert  X X X X X X X X X 9/9 100% 

Matthew 
Johnson 

O O O X X X X X O 5/9 55% 

Kim Kranz X X X X O O X X X 7/9 77% 

 
X =  Present 
O =  Not Present 

 

238



 

 1 

CEDAR FALLS HOUSING COMMISSION 
Annual Summary 

2018 
 
 

January 10, 2018    
 
1.  Consolidated Plan Amendments ................................................................................ DISCUSSION 

 
2. Annual Action Plan Amendments  ............................................................................... DISCUSSION 

 
February 13, 2018 
 
1. Review & Approve Consolidated Plan Amendments ................................................ APPROVED 
 
2. Review and Approve Annual Action Plan Amendments ........................................... APPROVED 
 
3. Review and Approve Annual Action Plan Budget ..................................................... APPROVED 
 
 
March 14, 2018 – NO MEETING 
 
 
April 10, 2018 
 
1. CDBG Rehabilitation Project at 1622 Clay Street .................................................... APPROVED 
 
2. CDBG Rehabilitation Project at 1024 W. 2nd Street .................................................. APPROVED 
 
 
May 8, 2018 
 
1. Service Agency CDBG Funding Recommendations .............................................. DISCUSSION 
 
2. Section 8 Waiting List Preferences Recommendations……………………… .. …….DISCUSSION 
  
 
 
June 12, 2018 – Cancelled (No Quorum) 

 
 

July 10, 2018 
 
1. CDBG Annual Action Plan Public Hearing……………………PUBLIC HEARING DISCUSSION 
 
2. PHA Admin Plan Changes to Local Preference  ...................................................... APPROVED 
  

239



 

 2 

3. PHA Admin Plan Changes to Waiting List Preferences ........................................... APPROVED 
 
4.  Public Hearing for PHA Annual Plan……………………………………………….. .... DISCUSSION 
 
5.   CDBG Annual Plan / Consolidated Plan Updates…………………………… ........... DISCUSSION 

 
 

August 14, 2018 – Cancelled (No bids received / no New Business)  
. 
 
 
September 11, 2018 
 
1. CDBG Rehabilitation Project at 911 Bluff……… ...................................................... APPROVED 
 
2. CDBG Rehabilitation Project at 921 Westview ......................................................... APPROVED 
 
3.  CDBG Rehabilitation Project at 801 Newman Ave…………………………….. ......... APPROVED 
 
4.   Consolidated Plan … Funding to Service Agencies …………………….................... APPROVED 
 
5.   Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report………. .................................. APPROVED 
 
 
October 9, 2018 

 
1. New Payment Standards for Housing Choice Voucher/Section 8 ............................ APPROVED 
 
2. Amendments to Rehabilitation Manual ..................................................................... APPROVED 
  

 
November 27, 2018 
 
1. Consolidated Plan Focus Groups ........................................................................... DISCUSSION APPROVED. 
 
2. 2016 / 2017 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report ......................... APPROVED 
 
 

 
December 2018 – No Meeting 

240



ANNUAL REPORT OF ACTIVITIES 
Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee 
January 2018 – December 2018 

 
 
 
 

CURRENT COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP: 
Roger White, Chair     Matt Dunning 
Kelly Wolf, Vice-Chair    Nancy Hamilton 
Luann Alemao     Bob Lentz 
Lisa Brodersen     Mike McCallum 
Larry Buchholz     Codie Leseman, INRCOG Liaison 
Russ Clark      Zach Ladage, Cedar Falls Police Liaison 
Kim Cross      David Sturch, Cedar Falls City Liaison 
Cindy Dodd 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: 
Monthly meetings are held at the Cedar Falls City Hall Duke Young Conference Room 
on the 1st Tuesday of each month from 5:15 to 6:30 pm. The July 2018 meeting was 
cancelled. 
 
MISSION STATEMENT: 
The Committee’s Mission is to improve the quality of life in Cedar Falls through 
increased opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable means of transportation 
and physical activity. 
 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING 2018: 
ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES: 

• Elected Officers for 2018. 
• Recommended additional Committee members.  
• Continued review of Cedar Falls Bicycle Network Map. 
• Recommended budget appropriation for completing Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan 

activities and maintaining Bicycle Friendly Community (BFC) status. 
• Maintained a BPAC Facebook page 
• Submitted application for 2018 Bike Friendly City 
• Received Bronze status for Bicycle Friendly Community 2018-2022 
• Work to attain Silver Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar Falls. 

 
SUBSTANTIVE ACTIVITIES: 
The activities listed below include essential elements across five categories known as 
the Five E’s. These activities focus on creating safe and useable accommodations for 
bicyclists and pedestrians. 
 
ENGINEERING - Creating safe and convenient places to walk, ride and park. 

• Continued participation with the Metropolitan Pedestrian Master Plan 
development. 

  

241



• Continued active support for the Major Thoroughfare and Trail Network plan. 
• W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project - Pedestrian Accommodations. 
• Long Range Transportation Plan update. 
• Recommended S. Main Street Improvements to existing shoulder near Paw Park 
• Recommended marked sharrows on both 12th St. and 18th St. from Main St. to 

Hudson Rd. and 4th St. from State St. to Union Rd. 
• Recommended removing bicycle stop signs from crossings that have traffic 

signal lights. 
• Reported malfunctioning crossing signal buttons. (University/Round) 
• Trail snow clearing recommendations. 
• Network Signage (May use full lane/Change lanes to pass) Sign changes to W. 

4th, W. 12th, College, Boulder and 18th Street proposed. 
• Center Street Improvement Project. 
• Highway 58/27 & Viking Rd. trail relocation & crossing update. 
• Main Street Corridor Study, bike accommodations recommended. 

 
EDUCATION - Giving people of all ages and abilities the skills and confidence to ride 
and walk. 

• Organized and participated a Bike Rodeo at Orchard Hill School. 
• Helped organize and participated in third annual Cedar Valley Pedal Fest biking 

festival. 
• Submit article for the Currents magazine regarding the pedestrian, bicycle, and 

motorist behavior for safety. (summer) 
• Channel 15 Currents video on Currents. (May Bike Month) 
• Bike to School in May. (Hansen School) 
• May Bike to work article in Courier. 
• Iowa Bike Summit. (Roger/Codie) 
• National Walking Summit (Luann). 
 

ENCOURAGEMENT - Creating a strong bike and pedestrian culture that welcomes and 
celebrates both modes of transportation. 

• Updated Cedar Falls Bike/Pedestrian Advisory Committee Facebook page. 
• Promoted, The Ride of Silence Ride (May Bike Month). 
• Continued to support city efforts to facilitate bikes and pedestrians in ongoing 

street renewal projects.  
• AAA Biking Guide-Promoting Cedar Falls as a Bike Friendly destination. 
• Mayors Entre-Tourism Bike Ride (August). 
• National Walk to School Day. 

 
ENFORCEMENT - Ensuring safe roads and sidewalks for all users. 

• Requested committee representative from the Cedar Falls Police Department’s 
Bike Patrol. 

• Received E-bike ordinance (In-progress) 
• Re-write City Ordinance using Model City Ordinance/reference bike and 

pedestrian codes. 
• Added Police Bike Patrol Officer Zach Ladage to the committee as Police 

Liaison. 
 

242



EVALUATION - Planning for bicycling and walking as safe, viable transportation 
options. 

• Prepared a Committee Annual Report for 2017 and presented to the City 
Council. 

• Researched the current League of American Bicyclists’ criteria for Bronze and 
Silver Bicycle Friendly Community (BFC) rankings. 

• Discussed how to improve the city’s current Bronze BFC ranking. 
• Advocated greater coordination within the community with other bicycling related 

groups. 
 
PROGRESS ON GOALS: 

• Focus the Committee’s efforts regarding pedestrian and bicycle activity on the 
Five-E’s, namely, Engineering, Education, Encouragement, Enforcement & 
Evaluation. – CURRENT and ON-GOING 

• Advocate and recommend infrastructure and activities that will make walking and 
biking more attractive, enjoyable, practical and safe. - ON-GOING 

• Monitor and make recommendations for bike/pedestrian accommodations in the 
5-Year and Annual Pavement Management Program and plans for 
re-construction of city streets. - CURRENT and ON-GOING 

• Continue to participate on the INRCOG Metropolitan Pedestrian Plan Committee. 
- ACHIEVED 

• Take actions and make recommendations that will increase the opportunity for 
Cedar Falls to be designated as “Silver Bicycle Friendly Community” by the 
League of American Bicyclists. - ON-GOING 

• Participate in activities that encourage and celebrate walking and biking.- 
CURRENT and ON-GOING 

• Update the Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan as appropriate. -  ON-GOING   
• Continue to support the Blue Zones/HealthyHometown project in Cedar Falls. - 

ON-GOING 
• Communicate regularly with the Mayor, the City Council and appropriate City 

Staff regarding recommendations and activities. - ON-GOING  
 
PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 2019 (placed in order of importance): 

• Provide funds in the budget for implementing Committee recommendations and 
completing activities, especially designation of staff to serve as 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Program Manager(s). 

• Mark the entire Cedar Falls Bicycle Network with signage and paint where 
appropriate. 

• Elevate the Cedar Falls Bicycle / Pedestrian Advisory Committee to a standing 
committee similar to current boards and commissions. 

• Continue assessment of intersections regarding pedestrian and bicycle 
accommodations focusing on crosswalks and crossing lights. 

• Initiate committee recommendations on trail/sidewalk projects/concerns 
throughout the community 

• Support the implementation of the Metropolitan Pedestrian Plan.  
• Monitor pedestrian/motor vehicle and bicycle/motor vehicle collision statistics and 

injuries. 
 

243



LONG-TERM GOALS: 
• Implement the recommendations within the Metropolitan Pedestrian Master Plan  
• Increase walkability and pedestrian friendliness in Cedar Falls   
• Seek grant funds for intersection improvements for pedestrians and bicyclists.  
• Obtain Silver Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar Falls. 
• Update Zoning Ordinance to include bicycle and pedestrian accommodations. 

244



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FY19 Community Main Street 

 
As you are aware, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside 

agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls.  As part of those 

agreements, these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on 

how those funds were used.  

 

Attached is the bi-annual report for FY19 filed by Cedar Falls Community Main Street.  

The second ½ payment for their SSMID funding and the second ½ payment for their 

economic development grant are therefore listed on the council bills to be processed.   

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.   

245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FY19 Report by College Hill Partnership 

 
As you are aware, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside 

agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls.  As part of those 

agreements, these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on 

how those funds were used.  

 

Attached is the bi-annual report for FY19 filed by College Hill Partnership.  The second 

½ payment for their SSMID funding and the second ½ payment for their economic 

development grant are therefore listed on the council bills to be processed.   

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.    

306



 

 
 

College Hill Partnership 

2304 College Street 

Po Box 974 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

Phone: 319-273-6882 

collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 

www.collegehillpartnership.org 

 

 

2019-2019 

Board of Directors 

Kamyar Enshayan, President 

Dave Deibler, Vice President 

Becky Hawbaker, Secretary 

Doug Johnson, Treasurer 

Andrea Geary 

Andrew Stensland 

Andy Fuchtman 

Barb Schilf 

Brent Dahlstrom 

Chris Martin 

Chris Wernimont 

 

 

15 April 2018 

Mayor Brown & Members of Cedar Falls City Council 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

RE: SSMID, Economic Development, Community Betterment Grant 

 

Attached please find the Biannual Report form College Hill Partnership 

detailing our organization’s current status and progress in promoting 

and revitalizing the College Hill.   

 

In this report you will find the following information: 

- Accomplishments of the last 6 Months 

- List of Current Board of Directors  

- Financial Statements 

- 2019-2020 Budget 

 

We are thankful for the support that the City of Cedar Falls has given 

our organization over the year and the collaboration that we have had.   

 

With the submission of this report, we respectfully ask for the 

disbursement of the SSMID Funds, Community Betterment Funds and 

Economic Development Funds to the College Hill Partnership.  Please 

notify us if there is any additional information as needed as we would 

be happy to provide it.   

 

Sincerely,  

 

Kamyar Enshayan, President         Kathryn Sogard, Executive Director 

On behalf of the College                           College Hill Partnership 

Hill Partnership Board Of 

Directors 

 

307



April 15th, 2019 UPDATE 

  
  

  

Economic Development Fund/SSMID 

Community Development Fund 

EVALUATION FY19 

  

  

  

  

Project Completion and Evaluation Form 
                          
 

To assist the Economic Development Review Board in evaluating the impact your organization/project 

had on contributing to or promoting economic development and the creation of quality employment 

opportunities in Cedar Falls, please complete the following (use additional paper if necessary): 

 

  
Project Completion and Evaluation Form 
  
Name of Organization:   College Hill Partnership 
Project Description: 
-          The College Hill Partnership received approval of our business district as a Self-Supported 

Municipal Improvement District. 
-          The objective of our SSMID is to help further our organization represent and advocate for the 

interests of the economic development, tourism, and quality of life in the College Hill area, as well as the 

performance of the administration, redevelopment, and revitalization of the district.  Specifically to fund a 

paid position to further our mission of revival and promotion of the College Hill area.   

- The College Hill Partnership received approval of an Economic Development Grant.   

308



April 15th, 2019 UPDATE 

- The objective of the Economic Development grant is to further our mission to remain a leader in 

revitalization and promotion of the College Hill Overlay District.  Funds for the specific grant were to 

supply monies to two business who had applied and been approved for Façade Grants.   Funds will also 

provide the CHP with funds to allocate to new street banners along our business district.    

- The College Hill Partnership received approval of Community Betterment Grant.  

- The objective of the Community Betterment grant is to further our mission to remain a leader in 

revitalization and promotion of the College Hill Overlay District.  Funds are being used to supply the 

CHP with monies to develop and implement new street banners the College Hill business district.   

 

 

  
What is the mission of your organization?: 
-          College Hill Partnership (CHP) is a non-profit organization that serves as the leader in the 

revitalization and promotion of the College Hill area, an urban neighborhood community.  The scope of 

its mission includes promoting healthy neighborhood businesses and housing enhancement, strengthening 

collaboration and pride; developing public/private partnerships; and serving as an advocate for addressing 

area concerns. 
 
Grant Amount: SSMID $25,000.00+    Economic Development Grant $4,000.00  Community 

Betterment Grant $1,000 

 

 

Address of Organization or person completing this application: 
Street: P.O. Box 974 
City: Cedar Falls                                State: Iowa         Zip: 50613 
Phone: 319-273-6228      Email: collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 
  

  

  
1. Do you consider your organization/project a success October 2018 through April 2019? Why? 
 

 Our organization has made advancements over the last six months.  The CHP focused its efforts 

in the previous six months, on creating programming that supports our mission supporting 

economic development.  The Partnership has also facilitated several forums for stakeholders 

within the College Hill overlay district to voice concerns and questions for many upcoming 

developments within the area. 

 We have been able to provide the façade funding to two of the businesses, which had already 

been approved before the federal funding was no longer available.  

 The CHP has been able to supply a consistent face of the partnership through a newly promoted 

Executive Director, without SSMID funding the CHP would have been solely running on donated 

hours, as UNI cut funding for the long-standing student coordinator position. 

 We are in the final stages of approval and development for our banners and are hopeful to have 

them installed by the end of Summer 2019.   

 We are encouraged by the four new businesses that have located to the Hill and opened their 

doors and are looking forward to seeing the opening of two new companies by the end of 

Summer.   

  

309



April 15th, 2019 UPDATE 

2. Does the outcome of this grant funding to your operation/project align with the Economic 

Development Fund/SSMID goals of complementing Cedar Falls economic development 

efforts?  Explain. 
  
The College Hill Partnership use of SSMID funding aligns with the efforts of the city in several ways: 
-          We have seen an increase in investment in our district resulting in steady job growth including 

newly opened Icon Donuts, Price Check Kicks, and The Finishing Touch Tattoo and Barbershop.   

- The College Hill Partnership is unique with its connection to not only the business district but to the 

University (through a Staff Liaison, and Student Board member).  By funding the CHP a multifaceted 

organization, with a diverse demographic the City of Cedar Falls is ensuring that customers are connected 

to businesses, and vice-versa.  Through this connection, businesses can supply offerings that are in 

demand.  A study supported by the CHP several years ago helped neighbors voice their support for a 

coffee shop on the Hill, and because of this study the College Hill Business District was able to gain 

Sidecar Coffee, now a staple of the Hill.  We have made additional efforts to study desires of not only the 

patrons of College Hill but also the nearby residents.  We have partnered with a group of university 

students to promote a survey determining the desired offerings the Partnership could offer in Seerley 

Park.  This group of students is using some base data collected by our Neighborhood Services Committee 

and have created and revised a survey to include students at UNI.  This partnership is vital to ensuring a 

large sample is taken from a broad spectrum of users.  We hope to use their data collected to create a plan 

to improve the Seerley Park.  We have utilized Seerley Park for many of our events to promote 

community on College Hill.  Over the past six months, we have also partnered with another group from 

UNI.  This group is made up of UNI Presidential Scholars who are working to implement a Sexual 

Assault Prevention Bystander Training Program in the Cedar Valley.  They chose College Hill to test out 

their curriculum with the hopes they will be able to implement the program in other popular nightlife 

areas in the Cedar Valley.  According to BJS.gov, the Midwest region has the highest rate of sexual 

assaults in the nation.   Many attacks happen when alcohol is involved.  Having a program offered on 

College Hill is a benefit not only to businesses, but to the patrons, and the overall safety of our larger 

community.   Programs such as these support economic development and help to ensure successful 

business on the Hill.   
-          These outcomes and efforts show that the economic environment in the College Hill and City of 

Cedar Falls is a positive one that encourages businesses to locate and expand here. 
  
3. Did receipt of an Economic Development Fund, Community Betterment grant, and SSMID 

enable your organization/project to provide a new service to promote economic development or the 

creation of quality employment opportunities in Cedar Falls?  How? 
  
The nature of the College Hill is an ever-changing and developing area that requires that our organization 

continually focus on renewal and community engagement to progress our district. The funding helps the 

College Hill Partnership provide numerous services promoting economic development and quality 

employment opportunities.  This past year the College Hill Partnership has been able to maintain a part-

time Executive Direct.  This funding has helped us further our mission, and create consistency on our 

board and in each of our committees.  Our services fall into four key areas. 
 Encouraging cooperative business strategies 
 Developing awareness of the neighborhood and business district through digital media  
 Including several collaborative opportunities for marketing through events and partnerships 

 Improving the physical appearance of the College Hill 

 Promoting the District 

 Sponsoring and Fostering Cultural Events 
- See specific examples in the following answer 

  

310



April 15th, 2019 UPDATE 

4. Please provide a summary of activities complete from April 2018 through October 2018 by your 

organization/project. 
 
The College Hill Partnership has many services aimed at promoting economic development.  Through the 

receipt of funds, we were able to undertake many new projects during the year.  Summarization of our 

organization's activities are as follows: 
  
Encouraging cooperative business strategies.  We have an understanding of the challenge the College 

Hill area faces, and we work together with merchants, residents, landlords, the University of Northern 

Iowa, and the City of Cedar Falls to make physical improvements and to facilitate growth through better 

communication and connecting relevant parties.  We have helped business growth through assisting with 

the establishment of a College Hill TIF District, a College Hill Urban Revitalization Program (CHURP), 

and participation in the Façade Grant Program, which we hope to help support through other funding as 

the old structure of this grant is no only available.  The CHP staff has developed a local business survey 

to be completed in the upcoming months to provide more statistics of the neighborhood businesses.  In 

addition to this survey, we have been working on compiling information about residents within our 

district with the help of the President's office at the University of Northern Iowa to help us communicate 

more efficiently with our entire constituency.  This sort of data helps to inform our business decisions and 

support the local business environment.  As mentioned before several businesses are opening on the Hill 

this spring, and we hope that more will follow.  Consistent efforts and meetings with the local shops and 

an active Executive Director have helped us improve our communication with the overall business 

district.  We have been able to conduct and facilitate several public forums that have addressed specific 

challenges that College Hill Businesses face including, safety and aesthetic care. 
  
Improving the physical appearance of College Hill.  One of CHP’s charges is to create an inviting 

environment where people want to live, work, and visit.  The College Hill district is a significant gateway 

to Cedar Falls and UNI, sometimes being one of the first impressions the local area shows to visitors, 

future students and their parents. To that end, the CHP has overseen the maintenance of flower beds in 

Pettersen Plaza and along College and 23rd Streets.  In the past six months, the College Hill Partnership 

has worked with the Black Hawk County Master Gardeners to aid our organization in the beatification of 

the area.  Their volunteers have continued to donate countless hours to help put the plant beds to bed for 

the winter season.  The College Hill Partnership, BHCo Master Gardeners, and Friends of Pettersen Plaza 

have also spent almost 100 hours working on providing an aesthetically pleasing, event-friendly space at 

the bottom of the Hill that reflects the Namesake of the Plaza, Hugh Pettersen.  Without the support of the 

Parks and Rec Commission and the City Council, we would not be on our way to finalizing a plan for the 

small plaza at the bottom of the Hill.   We are looking forward to implementing our spring program of 

beautification and welcoming our newest team member to help us care for the atheistic needs of the Hill.    

This effort has resulted in a beautiful aesthetically pleasing area drawing the attention of the local 

community.  Many of the board members can also be found spending some of their free time picking up 

trash and debris that can be left behind in mainly used areas like the College Hill neighborhood.  Part of 

our Partnership with UNI NOW and Community Main Street for Welcome Week was a trash clean-up 

service project opportunity for UNI Students to help clean up the Hill.  Over 75 people were on the Hill 

for just over an hour picking up trash and recyclables.  We have already begun the planning for this year’s 

events and look forward to having new UNI students help us care for their and our neighborhood.   The 

College Hill Partnership wants to also thank the City of Cedar Falls for the lengthy discussions about 

trash collection in the College Hill Business District and the Downtown District.  We appreciate that the 

City wants to care for our districts and understand funding for that care can be costly.  Especially for our 

organization, we want to thank the City Staff, and City Council Members for realizing requiring our 

organization to take on additional expenses would need us to shift our focus away from economic 

development activities.  The financial support and human resources to care for trash and the College Hill 

311



April 15th, 2019 UPDATE 

Partnership much appreciates other unexpected repairs or maintenance, and the entire overlay.   We also 

brought all of the College Hill businesses together in a window painting contest for the holidays 

encouraging businesses to show their holiday spirit and decorate their windows from everything from the 

Grinch to UNI Squirrels, and even including other winter holidays besides Christmas.  We were fortunate 

enough to partner with the NISG from UNI on judging this event furthering our collaboration with our 

neighbor UNI.  With our unique position so close to campus we believe it is our job to help encourage 

university students and community members to come together and work towards common goals.  With 

the support of the CHP, we had more business than student groups who wanted to be involved in this 

collaborative tradition. 

 

Usage of Economic Development Fund Monies.  The College Hill Partnership was awarded $4,000 

through the Economic Development Fund.  $2,000 has been allocated to façade projects that had 

previously been assigned to two specific storefronts in the College Hill Business District: $1000 to 2204 

College Street, and $1000 to 2205 College Street.  Each of those businesses had already made 

improvements to their storefronts in the form of signage and new installation of doors.  We hope that the 

City and City Council will find a way for businesses or organizations like the CHP to apply for grant 

funding to help offset costs of storefront improvements.  The other $2,000 will go to a banner signage 

project that we are still currently working on with Signs and Designs.    

 

Usage of Community Betterment Fund Monies.  The CHP was awarded $1,000 through the 

Community Betterment Fund.  The monies are being utilized to improve our district by implementing 

new banner signage for our Business District.  We are finalizing the design and hope to have the new 

street banners up by the end of Summer.   
  
Promoting College Hill.  Through regular face-to-face meetings, frequent email communication, a booth 

at the annual College Hill Arts Festival, our website (www.collegehillpartnership.org), our Facebook 

Page (1633, a 3.6% increase in the last 6 months), twitter account (2212, a 12.3% increase over the 

previous 6 months), and newly added Instagram account (1142, a 86.3% increase in the last 6 months) we 

help keep all of our members and interested groups connected and up-to-date with what’s happening on 

College Hill, and how we can assist in its improvement.  We have also added in the last six months a 

Linkedin, Snapchat, and Pinterest accounts, all growing in popularity and reach.  We have also connected 

with members via email and google groups in efforts to ensure we are communicating the CHP's 

activities. This year we were excited to add a blog hosted on the CHP website that has had several guest 

bloggers from our community writing about all things College Hill.  One of our most viewed blogs is an 

article about the history of the trees along Seerley Blvd.  Because of the nature of the College Hill 

Partnership, there are many exciting dimensions we can highlight, and many stakeholders stories to tell 

and the Partnership felt a great way to showcase our diverse community was to increase our social reach 

through an online publication.  This blog is an opportunity also to showcase issues important to our 

community such as upcoming events, public service announcements, and other communication the City 

or our other stakeholders would like to pass along.    
  
Sponsoring and Fostering Cultural Events.  Since 2008, the CHP has sponsored many events that have 

become traditions.  The CHP Annual Meeting (April), and the annual neighborhood picnic (August).  The 

CHP also helped establish the College Hill Farmers Market, 22nd and College, co-sponsored with UNI’s 

CEEE (weekly, Thursdays, June- Oct).  This year we have supported hosting the farmers market on 

College Street to encourage more vendors and customers to participate.  These events helped to spur other 

activities, including Pear Fair – Mohair Pear (October, began 2011); the College Hill Music Festival 

(May; began 2013), and the College Hill Criterium Bicycle Race (April, began in 2013). 
Additionally, this year we hosted the 3rd Annual Oktoberfest event, which helped support and increase 

business activity and showcases what the College Hill area has to offer.  We were honored to work side 

by side with the University of Northern Iowa and Community Main Street to create an excellent Fall 

312



April 15th, 2019 UPDATE 

Kickoff for New UNI students to introduce them to both of our districts.  The College Hill Partnership has 

noted that our most successful events are when we can get additional community organizations involved 

to be able to cross promote, encourage community, and shoulder the burden of the cost.  Events such as 

these are an essential way to appeal not only to the neighborhood residents but also include the large 

college demographic which brings a significant amount of revenue to the College Hill and the City of 

Cedar Falls.  Our events committee volunteers spent countless hours over the summer and Fall to make 

these events unique and successful.  All activities mentioned above increase the vitality of College Hill, 

drive interest in spending time on the Hill, and aid economic development, within our local district and 

the City of Cedar Falls.   
  
5. Do you have suggestions for improvement of this grant process? 
  
-          Our organization does not have any suggestions for improvement.  We are very fortunate for the 

help and guidance that the city consistently provides to us as we grow and work to make the Hill a great 

place.  
 

 

6. The Economic Development Fund Evaluation Reports (Bi-Annual) for the Fiscal Year 2016 

must be submitted by October 15, 2017, and April 15, 2018, to: 
  

  

  
Cedar Falls Economic Development Review Board 

c/o Director of Community Development 
220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

313



April 15th, 2019 UPDATE 

Supporting Documents 
  

College Hill Partnership 
2018-2019 

Board of Directors 
  

 

Resident: Chris Martin (2018-2020) - chris.martin@cfu.net 
Secretary - Resident: Becky Hawbaker (2018-2020) - becky.hawbaker@uni.edu 
Landlord: Dave Deibler (2018-2020) -Octopuscollegehill@gmail.com 
Landlord: Chris Wernimont (2017-2019) - cjwernimont@gmail.com 
Business: Andrea Geary (2017-2019) - andrea@milkboxbakery.com 
Business: Barb Schilf (2018-2020) - barb.mohairpear@gmail.com 
President - At Large: Kamyar Enshayan (2017-2019) - kenshayan@gmail.com 
Treasurer - At Large: Doug Johnson (2017-2019) - djohnson@panthersupply.com 
At Large: Alex Funke (2017-2019) - chadspizzacf@gmail.com 
 Replaced by: Brent Dahlstrom (2019)  - brentdahlstrom@gmail.com 
At Large: Andy Fuchtman (2017-2019) - fuchtman@gmail.com 
At Large (Student): Drew Stensland (2019-2020) - stenscca@uni.edu 
 

Non-Voting Board Members 
 
Past President: Andy Fuchtman - fuchtman@gmail.com 
UNI Liaison: Andrew Morse – Andrew.morse@uni.edu 
City of Cedar Falls Liaison: Mike Hayes - mike.hayes@cedarfalls.com 
City of Cedar Falls Liaison: Karen Howard – Karen.howard@cedarfalls.com 
Master Gardner:  Vaughn Griffith – vjgriff@forbin.net 
College Hill Arts Festival Liaison: Mary-Sue Bartlett - mary-suebartlett@cfu.net 
Cedar Valley Alliance Liaison:  Cary Darrah - carydarrah@cfu.net 
Community Main Street Liaison: Carol Lilly - cmsdirector@cfu.net 
Executive Director: Kathryn Sogard - collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 
City Council Representative: Tom Blanford - Tom.Blanford@cedarfalls.com 
 

314



College Hill Partnership 2018-19 Financial Statement

4/12/2019

Income  Budget  July  August  September  October  November  December  January  Febuary  March  Remaining Budget Total 
Memberships/Donations ($ 800.00)         ($ 25.00)           ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 119.85)         ($ 363.98)         ($ 408.11)         ($ (116.94)                ($ 916.94)         
SSMID ($ 28,000.00)    ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 10,574.43)    ($ 1,440.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 15,985.57)            ($ 12,014.43)    
Economic Development Grant: City of Cedar Falls ($ 4,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 2,500.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,500.00)              ($ 2,500.00)      
Interest ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ -  )               
Tree Fund ($ 2,000.00)      ($ 2,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ 2,000.00)      
Other ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 300.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ (300.00)                ($ 300.00)         
Pettersen Plaza ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 250.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ 250.00)         

Total Income ($ 34,800.00)    ($ 2,025.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 10,874.43)    ($ 3,940.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 119.85)         ($ 613.98)         ($ 408.11)         ($ 17,068.63)            ($ 17,981.37)    

Expenses
Advertising/Donations ($ 1,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 140.00)         ($ -  )               ($ 13.73)           ($ -  )               ($ 846.27)                 ($ 150.00)         
Insurance ($ 3,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 3,000.00)              ($ -  )               
General Office Expenses ($ 1,000.00)      ($ 479.05)         ($ 40.00)           ($ 40.00)           ($ 84.33)           ($ 85.39)           ($ 87.06)           ($ 112.76)         ($ 1,239.31)      ($ 82.80)           ($ (1,250.70)             ($ 2,250.70)      
Salaries (Including Taxes) ($ 23,000.00)    ($ 661.99)         ($ 1,176.64)      ($ 2,097.52)      ($ 1,419.48)      ($ 656.77)         ($ 3,401.93)      ($ 1,770.58)      ($ 1,338.97)      ($ 588.09)         ($ 9,888.03)              ($ 13,111.97)    
Hill Cleaning Service ($ 4,000.00)      ($ 350.00)         ($ 280.00)         ($ 280.00)         ($ 280.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 2,810.00)              ($ 1,190.00)      
Facade Improvement Program ($ 2,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 2,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ 2,000.00)      
Business Improvemnet Committee ($ 1,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,000.00)              ($ -  )               
Organization Development Committee ($ 500.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 500.00)                 ($ -  )               
Neighborhood Services Committee ($ 1,000.00)      ($ 22.00)           ($ 200.73)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 777.27)                 ($ 222.73)         
Beautification Committee ($ 1,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 244.05)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 755.95)                 ($ 244.05)         
Marketing/Promotions  Committee ($ 2,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 637.31)         ($ 2,602.61)      ($ (534.00)        ($ 70.99)           ($ 214.98)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 110.00)         ($ (1,101.89)             ($ 3,101.89)      
Farmer Market ($ 700.00)         ($ -  )               ($ 229.81)         ($ -  )               ($ 150.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 320.19)                 ($ 379.81)         
Tree Fund ($ 2,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 220.00)         ($ 154.10)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,625.90)              ($ 374.10)         
Total Expenses ($ 42,200.00)    ($ 1,513.04)      ($ 4,564.49)      ($ 5,484.18)      ($ 1,399.81)      ($ 813.15)         ($ 3,843.97)      ($ 1,883.34)      ($ 2,592.01)      ($ 780.89)         ($ 17,545.12)            ($ 22,874.88)    

Balance (Income vs. Expenses) ($ (7,400.00)     ($ 511.96)         ($ (4,564.49)     ($ (5,484.18)     ($ 9,474.62)      ($ 3,126.85)      ($ (3,843.97)     ($ (1,763.49)     ($ (1,978.03)     ($ (372.78)        ($ (476.49)                ($ (4,893.51)     

Check Accounts  Ending Balance ($ 52,417.97)    ($ 49,178.88)    ($ 39,786.95)    ($ 35,009.44)    ($ 44,650.38)    ($ 46,983.80)    ($ 43,754.13)    ($ 41,556.16)    ($ 40,495.32)    
Date of Balance 7/1/2017 8/13/2018 9/11/2018 10/9/2018 11/13/2018 12/10/2018 1/10/2019 2/7/2019 3/6/2019

315



316



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: May 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project – Appraisement of Damages 

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Attached are the Notice of Appraisement of Damages reports for Parcel 5, 53 & 70.  Please 
receive and file for our records. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address 

5 Purdy Properties 1421 W. 1
st
 Street 

53 Sanders 816 W. 1
st
 Street 

70 Arcuri 1304 W. 1
st
 Street 

 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  May 2, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 

b) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class A liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

 
c) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

e) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Farm Shed, 115-119 Main Street, Class B 
liquor & outdoor service - sidewalk café. 

f) Sturgis Falls Celebration, Island Park Beach House, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - 5-day permit. 

g) Sturgis Falls Celebration, Gateway Park, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service 
- 5-day permit. 

 
h) Cedar Basin Jazz Festival & Live to 9, Sturgis Park, Special Class C liquor & 

outdoor service - 6-month permit. 

i) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - new. 
 

492



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE: May 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Benefits Consultant RFP Results 
  
Attached is an agreement with Holmes Murphy & Associates, Inc. to provide benefits consulting 
services to the City of Cedar Falls on the City’s benefits plans related to health, prescription 
drug, dental, life, long-term disability, flexible spending, health reimbursement, and wellness for 
a three year term beginning July 1, 2019.  
 
The City has received benefits consulting services from Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc. since 
2003. Due to the significant time since the last request for proposal (“RFP”) was completed for 
benefits consulting services (2010), the turnover of primary consultants on our account with 
Gallagher, recent service quality concerns, and the current scope of our consulting services, we 
determined it to be an appropriate time to do a RFP to seek additional benefits consulting 
services.  
 
The RFP was distributed in February to prospective consulting firms requesting them to submit 
bids in writing for the opportunity to provide benefits consulting services for the City. The RFP 
included a specific scope of services to be provided and included services that we are not 
currently receiving but based on the current insurance environment, would find beneficial. Eight 
firms responded with proposals and based on a number of factors including public sector 
experience, consultant qualifications, client references, and price, Cottingham & Butler, PDCM 
Insurance, and Holmes Murphy were chosen to visit City Hall and present to the Director of 
Finance and Business Operations, Controller/City Treasurer, and Accountant. 
 
Following the presentations, the City reached out to the firms’ client references for further input 
and discussion from those that have worked directly with the finalists. Follow up and clarifying 
questions were then asked of the firms. After consideration and internal deliberation of all the 
steps throughout the process, Holmes Murphy was selected from the group of finalists. Holmes 
Murphy was determined to have the most comprehensive level of services for the lowest cost of 
the three finalists that were interviewed. 
 
We would like to move forward with the selection of Holmes Murphy by signing the attached 
benefits consulting agreement. The agreement has been reviewed by City Attorney Rogers. 
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5101 or Jennifer 
Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
Attachments 

493



494



495



496



497



498



499



     Original12/13/11 
Revision 01/31/2017 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 

500



terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 
 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 

501



work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 
Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 

502



Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
13. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
  

503



EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

504



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

505



CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

506



 

$1,000,000 

507



  

508



 
  

509



 

510



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE: May 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Amendment to Express Scripts Employer Participation Agreement 
  
 
Attached for your approval is an amendment to the Employer Participation Agreement 
(“Agreement”) between Express Scripts, Inc. (“ESI”) and the City of Cedar Falls (“City”) 
that was signed October 20, 2014 and effective January 1, 2015.  
 
The amendment states Gallagher Benefit Services (“GBS”) replaces Thompson Reuters 
as the auditor of the pharmacy benefit management services that ESI provides to the 
City. As a result, all references in the agreement to Thompson Reuters such as 
“Thompson Reuters”, “TH”, “Truven Health Analytics, and IBM Company”, and “Truven” 
will be replaced by the term “Auditor” which refers to GBS.  
 
No other terms of the Agreement have or will be changed by this amendment nor have 
any additional responsibilities or requirements been placed upon the City.  
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5101. 
 
Attachments 

511



1 
4100124.v2 

AMENDMENT TO 
EXPRESS SCRIPTS, INC. 

EMPLOYER PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
 

This AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is entered into as of the Effective Date, by and between EXPRESS 
SCRIPTS, INC., a Delaware corporation (“ESI"), and City of Cedar Falls ("Employer"). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. ESI and Employer are parties to an Employer Participation Agreement dated as of January 1, 
2015, as amended from time to time (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which ESI provides certain prescription drug 
benefit management services to Employer. 
 

B. Employer and ESI desire to update and amend the Agreement in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth herein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other conditions contained herein, the parties 
hereto hereby agree as follows:  
 

TERMS OF AMENDMENT 
 
1. Definitions.  For purposes of this Amendment, any capitalized term not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 
 
 1.1 All references in the Agreement to “Thompson Reuters”, “TH”, and “Truven Health Analytics, and 
IBM Company” (“Truven”) shall be replaced with “Auditor.” 
 
2. Auditor Fees.  Section 7 is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

7. Auditor Fees.  Employer hereby confirms that Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. (“Auditor”) provides 
services for the benefit of Employer, in connection with the pharmacy benefit management program 
administered pursuant to this Employer Participation Agreement. In addition to the GBS fee 
described herein, Employer hereby directs and authorizes ESI to facilitate, on behalf of Employer, 
the payment of a monthly fee to Auditor, in an amount equal to $0.18 per approved Prescription 
Drug Claim processed by ESI for Employer during such month. ESI agrees to facilitate the payment 
of the Auditor Fees to Auditor subject to the following: 

 
(a) Employer has executed this Agreement and Employer is current in its payment obligations to 

ESI. 
 

(b) Employer hereby represents and warrants that the Auditor Fees to be remitted on behalf of 
Employer are fair and reasonable; are commensurate with other Auditor Fees in the industry 
for the actual services to be performed by Broker in connection with the Employer’s 
prescription drug program; and are not in violation of any law or regulation, including ERISA. 
ESI will not pay per prescription Auditor Fees on Medicare subsidy utilization. 

 
(c) ESI will comply with any request by Employer to stop Auditor Fee payments. Employer shall 

hold ESI harmless in connection with any dispute between Auditor, and Employer regarding 
Auditor Fees. 

 
3. Effective Date.  This Amendment shall be effective January 1, 2019. 
 
4. Effect of Amendment.  Except as expressly provided herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect.  In the event of a conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the 
terms of this Amendment shall prevail. 
 
 

512



2 
4100124.v2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Amendment as of the day and year below 
set forth. 
 
EXPRESS SCRIPTS, INC.  
 
 
 
By:      
 
Printed Name:     
 
Title:      
 
Date:      
  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 
 
By:      
 
Printed Name:     
 
Title:      
 
Date:      

 
  

 

 
 

513



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Jim Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: May 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Multifunctional Copier Replacement 

 

The current multifunctional copiers are 9 years old and are due for replacement.  In 
addition, the new public safety building has the need for two additional printers. We felt 
this would be the appropriate time to put a RFP out to bid for replacements.  The costs 
for the replacements were included in the 2019 CIP budget.  
 
We put the RFP out on April 1.  We received eight different bids from six different 
vendors.  Our current vendor came in with the lowest bid.  We have been quite pleased 
with the exiting copiers and the level of service we have received.  We would 
recommend that we accept the bid from Advanced Systems and move forward with the 
purchase of the equipment.  They are not requiring a new contract or agreement at this 
time.  All necessary insurance paperwork has been acquired and we are ready to order 
the equipment and will tentatively start replacing equipment the week of May 20, 2019. 
 
We have included a summary of all the bids below:  
 
 
Vendor Brand Total Cost 

Advanced Systems Canon $60366.00 

Koch Office Group HP $60895.16 

Access Systems – Des Moines Toshiba and Sharp $62944.27 

Koch Office Group  Lanier $76335.46 

Access Systems - Waterloo Sharp $76629.37 

InfoMax Canon -with or without stands $77380 / $80060 

InfoMax Kycera $82980 

Marco Sharp $83060.87 

  

 
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this purchase, please feel free to 
contact me at 268-5111. 

514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Mark Ripplinger, Director, Municipal Operations & Programs 

 DATE: April 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Youth Pollinator Program 

 
 Pheasants Forever has approached the city to partner in a program called, 
“Youth Pollinator Habitat Project”. The purpose of the program is to plant prairie species 
that provide habitat for insects and other wildlife. It is envisioned that this could be a 
multi-year partnership to establish prairie on lots that are currently being maintained in 
turf. Targeted areas would be vacant lots and those that were part of the flood buyout 
program. The first location is in the northern part of Police Officers Memorial Park. 
Ideally at least one acre would be planted each year. 
 A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) will need to be approved for this 
project. It outlines areas of responsibility regarding planting and maintenance. The 
terms of MOU related to maintenance are agreeable by the Public Works & Parks 
Division. As the program moves forward, it will reduce ongoing turf maintenance. 

The Department of Municipal Operations and Programs recommends that the 
memorandum of understanding be approved. Please let me know if you have any 
questions. 

540



�������� ��	�
��� ���� ���������� ���� ����������� ����� �������  !"#$%&'%!"(")*(&+,#!-!# �./012��3405 67879�8:�9;�<;�=�>��?@ABCBDECFGHIAJAIKCFLHME@F?HNNODBEHIF@BPOEBEF?IHQIBRFBORCFEH@AN?FE@AFPOISCTFPAACFBDSFPMEEAIGNOACUVWXYXZ[Y\XZ]\Û __̀ZX[̂ aYb�34�3c1d�/5�e311/cf43g�hfi/4f4�j332�k3g�4h0�i005l�im440gn/05�fc2�i004105l�im4�e311/cf43g�hfi/4f4�/5�f1530op0110c4�ig332�g0fg/cj�hfi/4f4�k3g�eh0f5fc45l�qmf/1�fc2�jgf551fc2�53cji/g25r�>311/cf43g�hfi/4f4�scf4/t0�n3u0g/cj�e1fc45�s�f44gfp4�53k4vi32/02�/c50p45�4hf4�eh0f5fc4�ph/pw5l�fc2�34h0g�jg3mc2vc054/cjph/pw5l�g01d�3c�k3g�5mgt/tf1�2mg/cj�4h0�xg54�=vy�u00w5�3k�1/k0r��  !"#$%&*%!&z{,|EH?O}CF~fi/4f4����3c50gtf4/3c~mc4/cj���~0g/4fj0�/g2��3j5����gf/c/cj�h34jmc5����h334/cj
0p/e05����33w/cj>h0f5fc4�~mc4/cj�.3g0pf54IA}ADEF?HCEC>32pf54��er����;��h0��f5/p5�3k��/g2��3j~0f14h�u/4h��040g/cfg/fc��gr��4mfg4��f143c�/203;��gfe�
05pm0���f54�3k��hfgfp40g5=�	fd5�43�~01e��fcfj0��3mg��/g2��3j�5�co/3m5��0hft/3g
541



�������������	
����	�����	������������	��������������������������� !�"#��������$��%�!�����##"������&�'"�������(��)�*���"�����!**�����������+,,�(����������-��*������������"��*���������-���������-�!���.������(�(��.�!��/�0�)"#"������-�))!�"�"���"������'#"��"�(�*�##"��������'"����*��1�-��234���*��(��)$���'1�-�"�����������"�-�������5���������'�!����-#"�"�(�*�##"������*�*!#��"���/���!-�������(�����#�*!'#"-��������")*�����-���0�*�##"��������'"������������'#"���6!�#"�.�*�##"��������'"����-���������-�!���.2�4���*��(��)�5"##�*���"������#��0���-��*������������"��*�����������5��7�5"���#�-�#-�))!�"�.�*�����������-��������'"����*��1�-��������"���#���.�!��/��-���#�����-�))!�"�.�(��!*�23���(��)��!**����"�-#!�������"�"�(������5����*#��/�*#��������)���(����*�##"������*��1�-��0��)���������8�"��2�9��"�"���##./�-��������"��:*�##"������-!��"-!#!)�0���-#������)�/������;�����!-��"���#�-�"�"�"�������)��"���"�(��-�"�"�"���0����0��������*��1�-��"������'#"���������*���"���2����1�-��'���8��"�-#!���6!�#"�.�*�##"������0���("�(���������"�(���'"���/�'!���#����**���!�"�"���0���.�!������(����!��"������(�"������**��-"��"���0���5"#�#"0������-��������"��23��������������<�=	��������	�������##"���"�(�"���-����������������"�#�-�)*������"��(#�'�#�0����*���!-�"��2�9**��>")���#.����;��"����0�##�0��������'�����(��*���!-��������*�##"���"��/�.���)��.��*�-"����0����"���*�##"������������)���"-���������.�'��������"����-#"��2�?����-��'!����@.�*�*!#��"�����������-�������A,B�"�����#�����5����-����/�����-�))��-"�#�����.'���7��*����������*���"�(�#������!*����C,B����!�##.2�D�"#�������"����'�������������������0�����-#"�"�(�*�##"������*�*!#��"���/�)�����-"���"����(�������������#�-7�0�6!�#"�.�0���("�(���������"�(���'"����"����)�1���0�-���2���##"��������'"���������*���"�������"�����)">�!����0����"���@�5��"�(�*#������0��"00������-�#��/����*�������"E��"��5����"�������������!**�������#"0��-.-#���������0�)��.�*�##"�������*�-"��2�3
542



������������	
������������������������� ��	���������������������������������������� �����!�����"�������� #���$����	�#���!�%����&��$����''��������(������)�����*��+,��+�����-��������%�.���+�&���������%��/0��������'�	����	�����	�������'�����������'&�&������%�������������������-������������1�����	����������������	��'���������-����%�����%��������������'���������	�����(������!������������'�!�������������-������������'����-�������-������������	��'���������-����%���&���������%���������2&������������	���������	��'��������+��''��������'-������3���+����������������+������(���-�+��	�''+������%����''+�4567869:;6<=>?@=���������������������A���'�������������	���	�������-�.�	����������	��������������-����	�-��������	�������-�!��%�(�!���������B����.�	��������(����	%-'��������$'������'�����2''������2����C�������#�	��!����#���������#��������D�(���
���E����F�
������� ��	�����*���
����/���	��'���--���&�%�G���/�'��������!�F!����!��-�+��H����*���������������E-��F!������D�(���
��I�����%����'�*������J�������G%���	���1�(������''�-��$���+��$'�����������������������������D�����'�K����L��������-�$��	�'���D�����--���	%��!�������M�&�%�����#��������I�����%����'�����D�����'�1����	��*����������F��������������������E��-'��������������''��''�����������������������A���'����������0-��������-�!��%�����������������J�������/���	��'���--���&�%��������!���N������(�����������������������'�����%��	���������%��+��������
�����'���������
�&�%�'	�'���������������������A���'��������	��-�������	%-'����'	�'�-�.�	���4OPQRSPQTRUVWPQSXYUPVRXZP[YR\]TX̂XVŶROPQT_TQRXV̀Ra[XUbROPQT_TQĉRdP[Y]R\PbbUVXYPQReXZUYXY\QPfQXSghiPVYXiYRjQTkRlXQ̂TVgReXZUYXYRm̀[iXYUPVRnoTiUXbÛYgRXYR̀bXQ̂TVpo]TX̂XVŶWPQT_TQqPQfRPQRrstuvwruxxwyqh�44� �44�����z{|}~{�����~������ ��������
543



����������	
���������������������
 ���������
 ��!
""���������#
 �$�%%�	�
 �&''������������������(�&)*+,���-���$�.�#��/%����0�����%123% 45,6789*:95'; ��%����1�%�1��.���0 �!���<�=��;#�����	0 �!������%���>��;����# ?*8,&?,6+@0����>���%1��.���A��#�	�%�B�!#�C���D���>���C :54&:A���.�E����.��% �!1����>��#�F�=��������D�%>#�����;��G�>C�;�#�>C�� H+&7:6I*J595JK�%���3���#�1���G��L ��-���#�.�G�%�����=�����!#��.�/�#.#�=�>��%��G��������	M�0 �!����NO>�����	��'*8&,5 ; ��%���%�1���G����%���PQRS>TSUT�> �����V#����	���W�����M������.���������%���X�.�.�>��V#����.���� ��=�##�%���X������=�� ��#�/MY��� �/�C����.���������%��%�.MZ�R[\]̂]QR[_�; ��%���%�1���G���F�>M�2##���	 �%���%��G�. ; ���
�S\̀ T̀̀̂ Ù̂]Q̀Qa a a a a
544



Pollinator Area

Youth Pollinator Habitat Project
Police Officers Memorial Park

545



546



547



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 29th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Permeable Alley Project 
  Project No. ST-056-3149 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with Benton’s 
Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the construction of the 2019 Permeable Alley Project. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Benton’s Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the construction of the 2019 Permeable 
Alley Project. This project involves the construction of three (3) permeable alleys. The 
purpose of these permeable alleys is to infiltrate storm water runoff with the goal of 
improving the water quality in Dry Run Creek. 
  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
  
 

548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: May 1, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 
  Project Number RC-293-3172 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct a portion of Ridgeway Avenue 
Chancellor Drive to Hwy 58. The project will require the acquisition of right of way and 
temporary easements along the corridor. Plans for the project shows the need for 
acquisitions from approximately four (4) properties. 
 
We recommend that the Council execute documents and record at the Black Hawk 
County Courthouse. Parcel 1 Temporary Easement Agreement. Parcel 2 Deed, Ground 
Water Hazard Statement and Temporary Easement Agreement. Parcel 4 Special 
Warranty Deed. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



577



578



579



 

 
12597685–7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORDER’S COVER SHEET 
 

TYPE OF DOCUMENT:  
Special Warranty Deed 
  
PREPARER INFORMATION: (name, addresses and phone number) 
Kevin Rogers, City Attorney__ 
220 Clay Street        _________ 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613________ 
319-273-8600______________ 
 
TAXPAYER INFORMATION: (name and complete address) 
City Clerk__________________ 
City of Cedar Falls          ______ 
220 Clay Street______________ 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613_________ 
 
RETURN DOCUMENT TO: 
City Clerk__________________ 
City of Cedar Falls___________ 
220 Clay Street______________ 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613_________ 
 
 
GRANTOR:  VEREIT Real Estate, L.P. 
GRANTEE:   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  
  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   See Exhibit A attached  
 
BOOK AND PAGE REFERENCE:  N/A 

 
 

580



 

 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
 
 
 

For the consideration of One Dollar(s) and other valuable consideration, VEREIT Real 
Estate, L. P., a Delaware limited partnership (“Grantor”), does hereby Convey to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Grantee”) the following real estate in Black Hawk County, Iowa:  

 
As legally described on EXHIBIT A attached hereto and incorporated herein, and as 

depicted on EXHIBIT B (as Parcel “C”) attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Real 
Estate”), 

 
subject to all matters of public record; all zoning ordinances  and regulations and any other laws, 
ordinances or governmental regulations restricting or regulating the use, occupancy or enjoyment 
of the Real Estate; and all matters visible upon or about the Real Estate or that would be 
disclosed by an accurate survey of the Real Estate. 
 

Grantor does Hereby Covenant with Grantee, and successors in interest, that Grantor 
holds the Real Estate by title in fee simple; that it has good and lawful authority to sell and 
Convey the Real Estate; that the Real Estate is free and clear of all liens and encumbrances 
except as may be above-stated; and Grantor Covenants to Warrant and Defend the Real Estate 
against the lawful claims of all persons except as may be above-stated against the acts of Grantor 
but against the acts of no other.  

 
Grantor hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and distributive share in and 

to the real estate. 
 
Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgement hereof, shall be construed as in 

the singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according to the context. 
 
The transaction contemplated herein is exempt from transfer tax pursuant to Iowa Code 

428A.2, subsection 6.  
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 
 
 
 

581



582



 

 

Exhibit A 
 

 
All that part of the East 1/2 of the Northwest Fractional Quarter and the West 1/2 of the 
Northeast Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 
Black Hawk County, Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SE 1/4 
- SW 1/4) of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 
County, Iowa, thence S00°00'54"W 65.00 feet to the existing South right-of-way line of West 
Ridgeway Avenue; thence S89°59'06"E 121.88 feet along said South right-of-way line to the 
point of beginning; thence continuing  S89°59'06"E 624.92 feet along said South right-of-way 
line; thence S75°58'28"E 41.60 feet along said South right-of-way line; thence S89°22'23"E 
389.10 feet along said South right-of-way line to the Westerly right-of-way line of Highway 58; 
thence S00°08'23"E 100.00 feet along said Westerly right-of-way line; thence N53°04'46"W 
107.60 feet; thence N89°59'06"W 150.00 feet along a line parallel with and 114.61 feet normally 
distant from the North line of Section 2; thence S87°26'26"W 120.00 feet to a point 120 feet 
South of the North line of Section 2; thence N89°59'06"W 74.01 feet along a line parallel with 
and 120.00 feet normally distant from the North line of Section 2; thence N44°59'06"W 56.57 
feet; thence N89°59'06"W 317.86 feet along a line parallel with and 80.00 feet normally distant 
from the North line of Section 2; thence Westerly 47.41 feet along a 194.00 foot radius curve, 
concave Southerly, said curve having a long chord of 47.29 feet bearing S83°00'57"W; thence 
S76°01'01"W 44.04 feet; thence Southwesterly 18.31 feet along a 29.00 foot radius curve, 
concave Southeasterly, said curve having a long chord of 18.01 feet bearing S57°55'24"W; 
thence Southerly 55.80 feet along a 54.00 foot radius curve, concave Easterly, said curve having 
a long chord of 53.35 feet bearing S10°13'53"W; thence S20°07'35"E 15.21 feet; thence 
S69°51'18"W 83.70 feet; thence N25°07'08"W 35.01 feet; thence N22°08'57"W 49.76 feet; 
thence Northwesterly 75.27 feet along a 138.83 foot radius curve, concave Southwesterly, said 
curve having a long chord of 74.35 feet bearing N37°40'46"W to the existing South right-of-way 
line of West Ridgeway Avenue and the point of beginning, containing 0.97 acres. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

583



 

 

Exhibit B 
 

SEE ATTACHED 

584



A
c

q
u

is
it

io
n

 P
la

t 

W
e

s
t 

R
id

g
e

w
a

y
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 R

e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 

C
e

d
a

r 
F

a
lls

, 
B

la
c
k

 H
a

w
k

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

Io
w

a
 

P
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
s
t 

1 /
2

, 
N

W
 F

ri
. 

1 /
4
 &

 

P
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
s
t 

1/
2

, 
N

E
 F

ri
. 

1/
4
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 2

-T
8

8
N

-R
14

W
 

C
e

d
a

r 
F

a
lls

, 
B

la
c
k

 H
a

w
k

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

Io
w

a
 

SW
 C

or
ne

r 
Se

c 
36

-T
89

N
-R

14
W

 
Fo

un
d 

2"
0

 B
ra

ss
 D

isk
 

PL
S #

85
05

 
pe

r F
ile

 #
20

12
-1

00
70

 

N
W

 C
or

ne
r 

E 
1/

2 
-N

W
 F

ri.
 1

/4
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2-
T8

8N
-R

14
W

 
Fo

un
d 

2"
0

 B
ra

ss
 D

is
k 

PL
S #

85
05

 
pe

r F
ile

 #
20

12
 0

10
07

1 
0.

05
' S

ou
th

 o
f T

ow
ns

hi
p 

Li
ne

 

Po
in

t o
f C

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t 
SW

 C
or

ne
r 

SE
 1

/4
 -

SW
 1

/4
 

Se
ct

io
n 

36
-T

89
N

-R
14

W
 

Fo
un

d 
2"

0
 B

ra
ss

 D
is

k 
PL

S#
85

05
 

pe
r 

Fi
le

 #
20

12
 0

10
07

2 

Le
ga

l D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

 
Al

l t
ha

t p
ar

t o
f t

he
 E

as
t 1

/2
 o

f t
he

 N
or

th
w

es
t F

ra
ct

io
na

l Q
ua

rte
r a

nd
 th

e 
W

es
t 1

/2
 o

f t
he

 N
or

th
ea

st
 F

ra
ct

io
na

l Q
ua

rte
r o

f S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 T

ow
ns

hi
p 

88
 N

or
th

, R
an

ge
 1

4 
W

es
t o

f t
he

 
5t

h 
P.

M
., 

Bl
ac

k 
Ha

w
k 

Co
un

ty
, I

ow
a,

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

Co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 a
t t

he
 S

ou
th

w
es

t c
or

ne
r o

f t
he

 S
ou

th
ea

st
 Q

ua
rte

r o
f t

he
 S

ou
th

w
es

t Q
ua

rte
r (

SE
 1

/4
 -

SW
 1

/4
) o

f S
ec

tio
n 

36
, T

ow
ns

hi
p 

89
 N

or
th

, R
an

ge
 1

4 
W

es
t o

f t
he

 5
th

 
P.

M
., 

Bl
ac

k 
Ha

w
k 

Co
un

ty
, I

ow
a,

 th
en

ce
 S

00
°

00
'5

4"
W

 6
5.

00
 fe

et
 to

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

So
ut

h 
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

 li
ne

 o
f W

es
t R

id
ge

w
ay

 A
ve

nu
e;

 th
en

ce
 S

89
°

59
'0

6"
E 

12
1.

88
 fe

et
 a

lo
ng

 s
ai

d 
So

ut
h 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 lin

e 
to

 th
e 

po
in

t o
f b

eg
in

ni
ng

; t
he

nc
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 S

89
°

59
'0

6"
E 

62
4.

92
 fe

et
 a

lo
ng

 s
ai

d 
So

ut
h 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 lin

e;
 th

en
ce

 S
75

°

58
'2

8"
E 

41
.6

0 
fe

et
 a

lo
ng

 s
ai

d 
So

ut
h 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 lin

e;
 th

en
ce

 S
89

°

22
'2

3"
E 

38
9.

10
 fe

et
 a

lo
ng

 s
ai

d 
So

ut
h 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 lin

e 
to

 th
e 

W
es

te
rly

 ri
gh

t-o
f-w

ay
 lin

e 
of

 H
ig

hw
ay

 5
8;

 th
en

ce
 S

00
°

08
'2

3"
E 

10
0.

00
 fe

et
 

al
on

g 
sa

id
 W

es
te

rly
 ri

gh
t-o

f-w
ay

 lin
e;

 th
en

ce
 N

53
°

04
'4

6"
W

 1
07

 .6
0 

fe
et

; t
he

nc
e 

N
89

°

59
'0

6"
W

 1
50

.0
0 

fe
et

 a
lo

ng
 a

 li
ne

 p
ar

al
le

l w
ith

 a
nd

 1
14

.6
1 

fe
et

 n
or

m
al

ly
 d

ist
an

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
N

or
th

 li
ne

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
2;

 th
en

ce
 S

87
°

26
'2

6"
W

 1
20

.0
0 

fe
et

 to
 a

 p
oi

nt
 1

20
 fe

et
 S

ou
th

 o
f t

he
 N

or
th

 lin
e 

of
 S

ec
tio

n 
2;

 th
en

ce
 N

89
°

59
'0

6"
W

 7
4.

01
 fe

et
 a

lo
ng

 a
 li

ne
 p

ar
al

le
l w

ith
 a

nd
 

12
0.

00
 fe

et
 n

or
m

al
ly

 d
is

ta
nt

 fr
om

 th
e 

N
or

th
 li

ne
 o

f S
ec

tio
n 

2;
 th

en
ce

 N
44

°

59
'0

6"
W

 5
6.

57
 fe

et
; t

he
nc

e 
N

89
°

59
'0

6"
W

 3
17

.8
6 

fe
et

 a
lo

ng
 a

 lin
e 

pa
ra

lle
l w

ith
 a

nd
 8

0.
00

 fe
et

 
no

rm
al

ly
 d

is
ta

nt
 fr

om
 th

e 
N

or
th

 li
ne

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
2;

 th
en

ce
 W

es
te

rly
 4

7.
41

 fe
et

 a
lo

ng
 a

 1
94

.0
0 

fo
ot

 ra
di

us
 c

ur
ve

, c
on

ca
ve

 S
ou

th
er

ly
, s

ai
d 

cu
rv

e 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 lo

ng
 c

ho
rd

 o
f 4

7.
29

 
fe

et
 b

ea
rin

g 
S8

3°

00
'5

7"
W

; t
he

nc
e 

S7
6°

01
'0

1"
W

 4
4.

04
 fe

et
; t

he
nc

e 
So

ut
hw

es
te

rly
 1

8.
31

 fe
et

 a
lo

ng
 a

 2
9.

00
 fo

ot
 ra

di
us

 c
ur

ve
, c

on
ca

ve
 S

ou
th

ea
st

er
ly

, s
ai

d 
cu

rv
e 

ha
vin

g 
a 

lo
ng

 
ch

or
d 

of
 1

8.
01

 fe
et

 b
ea

rin
g 

S5
7°

55
'2

4"
W

; t
he

nc
e 

So
ut

he
rly

 5
5.

80
 fe

et
 a

lo
ng

 a
 5

4.
00

 fo
ot

 ra
di

us
 c

ur
ve

, c
on

ca
ve

 E
as

te
rly

, s
ai

d 
cu

rv
e 

ha
vi

ng
 a

 lo
ng

 c
ho

rd
 o

f 5
3.

35
 fe

et
 b

ea
rin

g 
S 1

0°

13
'5

3"
W

; t
he

nc
e 

S2
0°

07
'3

5"
E 

15
.2

1 
fe

et
; t

he
nc

e 
S6

9°

51
 '1

8"
W

 8
3.

70
 fe

et
; t

he
nc

e 
N

25
°

07
'0

8"
W

 3
5.

01
 fe

et
; t

he
nc

e 
N

22
°

08
'5

7"
W

 4
9.

 76
 fe

et
; t

he
nc

e 
N

or
th

w
es

te
rly

 7
5.

27
 

fe
et

 a
lo

ng
 a

 1
38

.8
3 

fo
ot

 ra
di

us
 c

ur
ve

, c
on

ca
ve

 S
ou

th
w

es
te

rly
, s

ai
d 

cu
rv

e 
ha

vin
g 

a 
lo

ng
 c

ho
rd

 o
f 7

4.
35

 fe
et

 b
ea

rin
g 

N
37

°

40
'4

6"
W

 to
 th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
So

ut
h 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 lin

e 
of

 
W

es
t R

id
ge

w
ay

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

th
e 

po
in

t o
f b

eg
in

ni
ng

, c
on

ta
in

in
g 

0.
97

 a
cr

es
. 

NO
RT

H 

·c:: .52
 

�
 

N
 1

/4
 C

or
ne

r 
Se

ct
io

n 
2-

T8
8N

-R
14

W
 

Fo
un

d 
1 "

0
 B

ra
ss

 D
is

k 
"ID

O
T 

SE
C 

CO
R

" 

S 
1 /

4 
Co

rn
er

 S
ec

tio
n 

36
-T

89
N

-R
14

W
 

Fo
un

d 
1/

2"
0

 R
eb

ar
 

pe
r F

ile
 #

20
14

 0
06

38
2 

pe
r F

ile
 #

20
19

 0
00

90
0 

0.
42

' N
or

th
 o

f T
ow

ns
hi

p 
Li

ne
 

S8
9°

58
'3

6"
E 

19
5.

 76
' 

N
00

°

10
'3

9"
E 

W
e

s
t 

R
id

g
e

w
a
y

 A
 ve

n
u

e
 

s8
9°

59
'0

6"
E 

&,
 

0
 

r"
 

�
 

� �
I �
 

0
 

.......
 

0)
 

0
 

g
 
....
 

r"
�

z
 

O
 

....
 

....
 

<O
 

0
<O

 

0
 

z
 

65
.0

0'
 

S8
9°

58
'3

6"
E 

19
5.

94
' 

(1
96

.0
4'

) 

W
es

t L
in

e 
Ea

st
 1

/2
 

N
W

 F
ri.

 1
/4

 
Se

ct
io

n 
2-

T8
8N

-R
14

W
 

SW
 C

om
er

 
E 

1/
2 

N
W

 F
ri.

 1
/4

 
Se

c 
2-

T8
8N

-R
14

W
 

Fo
un

d 
cu

t "
X"

 in
 P

CC
 

Fi
le

 #
20

06
 0

00
53

1 

Ar
ea

 T
ab

ul
at

io
n 

Se
ct

io
n 

2-
T8

8N
-R

14
W

 
Ea

st
 1

/2
 -

N
W

 F
ri.

 1
/4

 
W

es
t 1

/2
 -

N
E 

Fr
i. 

1/
4 

0.
88

 a
cr

es
 

0.
09

 a
cr

es
 

To
ta

l 
0.

97
 a

cr
es

 

Cu
rv

e 
Ta

bl
e 

Cu
rv

e 
N

o.
 

Le
ng

th
 

R
ad

iu
s 

D
el

ta
 

C
1 

47
.4

1'
 

19
4.

00
' 

14
°

00
'0

7"
 

C2
 

18
.3

1'
 

29
.0

0'
 

36
°

10
'5

9"
 

C3
 

55
.8

0'
 

54
.0

0'
 

59
°

12
'0

3"
 

C4
 

75
.2

7'
 

13
8.

83
' 

31
°

03
'4

9"
 

V
. 

S0
0°

00
'5

4"
W

 
65

.0
0'

 
I I 

Ch
or

d 
47

.2
9'

 
18

.0
1'

 
53

.3
5'

 
74

.3
5'

 

S8
9°

59
'0

6"
E 

Po
in

t o
f B

eg
in

ni
ng

 
12

1.
88

' 49
.7

6'
 

N
25

°

07
'0

8"
W

 
35

.0
1'

 

Be
ar

in
g 

S8
3°

00
'5

7"
W

 
S5

7°

55
'2

4"
W

 
S1

0°

13
'5

3"
W

 
N

37
°

40
'4

6"
W

 

�
 

11
26

.8
1'

 Ex
is

tin
g 

R
-0

-W
 

Z
N

or
th

 L
in

e 
\ 

19
9.

09
' 

Se
ct

io
n 

2-
T8

8N
-R

14
W

 

S8
9°

22
'2

3"
E 

38
9.

1 O
' 

®
 

®
 

N
89

°

59
'0

6"
W

 
31

7.
86

' 
S8

7°

26
'2

6'
' W

 

S7
6°

01
'0

1"
W

 4
4.

04
' 

S2
0°

07
'3

5"
E 

15
.2

1'
 

N W
 fr

l. 
1/

4

e.as
t 1

/2
 -

N-
-f1

4W
se

ct
io

11 
2 -

18
8 

N
ot

es
: 

1.
) T

he
 N

or
th

 li
ne

 o
f E

as
t 1

/2
 o

f t
he

 N
W

 F
ri.

 1
/4

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
2-

T8
8N

-R
14

W
 w

as
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
ea

r N
89

°

59
'0

6"
W

, u
tili

zin
g 

th
e 

Io
w

a 
R

eg
io

na
l C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
Sy

st
em

, Z
on

e 
5 

2.
) A

ll d
im

en
si

on
s 

ar
e 

in
 U

S 
Su

rv
ey

 fe
et

 a
nd

 d
ec

im
al

s 
th

er
eo

f. 
3.

) T
he

 e
rro

r o
f c

lo
su

re
 is

 b
et

te
r t

ha
n 

1 :
10

,0
00

 
4.

) F
ou

nd
 p

ro
pe

rty
 c

om
er

 m
on

um
en

ts
 a

re
 

1/
2"

0
 R

eb
ar

 w
/Y

el
lo

w
 C

ap
 P

LS
 #

85
05

, u
nl

es
s 

no
te

d.
 

5.
) P

ro
pr

ie
to

r: 
V

ER
EI

T 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e,
 L

P.
 

6.
) P

ar
ce

l le
tte

r "
C"

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
by

 B
la

ck
 H

aw
k 

Co
. A

ud
ito

r. 
0 

Fe
at

ur
e 

Le
ge

nd
 

0
 

Se
t 5

/8
"0

 x
 2

4"
 R

eb
ar

 
w

I 
O

ra
ng

e 
Ca

p 
L

S.
 #

22
56

1 
•

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 C

om
er

 F
ou

nd
f:A

 
Se

t S
ec

tio
n 

Co
rn

er
 

£
 

Se
ct

io
n 

Co
m

er
 F

ou
nd

 
10

0.
00

' 
D

im
en

si
on

 o
f S

ur
ve

y 
(1

00
.0

0'
) 

D
im

en
si

on
 o

f R
ec

or
d 

50
 

10
0 

20
0 

12
0.

00
' \\ \

\\\
\\\

111
1/1

///
/ / /

 

�
'".

�
L

 
'-A

,•t
:?

I,;,_
�

 o
: 0

o
O

C
0

o
0

 
�

 

,c,;

�
�

.
· 

·.
&

�
'l,,

 
......

...
 

0
 

0
 

/
 

i2
 /Jj

 
o

'
 

'
o

 
:z.

�
 

2 
I.L

 : 
M

a
tt

h
e

w
 A

. 
\ rn

 �
� 

�
: 

Ko
fta

 
: '<

 �
 

1
 O.

·", 
22

56
1 

,..£
 J

\
*

o

"
•

.
 

..
•"�

f
 

1z
 

0
0

0
0

0
°

0
 

�
 

'0
1 1,

1 
IO

W
"'

 
,,,,,'0

 

1 1 1
/Jf

f/
/1

111
\\\

\\\
\\

 

N
89

°

59
'0

6"
W

 
15

0.
00

' 

,:: 
_;

 
LL

 IL s:
1w

 
z

z
 

�Is:!" j'... � O
N

 

0
 

(')
 

0
 

!'-

Ce
nt

er
 1

/4
 

�
 

Se
c 

2-
T8

8N
-R

14
W

 
Fo

un
d 

2.
5"

0
 ID

O
T 

Al
um

in
um

 C
ap

 
Fi

le
 #

20
06

 0
00

53
2 

0 � � ·x w

�
�

 
.,...

 
'O::t-

1:::
 

I
ll

 
:z:
 

LU
 o:>

 
<'.

 �
 

I 
I 

�
 C\I

 
.,...

 c::
.....

 
0

 
Cl)

 
:.:::

 

�
 

�
 

Cl)
 

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 la

nd
 s

ur
ve

yin
g 

do
cu

m
en

t w
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
an

d 
th

e 
re

la
te

d 
su

rv
ey

 w
or

k 
wa

s 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 b

y 
m

e 
or

 u
nd

er
 m

y 
di

re
ct

 
pe

rs
on

al
 s

up
er

vi
sio

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y 
lic

en
se

d 
La

nd
 S

urv
ey

or
 

un
de

r t
he

 la
ws

 o
f t

he
 S

ta
te

 o
f I

ow
a.

 

M
a

tt
h

e
w

 A
. 

K
o

ft
a

, 
P

.L
.S

. 

Lic
en

se
 n

um
be

r 2
25

61
 

M
y 

lic
en

se
 re

ne
wa

l d
at

e 
is

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

0 
Pa

ge
s 

or
 s

he
et

s 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is 

se
al

: 

Da
te

 

0)
 

0
 

I�
 

.Q
 ! 

O">
 

N
 

00
 

LO
 

I <.D
 

>-
<.o

 
O

N
 

�
I

�
 O">

 
O>

o
..

c:
 a..

 r-r)
 

.i::
 

Q)
 

>
Q)

 
O>

 I
 

C:
 

0
 

· a,
 0

 
C:

 
C:

 
0

 
Lu

 ...c:
 

�
 

U
 

0
 

-,
 

Q)
 -

>
I--

(/)
 

..-
-

O
c

LO
 u...

 ,,_ 0
 

-0
 

Q)
 

(..)
 

�
 

.._,.
 

3
-.........

 
.._,.

 
�

 
+-

....:
 

a::
 

0
 

LL.
 

- 0....
 

w
 

z
z

 
00

 
C

 
�

 
�

0
 

·- +-
-.........

 
·- U)

 
�

 
N

 
·- ::i

 
"i:

 
C:

 

0-
LL.

 
�

 

3
 

(J
 

<(
 

z
 

u,
 

118
80

72
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
EXHIBIT B

585



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: May 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 315 Franklin 
Street 

 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015. The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties 
converting to owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program was developed initially through the City established Rental 
Task Force. 
 
Drue Hadenfeldt and Tiffany Gonzales purchased 315 Franklin Street in September 2018. 
The new owners have submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental 
to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. This property is unique as it falls 
within a C-1 zoning district and was a two family conversion. The previous owner occupied 
the bottom unit and rented out the upper unit. The new owners are in the process of 
converting the property back into a single family home and have already invested 
approximately $18,000 into the property, see attached supplemental materials. The 
property has been partially utilized as a rental for at least the past three years, falls within 
the program’s geographical boundaries, and is located in a block with less than 75% 
rentals. Although the property is not located in a residentially zoned district and was not a 
single family home/rental, with the improvements already made to the site converting the 
property back into a single-family home, staff finds that this property meets the intent of 
the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program and warrants 
consideration. 
 
Drue Hadenfeldt and Tiffany Gonzales are proposing to use funds from the program to 
install new windows on the upper floors. Based on the submitted bid by Home Town 
Restyling, the actual cost of the improvement listed is $11,164.00.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving 
this property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000 with the placement of a lien on the 

586



property for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if 
sold prior to the end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council 
approval with the balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the 
City of the improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This 
approval is subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director; 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

587



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 315 Franklin Street  

and legally described as ORIGINAL PLAT CEDAR FALLS S 62 FT LOT 3 BLK 21 

 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Drue Hadenfeldt and Tiffany Gonzales (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a 
Rental to Owner Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed 
upon the above-described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
 

588



E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 
60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Drue Hadenfeldt  Tiffany Gonzales 

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2019, by Drue 
Hadenfeldt and Tiffany Gonzales. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

589



590



591



592



593



594



595



 
04/22/19 

 

The following estimate is for window replacement at the home of; Drue Hadenfeldt & 

Tiffany Gonzales located at: 315 Franklin St Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

This price for (9) woodgrain Sunrise windows includes: 

- (4) master bedroom,(1) master closet,(2) baby’s room,(1) hall bath & (1) spare room 
- Removal and disposal of existing windows.  

- Inspect and replace any bad wood sills, seal weak points, and re-insulate openings 

- Color to be Colonial Cherry inside and white outside  

- Free upgrade to Omega 12 glass (12 coats Low E & argon) 

- Window frames are insulated with injected polyurethane foam 

- Half screens, multi-locks and all hardware 

- Stainless steel spacer bars 

- 20 year workmanship warranty (guaranteed not leak air or water for 20 years)  

- Lifetime transferable window warranty, lifetime screen replacement warranty 

- Glass breakage warranty on Restorations model 

- Tax, labor, materials, dump fees and permits included 

- Employee labor & in-house service department 

 

Does not include: 

- Removal and reinstallation of blinds/curtains 

- Painting  

 

Sunrise (mid level window) 

6 month pricing: $11,164.00 (this price is good for 6 months) 

June pricing:       $10,047.00 (this price is good for 30 days) 

 

 

 

1/3 down, balance due upon installation  

                      

 

 

 

 

 

596



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

597



598



599



600



 

 

601



 

Interior before – showing 

previous access to upstairs 

unit and separation of units 

602



 

Interior after – removed 

secondary exterior access 

converting the home into 

one unit 

603



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Phone: 319-273-8600 

Fax: 319-273-8610 

www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: April 29, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Contract with the Cedar Falls Woman’s Club for the Downtown Visioning & 
Zoning Code Update Project 

  Project No: PZ-000-3184 
 
 
On April 2nd, 2019 the kickoff event for the Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update 
was held at the Cedar Falls Community Center. This was the first step in gathering 
input from citizens, stakeholders, staff, and elected leaders. A more thorough week long 
charrette is scheduled for the first week of June. The information collected from the 
kickoff event and charrette will be used to explore site-specific urban design scenarios 
addressing a series of questions related to character, scale and intensity of 
development; physical transitions and connections to surrounding areas; and potential 
range of uses.   
 
An integral part of the charrette will be having a single location that the consultants can 
use for their operations that week. It is crucial that this location is accessible and inviting 
to the public. The Cedar Falls Woman’s Club has offered their space for the week at a 
discounted rate, for a total of $1,597.00. A copy of the contract is attached for your 
reference. This project expense fits within what was identified in the City’s CIP #101 for 
the Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update. The Community Center will be utilized 
for the larger public presentations and events that week. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your approval of the attached 
contract with the Woman’s Club to lease their building Friday May 31st through 
Thursday June 6th for the week long charrette of the Downtown Visioning & Zoning 
Code Update Project.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me 
at this office. 
 
xc: Ronald Gaines, City Administrator 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

604



605



606



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Phone: 319-273-8600 

Fax: 319-273-8610 

www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: May 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 
  Riverwise Engineering 
 
Please find attached the Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Riverwise Engineering for design 
services of the Cedar River recreational improvement project. This agreement covers additional 
survey around the Low Head Dam area on the upstream side of the W. 1st Street bridge. 
 
The original agreement with Riverwise was approved by the City Council on September 5, 2017 
which included 30% preliminary design and agency coordination for the in-river and riverbank 
improvements from the upstream side of the Main Street Bridge to the downstream side of the 
W. 1st Street Bridge. The Supplemental Agreement No. 1 was approved by the City Council on 
July 16, 2018 that includes design services from preliminary design through agency permitting 
and final design. 
 
The consultant is concluding the design of the project and will submit the plans for agency 
review (IDNR, CORPS) by the end of May. In the meantime, additional survey is needed around 
the Low Head Dam area or Clay Hole to finalize the design. Initially, the consultant planned to 
survey the river bottom around the Clay Hole. This involved lowering the water elevation by 
closing the gates next to the dam. Lowering the water level is a complex process that is 
regulated by the Iowa DNR. Certain permits, notices and steps must be taken to lower the water 
level and return the water level to its previous flow rate and depth. This plan was not pursued 
any further this spring due to the recent snow melt and spring rains. 
 
Our second option, which is the extent of this supplemental agreement, is to survey the area with 
an echo sounder that is attached to a boat that can gather data from the bottom of the river. The 
cost for this survey is $5,000.00. The cost for the original survey was $2,673.00. Therefore, this 
agreement covers the difference between the original price and the new price for the survey, which 
is $2,327.00.  
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval of the 
engineering Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Riverwise Engineering for bathymetric survey 
services around the low head dam area to the upstream side of the W. 1st Street Bridge. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me at this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director, Community Development 

607



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 
 

Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number FL-033-3088  
 

 
  

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(CLIENT) and Riverwise Engineering, LLC, (CONSULTANT), PO Box 706, Durango, CO 81301, 
dated September 5, 2017 for 30% preliminary design, instream and upland (riverbank) drawings, 
cost estimating, and project reporting as part of the Cedar River Recreational Improvement 
Project (Agreement); and 
 
WHEREAS, a Supplemental Agreement No. 1 was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(CLIENT) and Riverwise Engineering, LLC, (CONSULTANT), PO Box 706, Durango, CO 81301, 
dated July 16, 2018 for 60% preliminary design, permitting, final design and bid letting services; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to enter into this Supplemental Agreement 
No. 2 for bathymetric survey services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the Agreement to add such design, permitting 
and services: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The scope of services will encompass a bathymetric survey necessary for establishing 

contours and spot elevations with the project limits, specifically at the Low Dam (Clay 
Hole). The survey will utilize an echo sounder for single-beam water depths. The echo 
sounder will be mounted on either a flat-bottom boat or a HyDrone Autonomous Survey 
Vehicle (ASV). The survey data will be provided in the existing project horizontal 
coordinate system and vertical datum established by previous surveys. Data of the river 
bottom will be collected on 5-foot intervals on an approximate grid pattern within 100 feet 
of the Low Dam area (Clay Hole). These spots will be used to create a topography map 
showing the surface changes, break in slope, tops, toes and at each abrupt change in the 
terrain. An electronic file will be provided of the results of survey in AutoCAD format.   

  

608



II. COMPENSATION

Compensation for the above Services and terms of payment will be a direct expense in 
accordance with Part VI of the original agreement and the Scope of Services of the 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1. The additional fee for these services is Two Thousand 
Three Hundred and Twenty Seven dollars ($2,327.00). 

III. In all other respects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as
specified in the Professional Services Agreement dated September 5, 2017.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Supplemental Agreement No. 2 
as of the dates shown below: 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS RIVERWISE ENGINEERING, LLC 

By: By: 

Printed Name:     James P. Brown  Name:     Shane Sigle 

Title:    Mayor Title:    Principal 

Date: Date: 

Attest: 

05/02/2019

609



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
 

 DATE: May 1, 2019 

SUBJECT: Property Appraisal Services – Contract Documents 
 Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program 
 
City staff is working with the staff at the Iowa Department of Emergency Management to 
apply for a Hazard Mitigation Grant for property buyouts. This is a pre-disaster grant that will 
help mitigate future flood damage claims on private property. Over the past few months, staff 
identified a list of properties that are located in areas of previous buyouts and if the property 
owner expressed any interest in the past for a buyout. In total, 32 notices were mailed and 15 
were signed and returned to this office. These 15 property owners have expressed an 
interest in a buyout offer. 
 
This contract involves the appraisals of fifteen (15) properties in the floodplain district of 
northern Cedar Falls. A FEMA requirement is that property appraisals be completed and 
submitted for each property that is listed in the grant application. The Planning and 
Community Services Division sent out requests for proposals for appraisal services and 
received a proposal back from Rally Appraisal. 
 
A bid was received from Rally Appraisal of Cedar Falls in the total amount of $6,150.00. The 
cost for the appraisals is an eligible expense through the grant whether the property is 
acquired or not. 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract and Certificate of Insurance from Rally 
Appraisal. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Rally Appraisal for the appraisal of the fifteen (15) properties. It is anticipated 
that the appraisals will be completed within approximately 3 weeks after a notice to proceed 
is issued. Shortly after the appraisals are received, the application will be submitted to the 
State and FEMA for their review and approval. 
  
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

610



611



612



613



614



615



616



617



618



619



620



621



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: May 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Encroachment Agreement for North Cedar Neighborhood Association 
 
Several years ago, City Council approved the use of a general Encroachment 
Agreement that can be entered into between the City and a property owner requesting 
to utilize City right-of-way for certain minor, unobtrusive improvements in the right-of-
way that would provide an enhancement.  Prior to the use of our Encroachment 
Agreement, aside from obtaining a variance, there was not a mechanism in place to 
accommodate these minimal and reasonable requests. 
 
The North Cedar Neighborhood Association has been working with staff for the past 
several months on a request to install an approximate 6 foot wide by 3 foot tall 
limestone rock with the neighborhood association name engraved on it within the City’s 
right-of-way. The proposed location of the neighborhood sign would be along the east 
side of Center Street, just south of the entrance into Tourist Park. This particular 
location for the sign was chosen by the neighborhood association, as they consider it to 
be a gateway into northern Cedar Falls. The neighborhood association did apply for and 
receive a $1,000 Community Betterment Grant for the purchase and placement of the 
limestone sign in this location. 
 
As you can see in Exhibit “A” attached to the encroachment agreement, the sign will be 
placed approximately 16 feet away from the pavement of Center Street, 12 feet away 
from the paved trail that leads into Tourist Park, and 8 feet away from an existing tree. 
Staff and the president of the neighborhood association visited the site to determine the 
best location for the sign, and the location that was chosen was done so because it 
would not appear to cause any visual impairment to either vehicular or pedestrian traffic. 
Staff also consulted with Municipal Operations and Programs to review the location of 
the sign since it will be located near Tourist Park. Mark Ripplinger, Director, reviewed 
the location for the proposed sign and did not express any concerns. Additionally as 
outlined in the Encroachment Agreement, if the City or CFU ever needs to undertake 
construction in this right of way area, the North Cedar Neighborhood Association would 
be responsible for the removal or relocation of the sign. 
 

622



The encroachment agreement was drafted by City Attorney Kevin Rogers and was 
reviewed by the neighborhood association. Staff recommends approving the attached 
Encroachment Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and the North Cedar 
Neighborhood Association. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact the Community 
Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
       Curt Gravatt, President, North Cedar Neighborhood Association 

623



624



625



626



627



628



8'

12'
16'

TREE

TRAIL

ROADWAY

Center St

Proposed Location for
6' Wide by 3' Deep Rock

With Neighborhood Name

Exhibit A I

629



 

630



1 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 
 

 DATE: May 2, 2019  

 SUBJECT: Furn Subdivision, Preliminary & Final Plats  
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to preliminary and final plat one (1) lot as the Furn 
Subdivision 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

College Square Realty, LLC (Owner); VJ Engineering (Surveyor) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

6301 University Avenue (Former Younkers Department Store) 
 

 
PROPOSAL:   
The applicant, Igal Nassim with College 
Square Realty, LLC, is proposing to 
subdivide the former Younkers store 
located at the east end of College 
Square Mall onto its own lot, for the 
purpose of selling the lot to a buyer who 
will redevelop the store for a new Ashley 
Homestore (see proposed parcel 
outlined in red in the image to the right). 
The current store is 83,524 square feet 
in size, and the proposal from the buyer 
would be to add a 15,526 square foot 
addition onto the front of the store, for a 
total store size of 99,050 square feet.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
College Square Realty, LLC purchased 
the 42-acre mall property in March 2015. 
This included the main mall building, as 
well as 9 additional buildings located in Proposed Lot for Furn Subdivision 

631



2 

 

front of the mall along University Avenue (Applebee’s at the east end to Wells Fargo at 
the west end). In November of 2016, the mall owner submitted to the City the College 
Square Mall Addition Preliminary and Final Plat. This plat subdivided the 9 buildings in 
front of the mall onto their own lots, and at the time the owner indicated that the 
subdivision would provide several benefits: securing capital that could be used for 
continued mall improvements, ongoing development and maintenance of the property 
and attraction and retention of tenants.  
 
At the same time that the subdivision was approved in 2016, a Developmental 
Procedures Agreement was also approved between the City and College Square 
Realty, LLC in order to address certain aspects of the mall property, such as parking lot 
and access drive repairs, addition of a sidewalk from the mall to the trail along 
University Avenue, and the addition of landscaping across the mall property. This 
agreement also included a supplemental Declaration of Easements, Covenants and 
Restrictions (ECR), which focused on the function and maintenance of the property 
given that there would be multiple property owners. The Agreement called for items 
such as the sidewalk installation, parking lot repairs, and landscaping to be installed by 
December 31, 2018, however those have not been completed as of yet. The applicant 
asked for and received an extension until August 31, 2019 to complete those items per 
the Agreement.         
 
As indicated above, the 
College Square Mall Addition 
plat that was approved in 2016 
included a Declaration of 
Easement, Covenants and 
Restrictions (ECR) that 
focused on the function and 
maintenance of the property 
given that there would be 
multiple property owners (see 
red outlined area in the image 
to the right). This ECR 
supplemented a Reciprocal 
Easement Agreement (REA) 
that was executed in 2004, 
applying to both the mall 
property and the Hy-Vee 
grocery store located adjacent to the mall 
on the west side of the property (see yellow 
outlined area in the image above). The REA addresses function and maintenance such 
as: 

 Cross access and use of parking areas 

 Utilities access and sharing  

 Maintenance of parking areas, sidewalks, walkways, roadways and lighting 

 Party wall easements (related to the building) 

REA boundary (yellow) and ECR boundary (red) 

632



3 

 

The City Attorney has reviewed the development agreement and ECR that was entered 
into between College Square Realty, LLC and the City of Cedar Falls in 2016. The new 
parcel for Furn Subdivision would still be subject to the restrictions found within that 
development agreement. However, it would appear that only several sections of the 
agreement would apply to this property. Item #2 in the agreement discusses 
improvements to the parking lot. There are two areas of the parking lot that are required 
to be addressed that will be located on the new lot for Furn Subdivision. The parking lot 
improvements will be completed by the developer as part of the purchase of the lot. 
Item #3 in the agreement discusses landscaping. The developer is asking to amend the 
landscape plan found in the current agreement to replace it with a different landscape 
plan for the Furn Subdivision lot. This request to amend the development agreement will 
require a separate approval from City Council.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
The applicant, College Square Mall Realty, LLC, which owns the 31.46 acre mall parcel, 
is proposing to subdivide one lot from the mall property with a lot size of 7.906 acres in 
order to sell the parcel for redevelopment purposes. This lot will include the former 
Younkers store located at the east end of College Square Mall. The buyer would like to 
purchase the lot from the owner and redevelop the store into a new Ashley Homestore. 
This will include reutilizing the existing 83,524 square foot store, and constructing a 
15,526 square foot addition onto the front of the building, for a total store size of 99,050 
square feet.  
 
The property is zoned S-1, Shopping Center District.  The purpose of this district is to 
provide for the development of shopping centers.  A shopping center is a planned retail 
and service area under single ownership, management or control characterized by a 
concentrated grouping of stores and compatible uses, with various facilities designed to 
be used in common, such as ingress and egress roads, extensive parking 
accommodations, etc. Although the S-1 district indicates single ownership, several 
subdivisions have occurred on this site over the past several years. In 2013, the former 
Hy-Vee building (now Slumberland) and current Hy-Vee building (former Wal-Mart) 
were subdivided from the mall property and sold so that the business could retain 
ownership of their own lot. In 2016, nine outlots in front of the mall building along 
University Avenue were subdivided and sold off to another business entity as well. Also, 
looking at the commercial development to the east that is also zoned S-1, Kohl’s, 
Sakura, and Texas Roadhouse are all located on their own lots under individual 
ownership. What is being proposed with this plat is to subdivide off the existing 
Younkers store in order to sell it for the redevelopment of it into an Ashley Homestore, 
which would not appear to be out of character with the area.  
 
As indicated in the earlier in this section, the proposed preliminary and final plat of Furn 
Subdivision will split off 7.9 acres from the mall property onto its own lot. This parcel will 
include the former Younkers store, which is being proposed to be redeveloped into a 
new Ashley Homestore. When the College Square Mall Addition was created in 2016, 
there were specific areas shown as cross access easements along the main drive lanes 
that go throughout the mall property. Portions of those easements are located on the 

633



4 

 

proposed parcel; one in front of the building, one along the side of the building, and one 
in front of the building that leads to the backage road of the mall site. Part of this 
redevelopment project will include adding a building addition to the front of the store. 
This will require the relocation of the east-west driving lane to the north, which will in 
turn straighten out the drive, as the building will be in line with the rest of the mall. Also, 
there is an existing drive lane north of the building that goes north and connects with the 
backage road of the mall. This driving lane is seldom used, and the developer would like 
to remove it and re-stripe the area for parking. As part of this re-striping, the drive lane 
would be proposed to move to the east, so that it lines up with the existing drive lane 
that goes around the side of the building. Please see the image below to see where the 
existing easements are located and where the new ones are proposed. Staff feels that 
by moving the easements to their proposed locations, it will straighten out both drive 
lanes and should make it easier for the traveling public to navigate their way across the 
property.  
 
The existing cross access easement that covers the mall property was indicated by a 
sketch on a site plan showing where the common access drives were located on the 
mall property. Since the easements were not shown on the plat in 2016 and were rather 
shown on an exhibit to the ECR, the existing easements will not need to be vacated. 
However, the new location of the access easement is shown on the plat and a notation 
was added to make clear that the easements may be modified from time to time by the 
declarant and that no further action is required.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Existing and Proposed Locations of Access Easements 

634



5 

 

In addition to the relocating of the cross-access easements, there are several utilities 
that will need to be relocated away from the front of the building in order for the building 
addition to be constructed. Typically, wherever utilities are located there exists a utility 
easement in order for the utility company to perform maintenance or repairs on that 
particular utility. In this case, the entire mall property was designated as an easement 
for utility purposes. The proposed plat continues that easement, calling out the entire 
parcel as a utility easement similar to the mall property. 
 
When subdividing a property, the parking regulations must be met for both the proposed 
lot (Ashley Homestore lot) and the remaining lot (College Square Mall lot). For the Furn 
Subdivision lot, a furniture store requires one parking space for every 750 square feet of 
gross floor area, plus one parking space for every two employees. With the proposed 
addition, the building will be approximately 99,050 square feet in total size. This equates 
to 119 required parking spaces, in addition to what is required for employee parking. 
There is an existing drive lane that is currently on the site that will be removed in order 
to add an additional lane of parking stalls. Also, there will be a loss of several parking 
stalls in front of the building, as the stalls will need to be removed in order to relocate 
the access drive in front of the building. In total, the Furn Subdivision lot will provide 451 
parking stalls, which is well over the 119 spaces (in addition to employee parking) 
required for the site. 

 
The remaining mall parcel will have 1,317 parking stalls after the Furn Subdivision lot is 
subdivided. For shopping centers over 2,000 square feet in gross floor area, 4.5 parking 
spaces are required for every 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Based on the 
square footage of the mall, the total amount of required parking spaces would be 1,171. 
Therefore, after the splitting of the old Younkers store from the mall, the mall would 
have an excess of 146 parking spaces. 
 
A final storm water management report has been submitted and reviewed as part of the 
plat. Currently, there is no storm water detention facility located on this site, nor is storm 
water quality being addressed on this site, as it is an existing site that has largely 
remained the same for close to 50 years. As part of this project, storm water quality will 
be addressed by providing two (2) hydrodynamic separators within the parking lot in 
front of the building and to the rear of the building. These devices are installed under the 
parking area, and collect the water runoff from the parking lot and separate and capture 
any debris, sediment or other pollutants within the structure, thus allowing the clean 
water to flow out into the storm sewer system. Also, new storm sewer lines will be 
installed as part of the project on the property. These storm sewers will be upsized in 
order to provide for additional water holding capacity, which will help increase the 
amount of water that can flow through them. This will help to detain more water within 
the site prior to exiting the site through the storm sewer system. It should be noted that 
any future additions, remodels, or new structures on the site may be subject to the 
stormwater ordinance, depending upon their scope, and will be evaluated at the time of 
submittal.    
 
Typically a preliminary plat would be submitted and approved first prior to the final plat 

Maplewood Drive 

 Younkers 

 

Von Maur 

 
College 

Square 

Theatre 

 

635



6 

 

being submitted. This allows for the installation of any required public infrastructure, 
such as streets, sewers and other public utilities. However, this subdivision does not 
include the construction of any new public infrastructure, so the applicant has requested 
that both plats be reviewed at the same time. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The Engineering Department has obtained the final storm water management plan, and 
finds it acceptable. After a review of the preliminary and final plats by the City Surveyor, 
comments were sent to the applicant’s surveyor. An updated preliminary and final plat 
was submitted by the applicant’s surveyor, and has been reviewed and approved by the 
City Surveyor.  
 

Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the site in 
accordance with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities. The property 
owner/developer will be responsible for all utility relocation costs. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and City Staff recommend approval of the 
preliminary and final plat of Furn Subdivision. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Mr. Graham explained that the site is located in the former Younkers 
store in College Square Mall and is zoned S-1, Shopping Center District. 
He explained that the developer who is proposing to purchase the site 
would like to make it into an Ashley Homestore and discussed the 
proposed site details, such as the proposed use, existing and addition 
size and parking. Mr. Graham also displayed a rendering of the existing 
and relocated access easement, as well as of areas needing parking lot 
repairs and required landscaping. He explained that new sidewalk will be 
installed to connect with the existing sidewalk and discussed the two 
new hydrodynamic separators that will be installed to address water 
quality. He also showed the proposed building façade and signage 
discussing materials to be used. At this time staff would like to gather 
comments and continue the discussion at the April 10th Planning and 
Zoning meeting. 

Mr. Graham then discussed the Preliminary and Final plats, showing 
drawings of the plats and the requirements for each. Staff would also like 
to gather comments on this item and continue the discussion at the April 
10th Planning and Zoning meeting subject to stipulations.  

Troy Eichmann, project developer from Sioux Falls, South Dakota, 
provided his background to the Commission and discussed the plans 
being proposed. He noted his appreciation to the community. 

Mr. Hartley stated his support for the project. Mr. Larson was pleased to 
hear about the interior connection to the mall and the improvements to 
traffic circulation. Mr. Wingert asked who is responsible for maintenance 

Discussion 
3/27/2019 

636



7 

 

of Tract A. Mr. Graham explained that the mall is responsible for it and 
they are working on a plan for the road between the property and the 
outlots. Mr. Leeper asked about storm water requirements and 
commented on the lack of landscaping around the edges and that it 
seemed like the waiver request was more of a workaround. Mr. Holst 
voiced the same concern. Mr. Leeper would like to be sure all setbacks 
work with the platting. Ms. Saul and Ms. Giarusso were happy to see the 
building being re-used. The items will be continued to the next meeting. 

 
  

Mr. Graham provided background information. He explained that he 
would go through the plat and site plan (the next item on the agenda) 
items at the same time. He noted that the property is located in the 
former Younkers store at College Square Mall and it is proposed to 
subdivide the store and the parking area. He stated that all requirements 
have been met in the plats and discussed easement relocation since the 
last meeting. He also addressed stormwater management. Staff 
recommends approval of the plats with the following stipulations: two 
signed deeds of dedication, two signed certificates of survey and six full 
size signed copies of the final plat prior to City Council submittal, as well 
as any comments or direction from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

Troy Eichmann, COO for Ashley Homestore, stated that the variation on 
the landscaping would allow for better visibility, as that is an important 
factor to success. 

Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the preliminary and final plats. Ms. 
Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously 
with 9 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Oberle, 
Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

Vote 
4/24/2019 

637



College
Square Mall

Black Hawk
Village

Holiday Plaza
Peet Junior
High School

Southdale
Elementary

School

Ro
ya

l D
r

Va
lle

y P
ark

 D
r

Me
lro

se
 D

r Vic
tor

yD
r

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Pin Oak Dr

Bonita Blvd

Carlton Dr

Holiday Rd

Maplewood Dr

Homeway Dr

SLawn Rd
Lilac Ln

Wo
od

rid
ge

 D
r

Tu
cs

on
 D

r

La
uri

nd
a D

r

Da
lla

s D
r

Kn
oll

 R
idg

e D
r

Windsor Dr

Colorado Rd

Pr
ide

mo
re

Dr

Idaho Rd

Arizona Rd

Utah Rd

Ea
stp

ark
 R

d

Br
iar

wo
od

 D
r

Maryhill Dr

E Seerley Blvd

Calumett Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Orchard Dr

R-4

RP

R-3 C-2

R-3

C-2

C-2

R-3

S-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-2

RP

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra irie Pkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

CenterS t

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Ashley Homestore S-1 Site Plan Review
and Furn Subdivision Preliminaryand 
Final Plat

Cedar Falls City Council
May 6, 2019

638



639



640



641



642



1 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: May 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Ashley Furniture Homestore Site Plan Review  
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve an S-1 Shopping Center District site plan for the 
reuse of the former Younkers building at College Square Mall. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

College Square Realty, LLC (Owner); VJ Engineering (Engineer) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

6301 University Avenue (former Younkers store) 
 

 
PROPOSAL:   
College Square Realty, LLC is requesting a 
site plan review of the old Younkers store 
at College Square Mall in order to sell the 
building to a developer who would 
renovate it for a new Ashley Homestore.  
The reuse of the building would include 
constructing an approximate 15,526 
square foot addition onto the north side of 
the existing 83,524 square foot store, for a 
total store size of approximately 99,050 
square feet. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
College Square Realty, LLC purchased the 
42-acre mall property in March of 2015. 
This included the main mall building, as 
well as 9 additional buildings located in 
front of the mall along University Avenue (Applebee’s at the east end to Wells Fargo at 
the west end). In November of 2016, the mall owner submitted to the City the College 
Square Mall Addition Preliminary and Final Plat. This plat subdivided off 9 lots along 

643



2 

 

University Avenue from the mall property, leaving just the mall building on the remaining 
lot.  
 
At the same time that the subdivision was approved in 2016, a Developmental 
Procedures Agreement was also approved between the City and College Square 
Realty, LLC in order to address certain aspects of the mall property, such as parking lot 
and access drive repairs, addition of a sidewalk from the mall to the trail along 
University Avenue, and the addition of landscaping across the mall property. This 
agreement also included a supplemental Declaration of Easements, Covenants and 
Restrictions (ECR), which focused on the function and maintenance of the property 
given that there would be multiple property owners. The Agreement called for items 
such as the sidewalk installation, parking lot repairs, and landscaping to be installed by 
December 31, 2018, however those have not been completed as of yet. The owner 
asked for and received an extension until August 31, 2019 to complete those items per 
the Agreement.         
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned S-1, Shopping Center District.  The purpose of this district is to 
provide for the development of shopping centers.  A shopping center is a planned retail 
and service area under single ownership, management or control characterized by a 
concentrated grouping of stores and compatible uses, with various facilities designed to 
be used in common, such as ingress and egress roads, extensive parking 
accommodations, etc. Since the project includes major modifications, such as a building 
addition and a modification to the existing drive lanes, this will require review by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission and approval by City Council. Following is a review of 
the zoning ordinance requirements for this site plan: 
 

1) Use: The building was previously used as an anchor store at College Square Mall. 
The proposed reuse of the building will be for another large retail store, which was 
similar to the previous use in that building. Such a use is also allowed within the 
S-1 Shopping Center District. Use is allowed. 

 
2) Parking/Access:  

 

a. Parking – For furniture stores, one parking space is required for every 750 
square feet of gross floor area, plus one parking space for every two 
employees. With the proposed addition, the building will be approximately 
99,050 square feet in total size. This equates to 119 required parking 
spaces, in addition to what is required for employee parking (minus the 10% 
deduction for storage areas, mechanical areas, etc.). There is an existing 
drive lane that is currently on the site that will be removed in order to add an 
additional lane of parking stalls. Also, there will be a loss of several parking 
spaces in front of the building, as the spaces will need to be removed in 
order to relocate the access drive in front of the building, as a building 
addition will be constructed to the front of the building. In total, the site will 
have 451 parking spaces, which is well over the required amount of parking 
for the site. 

644



3 

 

 
The remaining mall parcel has 1,317 parking spaces. For shopping centers 
over 2,000 square feet in gross floor area, 4.5 parking spaces are required 
for every 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Based on the square footage 
of the mall, the total amount of required parking spaces would be 1,171. 
Therefore, after the splitting of the old Younkers store from the mall, the mall 
would have an excess of 146 parking spaces. The parking plan for the 
Ashley Homestore and remaining mall property satisfies City 
requirements. 
  

b. Cross Access – There is an 
existing cross access easement 
throughout the mall property 
where there exist common drive 
lanes for vehicles to travel 
across and throughout the mall 
property. This easement will 
need to be modified slightly due 
to the proposed addition onto 
the front of the building, and also 
due to the removal of the north-
south drive lane that extends to 
the frontage road. The new 
proposed location of the cross 
access easement will align 
straight with the existing access 
easement to the west, and the 
new north-south access 
easement will align with the 
existing north-south easement to 
the east of the building. Both 
cross access easement relocates would appear to make travel across the 
property much easier by not having to make additional turning movements 
throughout the site. The plan for the relocation of the cross access 
easements satisfies the requirements of the original ECR and provides 
cross access across this site and onto the mall property. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Existing and Proposed Cross Access Easements 

645



4 

 

Parking Lot Repair – The 
Developmental Procedures 
Agreement that was approved in 
2016 included making repairs to 
certain areas of the parking lot and 
backage road of the mall property. 
There are 4 locations on what would 
be the new parcel for Ashley 
Homestore that are required to be 
addressed per the Agreement: the 
north-south drive lane in front of the 
Younkers building (#2 in the image 
to the right), which was required to 
be overlaid with asphalt, the parking 
area at the northeast corner of the 
property (#1 in the image to the 
right), which was to be overlaid with 
asphalt, and two smaller areas along 
the east side of the property (#9 and 
#10 in the image to the right), which 
were to have potholes filled. After a 
site visit by staff, it appears that the 
small holes along the east side of the property have been filled, but the drive 
lane and area at the northeast corner of the property have not been overlaid 
with new asphalt. The developer does plan on overlaying this area with new 
asphalt, per the Developmental Procedures Agreement, however they are 
requesting an extension of the timeframe to complete the work. They would 
like until September 1, 2020 to complete the work because they would like to 
complete the parking lot improvements after the building addition has been 
constructed. This request to amend the timeline in the development 
agreement will be a separate action item for City Council to review. 

 

 

3) Landscaping: When the preliminary and final plat of College Square Mall Addition 
was approved in 2016, a Developmental Procedures Agreement was also 
approved, of which one of the requirements was that landscaping and parking lot 
islands for landscaping be added in various locations throughout the mall property. 
The mall owner has not installed these parking lot islands or landscaping yet, but is 
required to do so by August 31, 2019 (see landscaping plan at the top of the 
following page). 

Exhibit from Developmental Procedures 

Agreement showing the parking lot areas 

to be addressed on the Younkers site. 

646



5 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As you can see on the plan, several parking lot islands along with landscaping are 
required to be installed on the proposed Ashley Homestore site, in addition to other 
areas of the mall property. The developer is requesting an amendment to this 
Developmental Procedures Agreement in order to waive the requirement for the 
parking lot islands and the trees that go within those islands for their site.  
 
On a new site, landscaping is required to be installed within the parking areas of the 
parking lot. The parking lot section of the zoning ordinance states that for parking 
lots with 21 or more parking spaces, one tree shall be planted for each 21 parking 
spaces. The trees shall be provided sufficient open planting area necessary to 
sustain full growth. This section also states that not less than five (5) percent of the 
interior of the parking area shall be provided as open space, including the planting 
areas for the trees. Each of the open space areas within the parking area shall be a 
minimum of 40 square feet with a dimension of at least five (5) feet. In the case of 
this project, a total of 451 parking spaces will be provided on the site, which would 
equate to 22 trees that would be required to be installed within the parking area 
(451/21=21.47, or 22 trees). Since this is an existing situation, the City typically 
would require the site to be brought into compliance as parking areas are being 
reconstructed or expanded.  
 
As stated earlier, the Developmental Procedures agreement with the mall owner 
required certain minimum landscaping improvements to be made as a condition of 
approval of previous revitalization efforts. Ashley HomeStores is requesting a 
waiver of some of the landscaping requirements in that agreement.  
 
As an alternative to the parking lot islands and trees that are required per the 
Developmental Procedures Agreement, the developer has submitted a landscape 
plan that shows additional landscaping along the east property line within the 

Younkers 

 

Landscaping Plan Approved in 2016 

647



6 

 

existing greenspace area, shows new planters in front of the building between the 
sidewalk and the building, shows added trees and shrubs within a new greenspace 
area near the northeast corner of the building, and shows a new planter area within 
the existing greenspace area at the southeast corner of the building. At the previous 
Planning & Zoning Commission meeting where the site plan was discussed, it was 
indicated by staff that a landscape plan prepared by a landscape architect be 
provided, which would show the types of plantings proposed (overstory tree, 
ornamental tree, shrub, etc.), the species of the planting, and the size (caliper of 
trees, gallons for shrubs). The developer has submitted such a landscape plan, 
which shows the existing trees located on the property, and the proposed planting 
locations of trees and shrubs. A total of 15 new trees will be planted on the site, in 
addition to 7 existing trees, for a total of 22 trees to be located on the site. The tree 
species includes Regal Prince Oak (3), New Horizon Elm (2), and Amur Maple (10). 
There will also be a total of 112 new shrubs that will be planted on the site. These 
species includes Iroquois Beauty Black Chokeberry (20), Sem Ash Leaf Spirea 
(54), Baton Rouge Dwarf Dogwood (18), and Taunton Spreading Yew (20).    
 

4) Sidewalk/Pedestrian 
Accommodations: There is 
an existing sidewalk located 
in front of the building, as 
well as along the side and 
rear of the building. A new 
sidewalk will be installed in 
front of the building addition 
on the north side of the 
building, and will tie in with 
the existing sidewalk located on the mall property to the west. Also, as part of the 
existing Developmental Procedures Agreement with the mall owner, a sidewalk is 
required to be installed from the new University Avenue trail to the main entrance to 
the mall. This sidewalk is required to be completed by August 31, 2019. This 
sidewalk will provide pedestrians a safe route to access the mall property and this 
proposed development from the existing trail along University Avenue, where a bus 
stop is also located. 

 
5) Signage: It was indicated at the previous Planning & Zoning Commission meeting 

that the new building storefront would have 3 entrances; one entrance for the 
Ashley Homestore, another entrance for their Sleep Shop, and a third entrance for 
La-Z-Boy furniture. Since that meeting, the developer has indicated that it has not 
been decided if the entrance will have either two or three entrances. A plan showing 
each of the potential storefront options has been included in the packet (and is 
shown below). Whether the storefront has two or three entrances, each of the 
entrances will have their own signage located on the wall above the door. The S-1 
District allows wall signage as long as it does not exceed 1/3 of the surface of the 
wall to which it is affixed. The wall signage appears to be within the signage 
requirements, however this will be reviewed in detail at the time a sign permit is 

648



7 

 

requested. Signage plan is acceptable, subject to detailed review with a sign 
permit. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6) Storm Water Management: Storm water runoff from this area flows into several 

intakes located within the parking lot around the building, and heads to the west 
within a private storm sewer line until it connects to a public storm sewer line near 
Boulder Drive.  

 
Currently, there is no storm water detention facility located on this site, nor is storm 
water quality being addressed on this site, as it is an existing site that has largely 
remained the same for close to 50 years. As part of this project, storm water quality 
will be addressed by providing two (2) hydrodynamic separators within the parking 
lot in front of the building and to the rear of the building. These devices are installed 
under the parking area, and collect the water runoff from the parking lot and 
separate and capture any debris, sediment or other pollutants within the structure, 
thus allowing the clean water to flow out into the storm sewer system. Also, new 
storm sewer lines will be installed as part of the project on the property. These 
storm sewers will be upsized in order to provide for additional water holding 
capacity, which will help increase the amount of water that can flow through them. 
This will help to detain more water within the site prior to exiting the site through the 
storm sewer system. 

 
It should be noted that any future additions, remodels, or new structures on the site 
may be subject to the stormwater ordinance, depending upon their scope, and will 

3 Entrance Option 

2 Entrance Option 

649



8 

 

be evaluated at the time of submittal. A final Storm Water Management Plan has 
been reviewed and approved by engineering staff, and final construction 
plans will need to be submitted prior to issuance of a building permit for the 
project. 
 

7) Utilities: Currently, all utilities are found in front of the building within the drive lane 
and parking lot. The electric and communication lines will not need to be relocated 
as part of this project and will remain in their current location. The existing sanitary 
sewer main, storm sewer main, and water main will need to be relocated further to 
the north in order to make room for the new building addition that is being 
proposed. A fire hydrant will also be removed and replaced with a new hydrant just 
to the north of its current location. When the mall was developed in 1970, a blanket 
utility easement covered the entire mall property. As part of the plat, a blanket utility 
easement is being proposed for this lot, similar to the blanket utility easement that 
covers the mall property, so when the utilities are relocated, they will be covered 
under that easement. Utility plan and easements are acceptable. 

  
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The Engineering Department has reviewed the final storm water management plan, and 
finds it acceptable. Also, detailed construction plans will need to be submitted to the 
Engineering Department prior to the issuance of a building permit for this project. 
 

Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the site in 
accordance with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities. The property 
owner/developer will be responsible for all utility relocation costs. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and City Staff recommend approval of the S-1 
District Site Plan for the reuse of the former Younkers building at College Square Mall. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion  
3/27/2019 

Mr. Graham explained that the site is located in the former Younkers 
store in College Square Mall and is zoned S-1, Shopping Center District. 
He explained that the developer who is proposing to purchase the site 
would like to make it into an Ashley Homestore and discussed the 
proposed site details, such as the proposed use, existing and addition 
size and parking. Mr. Graham also displayed a rendering of the existing 
and relocated access easement, as well as of areas needing parking lot 
repairs and required landscaping. He explained that new sidewalk will 
be installed to connect with the existing sidewalk and discussed the two 
new hydrodynamic separators that will be installed to address water 
quality. He also showed the proposed building façade and signage 
discussing materials to be used. At this time staff would like to gather 
comments and continue the discussion at the April 10th Planning and 
Zoning meeting. 

Mr. Graham then discussed the Preliminary and Final plats, showing 

650



9 

 

drawings of the plats and the requirements for each. Staff would also 
like to gather comments on this item and continue the discussion at the 
April 10th Planning and Zoning meeting subject to stipulations.  

Troy Eichmann, project developer from Sioux Falls, South Dakota, 
provided his background to the Commission and discussed the plans 
being proposed. He noted his appreciation to the community. 

Mr. Hartley stated his support for the project. Mr. Larson was pleased to 
hear about the interior connection to the mall and the improvements to 
traffic circulation. Mr. Wingert asked who is responsible for maintenance 
of Tract A. Mr. Graham explained that the mall is responsible for it and 
they are working on a plan for the road between the property and the 
outlots. Mr. Leeper asked about storm water requirements and 
commented on the lack of landscaping around the edges and that it 
seemed like the waiver request was more of a workaround. Mr. Holst 
voiced the same concern. Mr. Leeper would like to be sure all setbacks 
work with the platting. Ms. Saul and Ms. Giarusso were happy to see the 
building being re-used. The items will be continued to the next meeting. 

 

Vote  
4/24/2019 

Mr. Graham then discussed the proposed site plan for Ashley 
Homestore, noting the site details and that all requirements have been 
met. He again discussed the relocation of the easement as well as 
parking lot repairs that will be required. He provided a rendering of the 
required landscaping details and noted that the developer is requesting 
an amendment to the landscaping plan that was included with the 
Development Agreement with College Square Realty, LLC. The 
proposed landscaping plan provided by the developer would replace the 
landscaping shown on the original landscape plan for the mall for this 
site only. This request to amend the development agreement will be 
reviewed by City Council. He also displayed the proposed sidewalk area 
and stormwater management details. Mr. Graham showed building and 
façade renderings as well. Staff recommends approval of the site plan 
subject to any additional comments or directions specified by the 
Commission.  

Troy Eichmann, COO for Ashley Homestore, stated that the variation on 
the landscaping would allow for better visibility, as that is an important 
factor to success. 

Mr. Hartley stated that he is very excited for the project. Ms. Prideaux 
asked about the landscaping variance, and asked if one additional tree 
could be planted in order to meet the parking lot landscaping 
requirement. Mr. Eichmann indicated that it was an oversight on his part 
and that he would add an additional tree to the site per Ms. Prideaux’s 
request. Mr. Leeper noted that he was also happy about the project but 
feels that the development agreement with the mall should still be 
upheld. Mr. Graham indicated that the development agreement with 

651



10 

 

College Square Mall would still be intact. 

Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the site plan. Mr. Wingert 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 9 
ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Oberle, Saul 
and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
 

 

652



College
Square Mall

Black Hawk
Village

Holiday Plaza
Peet Junior
High School

Southdale
Elementary

School

Ro
ya

l D
r

Va
lle

y P
ark

 D
r

Me
lro

se
 D

r Vic
tor

yD
r

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Pin Oak Dr

Bonita Blvd

Carlton Dr

Holiday Rd

Maplewood Dr

Homeway Dr

SLawn Rd
Lilac Ln

Wo
od

rid
ge

 D
r

Tu
cs

on
 D

r

La
uri

nd
a D

r

Da
lla

s D
r

Kn
oll

 R
idg

e D
r

Windsor Dr

Colorado Rd

Pr
ide

mo
re

Dr

Idaho Rd

Arizona Rd

Utah Rd

Ea
stp

ark
 R

d

Br
iar

wo
od

 D
r

Maryhill Dr

E Seerley Blvd

Calumett Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Orchard Dr

R-4

RP

R-3 C-2

R-3

C-2

C-2

R-3

S-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-2

RP

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra irie Pkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

CenterS t

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Ashley Homestore S-1 Site Plan Review
and Furn Subdivision Preliminaryand 
Final Plat

Cedar Falls City Council
May 6, 2019

653



654



655



656



Planet Fitness

6301 University Ave #1370,

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Former Younkers Department Store

6301 University Avenue

Cedar Falls, IA, 50613

Lot 1

College Square Mall

First Addition

College Square Mall

6301 University Avenue

Cedar Falls, IA, 50613

Asphalt Paving

Loading Dock

899.64'

X

899.52'

X

X

899.55'

Existing Property Line

1
0
0
'
 
S

e
t
b
a
c
k

Concrete

Steps

S89°54'25"E

427.77'

C

o

l

l

e

g

e

 

S

q

u

a

r

e

 

M

a

l

l

 

A

d

d

i

t

i

o

n

C

o

l

l

e

g

e

 

S

q

u

a

r

e

 

M

a

l

l

 

A

d

d

i

t

i

o

n

Pedestrian and ADA

Access Easement

14.80'

14.80'

5
4
.
8
0
'

Lot 1

College Square Mall

First Addition

Lot 1

College Square Mall

First Addition

N
0
1
°
0
5
'
1
7
"
E

2
4
0
.
1
3
'

S

7

7

°

0

3

'
0

0

"
W

2

2

9

.
2

1

'

N89°42'30"W 213.81'

N
0
0
°
0
7
'
0
8
"
E

5
6
2
.
7
5
'

N
0
1
°
0
0
'
2
4
"
E

2
4
0
.
5
3
'

S
0
0
°
2
7
'
3
6
"
W

7
5
2
.
2
8
'

Mall

Corridor

Mall

Corridor

Proposed Addition

3

QW

24

SS

10

SS

1

UN

1

UN

7

TX

6

TX

7

TX

6

AG

4

AG

8

CA

10

CA

12

AM

4

AM

2

AM

20

SS

EXISTING NO-MOW

LANDSCAPE

1

1

1

1
1

EXISTING TREES

EXISTING TREES

2

2

2

2

S

S

S

D
D

2
/
3

D

PLANT SPACING

4

L-1
SCALE:  3/4" = 1'-0"

TRIANGULAR

SPACING - 'S'

DISTANCE BETWEEN

ROWS - 'D'

TOTAL AREA PER

PLANT (SF)

12"

15"

18"

21"

10-1/2"

13"

15-1/2"

18"

0.88

1.35

1.94

2.63

24" (2')

30"

36" (3')

42"

21"

26"

31"

36"

3.50

5.42

7.75

10.50

48" (4')

54"

60" (5')

72" (6')

42"

47"

52"

62"

14.00

17.63

21.67

31.00

PLANT CENTER-TYP.

PLANT ROW-TYP.

EDGE OF PLANTING AREA

PLANT BEDS

3

L-1
N.T.S

B&B TREE PLANTING

2

L-1
SCALE:  3/4" = 1'-0"

2' RADIUS

MINIMUM

3x ROOT BALL DIAMETER

60°

DO NOT HEAVILY PRUNE THE TREE AT PLANTING. PRUNE ONLY

CROSSOVER LIMBS, CO-DOMINANT LEADERS, AND BROKEN OR

DEAD BRANCHES. SOME INTERIOR TWIGS AND LATERAL BRANCHES

MAY BE PRUNED; HOWEVER, DO NOT REMOVE THE TERMINAL BUDS

OF BRANCHES THAT EXTEND TO THE EDGE OF THE CROWN.

SET TOP OF ROOT BALL 2" HIGHER THAN GRADE.

EACH TREE MUST BE PLANTED SUCH THAT THE

TRUNK FLARE IS VISIBLE AT THE TOP OF THE  ROOT

BALL. TREES WHERE THE TRUNK FLARE IS NOT

VISIBLE SHALL BE REJECTED.  DO NOT COVER THE

TOP OF THE ROOT BALL WITH SOIL.

3" LAYER OF ORGANIC MULCH. DO NOT PLACE

MULCH IN CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK

SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING HOLE

BACK FILL WITH SOIL FROM PLANT PIT.

REMOVE ALL DEBRIS (SEE NOTE)

TAMP SOIL AROUND ROOT BALL BASE

FIRMLY WITH FOOT PRESSURE SO THAT

ROOT BALL DOES NOT SHIFT.

PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED

OR TAMPED SOIL.

LOOSEN 6" OF SUBGRADE

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE

(INCLUDING WIRE BASKET), AND BURLAP

FROM TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL.

NOTES:

· IF ROOT BALL IS WRAPPED IN

NON-BIODEGRADEABLE BURLAP OR NYLON ROPE,

REMOVE BEFORE BACK FILLING PIT.

·WHEN BACK FILLING PLANT PIT, PLACE EXISTING

SOIL IN TWO LIFTS. AFTER FIRST LIFT, PUDDLE SOIL

IN WITH WATER TO REMOVE ALL AIR POCKETS.

PLACE SECOND LIFT AND REPEAT. CONTINUE TO

PUDDLE AND FILL AS NECESSARY.

PROVIDE AND INSTALL TREEGATOR OR EQUIVALENT

PORTABLE DRIP IRRIGATION BAG. NOT REQUIRED IF

OPERATIONAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM EXISTS. ONLY USE

DURING MONTHS BETWEEN APRIL 1 AND OCTOBER 31.

8
"

M
I
N

.

3
"

TURFGRASS LAWN

CONCRETE LANDSCAPE EDGE.

MINIMIZE CONTACT

WITH

PLANT STEM(S)

CONCRETE WALK

5" DEEP MULCH POCKET

TOP OF MULCH IS TO BE

BELOW TOP OF WALK

EXTENDING A MINIMUM

OF 1'-0" FROM EDGE OF

WALK.

1'-0"

AMENDED PLANTING

BED SOIL AS SPECIFIED

ORGANIC MULCH AT

BASE OF EACH PLANT

ROCK MULCH, AS

SPECIFIED

WEED BARRIER

FABRIC AS SPECIFIED

SET TOP OF ROOT CROWN 1"

ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

MOUND PLANTING BED SOIL

SLIGHTLY TO TOP OF ROOT

CROWN

F
i
l
e
 
L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
:
 
L
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
1
9
\
1
9
0
8
6
 
A

s
h
l
e
y
 
H

o
m

e
 
S

t
o
r
e
 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
-
 
C

e
d
a
r
 
F

a
l
l
s
,
 
I
A

\
1
9
0
8
6
 
W

O
R

K
I
N

G
\
A

U
T

O
C

A
D

\
1
9
0
8
6
 
L
-
1

 
/
 
D

r
a
w

n
 
b
y
:
 
X

X
 
/
 
C

h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y
:
 
X

X

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

524 N MAIN AVE., SUITE 201

SIOUX FALLS, SD 57104

PH:  605.339.1205  FAX: 605.339.1215

REVISION SCHEDULE

ISSUE DATE DESCRIPTION

CONFLUENCE PROJECT # 19086

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

CONFLUENCE

OWNER

REVIEW SET

04-29-2019

COPYRIGHT ©  2019 BY CONFLUENCE

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.  THIS DRAWING IS PROVIDED AS AN

INSTRUMENT OF  SERVICE BY CONFLUENCE ,  AND IS INTENDED

FOR USE ON THIS PROJECT ONLY.   ANY REPRODUCTION, USE OR

DISCLOSURE OF  INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN WITHOUT

PRIOR  WRITTEN CONSENT OF CONFLUENCE IS STRICTLY

PROHIBITED.

A
s
h

l
e

y
 
H

o
m

e
 
S

t
o

r
e

s

6
3
0
1
 
U

n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
A

v
e
n
u
e

C
e
d
a
r
 
F

a
l
l
s
,
 
I
o
w

a

Planting Plan

L-1

SCALE:

40' 80'20'0'

1"=40'

Planting Plan

1

L-1
 

KEY QTY SIZE NOTES

CANOPY TREES

3

SHRUBS

QUERCUS X WAREI 'LONG'

REGAL PRINCE OAK

QW 2" CAL

#2

CONT.

SS 54

UNDERSTORY TREES

SORBARIA SORBIFOLIA 'SEM'

SEM ASH LEAF SPIREA

5'-0" O.C.

GENERAL NOTES

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING

ALL PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES WHICH LIE WITHIN THE

CONSTRUCTION AREA PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.  IOWA ONE

CALL NOTIFICATION CENTER:  1-800-292-8989.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL ITEMS WITHIN

THIS CONTRACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL STATE AND

LOCAL CODES AND REGULATIONS.  CONTRACTOR TO

COORDINATE ALL WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY

WITH THE APPROPRIATE JURISDICTIONS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE OWNER ANY

DAMAGE TO OWNER'S PROPERTY AND UTILITIES PRIOR TO

REPAIR.

ALL WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OSHA CODES

AND STANDARDS.   NOTHING INDICATED ON THESE

DRAWINGS SHALL RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR FROM

COMPLYING WITH ANY APPROPRIATE SAFETY REGULATIONS.

PLANT QUANTITIES IN PLANT SCHEDULE ARE FOR

CONVENIENCE ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED.

QUANTITIES ON PLAN WILL PREVAIL IF DISCREPANCIES

OCCUR.

ALL PLANTS, TREES, AND SHRUBS SHALL CONFORM TO OR

EXCEED MINIMUM QUALITY STANDARDS AS DEFINED BY THE

AMERICAN NURSERY AND LANDSCAPING ASSOCIATION,

CURRENT EDITION OF AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY

STOCK, AND SHALL BE PURCHASED FROM A LANDSCAPE

NURSERY. PLANTS, TREES, AND SHRUBS FURNISHED SHALL

BE OF THE SAME GENUS, SPECIES, CULTIVAR, AND SIZE AS

SPECIFIED IN THE PLANS. SPECIES AND VARIETY MAY BE

SUBSTITUTED ONLY BY THE APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT. EACH PLANT, TREE, AND SHRUB SHALL HAVE AN

IDENTIFICATION LABEL.

ALL PLANTS, TREES, AND SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH ALL THE DRAWINGS AND

SPECIFICATIONS INCLUDED IN THE PLANS.

WITHIN 2 HOURS AFTER BEING PLANTED, PLANTS, TREES,

AND SHRUBS SHALL BE WATERED TO THOROUGHLY

SATURATE THE BACKFILL SOIL AS THIS PROVIDES

SETTLEMENT AND FILLING OF VOIDS IN THE BACKFILL.

KEYNOTES

1. LANDSCAPE BED WITH WEED BARRIER FABRIC AND ROCK

MULCH.  WHERE EXISTING LANDSCAPE OCCURS REMOVE

EXISTING SHRUBS, MULCH AND PREPARE SOIL TO

RECEIVE NEW LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS.

2. INSTALL MULCH RING AT TREES AND SHRUBS PLANTED IN

TURF AND NO-MOW AREAS - TYP.

X

B&B

ACER GINNALA

AMUR MAPLE

AG 4'-5' HT10

2

ULMUS 'NEW HORIZON'

NEW HORIZON ELM

UN 2" CAL B&B

PLANT SCHEDULE

B&B

CLUMP

#2

CONT.

CA 18

CORNUS ALBA 'MINBAT'

BATON ROUGE DWARF DOGWOOD

6'-0" O.C.

#5

CONT.

TX 20

TAXUS X MEDIA 'TAUNTONI'

TAUNTON SPREADING YEW

5'-0" O.C.

#2

CONT.

AM 20

ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON'

IROQUOIS BEAUTY BLACK CHOKEBERRY

6'-0" O.C.

657



658



659



06-22-18 
PRELIMINARY BUILDING DESIGN: 
1702 17TH  STREET N W
AUSTIN, MINNESOTA 
 

FURNITURE MART USA 
PERSPECTIVE

EAST ELEVATION : 1” = 40’

PERSPECTIVE

660



Ashley Home Stores – Summary of Proposed Work 

The proposed site plan is for the addition of an Ashley HomeStore retail operation in the College 

Square mall at 6301 University Avenue. The proposed expansion consists of adding ~15,000 square 

feet of building onto the north / front section of the existing 83,500 square foot building.  This building 

was most recently occupied by Younkers. The addition is planned to align the newly constructed 

storefront building with the adjacent store fronts of the mall to the west. The current zoning of the 

property is S-1 and no zoning changes are being sought. 

The improvements will consist of the removal and replacement of a portion of the parking lot that is in 

significant disrepair in the northeast corner of the parking lot.  This repair will also include restriping of 

the reconstructed area for a more simplified parking layout. The interior roadway directly in front of 

the building (north side) is proposed to be straightened.  The rerouted roadway is proposed to become 

in line with the existing internal mall roadway to the west in order to provide a more natural traffic 

route and provide an area for the building expansion.  Additionally, the modified striping layout will 

remove and shift the current north-south interior easement access from its existing location to the east 

just slightly in order to provide a more direct north-south traffic flow which continues to the east side 

of the Yonkers building. 

Any utilities impacted by the building addition on the north side such as a water main, sanitary service 

and line and storm water will be shifted further north in order to make way for the building addition 

and road straightening. Overall the site grading will remain basically the same as it is locked into the 

existing parking lot and driveways on three sides. Storm water quality will be provided using 

hydrodynamic separators on the front and rear of the building. Storm water lines being replaced will 

be upsized slightly in order to provide additional outflow from the site. Sizing for these systems is still 

being determined. One fire hydrant will be relocated to the new building front. One parking lot light 

will be removed and replaced in the removal area in front of the building with a similar style light to 

match the existing mall parking lights. 

A few additional bushes will placed along the north east property line of the property. Planters will be 

placed between entrances and small trees and bushes will be located in a planter area on the northeast 

corner of the building. Additional bushes will be added in the existing islands on the east side of the 

building and near the truck dock. 

661



300 Westfield Ave., Ste 200/Waterloo, IA 50701         319/232-1156         GrowCedarValley.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April 17, 2019 

 
 
Planning & Zoning Commission Members 
c/o Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
 
RE: Ashley Furniture Homestore Site Plan Review  
 
Dear Commission Members, 
 
One area of emphasis of Grow Cedar Valley is to support and advocate for the continued 
growth of the City of Cedar Falls.   Numerous public and private partners cooperatively work to 
get this done. 
 
To that end, this letter is to express our support of the proposed Ashley Furniture Store 
redevelopment project proposed at 6301 University Avenue by Furniture Mart USA, Inc.   We 
praise City leaders and staff, Company representatives and mall officials who have worked hard 
getting to this point.   
 
Three years ago, Furniture Mart USA Inc made their first investment by building a distribution 
center in Cedar Falls Industrial Park and kept to their executed plans as outlined in the 
development agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and the Company.     
 
Furniture Mart USA Inc is exceeding their original commitment for a retail component of 25,000 
square foot to a 99,050 square feet footprint and a much larger capital investment.   Beyond 
the numbers this proposed developments helps further validate the reconstruction of 
University Avenue and puts new life and opportunity for future improvement at College Square 
Mall and surrounding area. 
 
 

 

662



300 Westfield Ave., Ste 200/Waterloo, IA 50701         319/232-1156         GrowCedarValley.com 

Page 2 
 
 
Grow Cedar Valley appreciates Planning & Zoning’s Commission Members import role in the 
economic growth of the City of Cedar Falls and the benefit it brings to the entire Cedar Valley 
Region. 
 
On behalf of Grow Cedar Valley, we look forward to your favorable review of this project.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Lisa Rivera Skubal, CEcD 
Vice President of Economic Development 
 
 
c: Jim Brown, Mayor 
    Troy Eichmann, COO, Furniture Mart USA, Inc. 
    Cary Darrah, CEO, Grow Cedar Valley 
    Ron Gains, City Administrator  
    Shane Graham, City Planner II 
 
 
 
 
 

663



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: May 2, 2019  

 SUBJECT: Developmental Procedures Agreement with Furn USA IA-Cedar Falls, LLC. 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve a Developmental Procedures Agreement 
regarding the Furn Subdivision at College Square Mall 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Furn USA IA-Cedar Falls, LLC 
 

LOCATION: 
 

6301 University Avenue (former Younkers store at College Square 
Mall) 
 

 
PROPOSAL:   
The owner of College Square Mall, College Square Realty, LLC, has an agreement in 
place to sell the former Younkers building located at the east end of College Square 
Mall to Furn USA IA-Cedar Falls, LLC, who is looking to redevelop the empty store into 
a new Ashley Homestore. The proposed buyer has been working with City staff for 
several months now in regards to platting the former Younkers store off onto its own lot 
in order to maintain separate ownership from the main mall property. 
 
In 2016, a Developmental Procedures Agreement was entered into between College 
Square Realty, LLC and the City of Cedar Falls as part of a subdivision which saw the 
owner subdivide 9 lots along University Avenue off from the mall. In the Agreement, the 
mall owner agreed to address certain aspects of the property, such as parking lot and 
access drive repairs, landscaping improvements, addition of a sidewalk, and addition of 
several parking spaces at several of the outlots so as to meet the parking requirements 
of the zoning ordinance. 
 
There are two aspects relating to that original Agreement that apply to the property that 
would be known as Furn Subdivision: parking lot repairs and landscaping. The 
proposed buyer is proposing changes to the timeline for the parking lot repairs, and is 
also proposing a new landscape plan for this property. Instead of amending the original 

664



Agreement, putting these items in the form of a new Developmental Procedures 
Agreement is the appropriate and legal format to move forward. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
College Square Realty, LLC purchased the 42-acre College Square Mall (Mall) property 
in March 2015. This included the main mall building, as well as 9 additional buildings 
located in front of the mall along University Avenue (Applebee’s at the east end to Wells 
Fargo at the west end). In November 2016, the mall owner submitted to the City the 
College Square Mall Addition preliminary and final plat. This plat subdivided the 9 
buildings in front of the mall onto their own lots, and at the time the owner indicated that 
the subdivision would provide several benefits:  securing capital that could be used for 
continued interior, exterior and site improvements, ongoing development and 
maintenance of the property, and attraction and retention of tenants. 
 
At the same time that the subdivision was approved in 2016, a Developmental 
Procedures Agreement was also approved between the City and College Square 
Realty, LLC in order to address certain aspects of the mall property, such as parking lot 
and access drive repairs, addition of a sidewalk from the mall to the trail along 
University Avenue, and the addition of landscaping across the mall property. This 
Agreement also included a supplemental Declaration of Easements, Covenants and 
Restrictions (ECR), which focused on the function and maintenance of the property 
given that there would be multiple property owners and in order to also comply with the 
S-1 zoning district regulations. The Agreement called for items such as the sidewalk 
installation, parking lot repairs, and landscaping to be installed by December 31, 2018, 
however those have not been completed as of yet. The mall owner asked for and 
received an extension until August 31, 2019 to complete those items per the 
Agreement. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
In conjunction with the approval of the preliminary and final plats of Furn Subdivision, 
staff has been working with the proposed buyer on what elements of the existing 
Developmental Procedures Agreement still need to be addressed on what will be known 
as the Furn Subdivision lot. The following two items are items that will still need to be 
addressed per the original Developmental Procedures Agreement. 
 

1. Within the original Agreement, the mall owner agreed to perform repair and 
reconstruction work on certain areas of the parking lot of the mall property, 
including areas within the proposed Furn Subdivision Lot. The areas to be 
repaired and/or replaced are shown on the exhibit below. The Agreement 
dictated that the work as shown on the exhibit be completed by December 31, 
2018. Item 3 in the exhibit below was completed, and the mall owner asked for 
and received an extension until August 31, 2019 to complete the remaining items 
per the agreement.   

 
There are 4 locations on what would be the new parcel for the Furn Subdivision 
that are required to be addressed per the Agreement: the north-south drive lane 

665



in front of the Younkers building (#2 in the image below), which was required to 
be overlaid with asphalt, the parking area at the northeast corner of the property 
(#1 in the image below), which was to be overlaid with asphalt, and two smaller 
areas along the east side of the property (#9 and #10 in the image below), which 
were to have potholes filled. After a site visit by staff, it appears that the small 
holes along the east side of the property have been filled, but the drive lane and 
area at the northeast corner of the property have not been overlaid with new 
asphalt. The proposed buyer does plan on overlaying this area with asphalt, per 
the Developmental Procedures Agreement, however they would like until 
September 1, 2020 to complete the work because they would like to complete 
the parking lot improvements after the building addition has been constructed.              
 

 
 

2. Within the original Agreement, the mall owner agreed to incorporate additional 
landscape plantings to the mall property, to work toward meeting current 
standards and provide a better delineation to parking isles. The landscape plan 
that is shown below shows where new trees, shrubs and landscape islands 
would be located throughout various locations of the mall property. The 
Agreement dictated that the plantings be completed by December 31, 2018. The 
mall owner asked for and received an extension until August 31, 2019 to 
complete those items per the Agreement.                 

666



 
As you can see on the plan, several parking lot islands along with landscaping 
are required to be installed on the proposed Furn Subdivision lot, in addition to 
other areas of the mall property. As an alternative to the parking lot islands and 
trees that are required per the original Developmental Procedures Agreement, 
the developer submitted a revised landscape plan for the Furn Subdivision lot 
that shows additional landscaping along the east property line within the existing 
greenspace area, shows new planters in front of the building between the 
sidewalk and the building, shows added trees and shrubs within a new 
greenspace area near the northeast corner of the building, and shows a new 
planter area within the existing greenspace area at the southeast corner of the 
building. A total of 15 new trees will be planted on the site, in addition to 7 
existing trees, for a total of 22 trees to be located on the site. The tree species 
includes Regal Prince Oak (3), New Horizon Elm (2), and Amur Maple (10). 
There will also be a total of 112 new shrubs that will be planted on the site. 
These species includes Iroquois Beauty Black Chokeberry (20), Sem Ash Leaf 
Spirea (54), Baton Rouge Dwarf Dogwood (18), and Taunton Spreading Yew 
(20). The revised landscape plan is attached as Exhibit “C” to the Developmental 
Procedures Agreement. The Agreement calls for the landscape work to be 
completed by September 1, 2020, as the buyer would like to complete the 
landscape improvements after the building addition is constructed. 

 
Both of the above listed items were components that were in the original Developmental 
Procedures Agreement in 2016, and will be carried into this updated Developmental 
Procedures Agreement with the proposed buyer of the Furn Subdivision lot. The repair 
of the parking lot will be done per the requirements of the original 2016 Agreement, and 
the only change in the new Agreement will be the completion date. For the landscaping, 

667



a revised plan has been submitted by the proposed buyer of the Furn Subdivision lot. 
Instead of trees and landscape islands being placed within the parking lot area, trees 
and shrubs will be added along the east property line and around the building. This 
Agreement also changes the completion date for the landscaping to September 1, 2020. 
 
It is staff’s belief that the components contained within the Developmental Procedures 
Agreement for the Furn Subdivision will help to ensure that the deficiencies that were 
noted in 2016 are still addressed, and that maintenance and repair of the property 
continue to occur in the future.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The attached Developmental Procedures Agreement has been drafted by the City 
Attorney and is acceptable to both parties. The Community Development Department 
recommends approval of the Developmental Procedures Agreement with Furn USA IA-
Cedar Falls, LLC regarding Furn Subdivision. 
 
Attachments:   
Developmental Procedures Agreement (with attached exhibits) 
 
CC:  Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 
 

668



College
Square Mall

Black Hawk
Village

Holiday Plaza
Peet Junior
High School

Southdale
Elementary

School

Ro
ya

l D
r

Va
lle

y P
ark

 D
r

Me
lro

se
 D

r Vic
tor

yD
r

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Pin Oak Dr

Bonita Blvd

Carlton Dr

Holiday Rd

Maplewood Dr

Homeway Dr

SLawn Rd
Lilac Ln

Wo
od

rid
ge

 D
r

Tu
cs

on
 D

r

La
uri

nd
a D

r

Da
lla

s D
r

Kn
oll

 R
idg

e D
r

Windsor Dr

Colorado Rd

Pr
ide

mo
re

Dr

Idaho Rd

Arizona Rd

Utah Rd

Ea
stp

ark
 R

d

Br
iar

wo
od

 D
r

Maryhill Dr

E Seerley Blvd

Calumett Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Orchard Dr

R-4

RP

R-3 C-2

R-3

C-2

C-2

R-3

S-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-2

RP

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra irie Pkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

CenterS t

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
May 6, 2019

Furn USA IA-Cedar Falls, LLC 
Developmental Procedures Agreement

669



670



671



672



673



674



675



676



677



678



679



680



681



682



Exhibit “B” 
 
 
 

Legal Description for Lot 1 of Furn Subdivision, in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

That part of Lot 1, College Square Mall Addition, Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa 
described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 1, thence S0°27’36”W 752.28 feet along the East 
line of said Lot 1; thence S77°03’00”W 229.21 feet; thence N89°42’30”W 213.81 feet to the 
southerly extension of the center of a common wall; thence N0°07’08”E 562.75 feet along said 
common wall and the northerly extension thereof; thence S89°54’25”E 10.06 feet; thence 
N1°00’24”E 240.53 feet to the North line of said Lot 1; thence S89°54’25”E 427.77 feet along 
the North line of said Lot 1 to the point of beginning, containing 344,375 square feet, or 7.906 
acres and is subject to easements and restrictions of record.  

683



Planet Fitness

6301 University Ave #1370,

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Former Younkers Department Store

6301 University Avenue

Cedar Falls, IA, 50613

Lot 1

College Square Mall

First Addition

College Square Mall

6301 University Avenue

Cedar Falls, IA, 50613

Asphalt Paving

Loading Dock

899.64'

X

899.52'

X

X

899.55'

Existing Property Line

1
0
0
'
 
S

e
t
b
a
c
k

Concrete

Steps

S89°54'25"E

427.77'

C

o

l

l

e

g

e

 

S

q

u

a

r

e

 

M

a

l

l

 

A

d

d

i

t

i

o

n

C

o

l

l

e

g

e

 

S

q

u

a

r

e

 

M

a

l

l

 

A

d

d

i

t

i

o

n

Pedestrian and ADA

Access Easement

14.80'

14.80'

5
4
.
8
0
'

Lot 1

College Square Mall

First Addition

Lot 1

College Square Mall

First Addition

N
0
1
°
0
5
'
1
7
"
E

2
4
0
.
1
3
'

S

7

7

°

0

3

'
0

0

"
W

2

2

9

.
2

1

'

N89°42'30"W 213.81'

N
0
0
°
0
7
'
0
8
"
E

5
6
2
.
7
5
'

N
0
1
°
0
0
'
2
4
"
E

2
4
0
.
5
3
'

S
0
0
°
2
7
'
3
6
"
W

7
5
2
.
2
8
'

Mall

Corridor

Mall

Corridor

Proposed Addition

3

QW

24

SS

10

SS

1

UN

1

UN

7

TX

6

TX

7

TX

6

AG

4

AG

8

CA

10

CA

12

AM

4

AM

2

AM

20

SS

EXISTING NO-MOW

LANDSCAPE

1

1

1

1
1

EXISTING TREES

EXISTING TREES

2

2

2

2

S

S

S

D
D

2
/
3

D

PLANT SPACING

4

L-1
SCALE:  3/4" = 1'-0"

TRIANGULAR

SPACING - 'S'

DISTANCE BETWEEN

ROWS - 'D'

TOTAL AREA PER

PLANT (SF)

12"

15"

18"

21"

10-1/2"

13"

15-1/2"

18"

0.88

1.35

1.94

2.63

24" (2')

30"

36" (3')

42"

21"

26"

31"

36"

3.50

5.42

7.75

10.50

48" (4')

54"

60" (5')

72" (6')

42"

47"

52"

62"

14.00

17.63

21.67

31.00

PLANT CENTER-TYP.

PLANT ROW-TYP.

EDGE OF PLANTING AREA

PLANT BEDS

3

L-1
N.T.S

B&B TREE PLANTING

2

L-1
SCALE:  3/4" = 1'-0"

2' RADIUS

MINIMUM

3x ROOT BALL DIAMETER

60°

DO NOT HEAVILY PRUNE THE TREE AT PLANTING. PRUNE ONLY

CROSSOVER LIMBS, CO-DOMINANT LEADERS, AND BROKEN OR

DEAD BRANCHES. SOME INTERIOR TWIGS AND LATERAL BRANCHES

MAY BE PRUNED; HOWEVER, DO NOT REMOVE THE TERMINAL BUDS

OF BRANCHES THAT EXTEND TO THE EDGE OF THE CROWN.

SET TOP OF ROOT BALL 2" HIGHER THAN GRADE.

EACH TREE MUST BE PLANTED SUCH THAT THE

TRUNK FLARE IS VISIBLE AT THE TOP OF THE  ROOT

BALL. TREES WHERE THE TRUNK FLARE IS NOT

VISIBLE SHALL BE REJECTED.  DO NOT COVER THE

TOP OF THE ROOT BALL WITH SOIL.

3" LAYER OF ORGANIC MULCH. DO NOT PLACE

MULCH IN CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK

SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING HOLE

BACK FILL WITH SOIL FROM PLANT PIT.

REMOVE ALL DEBRIS (SEE NOTE)

TAMP SOIL AROUND ROOT BALL BASE

FIRMLY WITH FOOT PRESSURE SO THAT

ROOT BALL DOES NOT SHIFT.

PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED

OR TAMPED SOIL.

LOOSEN 6" OF SUBGRADE

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE

(INCLUDING WIRE BASKET), AND BURLAP

FROM TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL.

NOTES:

· IF ROOT BALL IS WRAPPED IN

NON-BIODEGRADEABLE BURLAP OR NYLON ROPE,

REMOVE BEFORE BACK FILLING PIT.

·WHEN BACK FILLING PLANT PIT, PLACE EXISTING

SOIL IN TWO LIFTS. AFTER FIRST LIFT, PUDDLE SOIL

IN WITH WATER TO REMOVE ALL AIR POCKETS.

PLACE SECOND LIFT AND REPEAT. CONTINUE TO

PUDDLE AND FILL AS NECESSARY.

PROVIDE AND INSTALL TREEGATOR OR EQUIVALENT

PORTABLE DRIP IRRIGATION BAG. NOT REQUIRED IF

OPERATIONAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM EXISTS. ONLY USE

DURING MONTHS BETWEEN APRIL 1 AND OCTOBER 31.

8
"

M
I
N

.

3
"

TURFGRASS LAWN

CONCRETE LANDSCAPE EDGE.

MINIMIZE CONTACT

WITH

PLANT STEM(S)

CONCRETE WALK

5" DEEP MULCH POCKET

TOP OF MULCH IS TO BE

BELOW TOP OF WALK

EXTENDING A MINIMUM

OF 1'-0" FROM EDGE OF

WALK.

1'-0"

AMENDED PLANTING

BED SOIL AS SPECIFIED

ORGANIC MULCH AT

BASE OF EACH PLANT

ROCK MULCH, AS

SPECIFIED

WEED BARRIER

FABRIC AS SPECIFIED

SET TOP OF ROOT CROWN 1"

ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

MOUND PLANTING BED SOIL

SLIGHTLY TO TOP OF ROOT

CROWN

F
i
l
e
 
L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
:
 
L
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
1
9
\
1
9
0
8
6
 
A

s
h
l
e
y
 
H

o
m

e
 
S

t
o
r
e
 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
-
 
C

e
d
a
r
 
F

a
l
l
s
,
 
I
A

\
1
9
0
8
6
 
W

O
R

K
I
N

G
\
A

U
T

O
C

A
D

\
1
9
0
8
6
 
L
-
1

 
/
 
D

r
a
w

n
 
b
y
:
 
X

X
 
/
 
C

h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y
:
 
X

X

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

524 N MAIN AVE., SUITE 201

SIOUX FALLS, SD 57104

PH:  605.339.1205  FAX: 605.339.1215

REVISION SCHEDULE

ISSUE DATE DESCRIPTION

CONFLUENCE PROJECT # 19086

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

CONFLUENCE

OWNER

REVIEW SET

04-29-2019

COPYRIGHT ©  2019 BY CONFLUENCE

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.  THIS DRAWING IS PROVIDED AS AN

INSTRUMENT OF  SERVICE BY CONFLUENCE ,  AND IS INTENDED

FOR USE ON THIS PROJECT ONLY.   ANY REPRODUCTION, USE OR

DISCLOSURE OF  INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN WITHOUT

PRIOR  WRITTEN CONSENT OF CONFLUENCE IS STRICTLY

PROHIBITED.

A
s
h

l
e

y
 
H

o
m

e
 
S

t
o

r
e

s

6
3
0
1
 
U

n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
A

v
e
n
u
e

C
e
d
a
r
 
F

a
l
l
s
,
 
I
o
w

a

Planting Plan

L-1

SCALE:

40' 80'20'0'

1"=40'

Planting Plan

1

L-1
 

KEY QTY SIZE NOTES

CANOPY TREES

3

SHRUBS

QUERCUS X WAREI 'LONG'

REGAL PRINCE OAK

QW 2" CAL

#2

CONT.

SS 54

UNDERSTORY TREES

SORBARIA SORBIFOLIA 'SEM'

SEM ASH LEAF SPIREA

5'-0" O.C.

GENERAL NOTES

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING

ALL PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES WHICH LIE WITHIN THE

CONSTRUCTION AREA PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.  IOWA ONE

CALL NOTIFICATION CENTER:  1-800-292-8989.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL ITEMS WITHIN

THIS CONTRACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL STATE AND

LOCAL CODES AND REGULATIONS.  CONTRACTOR TO

COORDINATE ALL WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY

WITH THE APPROPRIATE JURISDICTIONS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE OWNER ANY

DAMAGE TO OWNER'S PROPERTY AND UTILITIES PRIOR TO

REPAIR.

ALL WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OSHA CODES

AND STANDARDS.   NOTHING INDICATED ON THESE

DRAWINGS SHALL RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR FROM

COMPLYING WITH ANY APPROPRIATE SAFETY REGULATIONS.

PLANT QUANTITIES IN PLANT SCHEDULE ARE FOR

CONVENIENCE ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED.

QUANTITIES ON PLAN WILL PREVAIL IF DISCREPANCIES

OCCUR.

ALL PLANTS, TREES, AND SHRUBS SHALL CONFORM TO OR

EXCEED MINIMUM QUALITY STANDARDS AS DEFINED BY THE

AMERICAN NURSERY AND LANDSCAPING ASSOCIATION,

CURRENT EDITION OF AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY

STOCK, AND SHALL BE PURCHASED FROM A LANDSCAPE

NURSERY. PLANTS, TREES, AND SHRUBS FURNISHED SHALL

BE OF THE SAME GENUS, SPECIES, CULTIVAR, AND SIZE AS

SPECIFIED IN THE PLANS. SPECIES AND VARIETY MAY BE

SUBSTITUTED ONLY BY THE APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT. EACH PLANT, TREE, AND SHRUB SHALL HAVE AN

IDENTIFICATION LABEL.

ALL PLANTS, TREES, AND SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH ALL THE DRAWINGS AND

SPECIFICATIONS INCLUDED IN THE PLANS.

WITHIN 2 HOURS AFTER BEING PLANTED, PLANTS, TREES,

AND SHRUBS SHALL BE WATERED TO THOROUGHLY

SATURATE THE BACKFILL SOIL AS THIS PROVIDES

SETTLEMENT AND FILLING OF VOIDS IN THE BACKFILL.

KEYNOTES

1. LANDSCAPE BED WITH WEED BARRIER FABRIC AND ROCK

MULCH.  WHERE EXISTING LANDSCAPE OCCURS REMOVE

EXISTING SHRUBS, MULCH AND PREPARE SOIL TO

RECEIVE NEW LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS.

2. INSTALL MULCH RING AT TREES AND SHRUBS PLANTED IN

TURF AND NO-MOW AREAS - TYP.

X

B&B

ACER GINNALA

AMUR MAPLE

AG 4'-5' HT10

2

ULMUS 'NEW HORIZON'

NEW HORIZON ELM

UN 2" CAL B&B

PLANT SCHEDULE

B&B

CLUMP

#2

CONT.

CA 18

CORNUS ALBA 'MINBAT'

BATON ROUGE DWARF DOGWOOD

6'-0" O.C.

#5

CONT.

TX 20

TAXUS X MEDIA 'TAUNTONI'

TAUNTON SPREADING YEW

5'-0" O.C.

#2

CONT.

AM 20

ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON'

IROQUOIS BEAUTY BLACK CHOKEBERRY

6'-0" O.C.

684



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: May 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Re-assignment of Contract for Consultant Services for the Downtown 
Visioning & Zoning Code Update Project 

 
In February 2019, the City Council approved a contract for professional services with 
Community ReCode, LLC to assist the City in developing a detailed vision plan for 
Downtown Cedar Falls and near neighborhoods and to develop new zoning standards 
to implement the vision plan. Ferrell Madden, LLC submitted the winning proposal for 
this project partnering with Community ReCode LLC and a number of other experienced 
sub-contractors.  Due to some unforeseen complications with meeting the City’s 
insurance requirements, Community ReCode agreed to be the contracting party with 
Ferrell Madden serving as the project lead.  
 

After working through the insurance issues, Ferrell Madden LLC has requested to 
assume the contract responsibilities and Community ReCode, LLC has agreed to 
assign the contract to them. There is no change to the contract, the project scope, or 
the team of consultants that are working on the project.  This assignment is being made 
solely to resolve the issues related to meeting the City’s insurance requirements in the 
most cost effective manner.  
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of the assignment of the contract from Community ReCode, LLC to Ferrell Madden LLC 
for consultant services for the Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update Project.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me 
at this office. 
 
Attachments:  

 Resolution – Community ReCode to Ferrell Madden 

 
xc: Ronald Gaines, City Administrator 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  

685



 

RESOLUTION __________ 

A RESOLUTION ASSIGNING THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR THE DOWNTOWN VISIONING AND ZONING CODE UPDATE, CITY 

PROJECT NUMBER PZ-000-3184 FROM COMMUNITY RECODE LLC TO 

FERRELL MADDEN LLC 

 

 WHEREAS, on February 18, 2019, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

(City Council, City)) adopted Resolution 21,435 approving a professional services agreement for 

the Downtown Visioning and Zoning Code Update (Agreement) with Community ReCode LLC 

(Community ReCode) as part of an overall project team led by Ferrell Madden, LLC (Ferrell 

Madden); and 

 WHEREAS, execution of the Agreement was made contingent on Community ReCode 

procuring specific insurance coverage related to the services to be provided in the Agreement; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Community ReCode and Ferrell Madden diligently pursued the procurement 

of the required insurance coverage; and 

 WHEREAS, Community ReCode and Ferrell Madden discovered, through the process of 

procuring the insurance, that it is more cost efficient and establishes a more streamlined project 

contracting and management process for Ferrell Madden to obtain and hold the required 

insurance coverage; and 

 WHEREAS, on April 19, 2019, Ferrell Madden provided insurance certificates to the City 

proving that the Agreement’s insurance requirements have been met by Ferrell Madden on 

behalf of the project team; and 

 WHEREAS, Community ReCode has agreed to assign the rights and obligations under 

the Agreement to Ferrell Madden; and 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement states in Section XI (c) that “[t]his Agreement may not be 

assigned unless agreed to in writing in advance by the non-assigning party;” and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the best interests of the City that the 

Agreement be assigned from Community ReCode to Ferrell Madden. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Section 1. That the  February 18, 2019, Professional Services Agreement for the 

Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update, Cedar Falls, Iowa, City Project Number PZ 000-

3184, may be assigned in its entirety from Community ReCode to Ferrell Madden effective as of 

May 1, 2019. 

Section 2. That Ferrell Madden is authorized to invoice the City for all work 

performed pursuant to the Agreement prior to the date of assignment, and to continue to invoice 

the City for services performed after assignment. 

686



Section 3.          That the Assignment of the Professional Services Agreement is hereby 

approved.   

 
ADOPTED this 6

th
 day of May, 2019. 

 
 
                                                                   _____________________ 
                                                                                  James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

687



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 26, 2019  

 SUBJECT: Adopt Project Priorities for Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update 
  Project No. PZ-000-3184  
 
 
City Council held a work session on April 1, 2019 to discuss project priorities for the 
Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update.  The purpose of the discussion was to 
establish over-arching priorities to guide the project.  They will create a touchstone when 
there are requests to shift direction or focus.  The priorities are not intended to pre-
determine the vision, nor are they intended to pre-empt or substitute for community input. 
 
Seven priorities were discussed for the project.  Explanatory information is noted with 
each one to help understand its intent.  

 
1. Create a thoughtful vision plan to manage change in the community over time. 

 Reflect on the past, consider the present, look to the future. 

 Respect the rich history and culture of Downtown Cedar Falls. 

 Maintain authenticity.  
 

2. Vision will be based on broad community input, gathered through a robust 
community outreach process.  

 Re-affirm ongoing community efforts and explore new ideas. 
 

3. Create a safe and welcoming process to explore new ideas. 

 Feedback is appreciated… and essential! 

 All ideas are welcome. 

 Think forward, what is your version of downtown? 

 What do you like about the past? Going forward? 
 

4. Take into account market realities, changing demographics for all types of 
development, and diversity of uses. 

 Future technology needs 

 Future transportation needs 

 Future housing needs 
 

  

688



5. Build on our success! Maintain/foster a unique sense of place. 

 Historic main street character 

 Pedestrian-oriented design 

 Explore the desired character of streets (State Street, Washington Street, 
Clay Street, etc.) 

 

6. Encourage economic development based on the adapted vision. 

 Maintain/enhance existing properties 

 Encourage new development 

 Invest in public infrastructure to support the vision 

 Tailor financial incentives and economic development grants to support 
project that further public goals, provide elements of community benefit, or 
demonstrate exceptional design.  

 

7. Establish clear and objective zoning standards to achieve the adopted 
community vision.  

 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends adopting these as the 
project priorities for our Downtown Visioning & Zoning Code Update. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
  

689



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Sturgis Permanent Stage Proposal 

 
On behalf of Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc., Jay Stoddard, is proposing to build a 
permanent stage at 421 Grant Street.  The property’s location is highlighted on the map 
below.  The Sturgis Falls event and contributions of Mr. Stoddard and the Board to the 
community continues to be a tremendous asset to Cedar Falls.   
 
The permanent stage is planned to include the following improvements:  

 a concrete pad flush with the existing ground level 

 Six 26’ tall columns 

 Aluminum truss system 
(approximately 40’x40’) 

 Interlocking portable stage 

 Temporary overhead “tent”  
Except for the portable stage and 
overhead “tent”, all improvements 
would remain year round.  The exact 
design has yet to be provided to the 
City.  Attached are documents 
communicating the idea of the columns 
and the aluminum truss system. 
 
This improvement is proposed on land zoned R-1.  The use is allowed within the 
following ordinance parameters: “private noncommercial recreational areas and 
facilities, swimming pools, and institutional or community recreation centers, including 
country clubs and golf courses.”  Noncommercial is interpreted as activities not making 
or intended to make a profit.  The intent of the ordinance is to avoid commercial 
operations in residential neighborhoods.  These require frequent utilization to be viable 
and therefore create noise, light, and traffic nuisances in a neighborhood, to name a few 
examples. 
 

690



 

 

The R-1 District setbacks are: 35’ front yard, 35’ rear yard, 8.4’ on each side yard.  Mr. 
Stoddard provided a sketch showing the stage at the southern edge of the property, 
centered between the east and west lot line.  The lot is 84 feet wide and the stage 
would be approximately 40 feet wide.  The lot is 198 feet deep and the stage is 
approximately 40 feet deep.  A variance is needed in order to deviate from R-1 setback 
requirements.  Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. may either meet the setbacks or submit a 
variance application with supporting materials and fee for consideration.  As an adjacent 
property owner to the proposal, Council may wish to communicate whether they have 
an objection or not, to the proposal.  The Council also has discretion to waive the 
variance application fee. 
  
Staff and Mr. Stoddard have discussed the importance of an aesthetic design that 
compliments the look and character of other permanent improvements in City parks 
both on the north and south side of the River as well as our future plans with the 
Riverfront.  The proposed stage’s location is highly visible.  Its height will also draw 
attention.  Staff has encouraged a permanent roof be part of the plan, to hide the truss 
system. 
 
It is requested that City Council pass a resolution of no objection to the proposal and 
waive the variance application fee for Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. 
 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 David Sturch, Planner III 

 
 
 
 
 

691



692



693



694



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 25, 2019 

 SUBJECT: 100 Block Alley Reconstruction 
   Project No. RC-039-3154 
   
 

In order to fully reconstruct the alley, the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction project 
necessitates the removal of rear building entrances that currently encroach into the 
alley.  Performing this work under the City’s contract improves coordination and avoids 
delays to the project.  Six properties have rear entrance improvements that are planned 
in conjunction with the City’s project.  Each property owner is in agreement to cover the 
costs of the above grade improvements.  The City will be responsible for providing 
adequate footings to support the newly constructed stairs.   
 
The costs outlined in each agreement are based on estimates of the project in 
February.  It provides that each owner will pay the actual cost, which will be confirmed 
at project completion.  Each owner will pay the City within 60 days of receiving an 
invoice.  The agreement provides the City authorization to put a lien against the 
property, if payment is not made. 
 
Following were the estimated costs: 

110 Main St. (FORE Investors, LLC) $960.00 

116 Main St. (David Farris and Mimi Rice) $10,920.28 

118 Main St. (David Farris and Mimi Rice) $17,205.33 

120 Main St. (IBL DDT, LLC) $3,048.80 

122 Main St. (BT Holdings, LLC) $4,811.00 

128 Main St. (SIMPLE AS 128, LLC) $1,750.00 

  
This project meets the Organizational Goal #4 of the City Council goals for fiscal year 
2019, utilizing TIF to make landscaping, alley, and other streetscape improvements in 
the Downtown and College Hill. 

695



Att: Stair Agreements:  
1. 110 Main St. (FORE Investors, LLC) 
2. 116-118 Main St. (David Farris and Mimi Rice) 
3. 120 Main St. (IBL DDT, LLC) 
4. 122 Main St. (BT Holdings, LLC) 
5. 128 Main St. (SIMPLE AS 128, LLC) 

 
  
CC:  Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 Jamie Castle, AIA, Building Official 

 
 
 
 
 
 

696



697



698



699



700



701



702



703



704



705



706



707



708



709



710



711



712



713



714



715



716



717



718



719



720



721



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
   2019 Engineering Services 
   Supplemental Agreement No. 5 
   Downtown 2nd and 3rd Street Reconstruction Project 

 Project Numbers:  RC-036-3194: 2nd Street Reconstruction: Main-Washington 
 RC-039-3195  3rd Street Reconstruction: State- Washington 

 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 5 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 
Engineering Services. This supplemental agreement will prepare construction plans, 
cost estimates, and bid documents for the reconstruction of 2nd Street from Main to 
Washington Street and 3rd Street from State to Washington Street.  In total, this is three 
blocks.  The project is part of the downtown streetscape expansion project, a 
partnership among the City, Community Main Street and Cedar Falls Utilities.  Recently, 
a Black Hawk County Gaming Association grant was awarded in support of Phase 1 of 
the project.  
 
Reconstruction of downtown streets can be more complex to design and require 
significant attention to detail.  The project will include reconstruction of the sidewalks 
along these segments, allowing the incorporation of the Parkade sidewalk design to 
spread out into our side streets and to also replace/add decorative lighting in these 
areas.  Doing this work together is overall more cost effective than doing it 
incrementally. 
 
The City will be coordinating with Community Main Street and businesses along these 
areas, as the design progresses.  It is anticipated to reconstruct entire blocks at a time.  
Due to the redevelopment of 302 Main Street and 123 E 3rd Street/305 State Street, the 
segment of 3rd Street between State and Main Streets may be the last one to be 
reconstructed.  In the 2020 construction season, it is anticipated that one block of 3rd St. 
and one block of 2nd St. would be reconstructed, each stretches from Main to 
Washington Street.  

722



 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the 2019 Engineering Services on December 3, 2018.  Funding for 
the Supplemental Agreement #5 will be certified as TIF debt for the $61,200 in design 
services. 
 
The total estimated cost for the three-block reconstruction is $1,458,000.  Staff will 
update CIP #78 in the fall with these estimates, being slightly higher than currently 
listed. The reconstruction anticipates utilizing TIF and a grant from Black Hawk County 
Gaming Association.  The City has secured the grant, generally to cover 30% of the 
Phase I project. 
 
This project meets Organizational Goal #4 of the City Council goals for fiscal year 2019, 
utilizing TIF to make landscaping, alley, and other streetscape improvements in the 
Downtown and College Hill. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of this Supplemental Agreement No. 5 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Downtown 
2nd and 3rd Street Reconstruction Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments please contact me. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

 

 
 

723



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 5 
 

2019 Engineering Services 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Numbers: 
RC-036-3194: 2

nd
 Street Reconstruction – Main to Washington 

RC-039-3195  3
rd

 Street Reconstruction – State to Washington 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(CLIENT), and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated December 3, 
2018 for the municipal engineering support services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include Scope of 
Services and Compensation for additional items required as a part of the 2019 Engineering Services,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement by adding 
the following items:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. The CONSULTANT shall provide Professional Services to design and develop construction 
documents to reconstruct West 2

nd
 Street between Washington Street and Main Street, 

reconstruct West 3
rd

 Street between Washington Street and Main Street, and reconstruct East 3
rd

 
Street between Main Street and State Street.  The CONSULTANT will develop the construction 
documents for two bid packages and two bid lettings.  The first phase is scheduled for 2020 
construction and shall include West 2

nd
 and 3

rd
 Streets between Washington Street and Main 

Street.  The second phase is scheduled for 2021, or 2022, construction and shall include East 3
rd

 
Street between Main Street and State Street.   
 

B. The CONSULTANT shall complete a topographic survey of the project site. 
 

1. Includes one block along West 2
nd

 Street between Washington and Main Streets, and two 
blocks along 3

rd
 Street between Washington and State Streets.  The topographic survey 

will extend from face of building to face of building, or extend 15-feet onto private property 
on those parcels where the building is not along the public right of way.  

2. Includes existing site terrain grades and locations of existing above ground features.  
3. Provide a CAD terrain model with one-foot contour intervals and spot elevations.  

 
C. The CONSULTANT shall incorporate the streetscape parkade concept designs developed for 

Main Street as part of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 into the construction documents for these 
three blocks along West 2

nd
 Street and 3

rd
 Street.  During the preliminary design phase, the 

724



2019 Engineering Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No.: 
RC-036-3194: 2

nd
 Street Reconstruction  

RC-039-3195  3
rd

 Street Reconstruction 
 

CONSULTANT will present the concept designs to the City for review and shall address any 
comments as part of the final plan submittal. 

 
D. The CONSULTANT shall design and incorporate the decorative street lighting from the Main 

Street concept designs and Downtown Streetscape Plan.  The street lighting limits extend further 
than the pavement reconstruction limits and are located: 
 

1. Along West 2
nd

 Street between Clay and Main Streets. 
2. Along 3

rd
 Street from 150-ft west of Washington Street to State Street. 

 
E. The CONSULTANT shall complete preliminary and final design services and preparation of 

construction documents for both phases. 
 

1. Prepare a functional design memo that includes design parameters and criterial items that 
will be utilized (e.g. typical section, roadway classification, speeds, etc.), project 
assumptions, potential design exceptions, etc. This information will be utilized for the 
remainder of the design. 

2. Develop preliminary design plans (50%) and the associated engineer’s opinion of probable 
cost (EOPC). These shall generally include:  
a.  Roadway pavement plan and profile information. 
b. New storm sewer structures and pipes. 
c.  New water main, services, and hydrants.  The water main along 3

rd
 Street will be 

upsized from 4-inches to 8-inches diameter.  The 8-inch diameter water main 
along 2

nd
 Street will be replaced with a new 8-inch water main.  

d. The existing sanitary sewer main will be protected and remain in place. 
e. Sidewalk will be replaced along both sides of the roadway.  Pavers from the Main 

Street concept streetscape parkade designs will be implemented between the 
buildings (or right of way) to the back of roadway curb. 

f. New street lighting implemented based on the Main Street concept designs. 
g. The roadway reconstruction is anticipated to not extend into the Washington 

Street intersections, Main Street intersections, and State Street intersection, and 
as such curb ramp and crosswalk replacements are not included with this design. 

h. Bump outs shall be designed at the alley connections within each block and prior 
to the intersections with Washington and State Streets in order to integrate on-
street parking and provide landscaping areas. 

i. Landscape areas implemented based on the Main Street concept designs. 
j. Construction staging notes and detour routing. 

3. All design to be in accordance with applicable state statutes, city ordinances, the Iowa 
Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS) and the Cedar Falls Supplemental 
Specifications to SUDAS. 

4. Utility Coordination with Cedar Falls Utilities and other franchise utilities to facilitate their 
relocations, or to make minor adjustments to the design to mitigate conflict points. 

5. Develop check plans (90%), and an updated EOPC upon receipt and incorporation of 
review comments from the preliminary plans.  

6. Prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan for the project site and apply for NPDES 
Permit No. 2 through the City of Cedar Falls. All fees associated with permits to be pass-
through expenses or supplied by the CLIENT at time of submittal. 

7. Prepare and apply for applicable DNR water construction permits. All fees associated with 
the permits to be pass-through expenses or supplied by the CLIENT at time of submittal. 

8. Prepare print documents (100%), final project manual (including specifications), and a final 
EOPC of proposed improvements after incorporation of review comments from check 
plans. 

 
F. The CONSULTANT shall facilitate and attend five (5) Project Management Team (PMT) meetings 

with the CLIENT.  The purpose of the PMT meetings are to review project details such as 
streetscape parkade designs, staging and detour routing, project schedule, discuss CLIENT’S plan 725



2019 Engineering Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No.: 
RC-036-3194: 2

nd
 Street Reconstruction  

RC-039-3195  3
rd

 Street Reconstruction 
 

review comments, and utility coordination updates.  It is anticipated two (2) of the PMT meetings 
will be in 2020 in advance of the Phase 2 Project. 

 
G. The CONSULTANT shall attend one (1) Public Information Meeting (PIM).  The CONSULTANT 

shall be responsible for notifying property owners and stakeholders to attend the PIM, preparing 
aerial display drawings of the corridors, preparing detail exhibits, and responding to questions or 
comments from the public. 

 
H. The CONSULTANT shall attend one (1) Community Main Street (CMS) Board Meeting.  The 

CONSULTANT shall be responsible for providing project details and exhibits for the CLIENT’S 
presentation to the CMS Board and be in attendance to respond to questions. 

 
I. The CONSULTANT shall provide bidding assistance for the Bid Lettings. The Phase 1 – 2020 

Construction Bid Letting should generally take place on or before January 24, 2020 with 
construction to be complete by September 30, 2020.  The Phase 2 – 2021 Construction Bid Letting 
is anticipated for the Fall 2020 and construction to be complete in the Summer 2021. 
 

1. Preparation of the project manual, including bid forms, form of contract, instruction of 
bidders and general conditions. 

2. Advertising – Notify Contractors, distribute plan sets, answer questions from potential 
contractors, subcontractors and suppliers, determine need of and issue addenda (as 
necessary) and coordinate with City Staff. 

3. Bidding – The Engineer shall attend the meeting at which bids are received, shall tabulate 
the bids and make recommendations to the City Council, in writing, regarding the 
awarding of the construction contract.  
 

J. Additional Services 
 

1. The CLIENT may request Additional Services from the CONSULTANT not included in the 
Scope of Services as outlined. Additional Services may include, but are not necessarily 
limited to; independent testing services such as concrete cylinder breaks and compaction 
testing, completion of a Phase 1 Archaeological and Cultural Resources Survey; 
attendance of a Pre-Bid meeting; sanitary sewer design; right of way acquisitions; 
construction services; expanding the scope of the project or the work to be completed; 
requesting the development of various documents not listed; extending the time to 
complete a project through no fault of the CONSULTANT; or requesting additional work 
items that increase the Engineering Services and corresponding costs.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for this scope of Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the 

hourly fees and other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total 
compensation is a not to exceed fee of One Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Two Hundred Dollars 
($161,200).   

 
III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as specified in 

the Professional Services Agreement dated December 3, 2018, as supplemented.  
 
 
 

  

726



2019 Engineering Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No.: 
RC-036-3194: 2

nd
 Street Reconstruction  

RC-039-3195  3
rd

 Street Reconstruction 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:   Lindsay Beaman               
 
 

Title:  Title:        Business Unit Leader                       
 

Date:  Date: May 3, 2019  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Estimated Budget Summary 

The estimated budgets for each task listed below could vary. The total not to 
exceed supplemental project cost should be the total listed below. 

Tasks Base 

Topographic and Boundary Survey $     9,700  

Project Management & Admin  $   22,100  

Public Engagement  $     5,900  

Streetscaping and Lighting - 2020  $   33,000  

Streetscaping and Lighting - 2021  $   22,000 

Roadway and Utilities Design 

Prelim – Both Phases (50%)  $   26,100  

Check – 2020 Construction (90%)  $   22,200 

Check – 2021 Construction (90%)  $   12,200  

Print Docs (Final)  $     2,200  

Bid Phase – 2020 Construction  $     3,000  

Bid Phase – 2021 Construction  $     2,800  

Total:  $ 161,200  

727



2019 Engineering Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No.: 
RC-036-3194: 2

nd
 Street Reconstruction  

RC-039-3195  3
rd

 Street Reconstruction 
 
 
 

Preliminary Project Schedule 

Tasks Start Date End Date Target Date 

Contract Approval - Begin Work -- -- 05/07/2019 

Topo and Boundary Survey 5/16/2019 5/24/2019 -- 

Design Criteria Memo 5/28/2019 5/31/2019 05/31/2019 

Design Criteria Memo Comments -- -- 06/07/2019 

Concept Design - Streetscape and Lighting 6/10/2019 6/21/2019 -- 

Preliminary Design - Roadway and Utilities 6/10/2019 6/21/2019 -- 

PMT Meeting #1 -- -- 06/25/2019 

Preliminary Design - All Elements and Both Phases 6/26/2019 7/3/2019 -- 

50% Prelim Plans submittal Both Phases     07/08/2019 

PMT Meeting #2: Receive City comments & meet -- -- 08/01/2019 

Final Design - Phase 1 Project 8/5/2019 8/23/2019 -- 

90% Check Plans - Phase 1     08/27/2019 

PMT Meeting #3: Receive City comments & meet -- -- 09/26/2019 

Permit Submittals (NPDES, water) -- -- 10/11/2019 

Final Design (100%) Print Docs - Phase 1     11/08/2019 

Bid Letting -- -- Dec. 2019 

Construction Start - Phase 1 -- -- April 2020 

Construction End - Phase 1 -- -- Sept. 2020 

PMT Meetings #4 & #5: Developer coordination -- -- Summer 2020 

Final Design - Phase 2 Project 8/4/2020 8/16/2020 Aug. 2020 

90% Check Plans - Phase 2     Aug. 2020 

Permit Submittals (NPDES, water) -- -- Sept. 2020 

Final Design (100%) Print Docs - Phase 2     Sept. 2020 

Bid Letting - Phase 2 -- -- Nov. 2020 

Construction Start - Phase 2 -- -- April 2021 

Construction End - Phase 2 -- -- July 2021 

 

728



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: May 3, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  Reorganization Ordinances 
 
 
You will recall that I provided to you a memorandum a couple weeks ago summarizing 
the Code of Ordinance changes made necessary by reorganization.  The attached 
Ordinance is one of four being presented for first consideration during the regular 
Council meeting on May 6, 2019. 
 
This particular Ordinance effects the changes in Divisions between the Department of 
Community Development and what will be known as the Department of Public Works.  
Essentially, the Engineering Services Division and the Water Reclamation Division are 
moving to Public Works, and the Visitors and Tourism/Cultural Programs Division as 
well as the Recreation and Community Programs Division are moving to Community 
Development. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions.   

729



1 
 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING ARTICLE VI, DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT, INCLUDING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, DIVISION 2, PLANNING AND 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION, DIVISION 3, ENGINEERING SERVICES DIVISION, 

DIVISION 4, INSPECTION SERVICES DIVISION, AND DIVISION 5, WATER RECLAMATION 

DIVISION, ALL OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW ARTICLE VI, 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, INCLUDING NEW DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, NEW DIVISION 2, PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION, NEW 

DIVISION 3, VISITORS AND TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, NEW DIVISION 

4, INSPECTION SERVICES DIVISION, AND NEW DIVISION 5, RECREATION AND 

COMMUNITY PROGRAMS DIVISION; (2) REPEALING ARTICLE VII, DEPARTMENT OF 

MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS, INCLUDING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, 

DIVISION 2, PUBLIC WORKS AND PARKS DIVISION, DIVISION 3, VISITORS AND 

TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION, AND DIVISION 4, RECREATION AND 

COMMUNITY PROGRAMS DIVISION, ALL OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU 

THEREOF NEW ARTICLE VII, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, INCLUDING DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, DIVISION 2, OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE DIVISION, DIVISION 3, 

ENGINEERING SERVICES DIVISION, AND DIVISION 4, WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety, and a new Article VI, Department of Community Development, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is enacted in lieu 

thereof, as follows: 

ARTICLE VI.  DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Division 1.  Generally 

 

730



2 
 

Sec. 2-652.   Created. 

There is hereby established in the city the department of community development. The 
administration of the department shall be integrated into and made a part of the regular city 
administration, and shall be coordinated with all other departments.  

(Code 2017, § 2-436; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-653.   Duties. 

It shall be the duty of the community development department to plan, coordinate and assist in the 
safe and efficient development of the city by the public and private sectors. Duties shall include:  

 (1)  Professional planning services encompassing supervision of planning, architectural and 
landscape architectural consultants; zoning administration; capital improvements programming; 
subdivision design; and comprehensive planning including population projections, economic 
forecasts, land use planning and other special long range studies.  

(2)  Building, plumbing, electrical and mechanical inspection services for all construction types.  

(3)  Economic development coordination and assistance which expands the city's employment and 
tax base in a safe and efficient manner.  

(4)  Grantsmanship activities for all city departments and programs, including interstate 
substitution, community development block grants, federal or state rent assistance programs, 
federal or state rehabilitation programs and federal or state conservation programs.  

(5)  Operation and maintenance of public drainageways, storm sewers, catchbasins, dams, flood 
control properties and stormwater detention facilities.  

(6)  Operation and maintenance of other public structures, programs or facilities specifically 
assigned by the city administrator, mayor or city council.  

(7)  Adherence to the city's landlord accountability code (chapter 11, article II, division 5), 
maintenance and nuisance codes, and all other code-related enforcement.  

(Code 2017, § 2-437; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-654.   Director of community development—Generally. 

(a)  Appointment. The director of community development shall be recommended for appointment by 
the city administrator. The city administrator shall recommend this appointment to the mayor for city 
council approval.  

(b)  Powers and duties.  

(1)  The director of community development shall supervise, direct and manage the conduct of the 
following divisions:  

a.  Planning and community services.  

b.  Visitors and tourism/cultural programs.  

c.  Inspection services.  

d.  Recreation and community programs.  

(2)  The director is empowered to exert supervisory and management control over each division 
and is empowered to appoint a planning and community services manager, building official, 
visitors and tourism/cultural programs manager and recreation and community programs 

731



3 
 

manager to serve as division heads. The division heads are individually charged by the director 
to carry out all of the statutory duties mandated by federal, state and local regulations of their 
respective divisions. The director is responsible for the establishment of broad policies related 
to departmental conduct, procedures and operations, and the formation of programs which 
provide the citizens of the city with a full range of developmental services. The director may 
peremptorily suspend, demote or discharge any subordinate under his or her direction for any 
lawful reason.  

(3)  The director shall be responsible for the preparation and administration of the departmental 
work program and budgets to ensure that all statutory and subsidiary programs are 
implemented by the division responsible. All purchases initiated by any division for any 
operation or program shall be approved by the director prior to submission to the city council for 
payment.  

(4)  The director shall perform all duties assigned by the city administrator, mayor and city council 
and shall be under the direct administrative supervision of the city administrator.  

(Code 2017, § 2-438; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-655.   Director of community development—Duties relative to boards, 

commissions and committees. 

The director of community development or the director's designee shall meet regularly with and 
furnish such assistance and information to the following commissions, boards, committees and other 
organizations when necessary:  

(1)  Planning and zoning commission.  

(2)  Board of adjustment.  

(3)  Housing commission.  

(4)  Plumbing examiners, electrical examiners and board of appeals.  

(5)  Metropolitan transportation board.  

(6)  Waterloo airport zoning commission.  

(7)  Historic preservation commission.  

(8)  Iowa Northland regional council of governments.  

(9)  Cedar Valley partnership.  

(10)  City neighborhood organizations (such as Community Main Street, College Hill Partnership, 
Overman Park Neighborhood Association, and Northern Cedar Falls Neighborhood 
Association).  

(11)  Board of rental housing appeals.  

(12)  Waterloo airport commission.  

(13)  Art and culture board. 

(14)    Visitors and tourism board. 

(15)     Island Park Beach House board 

(16)    Any applicable federal and state agencies, such as the state department of natural resources, 
the state economic development authority, the state department of transportation, the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency, the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, the United States Federal Emergency Management Administration, and the 
United States Federal Housing Authority. 

732



4 
 

 (Code 2017, § 2-439; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-656.   Acting director of community development. 

Whenever the director of community development is out of the city or unable to act on account of 
sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the city administrator has not 
appointed a director of community development, the director of community development or city 
administrator shall appoint one of the division heads as the acting director of community development. 
This designee shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the director.  

(Code 2017, § 2-440; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-657.   Authority of council. 

All final authority over the administration and policy of the department of community development 
shall be retained and exercised by the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-441; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

DIVISION 2.   PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION 

 

Sec. 2-688.   Created. 

The planning and community services division of the department of community development for the 
city is hereby created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-461; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-689.   Duties. 

(a)  It shall be the duty of the planning and community services division of the department of community 
development to provide a full range of professional planning services for all city departments, public 
projects and citizens of the city.  

(b)  The division shall have the power to coordinate all long-range plans developed by any public entity 
in the city.  

(c)  It shall also be the duty of this division to coordinate municipal economic development and housing 
programs.  

(Code 2017, § 2-462; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-690.   Planning and community services manager. 

(a)  Appointment. A planning and community services manager shall be appointed by the director of 
community development and shall be directly responsible to the director of community development. 
The planning and community services manager shall act as the city planner and the city zoning 
administrator. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all statutory civil service procedures.  

733



5 
 

(b)  Duties. The planning and community services manager shall supervise, direct and manage the 
planning and community services division, composed of the planning, economic development, and 
community development sections. The manager's duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  Promulgating orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the members of the 
planning and community services division within the parameters of departmental policy.  

(2)  Making an annual report of the activities of the division for each year, the report to be filed with 
the community development director.  

(3)  Assigning the personnel of the planning and community services division as deemed 
necessary to carry out the functions of the planning and community services division, and 
prescribing rules and regulations for the conduct and management of the division consistent 
with the department's policies.  

(4)  Performing or causing to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
community development.  

(5)  Working with federal, state and adjoining local governments in implementing the city's 
economic development and community development programs.  

(6)  Supervising and coordinating development and implementation of the city's comprehensive 
plan, subdivision and zoning ordinances, including the necessary research, analysis, plan 
preparation, design, program development and writing and editing of reports; supervising and 
coordinating development and implementation of the city's community development, economic 
development and redevelopment plans, including marketing, business development and 
financial assistance, and coordinating with other departments and agencies regarding the city's 
housing programs.  

(7)  Preparing and administering the division's work program and budget after consultation with the 
planning and zoning commission, assigning staff, determining schedules and reviewing 
progress on the work program.  

(8)  Working on economic development matters in cooperation with the city administrator, mayor, 
city council and metropolitan economic development committees, and appearing, either in 
person or by agent, before the council and committees.  

(9)  Administering the community development block grant program, including serving as contract 
compliance officer, monitoring outside contracted services to other departments and agencies 
and procuring and managing all necessary state and federal grants.  

(10)  Supervising, coordinating and reviewing work performed by professional consulting firms 
retained for planning, development and redevelopment studies.  

(11)  Supervising and coordinating analysis of the city's physical and socioeconomic characteristics 
and direct land use, population and economic forecasts.  

(12)  Acting as technical advisor on planning and development matters to the city administrator, 
mayor, city council and planning and zoning commission, and appealing, either in person or by 
agent before the council and commission to report or advise on major planning and community 
development projects, significant economic, housing, land use and population study findings, 
and new planning and development techniques being utilized in other communities.  

(13)  Working with all city departments in matters relating to planning and community development 
programs.  

(14)  Reviewing all public projects undertaken by city departments, special districts, the county and 
other governmental agencies to ensure they are compatible with city plans.  

(15)  Aiding the planning and zoning commission and city council in the development of the capital 
improvements program and other long-term financial plans.  

734



6 
 

(16)  Preparing educational and informational materials; consulting with developers, public officials 
and citizens on planning and development matters; and coordinating and reviewing work 
performed by professional consulting firms retained for planning and development studies.  

(17)  Supervising and having jurisdiction over the conduct of the zoning administrator and the 
enforcement of all zoning regulations enacted by the city.  

(18)  Coordinating metropolitan planning efforts related to transportation, economic development 
and other related activities with all other affected entities.  

(19)  Serving as the city representative on the metropolitan transportation board.  

(20)  Providing staff support to the city board of adjustment, city planning and zoning commission,   
housing commission and board of rental housing appeals.  

(21)  Supervising and managing the city’s housing programs, including rental assistance, rental 
rehabilitation, moderate rehabilitation, emergency repairs, housing rehabilitation, housing 
vouchers and others as these become available.  

(Code 2017, § 2-463; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-691.   Acting planning and community services manager. 

Whenever the planning and community services manager is out of the city, or is unable to act on 
account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the director of 
community development has not appointed a planning and community services manager, the planning 
and community services manager or the director of community development shall appoint a designee 
who shall have and exercise all powers and duties of the planning and community services manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-464; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

DIVISION 3.   VISITORS AND TOURISM/CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION 

 

Sec. 2-715.   Created. 

The visitors and tourism/cultural programs division of the department of community development for 
the city is hereby created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-581; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-716.   Powers and duties. 

(a)  It shall be the duty of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division of the department of 
community development to provide visitors and tourism programs and services for the visitors and 
tourists to the city, that promote overnight lodging, purchase of goods and services from city 
businesses, and promote special events, festivals, and attractions in the city; and to provide cultural 
programs for the citizens of the city, including fine arts, performing arts, spectator arts and crafts.  

(b)  The division shall have the power to operate and maintain the visitors and tourism/cultural programs 
services offices, in compliance with the operations and programming policy prescribed by the city 
visitors and tourism board, the director of community development, and the city council; and to 
operate and maintain the James and Meryl Hearst Art and Culture Center, in compliance with the 
operations and programming policy prescribed by the city art and culture board, the director of 
community development, and the city council.  

735



7 
 

(Code 2017, § 2-582; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-717.   Manager. 

(a)  Appointment. A visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager shall be appointed 
by the director of community development. Such appointment shall be in accordance with 
all statutory civil service procedures.  

(b)  Powers and duties. The visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager shall 
supervise, direct and manage the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division. The 
manager's powers and duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the 
members of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division within the parameters of 
city, departmental, visitors and tourism board policies, and art and culture board 
policies.  

(2)  To make an annual report of the activities of the division for each fiscal year, to be 
filed with the community development director, the visitors and tourism board, the art 
and culture board, and the city council.  

(3)  To assign the personnel of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division as 
deemed necessary to carry out the functions of the visitors and tourism/cultural 
programs division, and to prescribe rules and regulations for the conduct and 
management of the division consistent with city and departmental policies, visitors and 
tourism board policies, and art and culture board policies.  

(4)  To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
community development.  

(5)  To manage the visitors and tourism offices, programs and projects in accord with 
operations and programming policies established by the city visitors and tourism board, 
the director of community development, and the city council; and to manage the James 
and Meryl Hearst Art and Culture Center, in compliance with operations and 
programming policies established by the city art and culture board, the director of 
community development, and the city council.  

(6)  To implement a full range of visitors and tourism programs for the city within the 
financial constraints and program offerings recommended by the visitors and tourism 
board and authorized by the city council.  

(7)  To implement a full range of art and cultural programs for the city within the financial 
constraints and program offerings recommended by the art and culture board and 
authorized by the city council.  

(8)  To maintain for the city visitors and tourism board and for the art and culture board:  

a.  Full and complete records of all proceedings.  

b.  Full and complete records of all receipts and disbursements in conjunction with 
the financial services division.  

c.  Full and complete records of all donations, devices and bequests received and 
disbursed, or placed in special accounts in conjunction with the financial services 
division.  

736



8 
 

d.  An inventory of all pictures, paintings, statues, relics, books, papers, journals, 
supplies, equipment, and other property held by the division in the city's name in 
conjunction with the financial services division.  

(Code 2017, § 2-583; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

 Sec. 2-718.   Acting manager. 

Whenever the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager is out of the city or is 
unable to act on account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time 
when the director of community development has not appointed a visitors and tourism/cultural 
programs division manager, the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager, or the 
director of community development shall appoint a designee who shall have and exercise all the 
powers and duties of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-584; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

DIVISION 4.   INSPECTION SERVICES DIVISION 

Sec. 2-742.   Created. 

The inspection services division of the department of community development for the city is hereby 
created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-501; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-743.   Duties. 

It shall be the duty of the inspection services division of the department of community development 
to provide for the inspection of all construction for its compliance with state, federal and local regulations.  

(Code 2017, § 2-502; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-744.   Building official. 

(a)  Appointment. A building official shall be appointed by the director of community development and 
shall be directly responsible to the director of community development. Such appointment shall be in 
accordance with all statutory civil service procedures.  

(b)  Duties. The building official shall supervise, direct and manage the inspection services division. The 
building official's duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  Promulgating orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the members of the 
inspection services division within the parameters of departmental policy.  

(2)  Making an annual report of the activities of the division for each year, the report to be filed with 
the community development director.  

(3)  Assigning the personnel of the inspection services division as deemed necessary to carry out 
the functions of the inspection services division, and prescribing rules and regulations for the 
conduct and management of the division consistent with the department's policies.  

737



9 
 

(4)  Supervising and having jurisdiction over the conduct of the plumbing inspector, electrical 
inspector, building inspector and mechanical inspector of the city.  

(5)  Enforcing the International Residential Code, the International Building Code, Uniform 
Plumbing Code, National Electrical Code, and Uniform Mechanical Code in the form adopted by 
the city council as they relate to construction activity within the city.  

(6)  Coordinating enforcement activities with the department of public safety for all construction 
affected by the housing code, life safety code and minimum housing quality standards.  

(7)  Supervising the city’s code enforcement program.  

(8)  Supervising the design and construction of all city buildings and other structures. 

(9)     Managing and supervising the city’s stormwater management program in conjunction with the 
city engineer.  

(Code 2017, § 2-503; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-745.   Acting building official. 

Whenever the building official is out of the city, or unable to act on account of sickness or for any 
other reason, including those periods of time when the city council has not appointed a building official, 
the building official or director of community development shall appoint a designee who shall have and 
exercise all the powers and duties of the building official.  

(Code 2017, § 2-504; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

DIVISION 5.   RECREATION AND COMMUNITY PROGRAMS DIVISION 

Sec. 2-778.   Created. 

The recreation and community programs division of the department of community 
development for the city is hereby created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-601; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-779.   Powers and duties. 

(a)  It shall be the duty of the recreation and community programs division of the department of 
community development to provide active and passive leisure services for the citizens of 
the city.  

(b)  The division shall have the power to operate the city's recreation centers, swimming pools, 
recreational facilities and golf courses, and their associated programs.  

(Code 2017, § 2-602; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-780.   Manager. 

(a)  Appointment. A recreation and community programs division manager shall be appointed 
by the director of community development and shall be directly responsible to the director of 

738



10 
 

community development. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all statutory civil 
service procedures.  

(b)  Powers and duties. The recreation and community programs division manager shall 
supervise, direct and manage the recreation and community programs division, which is 
composed of the aquatic, golf, and recreation sections. The manager's powers and duties 
shall be as follows:  

(1)  To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the 
members of the recreation and community programs division within the parameters of 
departmental policy.  

(2)  To make an annual report of the activities of the division for each year, to be filed with 
the community development director.  

(3)  To assign the personnel of the recreation and community programs division as 
deemed necessary to carry out the functions of the recreation and community 
programs division, and to prescribe rules and regulations for the conduct and 
management of the division consistent with the department's policies.  

(4)  To oversee the contract with the golf pro in conjunction with the operations and 
maintenance manager.  

(5)  To provide a full range of active and passive recreational programs, available to all 
age groups, which provides social, educational and competitive enrichment to the 
participants.  

(6)  To maintain and operate the city's recreational center and public swimming pools.  

(7)  To provide a full range of aquatic programs, available to all age groups, which are 
coordinated with the public school system and private clubs to provide social, 
educational and competitive enrichment to all participants.  

(8)  To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
community development.  

(9)  To supervise the work and performance of all private concessionaires or private 
recreation service contractors authorized by the city council to have operation rights to 
city recreational facilities.  

(Code 2017, § 2-603; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-781.   Acting manager. 

Whenever the recreation and community programs division manager is out of the city, or 
unable to act on account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time 
when the community development director has not appointed a recreation and community 
programs division manager, the recreation and community programs division manager or the 
community development director shall appoint a designee who shall have and exercise all the 
powers and duties of the recreation and community programs division manager.  

(Code 2017, § 2-604; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

 

739



11 
 

       Section 2.  Article VII, Department of Municipal Operations and Programs, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety, and a new Article VII, Department of Public Works, of Chapter 2, Administration, of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:   

ARTICLE VII.  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Division 1.  Generally 

Sec. 2-808.   Created. 

There is hereby established in the city the department of public works. The administration of 
the department shall be integrated into and made a part of the regular city administration, and 
shall be coordinated with all other departments.  

(Code 2017, § 2-541; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-809.   Duties. 

It shall be the duty of the public works department to provide, operate and maintain:  

(1)  Public streets, bridges, parking lots, sidewalks and rights-of-way, exclusive of class I 
medians and sidewalks, including those maintained by private property owners in 
accordance with city ordinance.  

(2)  Collection and disposal of residentially generated refuse, commercial refuse collection 
and disposal specifically contracted by a commercial establishment and the city, and 
the operation of the city's refuse transfer station.  

(3)  City motor pool operations for all departments, including maintenance, purchase or 
lease of all motorized licensed vehicles and special equipment not specifically 
assigned to a department.  

(4)  All public buildings under city ownership except those controlled by Sartori Hospital or 
the city utilities.  

(5)  Traffic signs, signals and pavement markings.  

(6)  Other public structures, programs or facilities specifically assigned by the mayor or 
city council.  

       (7)   Professional civil engineering services encompassing supervision of engineering 
consultants; establishment of street grades and benchmarks; maintenance of field 
notes for all improvements installed; design of public improvements including the 
preparation of costs, plans and specifications; inspection of all public improvements 
constructed; and maintenance of official city maps, profiles, papers, books and 
surveys.        

       (8)  Public grounds maintenance in city parks, city golf courses, riverfront land, street 
medians and any other public lands assigned by the mayor and city council.  

(9)  All trees and shrubs in public places, and enforce all city regulations related to 
vegetation control within the city.  

(10)  Cemeteries, including interments and the keeping of all pertinent records.  

740



12 
 

(11)   Water reclamation. 

(12)   Operation and maintenance of public sanitary sewage collection and disposal 
facilities, including lift stations, force mains, treatment plants, sewer lines, manholes, 
detention basins and public septic tanks. 

 (Code 2017, § 2-542; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-810.   Director of public works—Generally. 

(a)  Appointment. The director of public works shall be recommended for appointment by the 
city administrator. The city administrator shall recommend this appointment to the mayor for 
city council approval.  

(b)  Powers and duties.  

(1)  The director of public works shall supervise, direct and manage the conduct of the 
following divisions and sections:  

a.   Operations and maintenance. 

b.   Engineering services. 

c.   Water reclamation.  

  

(2)  The director is empowered to exert supervisory and management control over each 
division and is empowered to appoint a city engineer, operations and maintenance 
manager, and a water reclamation manager. The managers are individually charged by 
the director to carry out all of the statutory duties mandated by federal, state and local 
regulations affecting their respective divisions. The director is responsible for the 
establishment of broad policies related to departmental employee conduct, procedures, 
operations and the formation of programs which maintain and operate public facilities 
and structures assigned to the department. The director may peremptorily suspend, 
demote or discharge any subordinate under his or her direction for any lawful reason.  

(3)  The director shall be responsible for the preparation and administration of the 
departmental work program and budgets to ensure that all statutory and subsidiary 
programs are implemented by the division responsible. All purchases initiated by any 
division for any operation or program shall be approved by the director prior to 
submission to the city council for payment.  

(4)  The director shall perform all other duties assigned by the city administrator, mayor 
and city council and shall be under the direct administrative supervision of the city 
administrator.  

(Code 2017, § 2-543; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 2-811.   Director of public works—Duties relative to boards and commissions. 

The director or designee shall meet regularly with and furnish such assistance and 
information to the following commissions, boards, committees and other organizations when 
necessary:  

(1)  Parks and recreation commission.  

741



13 
 

(2)  County solid waste management commission.  

(3)  Big Woods Lake Park and campground boards.  

(4)  Joint governance committee for the UNI demonstration area. 

(5)     Any applicable federal and state agencies.  

(Code 2017, § 2-544; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 2-812.   Acting director of public works. 

Whenever the director of public works is out of the city, or is unable to act for any reason, 
including those periods of time when the city administrator has not appointed a director of public 
works, the director of public works or city administrator shall designate an acting director. The 
acting director shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the director.  

(Code 2017, § 2-545; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-813.   Authority of council. 

All final authority over the administration and policy of the department of public shall be 
retained and exercised by the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-546; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

DIVISION 2.   OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

Sec. 2-835.   Created. 

The operations and maintenance division of the department of public works for the city is 
hereby created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-566; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-836.   Duties. 

It shall be the duty of the operations and maintenance division of the department of public 
works to construct, maintain and repair all streets, storm sewers and sanitary sewers; provide 
for refuse collection and disposal; maintain public buildings, maintain municipal vehicles and 
equipment, and provide public grounds maintenance in city parks, city golf courses, public 
riverfront land, class I street medians and rights-of-way and city-owned cemeteries, and public 
arboriculture.  

(Code 2017, § 2-567; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

742



14 
 

Sec. 2-837.   Manager of operations and maintenance. 

(a)  Appointment. The manager of operations and maintenance shall be appointed by and 
shall be directly responsible to the director of public works. Such appointment shall be in 
accordance with all statutory civil service procedures.  

(b)  Duties. The manager of operations and maintenance shall supervise, direct and manage 
the operations and maintenance division, composed of the refuse, street, traffic operations, 
public buildings, vehicle maintenance, parks, cemetery, and golf course maintenance 
sections. The manager's duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  Providing for the repair of all streets, sidewalks, bridges and parking lots to ensure 
that they are kept in a reasonably safe condition.  

(2)  Inspecting all sewers in operation in the city at frequent and regular intervals in a 
systematic manner to ensure that all parts of the system and its appurtenances are 
kept in working order. In case of any defect in the operation of any sewer due to 
stoppage or break, repairs shall be made without delay.  

(3)  Providing for the safe and sanitary collection and disposal of all residentially 
generated refuse and for the disposal of all refuse generated by private individuals or 
commercial enterprises who contract with the city for disposal.  

(4)  Maintaining all designated city vehicles and equipment through a central vehicle and 
equipment pool.  

(5)  Providing for snow removal, ice control and leaf collection on public streets.  

(6)  Operating and maintaining all public traffic signals.  

(7)  Providing and maintaining, in conformance with city ordinances and chapter 23, all 
traffic signs and pavement markings.  

(8)  Maintaining all public buildings assigned to the division, including janitorial activity.  

(9)  Designing all city parks and public landscaping in association with the needs of the 
director of public works and other public entities.  

(10)  Coordinating the city pesticide application program in conformance with state and 
federal regulations.  

(11)  Supervising the maintenance, compilation and preservation of accurate cemetery 
interment and lot sales records through supervision of the cemetery section.  

(12)  Coordinating the care and maintenance of all city arboricultural needs in 
conformance to city ordinance by serving as the city arborist, delegating specific duties 
to the arborist section.  

(13)  Managing all public grounds, including parks, cemeteries, golf courses, class I street 
rights-of-way and medians, public driveways, storm sewers, catchbasins, dams, flood 
control properties, and stormwater detention basins, riverfront lands and other property 
assigned by the mayor and city council.  

(14)  Promulgating orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the 
members of the operations and maintenance division within the parameters of 
departmental policy.  

(15)  Making an annual report of the activities of the division to the public works director.  

743



15 
 

(16)  Assigning the personnel of the operations and maintenance division as deemed 
necessary to carry out the functions of the  division, and prescribing rules and 
regulations for the conduct and management of the division consistent with the 
department's policies.  

(17)  Performing or causing to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
public works.  

(c)  Powers. The manager of operations and maintenance shall have power to appoint, if 
necessary, supervisors for the following sections: streets, traffic , refuse, cemetery, parks, 
golf, and buildings.  

(Code 2017, § 2-568; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-838.   Acting manager of operations and maintenance. 

Whenever the operations and maintenance division manager is out of the city, or is unable 
to act on account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the 
public works director has not appointed an operations and maintenance manager, the manager 
of operations and maintenance or the public works director shall appoint an acting manager who 
shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the manager of operations and 
maintenance.  

(Code 2017, § 2-569; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-839.   Authority to impose restrictions on vehicle weight or temporarily close 

streets. 

(a)  Whenever any street within the city, by reason of deterioration, rain, snow or other climatic 
conditions, may be seriously damaged or destroyed unless the use of vehicles thereon is 
prohibited or the permissible weights thereof reduced, the operations and maintenance 
manager shall, without direction from the council, for a period not to exceed 90 days, 
prohibit the operation of vehicles or impose restrictions as to the weight of vehicles to be 
operated on any such street, and shall erect or cause to be erected and maintain signs 
giving notice of such restrictions at each end or portion of the street affected.  

(b)  Whenever signs are erected giving notice of such closures, no person shall disobey the 
restriction stated on such signs.  

(Code 2017, § 2-570; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-840.   Report of cost of improvements when cost charged to abutting property. 

In case any improvement is ordered by the council, and the cost thereof is to be charged to 
the abutting property, the operations and maintenance manager shall make an itemized report 
of the cost of such improvement to the council within ten days after completion of the 
improvements.  

(Code 2017, § 2-571; Ord. No. 2825, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

744



16 
 

DIVISION 3.   ENGINEERING SERVICES DIVISION 

Sec. 2-863.   Created. 

The engineering services division of the department of public works for the city is hereby 
created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-481; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-864.   Powers and duties. 

(a)  It shall be the duty of the engineering services division of the department of public works 
to provide a full range of professional engineering services for all city departments and 
public projects.  

(b)  The division shall have the power to design, inspect, survey and map all city 
infrastructures.  

(Code 2017, § 2-482; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-865.   City engineer. 

(a)  Appointment. A city engineer shall be appointed by the public works director and shall be 
directly responsible to the director of public works. Such appointment shall be in 
accordance with all statutory civil service procedures.  

(b)  Qualifications. The person appointed to the office of city engineer shall be a professional 
civil engineer licensed by the state and fully qualified to practice within the state. One 
hundred and eighty days shall be provided from the date of appointment to qualify as 
provided by law.  

(c)  Duties. The city engineer shall supervise, direct and manage the engineering services 
division. The city engineer's duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  Promulgating orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the 
members of the engineering services division within the parameters of departmental 
policy.  

(2)  Making an annual report of the activities of the division to the public works director.  

(3)  Assigning the personnel of the engineering services division as deemed necessary to 
carry out the functions of the engineering services division, and prescribing rules and 
regulations for the conduct and management of the division consistent with the 
department's policies.  

(4)  Performing or causing to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of 
public works.  

(5)  Being in full charge of all public improvements ordered by the city council and 
preparing estimates of costs, plans and specifications and presenting such information 
to the council for approval, and supervising the construction of such improvements in 
accordance with the plans and specifications and, upon completion, preparing a final 

745



17 
 

report for the council giving in detail the itemized final costs and other pertinent facts of 
such improvements.  

(6)  Making all necessary surveys of streets, alleys, avenues and public squares, and 
other surveys when required by the council, showing the lines, dimensions, names of 
streets, lots and blocks and other pertinent facts.  

(7)  Taking the necessary levels and measurements of all streets, alleys or avenues 
where the measurements have not already been done, for the purpose of establishing 
street grades, and preparing the necessary profiles and drawings showing the existing 
surface and the grades proposed and submitting the proposed grades to the council for 
approval and proper establishment of the grades by ordinance.  

(8)  Creating a system so that notes of all surveys, levels, grades and other field work are 
kept in field notebooks. The notebooks shall be numbered in regular order and the 
notes entered in them in a manner which ensures that the work can be readily made 
out, and which shows in which part of the city the work has been done, giving the name 
of the street, number of the lot and block and exact location of lines or grades or 
whatever else pertains to the field work, that they may be clearly located on the 
ground. All calculations relating to the notes and surveys shall appear on the pages of 
the field books.  

(9)  Requiring that benchmarks are to be placed upon some solid and secure point readily 
reached from the adjoining streets which identify the levels and grades. These 
reference marks shall preserve the survey of the streets, blocks and lots, in a clear 
description made in field books.  

(10)  Assist with maintaining official city maps and keeping the maps in a correct and up-
to-date fashion showing new additions, streets, alleys, avenues, public squares, public 
buildings, bridges, streams and other pertinent objects.  

(11)  Preserving in the office all field notes, maps, plans, profiles, papers, books, writings, 
and records, and arranging and indexing the records in a manner which allows ready 
reference. All field books kept by the engineer and all necessary blanks for records, 
maps and plans used by the city engineer in the discharge of the official duties shall be 
furnished at the expense of the city, and such books, records and files shall be the 
exclusive property of the city, and at the expiration of the term of office or the 
resignation or removal of the city engineer he shall turn over the books, records and 
files to his successor, or to some person duly authorized to receive the books, records 
and files for the city.  

(11)  Carefully entering all construction data of all public improvements into the permanent 
office records. Such records shall include the location of extensions of sewer lines, 
streets and other public improvements.  

(12)  Reviewing all proposed subdivisions submitted for approval to the city planning and 
zoning commission and the council and examining such subdivisions carefully as to 
their compliance with good engineering practices and to the subdivision regulations, 
and informing the commission and the council in writing as to the findings and 
compliance with the subdivision regulations.  

(13)  Coordinating the design, inspection and construction of all road and street projects 
with the state, federal and local government authorities and the respective professional 
design and inspection consultants and contractors.  

746



18 
 

(14)  Managing and supervising the city's stormwater management program in 
conjunction with inspection services.  

(15)  Supervising the design and construction of all city infrastructure, including 
wastewater treatment facilities, force mains, levees, and lift stations.  

(Code 2017, § 2-483; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 2-866.   Acting city engineer. 

Whenever the city engineer is out of the city, or unable to act on account of sickness or for 
any other reason, including those periods of time when the public works director has not 
appointed a city engineer, the city engineer or director of public works shall appoint a designee 
who is qualified to exercise all the powers and duties of the city engineer.  

(Code 2017, § 2-484; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

DIVISION 4.   WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 

Sec. 2-874.   Created. 

The water reclamation division of the department of public works for the city is hereby created.  

(Code 2017, § 2-521; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-875.   Duties. 

It shall be the duty of the water reclamation division of the department of public works to provide for 
the safe and sanitary treatment and disposal of sewage collected by public facilities.  

(Code 2017, § 2-522; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-876.   Water reclamation manager. 

(a)  Appointment. A manager of water reclamation shall be appointed by and shall be directly 
responsible to the director of public works. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all 
statutory civil service procedures. The manager will also serve as the superintendent of water 
reclamation.  

(b)  Duties. The manager of water reclamation shall supervise, direct and manage the water reclamation 
division. The manager's duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  Promulgating orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the members of the 
water reclamation division within the parameters of departmental policy.  

(2)  Making an annual report of the activities of the division to the public works director.  

(3)  Assigning the personnel of the water reclamation division as deemed necessary to carry out 
the functions of the water reclamation division, and prescribing rules and regulations for the 
conduct and management of the division consistent with the department's policies.  

(4)  Operating and maintaining all public sewage treatment and pumping facilities, including septic 
tanks, lift stations, detention basins and the main plant, in conformance with state discharge 
permits and federal regulations.  

747



19 
 

(5)  Performing or causing to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of public 
works.  

(Code 2017, § 2-523; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 2-877.   Acting manager of water reclamation. 

Whenever the water reclamation manager is out of the city, or is unable to act on account of 
sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the public works director has not 
appointed a water reclamation manager, the manager of water reclamation or the public works director 
shall appoint an acting manager who shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the manager of 
water reclamation.  

(Code 2017, § 2-524; Ord. No. 2825, § 2, 6-23-2014) 

 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

  

748



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: May 3, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  Reorganization Ordinances 
 
 
You will recall that I provided to you a memorandum a couple weeks ago summarizing 
the Code of Ordinance changes made necessary by reorganization.  The attached 
Ordinance is one of four being presented for first consideration during the regular 
Council meeting on May 6, 2019. 
 
This particular Ordinance carries out the change in name from the Department of 
Municipal Operations and Programs to the Department of Public Works.  As you can 
see, many Code of Ordinance changes were necessary. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions.   

749



1 
 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENANCTING IN LIEU 

THEREOF, NEW SECTIONS WITH THE SAME NUMERICAL DESIGNATION AS THOSE 

REPEALED:  (1).  SECTION 2-218, POWER AND DUTIES, OF DIVISION 3, RULES OF 

PROCEDURE, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; (2).  

SECTION 7-307, FILING OF CONSENTS TO ROUTE, SECTION 7-311, ISSUANCE, AND 

SECTION 7-312, DENIAL, OF DIVISION 3, PERMIT, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 7, 

BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS; (3).  SECTION 10-1, DEFINITIONS, 

SECTION 10-3, CONTAINERS; PLACEMENT FOR COLLECTION; PLACEMENT, 

SECTION 10-5, SERVICE CHARGES-ESTABLISHED, SECTION 10-8, UNSANITARY 

ACCUMULATIONS, UNSIGHTLY TRASH, REFUSE, YARD WASTE, OIL OR GREASE 

RECYCLING CONTAINERS OR DUMPSTERS, AND SECTION 10-13, PRIVATELY 

OWNED OR LEASED TRASH DUMPSTERS OR RECEPTACLES IN CITY PARKING 

LOTS, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 10, GARBAGE AND 

REFUSE; (4).  SECTION 15-83, GENERAL NOISES PROHIBITED, OF ARTICLE III, 

NOISE, OF CHAPTER 15, NUISANCES; (5).  SECTION 17-76, DUTIES OF CEMETERY 

SUPERVISOR AND SECTION 17-99, TRAFFIC REGULATIONS, BOTH OF DIVISION 3, 

CEMETERY SECTION, OF ARTICLE II, ARBORIST AND CEMETERY SECTIONS; AND 

SECTION 17-196, PUBLIC FACILITIES ESTABLISHED, MANAGEMENT, SECTION 17-

197, PERMITS, SECTION 17-199, MISCELLANEOUS PROHIBITED ACTS, SECTION 17-

200, TRAFFIC REGULATIONS, SECTION 17-201, CAMPING, SECTION 17-202, 

HUNTING, TRAPPING AND FISHING, SECTION 17-203, ADVERTISING, SECTION 17-

204, CONCESSIONS, SECTION 17-205, USE OF PUBLIC ADDRESS SYSTEMS AND 

AMPLIFYING DEVICES, SECTION 17-206, DISSEMINATION OF MATERIALS OR 

INFORMATION TO THE PUBLIC, SECTION 17-207, RESERVATION OF PARK AREAS 

AND FACILITIES, AND SECTION 17-208, POSSESSION OF BEER OR OTHER 

INTOXICATING LIQUOR, SECTION 17-209, AUTHORIZED OFF-LEASH DOG EXERCISE 

FACILITY AND SECTION 17-210, SPECIAL EVENTS IN GATEWAY PARK SPACE, OF 

ARTICLE V, PARK REGULATIONS; AND SECTION 17-246, NOXIOUS WEEDS 

PROHIBITED; EXCEPTIONS, AND SECTION 17-247, FAILURE TO DESTROY NOXIOUS 

WEEDS; RIGHT TO HEARING; DESTRUCTION BY CITY, OF ARTICLE VI, TREES AND 

SHRUBS; AND SECTION 17-275, RECREATIONAL TRAILS, OF ARTICLE VII, 

ARTIFICIAL LAKES AND RECREATIONAL TRAILS, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 17, 

750



2 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION; (6).  SECTION 19-73, STORAGE OF BUILDING 

MATERIALS, AND SECTIONS 19-74, CERTAIN COMMERCIAL USE OF PUBLIC 

SIDEWALKS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, AND SECTION 19-94, USE OF PUBLIC 

SIDEWALKS FOR SIDEWALK CAFES AND SECTION 19-97, REVIEW OF 

APPLICATION, OF DIVISION 2, SIDEWALK CAFES, OF ARTICLE III, OBSTRUCTIONS; 

AND SECTION 19-185, REMOVAL OF SNOW AND ICE, OF ARTICLE V, SIDEWALK 

CONSTRUCTION AND REPAIR, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 19, STREETS AND 

SIDEWALKS; (7).  SECTION 23-71, DUTY TO ERECT AND MAINTAIN SIGNS, SECTION 

23-72, AUTHORITY TO PLACE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, SECTION 23-73, 

PLACEMENT OF ONE-WAY STREET SIGNS, SECTION 23-74, MARKING OF TRAFFIC 

LANES, SECTION 23-75, MARKING OF TURN LANES, SECTION 23-76, PLACEMENT 

OF STOP SIGNS AT INTERSECTIONS, SECTION 23-77, ESTABLISHMENT OF 

CROSSWALKS AND SAFETY ZONES, SECTION 23-78, PLACEMENT OF STOP SIGNS 

AT SCHOOL ZONES, SECTION 23-79, ERECTION OF AUTOMATIC STOP SIGNALS AT 

SCHOOL ZONES, SECTION 23-80, PAINTING OF CURBS OR ERECTION OF SIGNS 

PROHIBITING PARKING OR STANDING, SECTION 23-81, REGULATION OF PARKING 

ADJACENT TO SCHOOLS, SECTION 23-82, ESTABLISHMENT OF TEMPORARY NO 

PARKING ZONES AND ONE-WAY STREETS, SECTION 23-83, MARKING OF PARKING 

SPACES, OF DIVISION 2, DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND 

PROGRAMS TRAFFIC STANDARDS, OF ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND 

OBEDIENCE; AND SECTION 23-388, PROHIBITED PARKING DURING SNOW 

REMOVAL, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, STANDING AND 

PARKING, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES; (8).  

SECTION 24-6, RELOCATION OF UTILITY FACILITIES UNDERGROUND, OF ARTICLE 

I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 24 UTILITIES; (9).  CONFORMING TITLES TO 

SUBSECTIONS, SECTIONS, DIVISIONS, AND ARTICLES ACCORDINGLY.            

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Section 2-218, Power and Duties, of Division 3, Rules of Procedure, of Article II, 

City Council, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and new Section 2-218 is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

Sec. 2-218.   Power and duties. 

The city administrator shall be the chief administrative officer (CAO) of the city, responsible to the 
mayor and city council for the management of all city affairs placed in the administrator's charge by city 
ordinance. The city administrator shall:  

(1)  Direct and supervise the administration of all departments, offices and agencies of the city, 
except as otherwise provided by this Code or by law;  

(2)  Appoint and suspend or remove all city employees and appointive administrative officers 
provided for by or under this Code, except as otherwise provided by law, this Code or personnel 
policies adopted by the city council. The city administrator may authorize any administrative 
officer subject to the administrator's direction and supervision to exercise these powers with 
respect to subordinates in that officer's department, office or agency;  

751



3 
 

(3)  Attend all city council meetings. The city administrator shall have the right to take part in 
discussion but shall not vote;  

(4)  See that all laws, provisions of this Code, resolutions, ordinances and acts of the city council, 
subject to enforcement by the city administrator or by officers subject to the administrator's 
direction and supervision, are faithfully executed;  

(5)  Recommend to the mayor and council such measures as the administrator may deem 
necessary for good efficient government and the general welfare of the city;  

(6)  Have general supervision and direction of the administration of the following departments, 
offices, classifications, and services and be directly responsible to the mayor and council for the 
proper function of same:  

a.  Department of finance and business operations;  

b.  Department of public works;  

c.  Department of community development;  

d.  Department of public safety services;  

e.  Budget and capital improvements preparation and operation;  

f.  Purchasing, contracts and agreements as approved by council;  

g.  Administrative policies and procedures;  

h.  Personnel policies and procedures;  

i.  Labor agreements;  

j.  City legal representation and the prosecution of all code violations;  

k.  Risk management policies, procedures and claims resolution;  

l.  Economic development policies and procedures 

m.   All others as directed by council;  

(7)  Supervise the performance of all contracts for work and services to be done for the city except 
as specified otherwise in said construction or service program involved;  

(8)  Maintain an accounting of all obligations, agreements, commitments, and contractual 
franchises involving the city and report to the mayor and council any deviations from the exact 
terms as specified;  

(9)  Be authorized to direct the purchasing of all commodities, materials, supplies, capital outlay, 
and services for all departments of the city that have been budgeted and appropriated by a 
resolution of the council and enforce a program to determine that such purchases are received 
and are of the quality and character called for in the order;  

(10)  Require the taking of bids on all matters deemed advisable as required by law, or as directed 
by the council;  

(11)  Have the power to hire, suspend, or discharge any employee over which the manager has, by 
this article, authority to appoint or employ, subject to civil service provisions and Iowa Code ch. 
20 and city council concurrence where necessary;  

(12)  Have the authority to employ any person for emergency purposes as deemed necessary for 
the welfare of the city, but in no case shall said employment be extended after the first council 
meeting following the date of employment, unless otherwise approved by vote of the council;  

(13)  Supervise and manage all buildings, structures, and land under the jurisdiction of the council 
and shall also be charged with the care and preservation of all city-owned equipment, tools, 
machinery, appliances, supplies, and commodities under the control of employees or 
departments over which the city administrator has, by this division, specific authority;  

752



4 
 

(14)  Have the power to appoint, employ, transfer, promote, reclassify, recommend a rate of pay, 
discipline, or discharge all persons to city service, subject to civil service provisions and Iowa 
Code ch. 20 unless such power specifically assigned by law to another appointing authority;  

(15)  Review and comment on personnel actions made by the police and fire chiefs to the mayor 
and city council;  

(16)  Develop, administer, and enforce personnel rules and regulations for employees under the 
authority delegated to the office of city administrator;  

(17)  At all times, be responsible for the maintenance of accurate and current records of all affairs 
of the departments under the administrator's jurisdiction, and in a form acceptable by the 
council. Copies of such reports shall be available for public inspection;  

(18)  Assist the council committees in the execution of their reviews, investigations, reports and 
assignments, and perform in compliance with their directives; provided, same is not in conflict 
with established procedure governed by this division or not in conflict with existing city 
ordinances;  

(19)  Perform duties and have direct authority on all matters delegated by council action;  

(20)  Prepare and submit the annual budget and capital improvements program to the mayor for 
review based upon approved city council goals; implement the final budget as approved by city 
council;  

(21)  Submit to the city council and make available to the public a complete report on the finances 
and administrative activities of the city as of the end of each fiscal year;  

(22)  Make such other reports as the city council may require concerning operations;  

(23)  Keep the city council fully advised as to the financial condition and future needs of the city;  

(24)  Make recommendations to the city council concerning the affairs of the city and facilitate the 
work of the city council in developing policy;  

(25)  Provide staff support services for the mayor and councilmembers;  

(26)  Assist the council to develop long-term goals for the city and strategies to implement these 
goals;  

(27)  Encourage and provide staff support for regional and intergovernmental cooperation;  

(28)  Implement partnerships endorsed by the mayor and council that develop good public policy 
and the building of a sense of community;  

(29)  Perform such other duties as are specified in this Code, state statute or may be required by 
the city council; and  

(30)  Cooperate with, and give assistance requested by, the Sartori Memorial Hospital, Inc., board 
of directors, the board of trustees of the city public library, the city utilities board of trustees, or 
any other administrative agency, board, commission or committee of the city.  

(Code 2017, § 2-176; Ord. No. 2824, § 3, 6-23-2014) 

       Section 2.  Section 7-307, Filing of Consents to Route, Section 7-311, Issuance, and Section 

7-312, Denial, of Division 3, Permit, of Article VI, Moving of Buildings, of Chapter 7, Buildings 

and Building Regulations, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are 

hereby repealed in their entirety, and new Sections 7-307, 7-311, and 7-312 are enacted in lieu 

thereof, as follows: 

753



5 
 

Sec. 7-307.   Filing of consents to route. 

With the application for a permit to move a building, there shall be filed the consents to the routing by 
the telephone company, the city utilities, the fire operations division, the police operations division and the 
public works department, and, where the route crosses railroad property, consent must be obtained from 
the railroad involved.  

(Code 2017, § 7-473)  

Sec. 7-311.   Issuance. 

Upon the filing of the application for a permit to move a building, payment of the fee therefor and 
filing of bond, and upon approval of the proposed move by the city arborist, chief of police and the director 
of public works, the permit sought shall be issued by the building official.  

(Code 2017, § 7-477)  

Sec. 7-312.   Denial. 

(a)  When, in the judgment of the police operations division, the city arborist or the director of public 
works, the proposed building movement will result in an undue hazard to traffic, or undue damage to 
streets, avenues, boulevards, thoroughfares, highways, curbs, sidewalks, trees or other public or 
private property, or where it is determined by the building official that the relocation of the building is 
not in the best interests of the surrounding property owners due to age of the structure or the 
structure's architecture not being compatible with the existing buildings, the permit sought shall be 
denied, and the reasons therefor endorsed upon the application.  

(b)  The permit to move a building shall also be denied if the structure will not comply with the provisions 
of this Code or other ordinances of the city or the laws of the state relating to electrical and plumbing 
requirements of new structures, unless the owner has obtained a permit to correct the violations, or if 
the power or telephone company refused to consent to the operations, or if the structure will not 
comply with the zoning chapters within the proposed location.  

(Code 2017, § 7-478)  

       Section 3.  Section 10-1, Definitions, Section 10-3, Containers; Placement For Collection; 

Placement, Section 10-5, Service Charges-Established, Section 10-8, Unsanitary 

Accumulations, Unsightly Trash, Refuse, Yard Waste, Oil Or Grease Recycling Containers Or 

Dumpsters, and Subsection 10-13, Privately Owned Or Leased Trash Dumpsters Or 

Receptacles In City Parking Lots, Of Article I, In General, of Chapter 10, Garbage and Refuse, 

of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety, 

and new Sections 10-1, 10-3, 10-5, 10-8 and 10-13 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 10-1.   Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Business units means each separate establishment for carrying on a gainful occupation.  

Garbage means solid waste consisting of animal, grain, fruit or vegetable matter used or originally 
intended for use as food.  

754



6 
 

Household units mean each dwelling unit as defined in section 11-30.  

One-sided collection area means a group of dwellings, trailers, apartments or business 
establishments that have been designated by the director of public works as beneficial for collection of 
publicly owned garbage and yard waste containers in a single pass.  

Person means each single person or head of each family occupying a separate dwelling unit, or 
each person, firm or corporation operating a separate business unit.  

Premises means the property occupied by a separate household or business unit, whether or not the 
property is separately owned.  

Refuse means all combustible inorganic waste material and rubbish such as papers, sweepings, 
rags, ashes, cinders and similar materials originating from ordinary household or business operations.  

Yard waste means organic debris such as grass clippings, leaves, tree limbs, bark, branches, 
flowers, etc., that is produced as part of commercial or residential yard or garden operation, development 
or maintenance. The term "yard waste" does not include:  

(1)  Tree stumps.  

(2)  Garbage.  

(3)  Floral and decorative products, manufactured or fabricated, or the waste byproducts incidental 
to their manufacture or fabrication, which include organic materials and other nonorganic 
wastes which are not practically separable. This exemption includes, but is not limited to, things 
such as flower arrangements, decorated potted plants, wreaths, bouquets, garlands and small 
bedding flats.  

(Code 2017, § 12-1; Ord. No. 2387, § 1, 6-24-2002; Ord. No. 2896, § 1, 3-6-2017)  

Sec. 10-3.   Containers; placement for collection; penalty for violation. 

(a)  Every owner or occupant of any private dwelling, trailer, apartment or business establishment shall 
have all garbage drained and bagged for deposit and placed in a publicly owned container, unless 
otherwise exempted from use of city collection service by the director of public works pursuant to 
section 10-2(3) and (4). All yard waste shall be placed in special publicly owned yard waste 
containers for automated pickup, except for leaves made available for a special fall leaf pickup on 
such schedule and in such manner as shall be determined by the city.  

(b)  Unless otherwise specified by the director of public works, publicly owned garbage and yard waste 
containers shall be placed in a neat and orderly manner in the front of the premises at or near the 
curb line so as to allow the most convenient collection. All privately owned garbage and refuse 
containers shall likewise be placed in a neat and orderly manner in the front of the premises at or 
near the curb line or at the rear of the premises or near the edge of an alley, as the case may be. No 
publicly or privately owned garbage container, and no publicly owned yard waste container, shall be 
so placed prior to 6:00 p.m. on the day preceding collection and the same must be removed not later 
than 8:00 p.m. on the day of collection or as otherwise directed by the director of public works.  

(c)  In areas designated by the director of public works as one-sided collection areas, all publicly owned 
garbage and yard waste containers shall be placed as provided for in subsection (b) of this section 
except that such containers shall be placed at or near the same curb line on the same side of the 
street or alley as indicated in the designation.  

(d)  The director of public works shall have the authority to designate the proper placement for 
collection, if other than as provided for in subsection (b) of this section, of publicly and privately 
owned garbage containers and publicly owned yard waste containers for every private dwelling, 
trailer, apartment or business establishment, provided that the owner or occupant is given at least 30 
days advance notice prior to the effective date of the designation. 

(Code 2017, § 12-3; Ord. No. 2656, § 1, 5-27-2008; Ord. no. 2896, § 2, 3-6-2017)  

755



7 
 

 

Sec. 10-5.   Service charges—Established. 

(a)  Household units. The expense of garbage and refuse service and automated yard waste service 
shall be a charge against the owner or occupant of every household unit within the city in the amount 
of:  

(1)  $13.00 per month for non-automated garbage truck routes. This base charge allows the 
placement of two garbage units for weekly pickup. A garbage unit may be either a plastic bag or 
a commercial manufactured garbage can with a lid. The maximum size for a garbage unit shall 
not exceed 33 gallons or weigh more than 60 pounds. Each garbage unit in excess of the two 
allowed each week must have a city garbage bag tag attached in order to be picked up.  

(2)  Automated garbage refuse collection fees shall be as follows: $9.00 per month for a city-issued 
32 gallon garbage container, $17.00 per month for a city-issued 68 gallon garbage container or 
$26.50 per month for a city-issued 95 gallon container. One additional garbage unit may be 
placed on top of the automated cart if said unit has a city garbage bag tag attached and meets 
the size limits defined in subsection (a)(1) of this section.  

(3)  Automated yard waste collection fees shall be as follows: $7.00 per container per dump for a 
city-issued 95 gallon yard waste container, increasing to $10.00 per container per dump 
effective on and after July 1, 2013; provided, however, that effective on and after January 1, 
2014, and during such time periods in the spring and fall of each year as shall be determined by 
the director of public works and announced to the public, such charge shall be one-half of the 
regular $10.00 per container per dump fee, that is, $5.00 per container per dump.  

(4)  Effective on and after July 1, 2013, bulk items left at the curb for city pick-up if the city is called 
for pick-up, shall be $5.00 per stop, plus the per-unit charge for appliances, CRT monitors, and 
automobile, truck and tractor tires and rims, as provided in the chart in subsection (g) of this 
section. There shall be no charge for bulk items, other than appliances, brought to the city 
transfer station, except that the per-unit charge for appliances, CRT monitors, and automobile, 
truck and tractor tires and rims, as provided in the chart in subsection (g) of this section, shall 
apply.  

(5)  The owner or occupant of any household unit within the city may request one additional city-
issued, 95-gallon yard waste container for such household unit, at a one-time, non-refundable 
fee of $50.00. Such additional yard waste container shall at all times remain the property of the 
city. No more than a total of two yard waste containers shall be allowed for any household unit 
in the city.  

(b)  Residential units. The expense of garbage and refuse service and automated yard waste service 
shall become a charge against the owner or occupant of every residential unit, at the same rate as is 
provided for household units in subsection (a) of this section, on a per-residential-unit basis or part 
thereof. A residential unit, for purposes of this subsection, shall consist of four people unrelated by 
blood, marriage or adoption.  

(c)  Churches and similar institutions. The expense of garbage and refuse service and automated yard 
waste service shall become a charge against each church or similar institution which uses the 
garbage and refuse service or the automated yard waste service of the city, at the residential unit 
rate as established in section 10-5(a).  

(d)  Penalty for late payment. There shall be assessed a penalty if the bill for garbage and refuse 
service or the automated yard waste service is not paid at the time indicated on the consumer's 
regular monthly utility bill. The penalty shall be in the same amount as authorized for municipal 
utilities under state law.  

(e)  Reduction for low-income households. The owner or occupant of every household unit which meets 
the low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the Section 8 Housing 

756



8 
 

Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of public works for, and be 
granted, a 50 percent reduction in the monthly garbage and refuse service charges as established in 
subsection (a)(2) of this section.  

(f)  Collection of garbage and refuse at commercial or apartment buildings through the use of 
dumpsters. The dumping fee for the use of dumpsters used to collect garbage and refuse at 
commercial or apartment buildings shall be in the amount of $35.00 per dump.  

(g)  Garbage and refuse and yard waste service charges.  

Christmas tree tags purchased for disposal of trees for pick-up at curb  $1.25/each  

Appliances brought to the city transfer station  $7.50/each  

Cathode ray tube monitors (computer and television monitors)  $5.00/each  

Automobile tire  $2.50/each  

 
With rim  $5.00/each  

Truck or tractor tire  $6.50/each  

 
With rim  $9.00/each  

Purchase of empty bags for sand at the city transfer station  $0.50/each  

Yard waste containers (other than city-issued containers) brought to the 

city transfer station  
$0.75/each  

Garbage bag tags placed on top of cart at curb  $1.25/each  

Dumping of commercial or apartment dumpsters  $35.00/per dump  

Three yard containers  $35.00/per dump  

Solid waste disposal bags brought to the city transfer station  $0.75/each  

Demolition  $59.15/ton  

Solid waste  $57.50/ton  

Yard waste  $29.50/ton  

Scale charge  $3.00  

Cart delivery; exchanging automated carts (this charge will be 
$20.00  

757



9 
 

implemented if resident continues to change sizes)  

Leaf vacuum service  $50.00  

Asphalt shingles free of contaminants brought to shingle recycling site at 

city transfer station  
$30.00/ton  

Minimum tipping fees at the city transfer station:  

 
Solid waste up to 260 pounds  $7.00/dump  

 
Yard waste up to 400 pounds  $7.00/dump  

Demolition dumping at the city transfer station  $59.15/ton  

Asphalt shingles containing contaminants dumped at shingle recycling 

site at city transfer station  

$59.15/ton plus $10.00/ton 

service charge  

Additional yard waste container (no more than a total of two; non-

refundable fee)  
$50.00  

  

(h)  The placing of or failure to remove garbage or yard waste container within specified time limits. The 
placing of or failure to remove a garbage or yard waste container as required in section 10-3(b) shall 
result in a service charge of $5.00 per occurrence to be assessed to the owner or occupant of any 
private dwelling, trailer, apartment or business establishment, the same to be collected as provided 
in section 10-6.  

(i)  Asphalt shingle recycling. An asphalt shingle recycling site at the city transfer station shall be 
provided in order to accept asphalt shingles for recycling. Asphalt shingles which are free of 
contaminants which include, but are not limited to, wood, metal flashing, shingle wrappers, trash or 
other debris, shall be accepted for recycling at the city transfer station at a favorable tipping fee, as 
set forth in the table contained in subsection (g) of this section. However, asphalt shingles containing 
contaminants which are dumped at the shingle recycling site at the city transfer station shall be 
subject not only to the normal tipping fee for demolition dumping at the city transfer station, but shall 
also be subject to a $10.00 per ton service charge all as set forth in the table contained in subsection 
(g) of this section.  

(Code 2017, § 12-5; Ord. No. 2795, § 1, 6-24-2013; Ord. No. 2821, §§ 1, 2, 6-9-2014; Ord. No. 2840, §§ 
1, 2, 3-16-2015; Ord. No. 2896, § 4, 3-6-2017)  

Sec. 10-8.   Unsanitary accumulations, unsightly trash, refuse, yard waste, oil or grease recycling 

containers or dumpsters. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to permit to accumulate on any premises, improved or vacant, or 
on any public property in the city, such quantities of garbage and refuse, or of yard waste, either in 
containers or not, as shall, in the opinion of the county board of health, constitute a health or sanitation 

758



10 
 

hazard. All trash, refuse, yard waste must be kept entirely within an approved refuse container. It shall be 
unlawful for any person to permit to exist on any private premises, improved or vacant, or on any public 
property in the city, any trash, refuse, yard waste, or oil or grease recycling container, or trash dumpster, 
privately owned or publicly owned, in an unsightly condition, whereupon the director of public works or 
designee may, in his or her discretion, require such person to erect or construct an enclosure to screen 
such unsightly container or dumpster from public view.  

(Code 2017, § 12-8; Ord. No. 2387, § 1, 6-24-2002; Ord. No. 2880, § 1, 9-19-2016; Ord. No. 2896, § 5, 3-
6-2017)  

Sec. 10-13.   Privately owned or leased trash dumpsters or receptacles in city parking lots. 

(a)  Any person who desires to place a privately owned or leased trash dumpster or receptacle upon a 
space in a municipally owned or leased off-street parking lot within the city shall first file an 
application for a permit with the city clerk, and shall pay an annual permit fee therefor, in such 
amount as shall be determined from time to time by resolution of the city council. The application and 
an accompanying diagram or site plan shall be submitted by such person, and shall show the size of 
the trash dumpster or receptacle, and the location of the proposed placement of the trash dumpster 
or receptacle within the municipal parking lot.  

(b)  Issuance of an annual permit for a private trash dumpster or receptacle by the city clerk shall be 
subject to approval of the city director of municipal operations and programs. A permit issued under 
this section shall be issued for a period of one year, and may be renewed by the permit holder upon 
filing of an application for renewal of the permit before its expiration, and by payment of the required 
annual fee. The application for renewal shall state whether or not any of the terms of the original 
application or permit is proposed to be revised, and if so, the particulars of the proposed revisions.  

(c)  The city shall designate certain spaces or areas, within various municipally owned or leased off-
street parking lots within the city, upon which such trash dumpsters or receptacles may be placed. 
Such designation shall include appropriate painting on the parking lot surface and/or appropriate 
signage, delineating the area and use for such space. The city may limit the number and size of such 
spaces or areas within a particular lot or lots in the city, and the number of permits issued under this 
section, and may completely exclude provision for any such spaces or areas within a particular lot or 
lots, in its sole discretion, if deemed necessary to maintain adequate access, to safeguard 
pedestrian and traffic safety, to preserve the aesthetic quality of the municipal parking lot or the 
surrounding area, to preserve space for vehicular parking, or for any other valid public purpose or 
purposes.  

(d)  The director of public works or designee shall order the immediate removal of any trash receptacle 
or dumpster owned or leased by a permit holder, in the event that the permit for such trash dumpster 
or receptacle has expired, or the annual fee has not been paid to the city, or in the event such trash 
dumpster or receptacle is causing a hazard to public safety, health, or welfare, or is causing damage 
to public property, including damage to the surface or curbing of the parking lot or of any publicly-
owned fixtures located thereon, or is in any other manner interfering with proper maintenance of the 
parking lot, including removal of ice and snow from the municipal lot or other adjacent public 
property. If any such trash receptacle or dumpster is in an unsightly condition, the director of public 
works or designee may, in his or her discretion, require the permit holder to erect or construct an 
enclosure to screen such unsightly trash receptacle or dumpster from public view.  

(e)  The city shall have no responsibility regarding the depositing of trash within any privately owned or 
leased trash dumpster or receptacle which is placed on a municipal lot as provided in this section, 
shall have no responsibility for removal of the trash from such dumpster or receptacle (unless the 
permit holder has made arrangements for removal of such trash by the city as provided in this 
article), and shall have no responsibility for determining any arrangements for rental, use, 
maintenance, repair, or replacement of such dumpster or receptacle, all of which shall be the 
responsibility of either the permit holder or the private firm responsible for removal of the trash 
therefrom.  

759



11 
 

(f)  Any person who places, or causes to be placed, a privately owned or leased trash dumpster or 
receptacle in or upon any municipally leased or owned off-street parking lot within the city in any way 
contrary to the provisions of this section shall be deemed to have committed a municipal infraction, 
and shall be subject to a civil penalty as punishable as provided in section 1-9(a).  

(Code 2017, § 12-13; Ord. No. 2770, § 1, 7-9-2012; Ord. No. 2880, § 2, 9-19-2016; Ord. No. 2896, § 6, 3-
6-2017) 

       Section 4.  Section 15-83, General Noises Prohibited, Of Article III, Noise, of Chapter 15, 
Nuisances, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety, and new Section 15-83 is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 15-83.   General noises prohibited. 

(a)  Standards for determination of violation. It shall be unlawful for any person to permit, make, 
continue or cause any excessive or unusually loud noise or any noise which annoys, disturbs, injures 
or endangers the comfort, repose, health, peace or safety of reasonable people within the limits of 
the city. The standards which shall be considered in determining whether a violation exists shall 
include the following:  

(1)  The sound pressure level of the noise.  

(2)  Whether the origin of the noise is natural or manmade.  

(3)  The sound pressure level of the background noise.  

(4)  The proximity of the noise to residential sleeping facilities.  

(5)  The nature and zoning of the area within which the noise emanates.  

(6)  The time of the day or night the noise occurs.  

(7)  Whether the noise is recurrent, intermittent or constant.  

(b)  Specific acts or conditions prohibited. Each of the following acts, among others, is hereby declared 
to be in violation of this article and is prohibited. The following enumerated acts shall not be 
construed as limiting or precluding enforcement of any other provisions of this article:  

(1)  Unnecessary sounding of horns or signaling devices. The sounding of any horn or signaling 
device on any automobile, motorcycle, bus or other vehicle on any street or public place of the 
city, except as a danger or alerting signal, and the sounding of any such device for an 
unnecessary and unreasonable period of time.  

(2)  Loud operation of radios, phonographs, etc. The using, operating or permitting to be placed, 
used or operated of any radio receiving set, musical instrument, phonograph or other machine 
or device for the producing or reproducing of sound in such manner as to disturb the peace, 
quiet and comfort of reasonable people.  

(3)  Use of loudspeakers or amplifiers for advertising. The using, operating or permitting to be 
played, used or operated of any radio receiving set, musical instrument, phonograph, 
loudspeaker, sound amplifier or other machine or device for producing or reproducing of sound 
which is broadcast upon the public streets for the purpose of commercial advertising or 
attracting the attention of the public to any structure or event.  

(4)  Keeping noisy animals and fowl. The keeping, upon any premises owned, occupied or 
controlled by any person, of any animal or fowl otherwise permitted to be kept which, by any 
sound or cry, shall cause annoyance or discomfort to a reasonable person of normal 
sensibilities.  

760



12 
 

(5)  Operation of defective or improperly loaded vehicle. The use of any automobile, motorcycle or 
vehicle so out of repair or so loaded in such manner as to create loud and unnecessary grating, 
grinding, rattling or other noise.  

(6)  Excessive noise in loading or unloading. The creation of a loud and excessive noise in 
connection with loading or unloading any vehicle or the opening and destruction of bales, 
boxes, crates and containers.  

(7)  Creation of noise near schools, courts, churches or hospitals. The creation of loud and 
excessive noise on any street adjacent to any school, institution of learning, church or court 
while the school, institution, church or court is in use, or adjacent to any hospital, which 
unreasonably interferes with the workings of such institution or which disturbs or unduly annoys 
patients in the hospital.  

(8)  Use of drums or other instruments to attract attention. The use of any drum or other instrument 
or device for the purpose of attracting attention by creation of noise to any performance, show, 
sale or event. This subsection shall not apply to a drum used in an authorized parade in the city.  

(9)  Construction or repair of buildings, structures and streets during certain hours. The erection, 
including excavation, demolition, alteration or repair of any building, structure or street other 
than between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, except in case 
of urgent necessity in the interest of public health and safety, and then only with a permit from 
the director of community development or the director of public works or their authorized agent, 
which permit may be granted for a period not to exceed three days or less while the emergency 
continues, and which permit may be renewed for periods of three days or less while the 
emergency continues. If the director of community development or the director of public works 
or their authorized agent should determine that the public health and safety will not be impaired 
by the erection, demolition, alteration or repair of any building, or the excavation of streets and 
highways, within the hours of 10:01 p.m. and 6:59 a.m., and if he shall further determine that 
loss or inconvenience would result to any interested party, he may grant permission for such 
work to be done within the hours of 10:01 p.m. and 6:59 a.m., upon application being made at 
the time the permit for the work is awarded or during the progress of the work. This subsection 
will not apply to the performance of necessary emergency work.  

(10)  Operation of pile drivers, hammers, etc., during certain hours. Except as provided in 
subsection (b)(9) of this section, the operation between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. of 
any piledriver, steamshovel, pneumatic hammer, derrick, power hoist or other construction 
equipment. Such equipment shall at all times be equipped with an effective muffling device.  

(11)  Repairing vehicle during certain hours. The repair or rebuilding of any motor vehicle within 
any residential area of the city between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. in such a manner 
that a reasonable person of normal sensitivities residing in the area is caused discomfort or 
annoyance.  

(12)  Discharge of unmuffled exhaust. The discharge into the open air of the exhaust of any steam 
engine, internal combustion engine, motorboat or motor vehicle, or discharge of air or other 
gases, except through a muffler or other device which will effectively prevent loud or explosive 
noises therefrom.  

(13)  Unlawful use of buildings. No person owning or in possession of or in control of any building 
or premises shall use the building or premises, permit the use of the building or premises or rent 
the building or premises to be used for any business or employment or residential use, or for 
any purpose of pleasure or recreation, if such use shall by the noise generated therefrom 
exceed the noise limitations provided in section 15-85.  

(14)  Unnecessary use of engine brakes. The use of a Jacob brake or any other engine brake 
within the city limits, except as required for safety purposes.  

(15)  Use of stationary machinery producing excessive noise. It shall be unlawful for any person to 
operate any immobile machinery, equipment, pump, fan or similar mechanical device in any 
manner so as to create any noise which would cause the noise level at any portion of the 

761



13 
 

property line of any property to exceed the maximum noise levels in the use zones described in 
section 15-85(a), provided that this subsection shall not apply to temporarily placed equipment, 
which shall be subject to the levels outlined in section 15-81.  

(Code 2017, § 18-74) 

       Section 5.   Section 17-76, Duties of Cemetery Supervisor and Section 17-99, Traffic 
Regulations, of Division 3, Cemetery Section, of Article II, Arborist and Cemetery; and Section 

17-196, Public Facilities Established, Management, Section 17-197, Permits, Section 17-199, 

Miscellaneous Prohibited Acts, Section 17-200, Traffic Regulations, Section 17-201, Camping, 
Section 17-202, Hunting, Trapping and Fishing, Section 17-203, Advertising, Section 17-204, 
Concessions, Section 17-205, Use of Public Address Systems and Amplifying Devices, Section 
17-206, Dissemination of Materials or Information to the Public, Section 17-207, Reservation of 
Park Areas and Facilities, and Section 17-208, Possession of Beer or Other Intoxicating Liquor, 
of Article V, Park Regulations; and Section 17-246, Noxious Weeds Prohibited; Exceptions, and 
Section 17-247, Failure To Destroy Noxious Weeds; Right To Hearing; Destruction By City, of 
Article VI, Trees and Shrubs; and Section 17-275, Recreational Trails, of Article VII, Artificial 
Lakes and Recreational Trails, all contained in Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety, and new 
Sections 17-76, 17-99 17-197, 17-199, 17-200, 17-201, 17-202, 17-203, 17-204, 17-205, 17-
206, 17-207 and 17-208, 17-246, 17-247, and 17-275 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:   

Sec. 17-76.   Duties of cemetery supervisor. 

The supervisor of cemeteries shall:  

(1)  See that the rules and regulations concerning all cemeteries owned and operated by the city 
are enforced.  

(2)  Perform such duties as are required by ordinance and as the council and director of public 
works shall direct.  

(3)  See that the rules and regulations concerning all cemeteries are at all times strictly complied 
with and report to the director of public works any infractions of the rules and regulations on the 
part of an owner or any other person.  

(4)  Keep all lots, streets, paths and grounds in the occupied part of the cemeteries mowed during 
the entire growing season.  

(5)  Do all proper acts necessary to maintain the grounds set apart for the burial of the dead in a 
neat, clean and attractive condition at all times.  

(Code 2017, § 20-107; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-99.   Traffic regulations. 

No person in a cemetery shall:  

(1)  Operate a vehicle at a rate of speed exceeding ten miles per hour.  

(2)  Operate any vehicle on any area except the established cemetery roads or parking areas or 
such other areas as may be specifically designated by the director of public works or designee.  

(3)  Operate a snowmobile, all-terrain vehicle or similar equipment, unless operated by an 
employee or agent of a public or private agency for the purposes of providing emergency 

762



14 
 

services, rescue or maintenance, and as may be specifically designated by the director of public 
works or designee.  

(4)  Operate a vehicle at night without headlights or other similar lighting equipment.  

(5)  Operate any vehicle in disregard of any traffic sign indicating direction, caution or stopping, or 
any other sign posted for proper control and to safeguard life and property.  

(6)  Park a vehicle in other than established designated parking areas, or as directed by the 
cemetery supervisor or his designee.  

(7)  Leave a vehicle standing or parked during the hours when the cemetery is closed.  

(8)  Park a vehicle, or use a cemetery, for the purpose of repair or washing or maintenance of a 
vehicle.  

(Code 2017, § 20-129A; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 17-196.   Public facilities established; management. 

(a)  Free public playgrounds, parks and recreation and arts centers are hereby established in the city for 
the use of its inhabitants, under the proper rules and regulations for the government and 
management thereof.  

(b)  Such playgrounds and parks shall be managed by the department of public works and such 
recreation and arts centers shall be managed by the department of community development.   

(Code 2017, § 20-211)  

Sec. 17-197.   Permits. 

(a)  Application.  

(1)  Any person seeking the issuance of a permit required by this article shall file an application with 
the director of public works.  

(2)  The application shall state:  

a.    The name and address of the applicant. 

b.    The name and address of the person sponsoring the activity, if any. 

c.    The day and hour for which the permit is desired. 

d.    The park, or portion thereof, for which the permit is desired. 

e.     An estimate of the anticipated attendance. 

f.  Any other information which the director of public works shall find reasonably necessary to 
make a fair determination as to whether a permit should be issued under this section.  

(b)  Standards for issuance. The director of public works shall issue a permit required by this article 
when the director finds:  

(1)  That the proposed activity or use of the park will not unreasonably interfere with or detract from 
the general public enjoyment of the park.  

(2)  That the proposed activity and use will not unreasonably interfere with or detract from the 
promotion of public health, welfare, safety and recreation.  

(3)  That the proposed activity or use is not reasonably anticipated to incite violence, crime or 
disorderly conduct.  

763



15 
 

(4)  That the proposed activity will not entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expense to the 
city.  

(5)  That the facilities desired have not been reserved for other use at the day and hour required in 
the application.  

(c)  Revocation. The director of public works or designee shall have authority to revoke a permit 
required by this article upon a finding of violation of any rule or ordinance, or upon good cause 
shown. 

(d)     Compliance with applicable regulations.  A holder of a permit required by this article shall be bound 
by all park rules and regulations and all applicable ordinances as fully as though the rules, 
regulations and ordinances were inserted in such permit. 

(e)     Liability of permit holder. The holder of a permit required by this article shall be liable for any loss, 
damage or injury sustained by any person or the city arising out of or resulting from the negligence of 
the permit holder, his employees, servants or agents, or other persons entitled to the use of the park 
by the holder.  The holder, by acceptance of a permit, assumes full responsibility for and agrees to 
indemnify the city against and save it harmless from any liability arising out of or arising from the 
negligence of the holder, his employees, servants or agents, or other persons entitled to the use of 
the park by the holder. 

(Code 2017, § 20-212)   

Sec. 17-199.   Miscellaneous prohibited acts. 

No person in a park shall:  

(1)  Ride or lead a horse, except on designated bridal paths or established roads.  

(2)  Permit or allow a horse to graze or go unattended, or tie a horse to any rock, tree, shrub or 
fixed object.  

(3)  Swim, except in a specifically authorized area.  

(4)  Use any firearms.  

(5)  Picnic in unauthorized posted areas.  

(6)  Start or maintain a fire in other than a park stove, fireplace, charcoal grill or other designated 
area.  

(7)  Dump any type of refuse on park property, except in the designated receptacles provided for 
such use.  

(8)  Cut, pick or remove in any manner whatsoever any plant or plant material unless such removal 
is authorized by the director of public works or designee.  

(9)  Interfere with anyone using a park in a lawful manner.  

(10)  Land in or take off from a park with an ultralight aircraft, whether or not motorized, or any 
similar device. This subsection does not prevent emergency landings. 

(Code 2017, § 20-214)  

Sec. 17-200.   Traffic regulations. 

No person in a park, golf course or other public lands shall:  

(1)  Operate a vehicle at a rate of speed exceeding 15 miles per hour, or as posted for all other 
roadways.  

764



16 
 

(2)   Operate any vehicle on any area except the established roads or parking areas, or such other 
areas as may be specifically designated by the director of public works or designee. 

(3)  Operate a snowmobile, all-terrain vehicle or similar equipment, unless operated by an 
employee or agent of a public or private agency for the purposes of providing emergency 
services, rescue or maintenance, and as may be specifically designated by the director of public 
works or designee. 

(4)  Operate a vehicle at night without headlights or other similar lighting equipment.  

(5)  Operate any vehicle in disregard of any traffic sign indicating direction, caution or stopping, or 
any other sign posted for proper control and to safeguard life and property.  

(6)  Park a vehicle in other than established designated parking areas.  

(7)  Leave a vehicle standing or parked during the hours when the park, golf course, or public 
facility is closed.  

(8)  Park a vehicle, or use the public area, for the purpose of repair or washing or maintenance of a 
vehicle.  

(Ord. No. 2645, § 1, 1-14-2008)  

Sec. 17-201.   Camping. 

(a)  No person shall set up tents, shacks or other temporary shelters in the parks for the purpose of 
overnight camping.  

(b)  No person shall leave in any park after closing hours any movable structure or special vehicle to be 
used, or which could be used, for such purpose, such as a house trailer, camp trailer, camp wagon 
or the like, unless such person first obtains a permit from the director of public works or designee.  

(Code 2017, § 20-216)  

Sec. 17-202.   Hunting, trapping and fishing. 

No person in a park shall:  

(1)  Hunt or trap unless a special permit has been obtained from the director of public works, or 
unless the area is within a special deer management zone as described in section 16-15(b)(2).  

(2)  Fish in posted waters.  

(Code 2017, § 20-217; Ord. No. 2878, § 2, 9-19-2016)  

Sec. 17-203.   Advertising. 

No advertising of any kind shall be permitted in a park, except that necessary for the operation of a 
concession or advertising sponsored by governmental organizations as a service to the public. All 
advertising must be authorized by the director of public works or designee prior to the erection or 
placement of such advertising in a park.  

(Code 2017, § 20-218)  

765



17 
 

Sec. 17-204.   Concessions. 

(a)   Temporary concessions. Temporary concessions, meaning concessions for any period less than 
the normal seasonal concessions, are permitted in a park only if a permit for the concession has 
been obtained from the director of public works. In obtaining a permit, the permit holder must 
conform to all rules and regulations that the city council may require.  

 (b)  Commercial enterprises. Commercial enterprises are permitted in a park only if a permit for the 
enterprise has first been obtained from the city council. A permit for a commercial enterprise in the 
park shall be awarded to the bidders who submit to the city council the most acceptable bid. The 
permit holder shall be awarded a lease for a term approved by the city council. Upon the expiration 
of the lease, a new bid must be submitted in order to obtain a permit. The permit holder must 
conform to all rules and regulations that the city council may require.  

(Code 2017, § 20-219)  

Sec. 17-205.   Use of public address systems and amplifying devices. 

No person in a park shall use a public address system or any other method of amplifying sound 
unless a permit for such use has been granted by the director of public works or designee.  

(Code 2017, § 20-220)  

Sec. 17-206.   Dissemination of materials or information to public. 

No person shall use a park as a place of public assembly for the dissemination of information or 
material to the public without first obtaining a permit from the director of public works or designee.  

(Code 2017, § 20-221)  

Sec. 17-207.   Reservation of park areas and facilities. 

No person may be granted an exclusive use of park areas or facilities unless a permit for such 
exclusive use is first obtained from the director of public works or designee and unless specifically 
authorized by the city council. Only the following park areas and facilities may be so reserved:  

(1)  A golf course.  

(2)  A clubhouse.  

(3)  A specific picnic shelter.  

(4)  Special game facilities.  

(Code 2017, § 20-222)  

Sec. 17-208.   Possession of beer or other intoxicating liquor. 

(a)  It shall be unlawful for any person to bring in or use or have in their possession a keg or similar 
container for the purpose of dispensing beer or any other intoxicating liquor not otherwise prohibited 
by Iowa Code § 123.46, within any park, including any access area or wildlife habitat area under the 
jurisdiction of the city parks and recreation commission, unless either:  

(1)  Such use or possession is authorized by a liquor control license or beer permit approved by the 
city council, and issued by the state alcoholic beverages division under Iowa Code ch. 123, and 

766



18 
 

such use is confined to a shelter or other place within a park which constitutes a "licensed 
premises" within the meaning of state law and which is designated for group use; or  

(2)  Such use is arranged in advance with the director of public works and such use is confined to 
the Island Park Beach House located in Island Park in the city, or to the Celebration Shelter 
located in Gateway Park in the city.  

(b)  Any person desiring to use a shelter or building, where beer or an intoxicating liquor is to be 
dispensed from a keg or similar container as authorized in this section must make a prior shelter or 
building reservation, have a designated agent for contact responsibility, make advance payment of a 
reservation fee and submit a $100.00 minimum damage deposit. The parks and recreation 
commission has the right to retain any or all of the required deposit to cover damage to city park 
property. The holder of a shelter or building reservation shall be bound by and be responsible for 
enforcing all park rules and regulations and all applicable ordinances regarding the use of a keg, or 
similar container, or other rules and regulations set out in this article.  

(Code 2017, § 20-223; Ord. No. 2301, § 1, 5-22-2000; Ord. No. 2422, § 1, 3-10-2003)   

Sec. 17-209.   Authorized off-leash dog exercise facility. 

(a)  Establishment of facility. The director of public works or designee is hereby authorized to establish 
one or more authorized off-leash dog exercise facilities within the city which meet the requirements 
of this section. Each authorized off-leash dog exercise facility shall be hereinafter referred to as a 
"facility" or as an "authorized facility."  

(b)  Characteristics of authorized facility. Each authorized facility established under this section shall 
meet the following criteria:  

(1)  The facility shall be located within a public park in the city;  

(2)  The facility shall be appropriately and securely fenced and equipped with at least one self-
closing gate; and  

(3)  The rules and regulations for the use of the facility shall be posted on a sign at each entrance 
to the facility.  

(c)  Rules governing use of authorized facility. The following rules and regulations shall govern the use 
of each authorized facility established under this section:  

(1)  The facility shall be for the use of dogs only, and no other types of animals or pets shall be 
allowed to use the facility.  

(2)  The owner or other competent responsible person shall at all times accompany each dog 
inside the fenced area of the facility, and shall be responsible for the supervision of such dog at 
all times while it is in the facility.  

(3)  The facility shall be open for use during regular city public park hours as provided in section 17-
198(a).  

(4)  No person shall be authorized to use the facility unless the person has obtained a permit 
purchased from the city clerk of the city, for the use of the authorized facility or authorized 
facilities, at a fee to be established by resolution of the city council from time to time. A tag 
evidencing the issuance of such permit shall be furnished by the city clerk, and shall be affixed 
to the collar of the dog at all times while the dog is in such facility.  

(5)  No person shall be authorized to bring any dog into such facility unless the owner has a valid, 
current city license and rabies vaccination for the dog, and then only if the license and rabies 
tags are attached to and kept on a substantial collar on the dog at all times, all as required by 
chapter 6.  

767



19 
 

(6)  All other provisions of this Code shall apply to the use of each such authorized facility and to 
the presence and conduct of dogs in each such facility, including, but not limited to, the 
provisions of chapter 6, such as cleanup of animal droppings, and prohibiting a dog from 
attacking persons or animals.  

(7)  No dog which is a dangerous animal as defined in section 6-131 shall be allowed to use any 
such authorized facility at any time.  

(8)  No person shall bring more than two dogs into an authorized facility at any one time.  

(9)  A person using the authorized facility shall at all times carry a leash for each dog which is 
under his supervision.  

(10)  The following are prohibited in any authorized facility established under this section:  

a.  Dogs in heat.  

b.  Dogs under four months of age.  

c.  Food, bones or rawhide.  

d.  Prong or spike dog collars.  

(11)  No children under six years of age are allowed in any authorized facility. Children from six 
years of age to 16 years of age must be under the supervision of a competent responsible 
person at all times while in an authorized facility.  

(d)  Provision for other rules and regulations. The director of public works or designee is hereby 
authorized to adopt and enforce, from time to time, such other rules and regulations governing the 
use of each authorized facility as he deems appropriate, provided that such rules and regulations 
shall first be approved by the city council, and posted on a clearly visible sign at each entrance to 
each such authorized facility.  

(e)  Dog at-large. A person who brings a dog into an authorized facility and complies in all respects with 
the provisions of this section, including any rules and regulations established as provided in 
subsection (d) of this section, shall not be deemed to have permitted or allowed the dog to be at-
large within the city, within the meaning of chapter 6.  

(f)  Penalty for violation. Any violation of any of the provisions of this section, including any rules or 
regulations established under subsection (d) of this section and posted as required herein, shall 
constitute a municipal infraction, and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-9.  

(Code 2017, § 20-224; Ord. No. 2337, § 2, 6-11-2001)  

Sec. 17-210.   Special events in Gateway Park green space. 

(a)  Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning:  

Director means the director of public works or designee.  

City council means the city council of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

Property means the approximately 3.8 acres of green space to the east of Gateway Park, legally 
described as:  

GRAMS PLAT LOT 5 ALL LOT 18 EXC BEG AT SE COR LOT 18 TH N ALONG E LINE LOT 
18 DIST 231.43 FT TH SWLY 302.89 FT TO PT ON W LINE LOT 18 WHICH IS 215.42 FT N 
OF SW COR THEREOF TH S ALONG W LINE LOT 18 215.42 FT TO SW COR TH E 303.14 
FT ALONG S LOT LINE TO PT OF BEG; and  

768



20 
 

GRAMS PLAT ALL LOT 19 EXC BEG AT SE COR LOT 19 TH NLY ALONG E LOT LINE DIST 
215.42 FT TH NWLY 152.04 FT TO PT ON W LINE LOT 19 WHICH IS 222.63 FT NLY OF SW 
COR THEREOF TH SLY ALONG W LOT LINE 222.63 FT TO SW COR LOT 19 TH ELY 
ALONG S LOT LINE DIST OF 151.78 FT TO PT OF BEG.  

(b)  The director may adopt and enforce rules and regulations to protect and preserve the rights, 
privileges and property of the city or of its residents, and to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of its residents. The director may post signs on the 
property setting forth rules and regulations and directional signs.  

(c)  The director, upon receiving a completed application, shall provide a copy of the application to the 
fire chief and the police chief. The director shall issue a recommendation on the permit application, 
with written comments from the police operations and fire operations divisions, and evaluate the 
following:  

(1)  The applicant has complied with all of the requirements of this Code and any rules or 
regulations promulgated thereunder;  

(2)  The proposed event will not substantially or unnecessarily interfere with traffic in the area;  

(3)  The proposed event will not substantially or unnecessarily interfere with any publicly managed 
infrastructure project;  

(4)  The concentration of persons or things at the event will not prevent proper fire and police 
protection or ambulance service;  

(5)  That the proposed event or use of the property will not unreasonably interfere with or detract 
from the general public enjoyment of the property;  

(6)  That the proposed event and use will not unreasonably interfere with or detract from the 
promotion of public health, welfare, safety and recreation;  

(7)  That the property has not been reserved for other use at the time requested in the application;  

(8)  That the proposed event will not entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expense to the 
city;  

(9)  The applicant and group have complied with any required permits or licenses required for the 
activity on the property.  

(d)  The application for an overnight permit shall include, but not be limited to, the following information:  

(1)  Name and address of the group/organization requesting the permit;  

(2)  Name and address of the contact person for the group;  

(3)  Approximate number of people attending the event;  

(4)  Description of the event;  

(5)  Name of any vendors that may be on the property;  

(6)  Any requests for additional services such as garbage receptacles;  

(7)  Number of nights for the event, up to a maximum of 14 days.  

(e)  The director shall provide a written recommendation to the city council within seven days.  

(f)  The city council shall consider the application request at the next regularly scheduled city council 
meeting, with the application being acted upon no later than 21 days from the receipt of the 
application by the director. The city council may approve the application as requested, may approve 
the application with conditions or changes, or deny the application. The city council may approve a 
maximum of 14 for the event, and upon request by the applicant, the city council may approve an 
additional 14 day extension for the event.  

769



21 
 

(g)  Revocation of permit. The permit to use the property may be revoked without notice if the director, 
the chief of police, or fire chief have cause to believe anyone using the property has violated any 
local, state or federal laws, rules or regulations on the property.  

(h)  The group/organization and all individual participants shall be required to have been approved for 
any local, state or federal licenses or permits that are required for the activities intended to be 
conducted on the property.  

(i)  In addition to any other appropriate department, the department of public works is authorized to 
inspect the special event and may issue citations for any violation of this Code or any regulations 
pertaining to the operation of the special event.  

(j)  The director, after consultation with other appropriate departments, shall have the authority to 
promulgate such rules and regulations that he determines are necessary or desirable for the 
implementation of this section. The rules and regulations shall be available for inspection by the 
public.  

(k)  Liability of permit holder. The holder of a permit required by this article shall be liable for any loss, 
damage or injury sustained by any person or the city arising out of or resulting from the negligence of 
the permit holder, his employees, servants or agents, or other persons entitled to the use of the 
property by the holder. The holder, by acceptance of a permit, assumes full responsibility for and 
agrees to indemnify the city against and save it harmless from any liability arising out of or arising 
from the negligence of the holder, his employees, servants or agents, or other persons entitled to the 
use of the property by the holder.  

(Code 2017, § 20-225; Ord. No. 2763, § 1, 4-23-2012)  

Sec. 17-246.   Noxious weeds prohibited; exceptions. 

(a)  It shall be unlawful for the owner or person in possession or control of any land within the city to 
maintain, cause or permit a nuisance as defined in this section to exist upon such land. For purposes 
of this section, the term "nuisance" means noxious weeds, which shall include the following:  

(1)  Those defined in Iowa Code § 317.1A.  

(2)  Grass and weeds exceeding eight inches in height;  

(3)  Volunteer trees, bushes or other vegetation that have not been intentionally planted or which 
have spread through natural means into unsuitable or unsightly areas, such as in cracks or 
crevices along building foundations, driveways, retaining walls, sidewalks, or other similar 
improvements.  

(b)  Plantings in the following areas located on private property are hereby declared not to be a 
nuisance as defined in subsection (a) of this section:  

(1)  Prairie grass areas, wildflower planting areas, natural reserve and preserve areas, urban 
woodlots, wildlife refuge and conservation areas, wetlands and natural waterways, all as 
recognized and identified by a governmental agency, provided that setbacks shall be required 
as described in section 19-48.  

(2)  Land zoned agricultural under the zoning chapter, steep slopes, wooded areas, ravines and 
lots of the city exceeding three acres in size.  

(3)  Other conservation or natural areas deemed appropriate by the city council after consultation 
with the director of public works or designee.  

(Code 2017, § 20-262; Ord. No. 2653, § 1, 4-28-2008; Ord. No. 2883, § 1, 9-19-2016; Ord. No. 

2910, 9-5-2017)  

770



22 
 

Sec. 17-247.   Failure to destroy noxious weeds; right to hearing; destruction by city. 

(a)  If the owner or person in the possession or control of any land within the city fails or refuses to cut 
or otherwise destroy the grass, vines, bushes or weeds declared a nuisance as provided in section 
17-246 within seven days after notice in writing has been given to such owner and person in 
possession or control of land within the city, the owner or the person in possession or control of such 
land shall be deemed guilty of a violation of this article and punished accordingly. Such written notice 
to cut or otherwise destroy the vegetation declared a nuisance in this article shall be sent by ordinary 
mail to the owner of record and to the person in possession or control of the land in question. Such 
seven-day period to cut or otherwise destroy shall be deemed to commence on the date of mailing of 
the written notice.  

(b)  Each owner and each person in possession or control of any land within the city may request a 
hearing with the department of public works of the city to consider any objections and protests to the 
proposed cutting or otherwise destroying of the vegetation declared in this article to be a nuisance. 
The operations and maintenance division manager, acting under the direction of the director of public 
works, shall have full power and authority to enter upon any land within the city for the purpose of 
destroying a nuisance. The operations and maintenance division manager shall coordinate the 
removal of the nuisance with the public works director if necessary. Such entry may be made without 
the consent of the landowner or person in possession or control of the land.  

(c)  The actual cost and expense of cutting or otherwise destroying the vegetation, together with the 
cost of serving of notice, the cost of special meetings or proceedings, if any, and the cost of 
supervision and administration, shall be recovered by an assessment against the tract of land on 
which the vegetation was growing.  

(Code 2017, § 20-263; Ord. No. 2652, § 1, 4-28-2008; Ord. No. 2883, § 2, 9-19-2016; Ord. No. 

2907, 7-10-2017)  

Sec. 17-275.   Recreational trails. 

The following rules and regulations apply to all recreational trails within the city:  

(1)  Recreational trails shall be used and classified as trails for: foot traffic, bicycling, cross-country 
skiing, roller-blading and other special usage authorized by permit from the director of municipal 
operations and programs or designee.  

(2)  The use of motorized vehicles and snowmobiles is prohibited on recreational trails within the 
city, except for authorized emergency and maintenance vehicles.  

(3)  No person shall permit or allow a horse under their control to be on any recreational trail within 
the city. No person shall permit or allow a dog on said recreational trail unless said dog is under 
the control of said person and is on a leash of six feet or less in length. Said person shall pick 
up and dispose of any feces from the dog under that person's control. For the purposes of this 
article, the term "horse" means any equine animal including horses, mules, burros, donkeys, 
and all lamas or alpaca like animals. The term "dog" means all members of the canine species, 
male or female, whether altered or not.  

(4)  Special permits may be issued by the director of public works or designee for special events on 
specific dates utilizing golf carts or similar motorized transportation upon a recreational trail for 
elderly and/or persons with a disability.  

(Code 2017, § 20-279; Ord. No. 2060, § 1, 5-26-1994) 

       Section 6.   Section 19-73, Storage Of Building Materials, and Section 19-74, Certain 
Commercial Use Of Public Sidewalks, of Division 1, Generally; and Section 19-94, Use Of 
Public Sidewalks for Sidewalk Cafes, and Section 19-97, Review Of Application, of Division 2, 

771



23 
 

Sidewalk Cafes, of Article III, Obstructions; and Section 19-185, Removal of Snow And Ice, of 
Article V, Sidewalk Construction And Repair, of Chapter 19, Streets And Sidewalks, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety, and new 
Sections 19-73, 19-74, 19-94, 19-97 and 19-185 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 19-73.   Storage of building materials. 

(a)  It shall be lawful for persons constructing buildings or making improvements permitted by the city 
ordinances to use a reasonable portion of the street or sidewalk adjacent to such building or 
improvement for a reasonable length of time, for depositing building materials, subject to the 
provisions in this Code governing such deposit and use. Such use shall be confined to one-third of 
the width of any street between the curbs thereof, and shall not continue longer than shall be 
necessary with reasonable diligence to supply the requirements of such construction and 
improvement.  

(b)  As a condition precedent therefor, a written permit shall be procured from the director of public 
works, which permit may provide for the erection and maintenance of a temporary sidewalk by the 
applicant for the permit as deemed necessary by the director of public works. A suitable roof or 
covering for the sidewalk shall be provided whenever deemed necessary by the director of public 
works. The person using such street must keep the gutters therein clear of all obstructions, and must 
maintain such street and surroundings free from anything dangerous or inconvenient for travel and 
traffic on account of such construction or improvement.  

(Code 2017, § 23-64)  

Sec. 19-74.   Certain commercial use of public sidewalks. 

(a)  Any person may use a maximum of three feet in width of the sidewalk next to and in front of his 
building in the city for the purpose of displaying samples of goods kept by him for sale, provided that 
the sidewalk is not less than 12 feet in width, and that nothing is used or set out on the sidewalk for 
such purposes which might endanger or injure the person or the dress of anyone who might pass on 
the sidewalk. Nothing in this section shall be construed as permitting the storing of goods on 
sidewalks.  

(b)  Temporary stands may be permitted to be erected on the streets of the city for the sale of goods or 
merchandise, such permits to be issued by the director of public works in his or her discretion, 
specifying the location thereof. Such permits shall be subject to revocation at any time, whereupon 
such stand shall be removed at once from the street.  

(c)  No person shall leave upon any sidewalk in front of his place of business any goods, wares or 
merchandise which may be left there by the person delivering or receiving the goods to or from the 
owner or occupant of any place of business for a longer period than six hours, nor occupy therefor a 
space exceeding three feet of the outer edge of the sidewalk.  

(d)  Tables, chairs and/or benches. Any proprietor of an establishment in those areas of the city that are 
zoned C-3 Commercial District under the zoning chapter, that sells food for consumption on or off the 
premises of such establishment may use that portion of the public sidewalk that is immediately 
adjacent to and that lies in between the side property lines, as extended to the curb, of the public 
sidewalk, for the purpose of providing tables, chairs and/or benches, for the convenience of and use 
by such proprietor's customers and others, with the following restrictions:  

(1)  Such proprietor and the proprietor's employees shall not at any time serve any food or 
beverages to customers or others seated at such tables, chairs and/or benches.  

(2)  There must be a minimum of five feet of unobstructed public sidewalk between any such 
tables, chairs and/or benches and the curb line of the public street, in order to allow for the free 
passage of pedestrian traffic on the public sidewalk, provided, however, that the city may, in 

772



24 
 

granting a permit under this subsection, require more than five feet of unobstructed public 
sidewalk clearance if, in the reasonable determination of the city, such additional clearance is 
necessary in the interests of public safety, health, or welfare, in light of the peculiar 
circumstances involved with the particular permit application, and the physical characteristics of 
the public sidewalk area in question.  

(3)  No such tables, chairs and/or benches shall be attached in any manner to the public sidewalk 
or to any public fixtures located on the public sidewalk. The proprietor shall be responsible for 
any damage to the public sidewalk or to any public fixtures located on the public sidewalk by 
said tables, chairs and/or benches.  

(4)  By the closing time of such establishment each night, all such tables, chairs and/or benches 
shall either:  

a.  Be moved inside the building that is adjacent to such establishment, restoring the public 
sidewalk to its normal condition as a pedestrian walkway; or  

b.  Be moved to a location on the public sidewalk that directly abuts the front of the building in 
which such establishment is located, stacked neatly, and secured by means of chains and 
locks or some other secure means approved by the city director of public works, and not 
attached in any manner to the public sidewalk or to any public benches. If the proprietor 
selects the alternative set forth in this subsection, the proprietor shall be responsible for 
insuring that such tables, chairs and/or benches do not cause damage to persons or 
property during the hours such establishment is closed.  

(5)  Before a proprietor of such an establishment may lawfully place any tables, chairs and/or 
benches on the public sidewalk in front of such establishment, the proprietor shall file an 
application for a permit with the city clerk of the city, on a form furnished by the city clerk, and 
shall pay a non-refundable annual permit fee therefor, in such amount as shall be determined 
from time to time by resolution of the city council. The application and an accompanying 
diagram or site plan shall show:  

a.  The dimensions, including the length and width, of the area of the public sidewalk that is 
adjacent to said establishment, as described in this subsection;  

b.  The five foot area of unobstructed public sidewalk adjacent to the curb which is to be 
reserved for pedestrian use;  

c.  The approximate location where the tables, chairs and/or benches shall be positioned, and 
the size and number thereof;  

d.  The location where the tables, chairs and/or benches shall be stored during the hours 
when such establishment is closed, in the event the establishment elects not to move said 
items inside the establishment each night;  

e.  The means by which such tables, chairs and/or benches shall be secured, as provided in 
this subsection;  

f.  A physical description of the tables, chairs and/or benches that will be used;  

g.  A minimum of a two foot clearance between any such tables, chairs and/or benches and 
each side of any doorway leading from the establishment onto the public sidewalk;  

h.  Proof that the applicant holds a valid license or permit to operate the establishment;  

i.  The written consent to the filing of said application from the owner of the building in which 
such establishment is located, if the applicant is not the owner of the building;  

j.  Proof of insurance and compliance with the indemnification requirements set forth in 
subsection (d)(14) of this section; and  

k.  Such other information and documentation as the city may require in order to comply with 
the requirements of this subsection.  

773



25 
 

(6)  The city clerk shall forward a copy of the proprietor's application, together with all other 
information and documentation required in connection with said application, to the city director 
of public works, and to either Community Main Street, Inc., for tables, chairs and/or benches to 
be located in the downtown Parkade area of the city, or to College Hill Partnership, for tables, 
chairs and/or benches to be located in the College Hill area of the city, for review as to 
compliance with the requirements of this subsection, compliance with the interests of public 
safety, health or welfare, and compliance with the aesthetics of the area. If the application is 
approved by both the city director of public works and either Community Main Street, Inc., or 
College Hill Partnership, as being in compliance with the requirements of this subsection, the 
city clerk shall issue a permit therefor to the applicant. If the application is not approved by both 
the city director of public works and either Community Main Street, Inc., or College Hill 
Partnership, the city clerk shall notify the applicant of the reason or reasons the application was 
not approved. The applicant shall be afforded a period of 30 days from the date of the city 
clerk's notice, within which to revise the application in an effort to comply with the requirements 
of this subsection and to correct the reasons for denial thereof. If the revised application is 
approved by both the director of public works and either Community Main Street, Inc., or 
College Hill Partnership, the city clerk shall issue a permit. If the revised application is not 
approved by both the city director of public works and either Community Main Street, Inc., or 
College Hill Partnership, the city clerk shall not issue a permit. In that event, the applicant shall 
have a period of 30 days from the date of notice of denial to appeal the denial to the 
administration committee of the city council. The administration committee shall conduct a 
hearing on the appeal of the denial of the application within 30 days, shall afford the applicant 
an opportunity to present information in support of the application, and shall issue a decision to 
either approve the application, which may be conditioned on one or more requirements, or to 
deny the application. The decision of the administration committee shall be final.  

(7)  Any permit issued under this subsection (d) of this section shall be issued for a period of one 
year, and may be renewed upon the filing of an application for renewal of the permit before its 
expiration by the proprietor, and by payment of the required annual fee. The application for 
renewal shall state whether or not any of the contents of the original application is being 
revised, failing which the contents of the application for renewal shall be deemed to be the 
same as contained in the original application.  

(8)  In the event that ownership of the establishment holding the permit is sold, conveyed or 
transferred to another person or entity, the permit shall not thereby be transferred, and the new 
owner shall be required to file a new and separate application for such a permit, as provided in 
this subsection.  

(9)  The city reserves the right to limit the number of permits issued under this subsection if 
necessary to maintain adequate pedestrian flow, to permit adequate access to building 
entrances, to safeguard pedestrian and traffic safety, to preserve the aesthetic quality of the 
surrounding area, or for any other valid public purpose. The city reserves the right to either deny 
an application which otherwise meets the requirements of this subsection, or to require the 
proprietor to meet additional terms and conditions for issuance of a permit beyond the 
requirements set forth in this subsection if, in the reasonable determination of the city, either 
granting the permit, or granting it without such additional terms and conditions, would not 
adequately protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the city or of its residents, 
or would not adequately protect or preserve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort or 
convenience of the city's residents.  

(10)  The city director of public works may order the immediate removal of any or all of a permit 
holder's tables, chairs and/or benches in the event such items are causing a hazard to public 
safety, health or welfare, are interfering with the unobstructed passage of pedestrians, are 
unsightly in appearance or unsanitary in condition, are interfering with removal of ice and snow 
from the public sidewalks, or for any other reason affecting public safety, health or welfare.  

(11)  A permit issued under this subsection shall be revoked if the proprietor holding the permit 
does any of the following:  

774



26 
 

a.  Fails to maintain a valid license or permit covering the establishment adjacent to where the 
tables, chairs and/or benches are located;  

b.  Fails to either move the tables, chairs and/or benches inside the establishment, or fails to 
secure them, as required in subsection (d)(4) of this section;  

c.  Fails to pay the fee for issuance or renewal of the permit;  

d.  Fails to operate in strict compliance with all of the provisions of this subsection, of all other 
city ordinances, and of state law; or  

e.  Creates or allows to exist a safety hazard, health hazard, or public nuisance under state 
law or city ordinance, in connection with the placement or use of the tables, chairs and/or 
benches. Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in this subsection (d)(11) of 
this section, the city clerk shall give the proprietor of such establishment notice of 
revocation of the permit, and the permit holder shall thereupon immediately cease to place 
tables, chairs and/or benches on the public sidewalk adjacent to the proprietor's 
establishment.  

(12)  The permit holder may appeal the revocation of the permit by written notice of appeal mailed 
or delivered to the city clerk within ten days of the date of notice of revocation. The 
administration committee of the city council shall conduct a hearing within 20 days of the date of 
the notice of appeal. The permit holder shall be notified in writing of the time and place of 
hearing thereon, and shall be afforded an opportunity to present information to the committee, 
following which the committee shall issue a written decision within ten days of the date of the 
hearing, either affirming or reversing the revocation of the permit. The decision of the 
administration committee shall be final. During the pendency of the appeal, the permit holder 
shall not be allowed to place the tables, chairs and/or benches on the public sidewalk.  

(13)  The city shall retain the right to terminate any permit granted under this subsection upon 
seven days' written notice, and may require the removal of all tables, chairs and/or benches 
from the public sidewalk adjacent to an establishment, if the city council, after due 
consideration, determines that there is a reasonable and substantial need for the use of the 
public right-of-way being occupied by such tables, chairs and/or benches, for a valid public 
purpose. The determination of the city council shall be final, and there shall be no right of 
appeal from such decision.  

(14)  A permit shall not be issued under this subsection unless the applicant, at the time of filing an 
application for issuance or renewal of a permit, furnishes proof of insurance and indemnification 
of the city that meets the following requirements:  

a.  Commercial general liability insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, with 
the city to be named as an additional insured on the policy, with an endorsement to be 
issued as part of the insurance policy, evidencing compliance with this requirement; and  

b.  An indemnification agreement on a form furnished by the city clerk, under which the 
proprietor agrees to indemnify and hold the city harmless from any liability for damages 
arising out of the placement of the tables, chairs and/or benches in the public right-of-way.  

(e)  Temporary movable signs on certain public sidewalks. Any proprietor of an establishment in those 
areas of the city that are zoned C-3 Commercial District under the zoning chapter, may use a portion 
of the public sidewalk that is immediately adjacent to and that lies in between the side property lines, 
as extended to the curb, of the public sidewalk, for the purpose of displaying one temporary movable 
sign for such establishment, with the following restrictions:  

(1)  The portion of the public sidewalk that may be used by the proprietor of such establishment for 
the display of such signs is the area of the public sidewalk that extends from the storefront of 
the establishment to the adjacent street curb and between the side property lines of the building 
in which the establishment is located, as such side property lines are extended to the adjacent 
street curb.  

775



27 
 

(2)  There must nevertheless be a minimum of five feet of unobstructed public sidewalk between 
such storefront and the edge of the sign closest to the storefront, or between the edge of the 
sign closest to the street and the inside edge of the street curb, in order to allow for the free 
passage of pedestrian traffic on the public sidewalk, provided, however, that the city may, in 
granting a permit under this subsection, require more than five feet of unobstructed public 
sidewalk clearance if, in the reasonable determination of the city, such additional clearance is 
necessary in the interest of public safety, health, or welfare, in light of the peculiar 
circumstances involved with the physical characteristics of the public sidewalk area in question; 
and provided, further, that all such temporary signs must in all events maintain at least a two-
foot setback from the outside edge of said sign to the inside edge of the street curb.  

(3)  No such temporary movable sign shall be attached in any manner to the public sidewalk, or to 
any public fixtures located on the public sidewalk, such as tables, chairs, or other fixtures, or on 
top of any temporary elevations such as fill material or snowbanks.  

(4)  No such temporary sign shall exceed 2.5 feet in width and five feet in height in outer frame 
measurements, with such height measured from the natural grade of the sidewalk surface 
adjacent to such establishment. No more than one such sign may be placed in front of any 
single store-front. All such signs must be well-maintained and kept in good repair.  

(5)  By the closing time of such establishment each day, each such sign shall be moved inside the 
building adjacent to which the sign is displayed, restoring the public sidewalk to its normal 
condition as a pedestrian walkway.  

(6)  Before the proprietor of any such an establishment may lawfully place any such temporary sign 
on the public sidewalk in front of such establishment, the proprietor shall file an application for a 
permit with the city clerk of the city, on a form furnished by the city clerk, and shall pay a 
nonrefundable annual permit fee therefor, in such amount as shall be determined from time to 
time by resolution of the city council. The application and an accompanying diagram or site plan 
shall show:  

a.  The dimensions, including the length and width, of the public sidewalk that is adjacent to 
said establishment, as described in this subsection;  

b.  The five-foot area of unobstructed public sidewalk which is to be reserved for pedestrian 
use, and the two-foot setback from the outside edge of said sign to the inside edge of the 
street curb;  

c.  The approximate location where the sign shall be positioned, and the size of said sign, 
including its outer dimensions;  

d.  Proof that the applicant holds a valid license or permit to operate the establishment;  

e.  The written consent to the filing of said application from the owner of the building in which 
such establishment is located, if the applicant is not the owner of the building;  

f.  Proof of insurance and compliance with the indemnification requirements set forth in 
subsection (e)(15) of this section; and  

g.  Such other information and documentation as the city may require in order to demonstrate 
that the proprietor complies with the requirements of this subsection.  

(7)  The city clerk shall forward a copy of the proprietor's application, together with all other 
information and documentation required in connection with said application, to the city planner 
for review as to compliance with the requirements of this subsection, and compliance with the 
interest of public safety, health, or welfare. If the application is approved by the city planner as 
being in compliance with the requirements of this subsection, the city clerk shall forward the 
application to the city council. Upon approval by the city council, the city clerk shall issue a 
permit therefor to the applicant. If the application is not approved by the city planner, the city 
clerk shall notify the applicant of the reason or reasons the application was not approved. The 
applicant shall be afforded a period of 30 days from the date of the city clerk's notice, within 
which to revise the application in an effort to comply with the requirements of this subsection 

776



28 
 

and to correct the reasons for denial thereof. If the revised application is approved by the city 
planner, the city clerk shall forward the application to the city council. Upon approval by the city 
council, the city clerk shall issue a permit. If the revised application is not approved by the city 
planner, the city clerk shall not issue a permit. In that event, the applicant shall have a period of 
30 days from the date of notice of denial to appeal the denial to the administration committee of 
the city council. The administration committee shall conduct a hearing on the appeal of the 
denial of the application within 30 days, and shall afford the applicant an opportunity to present 
information in support of the application, and shall issue a decision to either approve the 
application, which may be conditioned on one or more requirements, or to deny the application. 
The decision of the administration committee shall be final.  

(8)  Any permit issued under this subsection shall be issued for a period of one-year, and may be 
renewed upon the filing of an application by the proprietor for renewal of the permit before its 
expiration, and by payment of the required annual fee. The application for renewal shall state 
whether or not any of the contents of the original application are being revised, failing which the 
contents of the application for renewal shall be deemed to be the same as contained in the 
original application.  

(9)  In the event that ownership of the establishment holding the permit is sold, conveyed or 
transferred to another person or entity, the permit shall not thereby be transferred, and the new 
owner shall be required to file a new and separate application for such a permit, as provided in 
this subsection.  

(10)  The city reserves the right to limit the number of permits issued under this subsection if 
necessary to maintain adequate pedestrian flow, to permit adequate access to building 
entrances, to safeguard pedestrian and traffic safety, to preserve the aesthetic quality of the 
surrounding area, or for any other valid public purpose. The city reserves the right to either deny 
an application which otherwise meets the requirements of this subsection, or to require the 
proprietor to meet additional terms and conditions for issuance of a permit beyond the 
requirements set forth in this subsection if, in the reasonable determination of the city, either 
granting the permit, or granting it without such additional terms and conditions, would not 
adequately protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the city or its residents, or 
would not adequately protect or preserve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort or 
convenience of the city's residents.  

(11)  The city planner may order the immediate removal of any such temporary sign in the event 
such sign is causing a hazard to public safety, health or welfare, is interfering with the 
unobstructed passage of pedestrians, is unsightly in appearance, is interfering with the removal 
of ice and snow from the public sidewalks, or for any other reason affecting public safety, health 
or welfare.  

(12)  A permit issued under this subsection shall be revoked by the city if the proprietor holding the 
permit does any of the following:  

a.  Fails to maintain a valid license or permit covering the establishment adjacent to which the 
sign is located;  

b.  Fails to move the sign inside the building by closing time of the establishment as required 
in this subsection;  

c.  Fails to pay the fee for issuance or renewal of the permit;  

d.  Fails to operate in strict compliance with all of the provisions of this subsection, of all other 
city ordinances, and of state law; or  

e.  Creates or allows to exist a safety hazard in connection with the placement of the sign.  

Upon occurrence of any of the events described in this subsection, the city clerk shall give the 
proprietor of such establishment seven days' written notice of revocation of the permit, and the 
permit holder shall thereupon immediately cease to place any such sign on the public sidewalk 
adjacent to the proprietor's establishment.  

777



29 
 

(13)  The permit holder may appeal the revocation of the permit by written notice of appeal mailed 
or delivered to the city clerk within ten days of the date of notice of revocation. The 
administration committee of the city council shall conduct a hearing within 20 days of the date of 
the notice of appeal. The permit holder shall be notified in writing of the time and place of 
hearing thereon, and shall be afforded an opportunity to present information to the committee, 
following which the committee shall issue a written decision within ten days of the date of the 
hearing, either affirming or reversing the revocation of the permit. The decision of the 
administration committee shall be final. During the pendency of the appeal, the permit holder 
shall not be allowed to place the sign on the public sidewalk.  

(14)  The city shall retain the right to terminate any permit granted under this subsection upon 
seven days' written notice, and may require the removal of the sign from the public sidewalk 
adjacent to an establishment, if the city council, after due consideration, determines that there is 
a reasonable and substantial need for the use of the public right-of-way being occupied by such 
sign, for a valid public purpose. The determination of the city council shall be final, and there 
shall be no right of appeal from such decision.  

(15)  A permit for a temporary movable sign shall not be issued under this subsection unless the 
applicant, at the time of filing an application for issuance or renewal of a permit, furnishes proof 
of insurance and indemnification of the city that meets the following requirements:  

a.  Commercial general liability insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, with 
the city to be named as an additional insured on the policy, with an endorsement to be 
issued as part of the insurance policy, evidencing compliance with this requirement; and  

b.  An indemnification agreement on a form furnished by the city clerk, under which the 
proprietor agrees to indemnify and hold the city harmless from any liability for damages 
arising out of the placement of the temporary movable sign in the public right-of-way.  

(Code 2017, § 23-65; Ord. No. 2141, § 1, 4-22-1996; Ord. No. 2578, § 1, 6-12-2006; Ord. No. 

2647, §§ 1, 2, 2-25-2008; Ord. No. 2798, §§ 1, 2, 9-9-2013) 

Sec. 19-94.   Use of public sidewalks for sidewalk cafes. 

(a)  Sidewalk cafes shall only be permitted in those areas of the city which meet all of the following 
requirements:  

(1)  Are within the public right-of-way of the city;  

(2)  Are within those areas of the city that are zoned C-3 Commercial District under the zoning 
chapter;  

(3)  Are within an area of the public sidewalk where the public right-of-way directly abuts on a 
private building line; and  

(4)  Meet all of the other requirements of this division.  

(b)  The sidewalk cafe area must be adjacent to and contiguous with one side of the building it serves, 
and in which a restaurant is located and operating, and may not extend beyond the side property 
lines of such building as extended to the adjacent street.  

(c)  There must be a minimum of five feet of unobstructed public sidewalk between the boundary of the 
sidewalk cafe area and the curb line of the public street, free of any lampposts, public benches, 
planters, trees, tree grates, or other public fixtures located within the public sidewalk, in order to 
allow for the free passage of pedestrian traffic on the adjacent public sidewalk; provided, however, 
that the city may, in granting the sidewalk cafe permit, require more than five feet of unobstructed 
public sidewalk clearance for any sidewalk cafe if, in the reasonable determination of the city, such 
additional clearance is necessary in the interests of public safety, health, or welfare, in light of the 

778



30 
 

peculiar circumstances involved with the particular cafe permit application, the configuration of the 
proposed sidewalk cafe permit, and the physical characteristics of the public sidewalk, parking areas 
and streets adjacent thereto.  

(d)  The sidewalk cafe area shall maintain a minimum of a two-foot clearance on each side of any 
doorway leading from the building onto the public sidewalk.  

(e)  Any sidewalk cafe area that serves alcoholic beverages must be situated so that no part of the 
sidewalk cafe area is less than 300 feet from the boundary of any area of the city that is zoned 
residential under the zoning chapter.  

(f)  No part of the sidewalk cafe area shall be located within that portion of the public sidewalk lying 
between the lines formed by the extension of the exterior building lines to the adjacent intersecting 
streets, or within ten feet of any public alley.  

(g)  The sidewalk cafe area shall be delineated by, and the sidewalk cafe elements divided from, that 
portion of the adjacent public sidewalk lying outside of the sidewalk cafe area, by a barrier at least 
three feet in height, consisting of:  

(1)  Fencing or other rigid structure; or  

(2)  Ropes of a design or type approved by the director of public works and the design committee 
of the respective district.  

(h)  All sidewalk cafe elements must either:  

(1)  Be removed from the public right-of-way within 30 minutes of the closing time of the sidewalk 
cafe each night, restoring the sidewalk cafe to its normal condition as a pedestrian walkway; or  

(2)  Be orderly secured within 30 minutes after the closing time of the sidewalk cafe each night, by 
means of chains and locks or some other secure means, in such a way that such cafe elements 
cannot be used to cause damage to persons or property. If the proprietor attaches any sidewalk 
cafe elements to approved public property, the proprietor shall be responsible for restoring 
property to its original condition or condition of suitable agreement with the city, such as 
seasonal plugs, whenever the elements are removed per subsection (n) of this section. Upon 
completion of the repairs, the city will inspect for compliance.  

a.  The proprietor may select either of the above alternatives, provided that, if the proprietor 
selects the alternative set forth in subsection (h)(2) of this section, the proprietor shall be 
responsible for insuring that such sidewalk cafe elements do not cause damage to persons 
or property and do not inhibit or obstruct regular sidewalk maintenance including, but not 
limited to, ordinary repair and snow removal. Except as expressly provided for in 
subsection (h)(2) of this section, no property shall be stored on the public right-of-way.  

b.  Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (h)(2) of this subsection, if the proprietor 
elects to close the sidewalk cafe during certain times of the year, as provided for in section 
19-96(10), then all sidewalk cafe elements shall be removed.  

(i)  Sidewalk cafe elements may consist of tables, chairs, fencing, planters and plants, and umbrellas 
and awnings and similar fixtures if approved by the city as part of the sidewalk cafe permit process.  

(j)  A sidewalk cafe may not use or incorporate into the sidewalk cafe area any public fixtures such as 
benches, seats, planters, trash receptacles, lampposts, or any other publicly owned structures 
located in any part of the public right-of-way.  

(k)  Except as otherwise expressly provided in subsection (h)(2) of this section, stacking of chairs or 
tables in the sidewalk cafe area is not permitted at any time.  

(l)  Outdoor heaters are allowed if approved by the city as part of the sidewalk cafe permit process, or 
subsequently approved by the city in the same manner as the sidewalk cafe permit.  

(m)  No advertising or signage shall be permitted in a sidewalk cafe area except that the name of the 
establishment may be printed on chairs, tables, umbrellas or other amenities as approved by the city.  

779



31 
 

(n)   In the event of any damage to the surface of any part of the public sidewalk lying within or 
immediately adjacent to the confines or boundaries of the sidewalk cafe area, the proprietor of the 
sidewalk cafe and the adjacent restaurant shall repair the damage to the specifications of the director 
of public works of the city. If the proprietor fails or refuses to repair such damage within 30 days after 
written notice from the city to do so, the director of public works of the city shall cause the work to be 
done and billed to the proprietor. All costs, including administration and city staff time shall be 
computed and will be invoiced as part of the project. Any failure of the proprietor to reimburse the city 
for the cost of such work shall be grounds for termination of the proprietor's sidewalk cafe permit. 
Any such costs shall be deducted from the proprietor's cash deposit, and the balance may be 
collected from the proprietor by legal proceedings instituted by the city, including placing a lien on the 
property.  

(o)  The sidewalk cafe shall be equipped with an inside or outside water source to clean the sidewalk 
cafe area, as provided in section 19-95(5).  

(p)  No bottles, cans or pitchers shall be used to serve beverages.  

(q)  The city reserves the right to limit the number of permits issued for sidewalk cafes if necessary to 
maintain adequate pedestrian flow, to permit adequate access to building entrances, to safeguard 
pedestrian and traffic safety, to preserve the aesthetic quality of the surrounding area, or for any 
other valid public purpose.  

(Code 2017, § 23-68; Ord. No. 2827, § 2, 9-2-2014)  

Sec. 19-97.   Review of application. 

(a)  The city clerk shall submit a copy of the application and all accompanying documents to the 
following city staff for review and for either approval or denial:  

(1)  The city building official.  

(2)  The city fire chief.  

(3)  The city police chief.  

(4)  The city planning and community services manager.  

(5)  The city director of public works.  

(b)  Within 15 days after receipt of such documents, each such city official shall forward to the city clerk 
his approval or denial of the application, and in case of denial, the reason or reasons for denial. The 
applicant shall be notified of the results of the reviews and shall be afforded a period of 15 days to 
supplement, correct or modify the application to address the city officials' reasons for denial.  

(c)  If the city officials all approve the application, and the applicant has complied with all other 
requirements of this division, the city clerk shall issue a sidewalk cafe permit to the applicant, 
including the requirement for city council approval of a public right-of-way easement agreement.  

(d)  After 30 days from the date of filing of the application, if the applicant has not received all necessary 
city staff approvals, or if the application has been denied by one or more of such city officials, the 
application shall be considered denied. The applicant may file a written appeal of the denial to the 
administration committee of the city council within 45 days of the date of original filing of the 
application with the city clerk. The administration committee shall schedule a hearing within 20 days 
of the date of the notice of appeal. The applicant shall be notified in writing of the date, time and 
place of hearing. The committee shall afford the applicant the opportunity to present information to 
the committee in support of the application. Within ten days after such hearing, the administration 
committee shall issue its decision, which may either affirm or reverse the denial of the application, or 
affirm the application subject to certain conditions. The decision of the administration committee shall 
be final. No new application for a sidewalk cafe permit shall be submitted by the same applicant for 

780



32 
 

the same location for a period of six months from the date of the decision of the administration 
committee denying any application for a sidewalk cafe permit.  

(e)  If the application is granted by the city officials or by the administration committee after appeal, the 
city clerk shall issue the sidewalk cafe permit for a period of one year, or until the date for renewal of 
the applicant's liquor control license or wine or beer permit, whichever is less. Thereafter, the permit 
shall be applied for, and, if approved as provided herein, issued, for successive one-year periods 
that run concurrent with the applicant's liquor control license or wine or beer permit. If the application 
does not include a request to serve alcoholic beverages, the initial permit and all renewal permits 
shall be issued for a one-year period.  

(f)  The city reserves the right to either deny an application for a sidewalk cafe permit which otherwise 
meets the requirements of this division or to require the proprietor to meet additional terms and 
conditions for issuance of a permit beyond the requirements set forth in this division if, in the 
reasonable determination of the city, either granting the sidewalk cafe permit, or granting it without 
such additional terms and conditions, would not adequately protect and preserve the rights, 
privileges, and property of the city or of its residents, or would not adequately protect or preserve the 
peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort and convenience of the city's residents.  

(Code 2017, § 23-71; Ord. No. 2827, § 5, 9-2-2014)  

Sec. 19-185.   Removal of snow and ice. 

The abutting property owner is responsible for the removal of the natural accumulations of snow and 
ice from the sidewalks abutting the property owner's property within a reasonable amount of time. The 
abutting property owner shall be liable for damages caused by the failure of the abutting property owner 
to use reasonable care in the removal of the snow or ice. If the abutting property owner fails to remove 
the natural accumulations of snow or ice within a reasonable amount of time, the public works department 
may have the natural accumulations of snow or ice removed without notice to the property owner. Upon 
completion of the work, the public works director shall prepare and submit to the city council an itemized 
and verified statement of the costs and a legal description of the property, and the costs shall be 
assessed against the abutting property for collection in the same manner as a property tax. The 
assessment of such costs against the property does not relieve the abutting property owner of liability for 
damages imposed by this section. The city does not have a duty to remove natural accumulations of 
snow or ice from the sidewalks.  

(Code 2017, § 23-134; Ord. No. 2410, § 2, 1-13-2003)  

       Section 7.   Section 23-71, Duty to Erect  and Maintain Signs, Section 23-72, Authority To 

Place Traffic Control Devices, Section 23-73, Placement Of One-Way Street Signs, Section 23-
74, Marking Of Traffic Lanes, Section 23-75, Marking Of Turn Lanes, Section 23-76, Placement 
Of Stop Signs At Intersections, Section 23-77, Establishment Of Crosswalks And Safety Zones, 
Section 23-78, Placement Of Stop Signs At School Zones, Section 23-79, Erection Of Automatic 
Stop Signals At School Zones, Section 23-80, Painting Of Curbs Or Erection Of Signs 
Prohibiting Parking Or Standing, Section 23-81, Regulation Of Parking Adjacent To Schools, 
Section 23-82, Establishment Of Temporary No Parking Zones And One-Way Streets, Section 
23-83, Marking Of Parking Spaces, of Division 2, Department Of Municipal Operations And 
Programs Traffic Standards, of Article II, Administration and Obedience; and Section 23-388, 
Prohibited Parking During Snow Removal, of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, 

Standing And Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic And Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety, and new Sections 23-72, 23-
73, 23-74, 23-75, 23-76, 23-77, 23-78, 23-79, 23-80, 23-81, 23-82, 23-83 and 23-388 are 
enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

781



33 
 

DIVISION 2.  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TRAFFIC STANDARDS 

Sec. 23-71.     Duty to erect and maintain signs. 

       It shall be the duty of the department of public works to cause necessary and appropriate signs to be 
posted and maintained along the streets designated in this chapter, informing the general public of 
restrictions on parking, speed and other traffic restrictions. 

(Code 2017, § 26-62) 

 Sec. 23-72.   Authority to place traffic control devices. 

The department of public works may place and maintain such traffic control devices as it may deem 
necessary to guide or warn traffic.  

(Code 2017, § 26-63)  

Sec. 23-73.   Placement of one-way street signs. 

Whenever any ordinance of the city designates any one-way street or alley, the department of public 
works shall supervise the placing and maintaining of signs giving notice thereof, and no such regulation 
shall be effective unless such signs are in place. Signs indicating the direction of lawful traffic movement 
shall be placed at every intersection where movement of traffic in the opposite direction is prohibited.  

(Code 2017, § 26-64)  

Sec. 23-74.   Marking of traffic lanes. 

(a)  The director of the public works is hereby authorized to supervise the marking of the traffic lanes 
upon the roadway of any street or highway where a regular alignment of traffic is necessary.  

(b)  Where such traffic lanes have been marked it shall be unlawful for the operator of any vehicle to fail 
or refuse to keep such vehicle within the boundaries of any such lane, except when lawfully passing 
another vehicle, or preparatory to making a lawful turning movement.  

(Code 2017, § 26-65)  

Sec. 23-75.   Marking of turn lanes. 

The director of public works may cause markers, buttons or signs to be placed within or adjacent to 
intersections and thereby require and direct that a different course from that specified in section 23-325 
be taken by vehicles turning at intersections, and, when markers, buttons or signs are so placed, no 
driver of a vehicle shall turn at an intersection other than as directed and required by such markers, 
buttons or signs.  

(Code 2017, § 26-66)  

Sec. 23-76.   Placement of stop signs at intersections. 

Whenever any ordinance of the city designates and describes a through street, it shall be the duty of 
the department of public works to supervise the placing and maintenance of a stop sign on each and 
every street intersecting such through street or intersecting that portion thereof described and designated 

782



34 
 

as such by any ordinance of the city, unless traffic at any such intersection is controlled at all times by 
traffic control signals; provided, however, that at the intersection of two such through streets or at the 
intersection of a through street and a heavy traffic street not so designated, stop signs shall be erected at 
the approaches of either of such streets as may be determined by the department director upon the basis 
of a traffic study.  

(Code 2017, § 26-67)  

Sec. 23-77.   Establishment of crosswalks and safety zones. 

The director of public works is hereby authorized to:  

(1)  Designate and supervise maintenance, by appropriate devices, marks or lines upon the surface 
of the roadway, of crosswalks at intersections where in the opinion there is particular danger to 
pedestrians crossing the roadway, and at such other places as the director may deem 
necessary.  

(2)  Establish safety zones of such kind and character and at such places as the director may deem 
necessary for the protection of pedestrians.  

(Code 2017, § 26-68)  

Sec. 23-78.   Placement of stop signs at school zones. 

The department of public works shall conspicuously place stop signs bearing the words "Stop School 
Zone" at the places designated by the council. Such signs shall be of sufficient size to be easily readable 
at a distance of 100 feet by persons using such streets.  

(Code 2017, § 26-69)  

Sec. 23-79.   Erection of automatic stop signals at school zones. 

The department of public works may cause to be erected automatically controlled school stop signs 
in place of movable school stop signs, and all motor vehicles approaching such zone when the automatic 
signal is in operation and displaying a flashing red light or steady red light shall stop and proceed only 
when the automatically controlled school stop sign changes to flashing amber or green or yellow.  

(Code 2017, § 26-70)  

Sec. 23-80.   Painting of curbs or erection of signs prohibiting parking or standing. 

(a)  Where, because of restrictions for visibility and where standing or parked vehicles could constitute a 
hazard to moving traffic, the director of public works, as traffic conditions require, may cause 
curbings or portions of streets to be painted with a yellow or orange color, or erect "No Parking or 
Standing" signs prohibiting parking or standing, and it shall be unlawful for the operator of any 
vehicle to stand or park a vehicle in an area so painted or signposted.  

(b)  Immediately upon causing curbs to be painted or signs erected, the director shall notify the council 
in writing of the director's action, setting forth the area painted or posted and the reasons therefor. 
The council, at the next regular meeting, shall approve the actions of the director, or refuse to 
approve the actions and order the signs or the paint removed.  

(c)  The city council may also, on its own motion, by ordinance, as traffic conditions require, prohibit 
parking on certain streets; and when the council has so determined the director shall cause curbs to 
be painted or signs to be posted as directed.  

783



35 
 

(Code 2017, § 26-71)  

Sec. 23-81.   Regulation of parking adjacent to schools. 

(a)  The department of public works is hereby authorized to erect signs indicating no parking upon either 
or both sides of any street adjacent to any school property when such parking would, in its opinion, 
interfere with traffic or create a hazardous situation.  

(b)  When official signs are erected indicating no parking upon either side of a street adjacent to any 
school property as authorized in this section, no person shall park a vehicle in any such designated 
place.  

(Code 2017, § 26-72)  

Sec. 23-82.   Establishment of temporary no parking zones and one-way streets. 

(a)  The chief of police and director of public works, or persons designated by them, are hereby 
authorized to prohibit parking on streets within the city on a temporary basis and to establish 
temporary one-way traffic on streets to expedite traffic when a special event or unusual circumstance 
occurs in the city which creates an unusually large volume of traffic which, in the opinion of the chief 
of police, director of public works or others authorized by them, creates hazards to traffic and 
pedestrians.  

(b)  Whenever the chief of police, director of public works or persons authorized by them shall 
temporarily prohibit parking on a street or temporarily establish one-way traffic on a street, they shall 
cause appropriate notice to be given with a means of notice reasonably calculated to give notice to 
operators of motor vehicles of the prohibited parking or the one-way traffic movement. Such notice 
may be by special signs or by a temporary alteration of the existing signs or signing method which 
may be deemed appropriate, or by direction of individuals authorized by the chief of police to direct 
such traffic and such parking.  

(Code 2017, § 26-73)  

Sec. 23-83.   Marking of parking spaces. 

(a)  The department of public works is hereby directed and authorized to mark off individual parking 
spaces in parking meter zones designated and described in section 23-411, and in all other areas 
where parking in stalls is desired and authorized within the city. Such parking spaces shall be 
designated by lines painted or durably marked on the curbing or surface of the street.  

(b)  At each space so marked, it shall be unlawful to park any vehicle in such a way that such vehicle 
shall not be entirely within the limits of the space so designated.  

(Code 2017, § 26-74)  

Sec. 23-388.   Prohibited parking during snow removal. 

(a)  Whenever the mayor or director of public works or the director's designee finds on the basis of 
excess accumulation of snow, that weather conditions have created or are likely to create hazardous 
road and driving conditions which will impede or are likely to impede movement of fire, health, police, 
emergency or other vital vehicular traffic, the mayor or director of public works or the director's 
designee may declare a snow emergency, and declare that snow removal from priority streets shall 
begin and shall prohibit parking or stopping of vehicles on designated snow removal routes. While 
the snow emergency is in effect, no person shall park, abandon or leave unattended any vehicle 

784



36 
 

upon any snow removal route or portion of such route, as designated as such by subsection (d) of 
this section. Each street designated as a snow removal route shall be marked with signs displaying 
the words, "Emergency Snow Route." A snow removal parking ban shall continue from its 
declaration through the duration of the snow storm, and until the mayor or director of public works or 
the director's designee issues notice that the snow emergency is at an end. The public will be 
notified via local radio, television and newspaper when the snow emergency begins and is 
concluded. The parking prohibition on snow removal routes shall not go into effect until two hours 
after the snow emergency has been declared in accordance with this section. Termination of the 
parking prohibition shall be effective immediately upon the announcement that the snow emergency 
is at an end.  

(b)  When it is declared that snow removal operations are to begin, it shall be unlawful for the driver of 
any vehicle to impede or block traffic on designated snow removal routes.  

(c)  Any police officer of the city police operations division, including duly authorized volunteer officers, 
or the director of public works or the director's designee shall be authorized to cause the towing of 
vehicles blocking traffic or parking on designated snow removal routes during snow removal 
operations in violation of this section. The owner of the vehicle shall pay the costs of towing and 
storage occasioned by the removal of the vehicle as provided herein. In addition any police officer of 
the city police operations division, including duly authorized volunteer officers, the director of public 
works or the director's designee shall be authorized to issue parking tickets for violations of this 
section, parking on designated snow removal routes during snow removal operations.  

(d)  Priority snow removal routes are designated as follows:  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

Second Street  From State Street to Franklin Street  

Third Street  From State Street to Franklin Street  

Fourth Street  From State Street to Washington Street  

Fifth Street  From State Street to Washington Street  

Sixth Street  From State Street to Clay Street  

18th Street (West)  From College Street to Hudson Road  

23rd Street  From College Street to Merner Avenue  

Clay Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

College Street  From University Avenue to 18th Street  

Division Street  From Eighth Street to 12th Street  

785



37 
 

Franklin Street  From Sixth Street to First Street  

Main Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

Orchard Drive  From South Main Street to Cedar Heights Drive  

State Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

Walnut Street  From First Street to 18th Street  

Washington Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

  

(e)  Special penalty. Any person violating this parking ban shall be fined $25.00 for each offense, in 
addition to the costs of towing and storage.  

(f)  In any proceeding for violation of this section, the registration plates displayed on a motor vehicle 
involved in such violation shall constitute in evidence a prima facie presumption that the registered 
owner of such motor vehicle was the person who parked or placed such motor vehicle at the point 
where such violation occurred.  

(Code 2017, § 26-281; Ord. No. 2679, § 1, 3-9-2009; Ord. No. 2855, § 1, 10-19-2015)  

       Section 8.   Section 24-6, Relocation of Utility Facilities Underground, of Article I, In 
General, of Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 
hereby repealed in its entirety, and new Section 24-6 is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 24-6.   Relocation of utility facilities underground. 

(a)  Assessment of utilities.  

(1)  Upon adoption of the ordinance from which this article is derived and periodically thereafter, but 
at intervals of not more than four years, the director of public works of the city, in consultation 
with the general manager of the city utilities, shall assess the condition of aboveground electric, 
telephone, cable or video systems, internet or other telecommunications utilities facilities, 
including poles, guy wires, lines, and other aboveground infrastructure within the city.  

(2)  At intervals of not more than four years from and after adoption of the ordinance from which 
this article is derived, the general manager of the city utilities shall submit a proposed long-
range, underground and aboveground master plan or plans of the city utilities infrastructure to 
the director of public works of the city. Such plan or plans shall designate the locations within 
the city where then-existing and future planned city utilities infrastructure should be placed 
underground, or should remain or be placed overhead. Such plan or plans shall be based upon 
factors such as the age, size, type and condition of the then-existing and future planned utilities 
infrastructure; city and/or city utilities plans to reconstruct streets, sidewalks, sanitary and storm 
sewer facilities, and other public infrastructure along city streets; the age, size and condition of 
trees along the public right-of-way; whether the public right-of-way lies within the 500-year flood 
level; the available width of public right-of-way for installation and maintenance of city utilities 

786



38 
 

lines and service boxes; appropriateness of placement, installation and maintenance of high-
voltage and/or high-amperage electric lines and related facilities; the availability of federal or 
state disaster-related grants or funds to replace aboveground utilities infrastructure that may be 
conditioned upon such replacement infrastructure being placed either aboveground or 
underground; and other relevant factors, including, without limitation, matters relating to public 
safety, health, welfare, convenience, aesthetics, economy, energy conservation, and availability 
of services.  

(3)  After submission of such plan, consultation with the general manager of the city utilities 
regarding such plan, and such investigation as shall be determined appropriate by the director 
of public works of the city, said long-range plan or plans may be approved by the director of 
public works of the city, in whole or in part, or may be modified in whole or in part, as deemed 
appropriate by such directors. After such long-range plan or plans have been reviewed, 
approved, and/or modified, in whole or in part, such plan or plans shall serve as the guide for 
installation of city utility facilities and infrastructure either aboveground , or underground, as the 
case may be, within the city, for the subsequent four-year period.  

(b)  When the director of public works of the city reasonably determine that the aboveground utilities 
facilities in a particular block or blocks of the city should be relocated underground, by reason of the 
age and condition of the aboveground utilities infrastructure, city and/or city utility plans to 
reconstruct streets, sanitary and storm sewer facilities and other public infrastructure along streets, 
the age, size and condition of trees along the public right-of-way, or other relevant factors, including 
without limitation public safety, health, welfare, convenience, aesthetics, economy, energy 
conservation, and availability of services, the director of public works shall cause a written notice to 
be sent by certified mail to each public utility whose services make use of any of the aboveground 
utilities infrastructure in that particular block or blocks of the city. Such notice shall be given at least 
180 days prior to the date work installing such utilities facilities underground shall commence. The 
notice shall include an order that the identified facilities shall be removed from poles and placed 
underground as provided in this chapter. The notice shall provide a date certain by which time the 
facilities must be placed underground. The director of public works shall coordinate a meeting among 
all affected public utilities, to plan for the work necessary to install all such utilities facilities 
underground. To the maximum extent practicable, the city shall endeavor to cause all of such utilities 
providers to install their utilities facilities underground in a common trench, and at the same time, in 
order to minimize disruption in the public right-of-way, and to cause said utilities facilities to be 
installed underground in the most economically feasible manner for both the city and for all such 
public utility providers. Any facility not placed underground in a common trench must nonetheless be 
placed underground in a location consistent with city allocation of uses of the right-of-way as 
approved by the director of public works. In directing placement of facilities underground, the director 
may exempt facilities or portions of facilities that cannot be undergrounded safely or without 
adversely affecting the reliability or functionality of such facilities or portions of such facilities.  

(c)  The city director shall ensure that the decision to relocate the utility facilities underground in such 
area and any exemptions granted, are made in an open, comparable, non-discriminatory and 
competitively neutral basis among the public utility providers.  

(d)  If any utility provider objects to the determination of the city to cause said utilities' facilities to be 
installed underground, such utility provider shall file a written notice of appeal with the city council, by 
filing the notice of appeal with the city clerk, within 90 days of the date the notice to install the 
facilities underground is mailed to such utility provider. The city council, or the administration 
committee of the city council, as the case may be, shall hold a hearing on the petitioner's appeal 
within 60 days of the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The petitioner may present written and 
oral evidence at the hearing in support of its appeal, and may be represented by counsel at its own 
expense. The city director of public works along with any other appropriate witnesses shall appear at 
the hearing, and shall present written and oral evidence in support of the notice to require the 
utilities' facilities to be installed underground, and shall be represented by the city attorney. At the 
conclusion of the hearing, the city council, or the administration committee of the city council, as the 
case may be, shall close the hearing, and shall issue a written decision on the appeal within 20 days 
of the date of closing of the hearing on the appeal.  

787



39 
 

(e)  In considering the appeal, the city council or administration committee, as the case may be, shall 
determine whether the decision of the director of public works complies with the purposes stated in 
this chapter, and if there is a reasonable factual basis for the determination of said official that the 
public utilities facilities in the area in question should, in the interests of public safety, health, welfare, 
convenience, aesthetics, economy, energy conservation, reliability of services and other relevant 
factors, be relocated underground; and whether the decision of said official regarding the relocation 
of the utilities facilities underground has been exercised in an open, comparable, non-discriminatory 
and competitively neutral basis among all such public utility providers.  

(Code 2017, § 27-6; Ord. No. 2717, § 1, 9-13-2010; Ord. No. 2791, § 1, 4-22-2013) 

 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   
   

 

788



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: May 3, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  Reorganization Ordinances 
 
 
You will recall that I provided to you a memorandum a couple weeks ago summarizing 
the Code of Ordinance changes made necessary by reorganization.  The attached 
Ordinance is one of four being presented for first consideration during the regular 
Council meeting on May 6, 2019. 
 
This particular Ordinance addresses the renaming of the Public Works and Parks 
Division Manager to the Operations and Maintenance Division Manager.  This Division 
remains in what will be known as the Department of Public Works. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions.   

789



 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENANCTING IN LIEU 

THEREOF, NEW SECTIONS WITH THE SAME NUMERICAL DESIGNATION AS THOSE 

REPEALED:  (1).  SUBSECTION 15-2(20), NUISANCE DEFINED; CERTAIN ACTS, 

CONDITIONS DECLARED AS NUISANCES, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 

15, NUISANCES;  (2).  SECTION 17-40, SUPERVISION; APPOINTMENT OF ARBORIST 

SUPERVISOR, SECTION 17-41, DUTIES OF ARBORIST SUPERVISOR, SECTION 17-

42, ACTING ARBORIST SUPERVISOR, OF DIVISION 2, ARBORIST SECTION; AND 

SECTION 17-75, SUPERVISION; APPOINTMENT OF CEMETERY SUPERVISOR, 

SECTION 17-86, CARE OF CEMETERY LOTS, SECTION 17-88, PLANTING OF TREES, 

SHRUBS, ETC., ON CEMETERY LOTS, AND SECTION 17-89, CUTTING OR REMOVAL 

OF TREES AND SHRUBS IN CEMETERIES, OF DIVISION 3, CEMETERY SECTION, OF 

ARTICLE II, ARBORIST AND CEMETERY SECTIONS, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND 

RECREATION; (3).  SECTION 17-231, PERMIT FOR PLANTING, TRIMMING OR OTHER 

WORK, SECTION 17-232, TREE TRIMMER’S LICENSE, SECTION 17-236, FASTENING 

SIGNS, WIRES, ETC., SECTION 17-237, DEPOSIT OR STORAGE OF MATERIALS 

IMPEDING PASSAGE OF WATER AND AIR TO ROOTS, SECTION 17-245, FAILURE TO 

DESTROY INFECTED TREES OR WOOD; DESTRUCTION BY CITY, OF ARTICLE VI, 

TREES AND SHRUBS, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION; (4).  

CONFORMING TITLES TO SUBSECTIONS, SECTIONS, DIVISIONS, AND ARTICLES 

ACCORDINGLY.            

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Subsection 15-2(20), Nuisance Defined; Certain Acts, Conditions Declared As 

Nuisances, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 15, Nuisances, of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and new Subsection 15-2(20) is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 15-2.   Nuisance defined; certain acts, conditions declared as nuisances. 

Whatever is injurious to the senses or an obstruction to the free use of property so as 
essentially to interfere with the comfortable enjoyment of life or property by the public or 

790



community shall be deemed a nuisance. Nuisances shall include, but shall not be limited to, the 
following:  

                                *                              *                            * 

(20)  Trees infected with infectious disease as identified by the city arborist or operations 
and maintenance division manager; or any dead, diseased or damaged trees or plant 
materials which may harbor serious insect or disease pests or disease injurious to 
other trees or plant materials, or any healthy tree in such a state of deterioration that 
any part of such tree is likely to fall and damage property or cause injury to persons. 
The stump of any tree that is removed must be cut flush with ground level, unless the 
stump is made into a decorative, tasteful yard element. 

 

       Section 2.  Section 17-40, Supervision; Appointment of Arborist Supervisor, Section 17-41, 
Duties Of Arborist Supervisor, Section 17-42, Acting Arborist Supervisor, of Division 2, Arborist 
Section; and Section 17-75, Supervision; Appointment Of Cemetery Supervisor, Section 17-86, 
Care of Cemetery Lots, Section 17-88, Planting of Trees, Shrubs, Etc., on Cemetery Lots and 
Section 17-89, Cutting or Removal of Trees and Shrubs in Cemeteries, of Division 3, Cemetery 
Section, of Article II, Arborist and Cemetery Sections, of Chapter 17, Parks And Recreation, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety 
and new Sections 17-40, 17-41, 17-42, 17-75, 17-86, 17-88, and 17-89 are enacted in lieu 
thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-40.  Supervision; appointment of arborist. 

The arborist section of the public works department, operations and maintenance division, 
shall be under the control of the arborist, who shall be appointed by the operations and 
maintenance manager of the public works department, and be directly responsible to the public 
works and parks supervisor.  

(Code 2017, § 20-91; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-41.   Duties of arborist . 

The arborist shall have the following duties and responsibilities under the supervision of the 
public works and parks supervisor:  

(1)  To cause, unless otherwise provided, the provisions of this division to be enforced.  

(2)  To direct, regulate and control the planting, caring for and removing of all trees and 
shrubs growing in the streets, parks or other public places in the city.  

(3)  To advise the owners and occupants of private property regarding the kind, culture, 
care and disposal of any tree or shrub within the city limits.  

(Code 2017, § 20-92; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

791



Sec. 17-42.   Acting arborist. 

In the absence of the arborist, the duties and responsibilities of the arborist  enumerated in 
this division shall be those of a designee appointed by the operations and maintenance division 
manager.  

(Code 2017, § 20-93; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 17-75.   Supervision; appointment of cemetery supervisor. 

The cemetery section of the department of public works, operations and maintenance 
division, shall be under the control of the cemetery supervisor, who shall be appointed by the 
director of public works upon recommendation of the operations and maintenance division 
manager and be directly responsible to the operations and maintenance division manager.  

(Code 2017, § 20-106; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-86.   Care of cemetery lots. 

(a)   Persons authorized to care for lots. No person, other than the owner or his heirs, or a near relative 
or intimate friend, working without compensation, shall be permitted to care for any cemetery lot; but 
all lots for the care of which no provision has been made by a deposit in the permanent care fund 
shall be properly cared for by the duly authorized cemetery supervisor under the direction of the 
operations and maintenance division manager.  

 (b)  Lots provided for by deposit for permanent care. All cemetery lots, the care of which is provided for 
by a deposit in the permanent care fund, shall be especially under the charge of the cemetery 
supervisor, who shall properly seed or sod the lots as often as required, keep them mowed during 
the entire growing season, cut all grass around any marker or monument, and at all times keep such 
lots in a clean and attractive condition.  

(c)  Special assessment. A special assessment in accordance with the rates adopted by the council by 
resolution therefor shall be made against each and every occupied cemetery lot in a cemetery, 
where no other provision has been made for the care of the lot, payable at the office of the city clerk, 
without notice, on or before May 1 of each year. Such assessment shall be delinquent on October 1 
following, at which date a penalty of 25 percent shall be added. No further burials shall be made on 
any lot on which an assessment is due until the assessment, with all penalties, has been paid in full.  

(Code 2017, § 20-117; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 17-88.   Planting of trees, shrubs, etc., on cemetery lots. 

No tree, vine, shrub or other living thing shall be planted on any cemetery lot, except under 
the supervision and with the permission of the cemetery supervisor or the operations and 
maintenance division manager. If planted without such permission, the tree, vine, shrub or other 
living thing may be removed by the cemetery supervisor without notice.  

(Code 2017, § 20-119; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

792



Sec. 17-89.   Cutting or removal of trees and shrubs in cemeteries. 

No person shall cut down or remove any trees and shrubs naturally growing in a cemetery 
without the consent of the cemetery supervisor or the operations and maintenance division 
manager.  

(Code 2017, § 20-120; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

        Section 3.  Section 17-231, Permit For Planting, Trimming or Other Work, Section 17-232, 
Tree Trimmer’s License, Section 17-236, Fastening Signs, Wires, Etc., Section 17-237, Deposit 
or Storage of Materials Impeding Passage of Water And Air To Roots, Section 17-245, Failure 
To Destroy Infected Trees or Wood; Destruction By City, of Article VI, Trees And Shrubs, of 
Chapter 17, Parks And Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
are hereby repealed in their entirety and new Sections 17-231, 17-232, 17-236, 17-237 and 17-
245 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-231.   Permit for planting, trimming or other work. 

(a)  Required. No person shall plant, move, spray, fertilize, brace, trim, cut above or below 
ground or otherwise disturb any tree or shrub in any street, park or other public place in the 
city, or cause such action to be done by others, without first obtaining a written permit from 
the operations and maintenance division manager , who shall issue the permit if, in the 
judgment of the division manager, the desired work is necessary and the proposed method 
and workmanship thereof are of satisfactory nature; provided that a permit will not be 
required for the trimming or maintaining of shrubbery growing on any street, park or other 
public place if such shrubbery does not constitute a public nuisance.  

(b)  Bond. The operations and maintenance manager or arborist supervisor may demand the 
posting of bond or insurance before the permit is granted. Such bond or insurance shall be 
of sufficient amount to reasonably cover any damages that may occur to life or property 
while the provisions of the permit are being carried out.  

(c)  Contents. Every permit granted in accordance with this section by the operations and 
maintenance manager shall describe the work to be done and the estimated cost, define 
the species, sizes and locations of all trees and shrubs concerned, and contain a definite 
date of expiration.  

(d)  Violation of terms. Any permit may be declared void if the terms are violated.  

(Code 2017, § 20-248)  

Sec. 17-232.   Tree trimmer's license. 

(a)  Required; issuance. No person shall engage in the business of removing, cutting or trimming of 
trees or shrubbery in the city without first being granted a license as a tree trimmer. Such license 
shall allow the removing, cutting and trimming of shade trees over 30 feet in height standing in any 
street or other public or private place in the city, upon payment of an annual license fee of such 
amount as is established by resolution of the city council from time to time, which shall become due 
and payable on January 1 of each year.  

(b)  Bond. Any person, before engaging in the business or occupation of removing, cutting or trimming 
trees in the city, shall deposit with the city clerk a good and sufficient bond or evidence of insurance 
of such amount as is established by the city council from time to time, conditioned that such person 

793



will faithfully comply with the provisions of this article, and further conditioned to indemnify, save and 
keep harmless the city and its officers from any and all claims, damages and losses and actions by 
reason of any acts or things done under or by authority or permission granted in this section.  

(c)   Proof of workers' compensation. Any person, before engaging in the business or occupation of 
removing, cutting or trimming trees in the city, shall furnish satisfactory evidence to the arborist or 
operations and maintenance manager that the workers employed by him are covered by a suitable 
workers' compensation policy according to the laws of the state.  

(d)  Certificate of general liability insurance. Any person, before engaging in the business or occupation 
of removing, cutting or trimming trees in the city, shall file with the city clerk a certificate of general 
liability insurance written by a company authorized to transact business in the state, in limits for 
property damage and for a combined single limit for any person, in amounts established by the city 
council from time to time, said certificate to be written on a standard form and carrying an 
endorsement naming the city and its employees as additional insureds as its interest may appear 
and conditioned upon the faithful performance of all duties required of such contractor by any 
ordinances, rules and regulations of the city. It shall be a further condition of said certificate of 
insurance that the obligator will hold the city harmless from any and all damages sustained by 
reason of neglect or incompetency on the part of such contractor, his agents or employees in the 
performance of the work done under a license or permit issued upon the filing of said certificate. Said 
certificate of insurance shall be issued on or before engaging in the business or occupation 
described above and shall be refiled annually and kept in continuous full force and effect. That it is 
the intent and purpose of said certificate of insurance to also bind the individual, company, firm, 
association or partnership, whether it be trade name, corporation, or other business association or 
arrangement with which the principal is associated.  

(Code 2017, § 20-249; Ord. No. 2181, §§ 1, 2, 3-24-1997; Ord. No. 2421, § 1, 3-10-2003; Ord. 

No. 2443, § 1, 8-25-2003)  

Sec. 17-236.   Fastening signs, wires, etc. 

No person shall fasten any sign, box, wire, rope or other material to, around or through any 
tree or shrub in any street, park or other public place in the city, except by permission of the 
arborist or operations and maintenance manager, or when such materials are designed to 
preserve such tree or shrub and have been placed under a permit granted by the arborist.  

(Code 2017, § 20-253)  

Sec. 17-237.   Deposit or storage of materials impeding passage of water and air to 

roots. 

No person shall deposit, place, store or maintain upon any street, park or other public place 
in the city any stone, brick, sand, concrete or other material which will impede the free passage 
of water, air and fertilizer to the roots of any tree or shrub growing therein, except by the 
permission of the arborist or operations and maintenance division manager, or when such 
materials are designed for the construction of sidewalks, paving, gutters or other public 
improvements and have been placed under a permit granted by the city or some department 
thereof.  

(Code 2017, § 20-254)  

794



Sec. 17-245.   Failure to destroy infected trees or wood; destruction by city. 

(a)  Each day a nuisance shall continue, after notice from the operations and maintenance 
division manager or his designee to abate the nuisance within the period set forth in 
subsection (b) of this section, shall constitute a separate offense. Such notice shall be given 
and shall be deemed complete when delivered to such owner, lessee or other person in 
control of such lot or tract of land, or by sending such notice to the owner, lessee or other 
person in control of such lot or tract of land, by the United States registered mail, addressed 
to the owner, lessee or other person in control of such lot or tract of land at his last known 
address.  

(b)  If an owner, lessee or other person in control of a lot or tract of land upon which a 
nuisance exists fails to remove or destroy a tree or wood infected with Dutch elm disease or 
other disease or Elmwood with bark not removed, and the roots thereof, as directed by the 
operations and maintenance division manager, within ten days after notice from the 
operations and maintenance division manager to do so, the operations and maintenance 
division manager, without prejudice to the penalty provided in this article, shall effect 
removal at the expense of such person. The cost thereof shall be assessed in accordance 
with Iowa Code § 364.12(3)(b), (3)(h).  

(Code 2017, § 20-261)        

 

 INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

795



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: May 3, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  Reorganization Ordinances 
 
 
You will recall that I provided to you a memorandum a couple weeks ago summarizing 
the Code of Ordinance changes made necessary by reorganization.  The attached 
Ordinance is one of four being presented for first consideration during the regular 
Council meeting on May 6, 2019. 
 
This particular Ordinance is not specifically related to reorganization.  Rather, the 
changes represented in this Ordinance have to do with miscellaneous items that have 
arisen very recently or else were not addressed during recodification. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions.   

796



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENANCTING IN LIEU 

THEREOF, NEW SECTIONS WITH THE SAME NUMERICAL DESIGNATION AS THOSE 

REPEALED:  (1).  SECTION 2-475, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, AND SECTION 2-537, 

INFORMATION SYSTEMS MANAGER, OF DIVISION 3, INFORMATION SYSTEMS 

DIVISION, OF ARTICLE V, DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS; 

AND SECTION 2-918, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES—GENERALLY, OF 

DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, AND SECTION 2-987, FIRE CHIEF, OF DIVISION 3, FIRE 

OPERATIONS DIVISION, OF ARTICLE VIII, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

SERVICES, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; (2).  SUBSECTION 

12-27(a), MEMBERSHIP; APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS; TERM OF OFFICE; AND 

QUALIFICATIONS, OF ARTICLE II, HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION, OF CHAPTER 12, 

HUMAN RELATIONS;  (3).  SECTION 15-80, ENFORCEMENT OF ARTICLE, OF 

ARTICLE III, NOISE, OF CHAPTER 15, NUISANCES; (4).  SECTION 17-140, POWERS 

AND DUTIES OF BOARD, OF ARTICLE III, ART AND CULTURE CENTER BOARD; AND 

SECTION 17-304, DIRECTOR OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS TO 

SERVE AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER OF BOARD AND SECTION 305, POWERS AND 

DUTIES OF BOARD, OF ARTICLE VIII, VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD; AND 

SECTION 17-332, MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD; APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS, AND 

SECTION 17-337, POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD, OF ARTICLE IX, COMMUNITY 

CENTER AND SENIOR SERVICES BOARD, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 17, PARKS 

AND RECREATION; (5).  SECTION 23-41, COLLECTION AND DISPOSITION OF 

MONEY DEPOSITED IN PARKING METERS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF 

ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND OBEDIENCE, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 

MOTOR VEHICLES; (6).  SECTION 24-38, WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION, AND 

SECTION 24-41, GENERAL RENTAL FEES, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE 

II, SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL, AND SECTION 24-274, MONITORINIG OF 

DISCHARGES, OF ARTICLE IV, ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION, 

ALL CONTAINIED IN CHAPTER 24, UTILITIES; (7).  SUBSECTION 26-62(f), APPEALS, 

797



2 
 

OF DIVISION 2, BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT, OF ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND 

ENFORCEMENT; AND SECTION 26-190, P PUBLIC ZONING DISTRICT, OF DIVISION 2, 

SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF 

CHAPTER 26, ZONING; (8).  CONFORMING TITLES TO SUBSECTIONS, SECTIONS, 

DIVISIONS, AND ARTICLES ACCORDINGLY.            

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Section 2-475, of Division 1, Generally, and Section 2-537, Information Systems 

Manager, of Division 3, Information Systems Division, of Article V, Department of Finance And 

Business Operations; and Section 2-918, Director Of Public Safety Services—Generally, of 

Division 1, Generally, and Section 2-987, Fire Chief, of Division 3, Fire Operations Division, of 

Article VIII, Department of Public Safety Services, All Contained In Chapter 2, Administration, of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety 

and new Sections 2-475, 2-537, 2-918 and 2-987 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-475.   Director of finance and business operations—Generally. 

(a)  Appointment. The director of finance and business operations shall be recommended for 
appointment by the city administrator. The city administrator shall recommend this appointment to 
the mayor for city council approval.  

(b)  Powers and duties.  

(1)  The director of finance and business operations shall be the chief finance officer (CFO) of the 
city and shall supervise, direct and manage the conduct of the following divisions:  

a.  Public records.  

b.  Financial services.  

c.  Legal services.  

d.  Information systems.  

The director of finance and business operations shall also supervise, direct, manage and act as 
liaison to, the library and community center/senior services division.  

(2)   The director is empowered to exert supervisory and management control over each division 
and is empowered to appoint a controller/city treasurer, and information systems manager, and 
a city attorney and to recommend to the city administrator, city council, and mayor a city clerk 
for yearly appointment as division heads.  Each division head is individually charged by the 
director to carry out all of the statutory duties mandated by federal, state and local regulations of 
his or her division.  The director is responsible for the establishment of broad policies related to 
departmental conduct, procedures and operations, and the formation of programs which provide 
the citizens of the city, the city administrator, the mayor, the city council and each department 
with a full range of support services.  The director peremptorily may suspend, demote or 
discharge any subordinate for any lawful reason.  

(3)  The director shall be responsible for the preparation and administration of the departmental 
work program and budgets to ensure that all statutory and subsidiary programs are 
implemented by the division responsible.  

(4)  The director shall perform all other duties assigned by the city administrator, mayor, and city 
council and shall be under the direct administrative supervision of the city administrator.  

798



3 
 

(Code 2017, § 2-308; Ord. No. 2825, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-537.   Information systems manager. 

(a)  Appointment. An information systems manager shall be appointed by the director of finance and 
business operations and shall be directly responsible to the director of finance and business 
operations. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all statutory civil service procedures.  

(b)  Duties. The information systems manager shall supervise, direct and manage the information 
systems division. The information systems manager's duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  Promulgating orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the members of the 
information systems division within the parameters of departmental policy.  

(2)  Making an annual report of the activities of the division for each fiscal year, the report to be 
filed with the finance and business operations director.  

(3)  Assigning the personnel of the information systems division as deemed necessary to carry out 
the functions of the information systems division, and prescribing rules and regulations for the 
conduct and management of the division consistent with the department's policies.  

(4)  Providing computer maintenance and operations support to all departments through the city 
mainframe computer, fileservers, network infrastructure, personal computers and all related 
peripheral equipment.  

(5)  Coordinating the purchase and usage of all computer hardware and software in compliance 
with administrative policy to ensure system integrity.  

(6)  Managing the city's communications system, including voice mail system, telecommunications 
and computer communications.  

(7)  Coordinating a training program which provides employees with the type of education 
necessary for the functions performed.  

(8)  Coordinating the purchase and usage of video production equipment.  

(9)  Managing the city's government, educational, local origination and public access channels.  

(10)  Coordinating the production of video programs for the government access channel with all city 
departments.  

(11)  Coordinating the production of video programs for the government and educational access 
channels with institutions and community organizations outside of the city's operation.  

(12)  Performing or causing to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of finance 
and business operations.  

(13)  Maintaining and operating police computer and video systems. 

(14)   Maintaining official city maps and keeping the maps in a correct and up-to-date fashion 
showing new additions, streets, alleys, avenues, public squares, public buildings, bridges, 
streams and other pertinent objects. The collection of maps shall include, but not be limited to, 
the city street, plat, zoning, thoroughfare, sewer and ward and precinct maps.   

(Code 2017, § 2-353; Ord. No. 2825, § 1, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-918.   Director of public safety services—Generally. 

(a)  Appointment. The director of public safety services shall be recommended for appointment by the 
city administrator. The city administrator shall recommend this appointment to the mayor for city 

799



4 
 

council approval. Such appointment shall be in accordance with all applicable statutory civil service 
procedures.  

(b)  Powers and duties.  

(1)  The director of public safety services shall supervise, direct and manage the conduct of the 
following divisions:  

a.  Police operations.  

b.  Fire operations.  

(2)   The director is empowered to exert supervisory and management control over each division. 
The director may also serve as either the police chief or the fire chief. The director is 
empowered to recommend for appointment to the city administrator, and by the city 
administrator to the mayor, for city council approval, either a deputy director of police operations 
(police chief) or a deputy director of fire operations (fire chief), who are individually charged by 
the director to carry out all of the statutory duties mandated by federal, state and local 
regulations of his or her respective division.  

(3)  The director is responsible for the establishment of broad policies related to departmental 
conduct, procedures and operations, and the formation of programs which provide the citizens 
of the city with police and fire protection. Said policies and programs shall provide the latitude 
for each division chief to respond rapidly and effectively during emergencies within the scope of 
federal, state and local regulations.  

(4)   It shall be the duty of the director to cause the enforcement of the laws of the state and the 
ordinances of the city of which the department takes cognizance.  The director shall also be 
responsible for the control, direction, efficiency, and internal affairs of the department of public 
safety services and shall have the power and authority to establish and assign programs within 
the department as is deemed necessary to carry out the functions, objectives and goals of said 
department mandated by the city council, state or federal government of said department and to 
proscribe rules, regulations, policies and procedures for the conduct and management of that 
department as deemed necessary to implement said programs.  The director may peremptorily 
suspend, demote, or discharge any subordinate appointed by the director for any lawful reason.   

(5)  The director shall perform all other duties assigned by the city administrator, mayor, and city 
council and shall be under the direct administrative supervision of the city administrator.  

(Code 2017, § 2-628; Ord. No. 2825, § 4, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 2-978.   Fire chief. 

(a)  Appointment. If the director of the public safety services department is not the appointed fire chief, a 
deputy director of fire operations, also known as the fire chief, shall be recommended for 
appointment by the director of public safety services to the city administrator, and by the city 
administrator to the mayor, for city council approval. Said deputy director of fire operations shall be 
directly responsible to the director of public safety services. If the director of the public safety 
services department is the appointed fire chief, said director shall manage the fire operations 
division, and shall be directly responsible to the city administrator. All appointments of deputy 
directors shall be in accordance with all applicable statutory civil service procedures.  

(b)  Powers and duties. The fire chief shall supervise, direct and manage the fire operations division. 
The duties shall be as follows:  

(1)  To promulgate orders, rules and regulations for the conduct and guidance of the members of 
the fire operations division within the parameters of that department's policy.  

(2)  To keep a record of all fires, emergency responses or disaster assistance calls that occur 
during the fiscal year and file the same with the public safety services director.  

800



5 
 

(3)  To maintain records of all hazardous materials stored, processed and utilized by private and 
public entities in accordance with federal and state regulations.  

(4)  To assign the personnel of the fire operations division, as deemed necessary to carry out its 
functions; and to prescribe rules and regulations for the conduct and management of the 
division consistent with the department's policies.  

(5)  To peremptorily suspend, demote or discharge any subordinate for neglect of duty, 
disobedience, misconduct, or failure to properly perform the person's duty in accordance with 
law and the department's policy.  

(6)  To provide and coordinate training programs for the fire operations division related to the 
division's specialized functions.  

(7)  To maintain accurate and complete records for the fire operations division in accordance with 
federal, state and local regulations.  

(8)  To provide a coordinated community relations program which educates the general public with 
regard to fire prevention and hazardous materials storage, handling and disposal.  

(9)  To provide inspection and prevention programs which enforce the International Fire Code and 
Minimum Rental Housing Code.  

(10)  To prepare a fire operations division budget for the public safety services director's review 
and approval for the city administrator's, mayor's and city council's annual consideration.  

(11)  To perform or cause to be performed any other duties as directed by the director of public 
safety services.  

(12)  To make all appointments or promotions for positions in the fire operations division as 
provided by state statute.  

(13)  To administer the city's rental housing inspections program, including the Section 8 housing 
program, and commercial property inspections program.  

 (Code 2017, § 2-653; Ord. No. 2825, § 4, 6-23-2014)  

       Section 2.    Subsection 12-27(a), Membership; Appointment of Members; Term of Office; 

And Qualifications, of Article II, Human Rights Commission, of Chapter 12, Human Relations, of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and 

new Subsection 12-27(a) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 12-27.   Membership; appointment of members; term of office; and qualifications. 

(a)  The city human rights commission shall consist of 9 members, appointed by the mayor 
with the advice and consent of the city council. Appointees subsequent to the initial 
appointees shall serve for a term of three years, and thereafter until a successor has been 
appointed. Vacancies shall be filled within 60 days for the remainder of an unexpired term. 
Appointments shall take into consideration the various racial, religious, economic, cultural, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, physical disability and social groups in the city.  

        

       Section 3.  Section 15-80, Enforcement of Article, of Article III, Noise, of Chapter 15, 

Nuisances, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety and new Section 15-80 is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

801



6 
 

Sec. 15-80.   Enforcement of article. 

It shall be the duty of the chief of police or designee to enforce the provisions of this article.  

(Code 2017, § 18-71)  

Section 4.  Section 17-140, Powers and Duties of Board, of Article III, Art and Culture 
Center Board, and Section 17-304, Director of Municipal Operations and Programs To Serve As 
Ex-Officio Member of Board; and Section 17-305, Powers and Duties of Board, of Article VIII, 
Visitors And Tourism Board; and Section 17-332, Membership of Board; Appointment of 
Members, and Section 17-337, Powers and Duties of Board, of Article IX, Community Center 
and Senior Services Board, All Contained in Chapter 17, Parks And Recreation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety and new 
Sections 17-140, 17-304, 17-305, 17-332 and 17-337 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-140.   Powers and duties of board. 

The city art and culture board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such 
other powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be expressly 
conferred upon it by law:  

 (1)  To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as may be 
deemed necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with state, federal and 
local statutes.  

(2)  To develop and provide an art and culture program for the citizens of the city based on the 
level of financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3)  To determine the operations and programming policy for the city art and culture center, which 
will be administered by the department of community development through the visitors and 
tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(4)  To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection process 
of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

(5)  Jointly with the director of municipal operations and programs, to evaluate the performance of 
the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager on a yearly basis.  

(6)   To make recommendations to the city council regarding the disposition of all gifts, allocations, 
devices and bequests that may be made in the city for the purpose of establishing, increasing or 
improving the city art and culture program or the development of the art and culture center. 
However, when any such gift, donation, devise or bequest is conditioned on any act of the city, 
the city council must first determine whether such condition can be met.  

(7)  To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special group 
requests for city financial support related to the provision of art, theater, music or other cultural 
services.  

(8)  On behalf of the city, to accept gifts or works of art and select or make purchases of pictures, 
portraits, statuary and relics, and other objects of art, in the original and in replicas or copies, 
books, periodicals, papers and journals on the subject of art, and furniture, fixtures, stationery 
and supplies for such art.  

(9)   To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development department on 
behalf of the city and board in conformance with the board's program policies. 

(Code 2017, § 20-163; Ord. No. 2823, § 2, 6-23-2014)  

802



7 
 

Sec. 17-304.   Director of community development  to serve as ex-officio member of 
board. 

The director of community development shall serve as an ex-officio member of the city 
visitors and tourism board, without voting privileges.  

(Code 2017, § 20-326; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

 Sec. 17-305.   Powers and duties of board. 

The city visitors and tourism board shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such 
other powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as may be expressly 
conferred upon it by law:  

(1)  To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as may be 
deemed necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with state, federal and 
local statutes and shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(2)  To develop and provide visitors and tourism programs for visitors to the city based on the level 
of financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(3)  To enhance the economic development of the city by promoting the city as a visitors 
destination and as a viable setting to hold meetings, conventions, special events and 
community attractions.  

(4)   To determine the operations and programming policy for visitors and tourism events, that will 
be administered by the department of community development through the manager of visitors 
and tourism/cultural programs division.  

(5)   To participate, if requested by the director of community development, in the selection process 
of the visitors and tourism/cultural programs division manager.  

 (6)  Jointly with the director of municipal operations and programs, to evaluate the performance of 
the manager of visitors and tourism/cultural programs division on a yearly basis. The board may 
recommend to the director that the manager of visitors and tourism/cultural programs division 
be dismissed for cause, incompetency, inattention to duties or failure to provide satisfactory 
program leadership, following a vote of two-thirds of the board members and compliance with 
the city's personnel policy and procedures.  

(7)  To serve as the city's review agency and coordinator of all outside agency and special group 
requests for city financial support related to the use of hotel/motel tax proceeds to support 
visitors and tourism services.  

(8)  To recommend to the city council the approval of grants, projects or programs when necessary 
and timely as a part of the city's annual budget process.  

(9)  To recommend to the city council for its approval guidelines and policies related to grant 
application processes, procedures and authorizations.  

(10)   To recommend to the city council expenditures by the community development department 
on behalf of the city and board in conformance with the board's program policies.  

 (Code 2017, § 20-327; Ord. No. 2823, § 3, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 17-332.   Membership of board; appointment of members. 

(a)   Subject to the provisions of subsection (e) of this section, the city community center and senior 
services board shall be composed of five members, who shall be citizens of the city.  

803



8 
 

(b)  The members shall be qualified by general knowledge or experience in matters related to senior 
activities and community social programs.  

(c)  Members shall not hold any elective position in the city.  

(d)  The members shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval of the city council.  

(e)  In order for the board to reduce to five members, members shall not be reappointed as their terms 
expire, except to achieve gender balance.  

(Code 2017, § 20-330; Ord. No. 2823, § 4, 6-23-2014)  

Sec. 17-337.   Powers and duties of board. 

The city community center and senior services board shall have and possess the following powers 
and duties and such other powers as may be incidental thereto as necessary, and such other powers as 
may be expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1)  To adopt rules and regulations governing the board's organization and procedure as may be 
deemed necessary. All bylaws, rules or regulations shall be consistent with state, federal and 
local statutes and shall be subject to the approval of the city council.  

(2)   To recommend to the community center/senior services section of the department of finance 
and business operations community center and  senior services programs for senior citizens of 
the city based on the level of financial support provided by the city council and other entities.  

(4)   Along with the library director, the director of finance and business operations and the city 
council, determine the operations and programming policy for community center and senior 
events, which will be administered by the department of finance and business operations 
through the community center and senior services section.  

(5)  Jointly, if requested by the director of finance and business operations, to evaluate the 
performance of the community center and senior services section on a yearly basis.  

(6)  To recommend to the city council the approval of grants, projects or programs when necessary 
and timely as a part of the city's annual budget process for senior services or community center 
improvements.  

 (Code 2017, § 20-335; Ord. No. 2823, § 4, 6-23-2014)  

        

       Section 5.  Section 23-41, Collection and Disposition of Money Deposited In Parking 

Meters, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Administration and Obedience, of Chapter 23, 

Traffic And Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and new Section 23-41 is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 23-41.   Collection and disposition of money deposited in parking meters. 

It shall be the duty of the parking enforcement and administration section of the public 
records division of the department of finance and business operations to make regular 
collections of the money deposited in the parking meters of the city. It shall be the duty of such 
persons removing the coins to place them in the approved container and to deliver the container 
to the city's financial institution so that the funds may be counted and deposited in the city's 
account.  

(Code 2017, § 26-49; Ord. No. 2729, § 1, 2-14-2011)  

804



9 
 

       Section 6.  Section 24-38, Water Reclamation Division, and Section 24-41, General Rental 

Fees, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers And Sewage Disposal; and Section 24-274, 

Monitoring of Discharges, of Article IV, Illicit Discharge Detection And Elimination, All Contained 

In Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby 

repealed in their entirety and new Sections 24-38, 24-41 and 24-274 are enacted in lieu thereof, 

as follows: 

Sec. 24-38.   Water reclamation division. 

The water reclamation division of the department of public works is hereby created. The 
water reclamation division shall be under the control of the water reclamation manager, who 
shall be appointed by and be directly responsible to the director of public works.  

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-27, 6-4-2018)  

Sec. 24-41.   General rental fees. 

(a)  Monthly rental fee: determination.  

(1)  Subject to the exceptions hereinafter provided, each metered dwelling which uses city water, 
shall pay to the city a monthly sewer rental fee, the same to be determined by the amount of city 
water used, as follows: For up to and including the first 200 cubic feet of water used, hereinafter 
referred to as the "base rate," the monthly sewer rental fee shall be as shown in the column of 
the chart set forth below, entitled, "Base Rate," commencing on the date set forth in the 
corresponding row of the column entitled, "Date of Rate Change."  

(2)  For water uses over 200 cubic feet, hereinafter referred to as the "incremental rate," the 
monthly sewer rental fee shall be as shown in the column of the chart set forth below, entitled, 
"Incremental Rate," commencing on the date set forth in the corresponding row of the column 
entitled, "Date of Rate Change."  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

SEWER RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE  

Date of  

Rate  

Change  

Base Rate  
Incremental  

Rate  

July 1, 2018  $18.52 per 200 cubic feet of water used  $3.32 per 100 cubic feet of water used  

July 1, 2019  $19.45 per 200 cubic feet of water used  $3.49 per 100 cubic feet of water used  

July 1, 2020  $20.42 per 200 cubic feet of water used  $3.66 per 100 cubic feet of water used  

July 1, 2021  $21.44 per 200 cubic feet of water used  $3.84 per 100 cubic feet of water used  

  

805



10 
 

(b)  Maximum fees for residential use. Residential sewer rental fees during the months of May through 
November shall not exceed the average amount charged for usage during the previous January 
through March period.  

(c)   Reduction for low-income households. Each payor of the monthly sewer rental fee who meets the 
low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the Section 8 Housing 
Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of public works for, and be 
granted, a $3.00 per month reduction in the monthly sewer rental fee for the first 200 cubic feet of 
water used.  

(d)  Users without city water service. Each user of city sanitary sewer which does not have water 
provided and metered by the city utilities shall be charged a monthly sewer rental fee which is two 
times the base rate which is provided for in subsection (a) of this section. That user may, however, 
through certified metering of well water for residential use or provision of receipts from a recognized 
adjoining public water jurisdiction, provide to the director of community development documentation 
of actual water usage. If water usage can be verified, that user will be charged the monthly sewer 
rental fee as provided in subsections (a) and (b) of this section.  

(e)  Mobile home parks. Mobile home parks utilizing a central water metering system shall be charged 
the same monthly sewer rental fees for each dwelling unit connected to the public sewage disposal 
system as are provided for in subsection (a) of this section.  

(f)  Determination of multiple dwelling rental fees. Multiple dwellings using a single water meter shall pay 
at the same rates listed in subsection (a) of this section, with the usage for each individual dwelling 
unit determined by dividing the amount of water metered by the number of dwelling units, regardless 
of occupancy of said units.  

(g)  Determination of commercial, industrial rental fees. Commercial and industrial sewer rental fees 
shall be based on actual water usage, metered or unmetered, including water added to the sewage 
disposal system by the commercial or industrial users, at the same rates described in subsection (a) 
of this section. However, the director of community development may establish reduced sewer rental 
fees, to be reviewed on an annual basis, for commercial and industrial users which have unique 
discharges requiring very little actual treatment, such as the discharge of cooling water or boiler 
blowdown.  

(h)   Residential monthly fee for certain commercial, industrial users. Commercial and industrial users 
that use higher volumes of water in the months May through November each year exclusively for 
purposes such as watering lawns, and can demonstrate to the director of public works that said 
water does not enter the sanitary sewer system may have their sewer bills adjusted such that sewer 
user fees billed for usage May through November each year will not exceed the average bills for 
usage in the months December through April each year.  

(i)  Industrial surcharge. An industrial user, as defined in article II, division 2 of this chapter, shall be 
surcharged at the rate of $0.10 for each pound of both biochemical oxygen demand and total 
suspended solids, as defined in article II, division 2 of this chapter, for all discharges to the sanitary 
sewer system which exceed a concentration of 300 milligrams per liter.  

(j)  Inclusion of state sales tax. State sales tax is computed and included in the rates included in this 
section.  

(k)   Billing adjustments. Billing adjustments may be made for any residential, commercial or industrial 
users that can demonstrate to the director of public works that water used does not enter the sanitary 
sewer system. 

 (l)  Payment. All fees required to be paid by this section shall be paid at the same time the payment for 
city water service is made or on the first day of the month for those users of sewer service who do 
not use city water service. All required payments are to be made at the office of the municipal 
utilities.  

(m)  Sanitary sewer surcharge for discharge of stormwater to city sanitary sewer system. The owner of 
any property in the city who fails to comply with the provisions of section 7-201 or 7-202, relating to 

806



11 
 

discharge of stormwater or groundwater into the city sanitary sewer system, shall be assessed a 
surcharge fee, to be added to the property owner's city sewer bill, in the amount of $100.00 per 
month, as provided in section 7-203.  

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-30, 6-4-2018)  

Sec. 24-274.   Monitoring of discharges. 

(a)  The city inspection services manager and/or city engineer, bearing proper credentials and 
identification, may enter and inspect properties within the city if there is reasonable cause to 
believe that an illicit discharge to the MS4 is occurring. These inspections may include 
investigations, monitoring, observation, measurement, enforcement, sampling, and testing, 
to determine if a suspected discharge is in fact illicit.  

(b)  The city inspection services manager or city engineer shall duly notify the owner of said 
property, or the representative of the owner or other responsible person on site, of the 
inspection at least 24 hours in advance of the inspection, except as provided in subsection 
(c) of this section. The inspection shall be conducted at reasonable times during the course 
of the business day, except as provided in subsection (c) of this section.  

(c)  In the event the city inspection services manager or city engineer reasonably believes that 
discharges from the property into the MS4 may cause an imminent and substantial threat to 
human health or the environment, the inspection may take place without notice to the owner 
of the property or a representative on site. The inspector shall present proper credentials 
upon reasonable request by the owner or the owner's representative when contacted.  

(d)  Upon refusal by any property owner to permit an inspector to enter a site or continue an 
inspection, the inspector shall terminate the inspection or confine the inspection to areas to 
which no objection is raised. The inspector shall immediately report the refusal, and the 
grounds of the refusal, to the inspection services manager or city engineer. The city 
inspection services manager or city engineer may seek appropriate compulsory process in 
accordance with law.  

(e)  The city inspection services manager and/or city engineer shall have the right to place 
such devices on the property as are reasonably necessary, in the discretion of the 
inspection services manager or city engineer, to conduct monitoring and/or sampling of 
discharges.  

(Code 2017, § 27-213; Ord. No. 2570, § 1, 2-13-2006)  

       Section 7. Subsection 26-62(f), Appeals, of Division 2, Board of Adjustment, of Article II, 
Administration And Enforcement; and Section 26-190, P Public Zoning District, of Division 2, Specific 
Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in their entirety and new 
Subsection 26-62 and new Section 26-190 are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 26-62.   Appeals. 

(f)  In exercising the powers mentioned in this section, the board may, in conformity with the 
provisions of law, reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or modify the order, requirement, 
decision or determination as it believes proper, and to that end shall have all the zoning 
administration powers of the department of community development. The concurring vote of 
four members of the board shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision 

807



12 
 

or determination of the department, or to decide in favor of the applicant on any matter 
upon which it is required to pass under this chapter; provided, however, that the action of 
the board shall not become effective until after the resolution of the board, setting forth the 
full reason of its decision and the vote of each member participating therein, has been 
spread upon the minutes. Such resolution, immediately following the board's final decision, 
shall be filed in the office of the board, and shall be open to public inspection.  

(Ord. No. 2922, § 1(29-59), 5-7-2018) 

Sec. 26-190.   P Public Zoning District. 

The P Public Zoning District is reserved exclusively for structures and uses of land owned 
by the federal government, the state, the county, the city, and the Cedar Falls Community 
School District. Although such publicly-owned property is generally exempt from city zoning 
regulations and requirements, it is expected that such governmental authorities shall cooperate 
with the city's department of community services to encourage structures on and uses of public 
land which shall be compatible with the general character of the area in which such public 
property is located. The public zoning district classification also serves as notice to those 
owning or purchasing land in proximity to publicly-owned land, which is not generally subject to 
the regulations contained in this division.  

(Ord. No. 2922, § 1(29-169), 5-7-2018)  

 

 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

808


	Top
	1. Minutes of Regular Meeting of April 15, 2019
	190415MINUTES.docx

	2. Special Meeting of April 25, 2019
	190425MINUTES-SPECIAL.docx

	3. PH - FY19 Budget Amendment
	BudgetAmendFY19PublicHearingDoc.pdf

	4. Res for PH - FY19 Budget Amendment
	5. PH - Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - University Branch of Dry Run Creek
	1. PH - Walnut Box.docx
	4. Walnut Box Culvert Cost Estimate - FINAL.pdf

	6. Res for PH - Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - University Branch of Dry Run Creek
	7. PH - Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction
	Ridgeway Ave PH.docx

	8. Res for PH - Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction
	9. PH - 100 Block Alley Reconstruction
	1. Council memo 100 block alley PH Memo 4-26-19.docx

	10. Res for PH - 100 Block Alley Reconstruction
	11. PH - FY19-23 Cons Plan and FY19 Annual Plan - CDBG & HOME
	1. Council memo PH 4-26-19.docx
	2. Draft FFY 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan (4-25-19).pdf
	3. Draft FFY 2019 Annual Action Plan (4-25-19).pdf

	12. Res for PH - FY19-23 Cons Plan and FY19 Annual Plan - CDBG & HOME
	13. Ordinance #2939-CHN Amendments
	2939-CHN code amendments (2).docx

	14. Mayor Appt of Student Liaison
	NISG 5-6-19.docx

	15. Mayor Appt - 5/06/19
	1-Appointments Council Memo.docx
	2-Civil - Lee 01-17-19-REVISED.pdf

	16. 4/15/19 Committee of the Whole Minutes
	Comm of the Whole 04 15 19.docx

	17. Monthly Report - March 2019
	Monthly Report - March 2019.pdf

	18. 3 Civil Service Certified Lists
	StormWater Specialist-CertList5-2019.pdf
	PublicSafetySupr-Lt CertList5-2019.pdf
	PublicSafetySupr-Capt CertList5-2019.pdf

	19. Annual Report for Certain Boards & Commissions
	1. Annual Report Council memo for 2018.docx
	2. P&amp;Z Annual Report 2018 (2).docx
	3. P&amp;Z Attendance Chart 2018.docx
	4. BOA Annual Report 2018.docx
	5. HPC Annual Summary 2018.docx
	6. GRC Annual Report 2018.docx
	7. Board of Rental Housing Appeals 2018.docx
	8. Housing Commission Annual Report 2018.docx
	9. Bike and Ped Annual Report 2018.docx

	20. Bi-Annual Report of Community Main Street for FY19
	10-CMS REPORT COUNCIL.MEM.docx
	20-Community Main Street BiAnnual Report April 2019_final-SCANNED.pdf

	21. Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership for FY19
	1-CHP REPORT COUNCIL.MEM.docx
	2-CHP Biannual Report April 2019 Cover Letter.docx
	3-Economic Development Fund Community Betterment SSMID Eval Form April 2019 CHP.docx
	4-College Hill Partnership 2018-19 Financial Statement - 2018-19.pdf
	5-banners.pdf

	22. W. 1st Street Notice of Appraisement of Damages
	1.council memo on w 1st street.docx
	Parcel 5 Condemnation.pdf
	Parcel 53 Condemnation.pdf
	Parcel 70 Condemnation.pdf

	23. Tobacco Permits - 5/06/19
	05062019 Tobacco Applications.pdf

	24. Liquor Licenses - 5/06/19
	Liquor Beer 5-1-19.docx

	25. Consulting Agreement for Employee Benefits Consulting Services
	1. Holmes Murphy Benefit Consultant council memo.docx
	2. Signed Consultant Agreement.pdf
	3. Exhibit A- Insurance Requirements.pdf

	26. Amendment to Express Scripts Employer Participation Agreement
	1. Express Scripts Employer Participation Agreement Amendment Memo.doc.docx
	2. Amendment to Employer Participation Agreement.docx

	27. Purchase of Copiers and Printers
	Council Memo Copier Purchase.docx

	28. Easement Agreement for Sidewalk Café at 115-119 Main Street
	SW Cafe Easement Agrmt - 115-119 Main.pdf

	29. Towing Contract - L&M Transmission
	FY20 Towing Contract - L&amp;M Transmission and Rasmusson Towing, Inc..pdf

	30. Towing Contract - Rasmusson
	31. MOU with BHC Pheasants Forever & Quail Forever - Youth Pollinator Habitat Project
	1_MOP_Pollinator_cover.pdf
	2_Pollinator Program.pdf
	3_Pollinator Map.pdf
	4_CF Pollinator MOU.pdf

	32. Grapple Loader Truck Purchase
	grapple Loader CC memo 5 6 19.pdf

	33. 2019 Permeable Alley - Contract & Bond
	1. 2019 Permeable Alley Contracts Memo.docx
	2. Contract.pdf
	3. Bond.pdf
	4. Insurance.pdf
	5. Form of Proposal.pdf

	34. Ridgeway Avenue Improvement Project Acquisition
	1. Memo-Council.docx
	2.2914_001.pdf
	3.12601771 (1) (23234_127012) (VEREIT_Fleet Farm - Special Warranty Deed to the City (re ROW reconstruction) (EXEC VER)) (2).PDF

	35. Rental Conversion Program - 315 Franklin Street
	1. Memo to Council - 315 Franklin.docx
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 315 Franklin.docx
	3. Rental to Owner Conversion Application.pdf
	4. Letter of intent.pdf
	5. Home Town Restyling Window Quote.pdf
	6. Real Estate Assessment.pdf
	7. exterior images.docx
	8. images from applicant of interior changes.docx

	36. Contract with the Cedar Falls Woman's Club - Downtown Visioning and Zoning Code Update
	1 -CC memo - contract with Womens Club.pdf
	Womens Club Contract.pdf

	37. Supplemental Agreement No. 2  for the Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project
	cc memo on whitewater supplemental agreement no. 2 on 5-1-19.pdf
	Riverwise Supplemental Agreement No 2 on 5-1-19.pdf

	38. Appraisal Services-NC Flood Buyouts
	1_Memo Approving Appraisal Services Contract 5-1-19.pdf
	2_Rally appraisal contract.pdf

	39. Encroachment Agreement for North Cedar Neighborhood Association
	1_Council Memo for NCNA Encroachment Agr 05-06-19.docx
	2_NCNA Signed Encroachment Agreement.pdf
	3_Exhibit A - North Cedar Encroachment Map.pdf
	4_Proposed Sign.docx

	40. Preliminary Plat of Furn Subdivision
	1_CC staff report Ashley Furniture Addition Prelim and Final Plats  05-06-19.docx
	2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3_Preliminary Plat - Furn Subdivision.pdf
	4_Final Plat - Furn Subdivision.pdf
	5_Signed Deed of Dedication - Furn Subdivision.pdf

	41. Final Plat of Furn Subdivision
	42. S-1 Shopping Center District Site Plan
	1. CC staff report for Ashley Homestore Site Plan 05-06-19.docx
	2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3_Site Plan.pdf
	4_Removals.pdf
	5_Utility Plan.pdf
	6_Updated Landscape Plan 4-29-19.pdf
	7_Three Entrance Facade Option.pdf
	8_Two Entrance Facade Option.pdf
	9_Ashley Home Store CF - Summary of Work.docx
	10_GCV Support Letter - Ashley Furniture - April 17 2019.pdf

	43. Developmental Procedures Agreement with Furn USA IA-Cedar Falls, LLC
	1_Council Staff Memo Furn Sub Dev Agr 05-06-19.docx
	2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3_Signed Dev Procedures Agr - Furn Subdivision.pdf
	4_Exhibit A - Final Plat.pdf
	5_Exhibit B - Legal Description.pdf
	6_Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

	44. Downtown Visioning & Zoning Contract Reassignment
	1 -CC memo - assignment of contract to Ferrell Madden re insurance issue.4.18.19-REVISED.docx
	Downtown Visioning Project Contract Assignment-FINAL.docx

	45. Adopt Project Priorities: Downtown Visioning & Zoning
	1. Council memo approving Project Priorities Memo 4-26-19.docx

	46. Sturgis Permanent Stage Proposal
	1. Sturgis Council memo 5-2-19.docx
	2. truss system.pdf
	3. columns and location.pdf

	47. Memorandums of Agreement - 100 Block Alley Reconstruction - Stair Reconstruction
	1. Council memo on stair cost arrangement 4-25-19.docx
	2. 110 Main St. (FORE Investors, LLC).pdf
	3. 116-118 Main St. (David Farris and Mimi Rice).pdf
	4. 120 Main St. (IBL DDT, LLC).pdf
	5. 122 Main St. (BT Holdings, LLC).pdf
	6. 128 Mian St. (SIMPLE as 128, LLC).pdf

	48. Supplemental Agreement No. 5 with Snyder for 2nd & 3rd St. Reconstruction
	1. 2019 Engineering Services - SA#5.docx
	PSA_SuppAgr05_2019-05-06_2ndand3rd-Final.docx

	49. Ordinance-Reorg of PW & CD Divisions
	1-Memo to Mayor, Council, Reorg. changes, change in Divisions.docx
	1-Ord-Reorg-CD-PW Exchange of Divisions.docx

	50. Ordinance Renaming MOPS to PW
	2-Memo to Mayor, Council, Reorg. changes, MOPS to Public Works.docx
	2-Ord-Reorganization-MOPS to PW.docx

	51. Ordinance-Renaming PW&P Manager to O&M Manager
	3-Memo to Mayor, Council, Reorg. changes, Operations and Maintenance Manager.docx
	3-Ord-Reorganization-Rename PW Mgr to OM Mgr.docx

	52. Ordinance-Conform with State law
	4-Memo to Mayor, Council, Reorg. changes, Misc..docx
	4-Ord-Reorganization-Misc.docx

	53. Allow Bills and Payroll of May 6, 2019
	54. Executive Session - Legal Matters and Property Acquisition
	Bottom

